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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents
December 15, 2017 Board Meeting

Friday, December 15, 2017
8:45 AM – 9:30 AM

Athletic Affairs Committee

Room 201

8:45 AM – 9:30 AM

Education Policies Committee

Room 205

9:45 AM – 10:30 AM

Faculty Affairs Committee
Faculty Affairs Meeting has been canceled

Room 205

9:45 AM – 10:30 AM

Student Affairs Committee

Room 201

10:45 AM – 11:30 AM

Finance and Investment Committee

Room 201

1:00 PM

Regular Board Meeting

Room 201

AGENDA

Section 1

Call to Order
Roll Call Attendance
Proposed Minutes of the October 20, 2017 General Board Meeting

CONSENT AGENDA
Section 2
Section 3
Section 4
Section 5

Staff Appointments
Staff Separations/Retirements
Emeritus Staff Recommendations
Emeritus Faculty Recommendations

REGULAR AGENDA
Student Affairs Committee
Section 6
Report and Minutes
Athletic Affairs Committee
Section 7
Report and Minutes
Faculty Affairs Committee – Meeting Canceled
Section 8
Report and Minutes
1

Educational Policies Committee
Section 9
Report and Minutes
Section 10
Appointment of Charter Schools Board Members
Section 11
New Academic Program: Information Technology Major, Bachelor of Science
Section 12
James H. Brickley Endowment for Faculty Professional Development and Innovation
2017 Award Winners
Finance and Investment Committee
Section 13
Report and Minutes
Section 14
FY19 Room and Board, Apartment Rates
Section 15
Eastern Michigan University Foundation Financial Reports (June 30, 2017)
Section 16
Amendment to Parking Ordnance
Section 17
Parking Concessionaire Agreement
Section 18
Approval of Capital Projects

NEW BUSINESS AND PRESENTATIONS
Tab A
Tab B

Tab C
Tab D
Tab E
Tab F
Tab G
Tab H
Tab I

Presentation: President’s Commission on Diversity and Inclusion
Updated Policies:
Section 6.1.1: Degrees, Certificates and Requirements for Graduation
Section 6.1.2: General Curricular Requirements
Section 6.2.1.3: Undergraduate Grades and Academic Progress
Section 6.2.1.4: Undergraduate Drops and Withdrawals from Courses
Section 6.2.1.5: Undergraduate Total Withdrawals from all Courses
Section 6.2.1.6: Undergraduate Academic Standing
Section 6.3.1.1: Continuing Education Division (deletion)
Section 6.3.1.2: Continuing Education Units
Section 6.3.1.3: In-Service Courses (deletion)
Section 8.1: Student Conduct Code and Judicial Structure
Section 8.3: Prohibition Against Discrimination on the Basis of Disability
Section 9.3.1: Public Act of 1967
Section 9.3.2: Traffic and Parking Regulations
Section 9.3.3: Vehicle Registration (deletion)
Section 9.3.4: Parking Rates (deletion)
Section 9.3.5: Parking and Pedestrian Ordinance (deletion)
Section 9.3.6: List of Other References to Traffic and Parking
Section 12.1.11: Registration Fee
Section 12.1.12: Late Registration Fee
Section 12.2.3: Charges for Transcripts of Credits
Election of Eagle Administrative Services Board Member
Officer Bylaw Amendment
Election of Officers
Resolution: Women’s Cross Country MAC Champions
Resolution: Men’s Cross Country MAC Champions
Resolution: Linda Yohn - WEMU
Resolution: Early College Alliance - 10 Year Anniversary
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Tab J
Tab K

President’s Report
Open Communications
Comments from the Chair
Passing of the Gavel
Adjournment
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President’s Report
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents Meeting
December 15, 2017

Mr. Chairman and Distinguished Members of the Board of Regents:
Tomorrow morning, one of the annual milestone events at Eastern Michigan University will
take place at our Convocation Center. More than 1,700 new graduates will walk across the
stage at our winter Commencement ceremony. The graduates include students from all walks
of life and all backgrounds. This is always a great day and I speak for our faculty, staff,
administrators and alumni in celebrating Eastern’s newest graduates. We are pleased to
welcome DTE Energy Vice President, Legal and Chief Tax Officer JoAnn Chávez as our
commencement speaker.
The new parking agreement provides Eastern with $55 million in exchange for the 35-year
operation of our parking system. It is an innovative partnership that will benefit our University
for decades, and Eastern is the first university in Michigan to implement such a partnership.
The partnership provides Eastern with a new level of parking services by a top operator in the
nation, one that manages more than 2,500 parking systems, including The Ohio State
University.
It is important to note that Eastern’s core business is not parking operations, nor should it be.
The new operator will bring enhancements to our operations, including capital investments to
upgrade parking lots, and technology that brings faster, easier and more seamless entry, exit
and payment. Full details about the agreement will be posted on the University’s website
following this meeting.
Funds from this agreement will help the University in our investment in the renovation and
building plans approved today for Sill Hall, the Rec/IM and the sports medicine and
performance training facility. This is the next step in the building, renovation and updating of
campus facilities over the last five years, a process that has included the new and expanded
Science Complex; upgrades to the Rackham Building to accommodate expansion in the
health sciences; the comprehensive renovation of Pray-Harrold, Eastern’s largest classroom
building; the new Honors College building; and, major upgrades to student housing including
Wise, Best and Hoyt halls.
At the same time, we have made significant investments in sustainability and in reducing our
carbon footprint with the installation of the new 55-ton co-generation turbine that will generate
more than 90 percent of the heat and electricity that our campus uses. The new unit is
scheduled to begin operating next month and is projected to reduce the University’s energy
costs by nearly $3 million annually.
We continue to introduce new academic programs in high demand fields. The new degree in
Information Technology will help meet the growing demand for skilled IT talent. Analysts
project a 22 percent growth in IT jobs by 2020, including a 20 percent increase in the
healthcare field. No other university in Southeast Michigan offers a bachelor’s degree in
Information Technology.
The new Information Technology program continues our plans to create programs that meet
the needs of today’s students and employers. Last February, we announced a new degree
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program in Mechanical Engineering that began this fall. In October, we announced a new
program in Electrical and Computer Engineering that will begin next fall.
The Commission on Diversity and Inclusion issued its preliminary recommendations that set
a plan for increased support of institutional diversity, equity and inclusion at Eastern. I would
like to acknowledge the fine work of Commission Chair, Professor Ronald Woods and ViceChair, Associate Professor Devika Dibya Choudhuri, as well as all of the Commission
members. The preliminary recommendations and a mechanism for providing input can be
found on the President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion website. The site also
includes further information about the Commission and a full list of members.
We are pleased to host our 32nd annual Martin Luther King, Jr. celebration from January 11th
to the 16th. We are excited to welcome Joy-Ann Reid, political analyst and correspondent for
MSNBC, who is our keynote speaker for the President’s Luncheon on Monday, January 15.
A few other accomplishments to note:


Eastern’s Dietetics program was ranked fourth in the nation by AffordableColleges.com.



Eastern’s Music Therapy program, one of two programs in Michigan, was named one of
the 10 best in the nation by TheBestSchools.org.



For the 14th consecutive year, the College of Business was ranked as one of nation’s best
business schools by The Princeton Review.



The EMU Foundation raised more than $468,000 during its #GivingTRUEDay campaign
on Tuesday, November 28, eclipsing the previous single-day record by nearly $200,000.

Other accomplishments are listed in the Appendix to this report on the University website. As I
conclude, I would like to wish everyone a happy, restful and peaceful holiday season. I also would
like to personally acknowledge the outstanding work of our Board Chair, Mike Morris. Chairman
Morris has served with great accomplishment and distinction as Board Chair since January 2015.
And, though he will no longer be Board Chair, it is uplifting to know he will remain on the Board
through the end of next year.
Thank you, Chairman Morris.
James M. Smith, Ph.D.
President
Eastern Michigan University
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Recognition


EMU is producing a new “EMU Today” television program that is running on Xfinity
On Demand and on the Eastern YouTube channel. Sarah Poeracki, a junior double
majoring in Electronic Media and Film Studies, and Entertainment Design and
Technology, is a co-host with Mark Lee, EMU alumnus, local radio host, and part-time
lecturer in the College of Business. Dereka Bennett, a senior majoring in Media
Studies and Journalism, is the field reporter. Other CMTA students, as well as faculty
and staff, will be involved in the production.

Events


EMU’s Center for Digital Engagement held its seventh annual Digital Marketing
Workshop on Nov. 17.



The internationally-known Kikuno-Kai dance troupe performed at EMU on Nov. 6 and
at the Detroit Institute of Art on Nov. 4-5 as part of the DIA’s “Japan Cultural Days”
exhibit.



The Digital Divas event for area middle school girls was held on Nov. 3. The event
provides a venue for connecting young women with career opportunities in science,
technology, engineering and mathematics.



EMU’s annual German Week celebration was held Oct. 23-27. Sponsored by the
German Section of the department of World Languages, the event brings together
area high school students, teachers of German, EMU students, guests and donors to
celebrate the German heritage.



EMU hosted the Michigan Drone Conference on Oct. 24.

Athletics


Cross Country (Women): The Eagles earned their third consecutive MAC
Championship. Alsu Bogdanova finished second and Jordann McDermitt finished
fourth. Head Coach Sue Parks was named Head Coach of the Year for the fourth
time in her career, and the third time as an Eagle.



Cross Country (Women): Alsu Bogdanova and Jordann McDermitt were named to
the First Team All-MAC. Natalie Cizmas and Sydney Meyers were named to the
Second Team All-MAC.



Cross Country (Women): The Eagles placed fourth at the NCAA Great Lakes
Regional Championship. Jordann McDermitt earned a fifth-place finish and Alsu
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Bogdanova placed 11th overall. The Eagles received an at-large bid to the NCAA
Championships for the second consecutive year.


Cross Country (Women): Ann Aldrich, Alsu Bogdanova, Natalie Cizmas, Allie
Knoll, Jordann McDermitt, Sydney Meyers, Lauren Pottschmidt, and Jenna Wyns
were named to the Academic All-MAC Team.



Cross Country (Men): The Eagles earned their eighth consecutive MAC
Championship and tied the conference record for the most consecutive titles. Hlynur
Andresson finished first, Lahsene Bouchikhi finished second and Abel Flores
placed fifth. Head Coach John Goodridge won the Head Coach of the Year award
for the 12th time, and the seventh consecutive year.



Cross Country (Men): Hlynyr Andresson, Lahsene Bouchikhi, Abel Flores and
Mitch Lenneman were named First Team All-MAC. Austin Wicker was named
Second Team All-MAC.



Cross Country (Men): The Eagles placed fourth at the NCAA Great Lakes Regional
Championship. Hlynyr Andresson placed second and qualified for the NCAA
Championships.



Cross Country (Men): Caleb Hess, Tom Jozwiak, and Austin Wicker were named to
the Academic All-MAC Team.



Football (Men): Sergio Bailey II, Maxx Crosby, and Brody Hoying were named First
Team All-MAC. Named Second Team All-MAC were Jeremiah Harris and Jimmy
Leatiota. Jason Beck, Vince Calhoun, and Brogan Roback garnered Third Team
All-MAC honors.



Football (Men): Brogan Roback has been selected to play in the 2018 NFLPA
Collegiate Bowl.



Football (Men): Maxx Crosby has been named to the Hendricks Award Final Watch
List, one of 27 defensive players in the nation.



Soccer (Women): Peyton Davis was named to the Second Team All-MAC, and
Madeline Olson earned All-Freshman honors.



Soccer (Women): Mia Colavito, Mikayla Cupp, Peyton Davis, Mackenzie Etienne,
Aubrey Martin, Maggie McCullough, Kristin Nason, Chanel Vani, Alex Wilbanks,
and Kaylin Williams were named to the Academic All-MAC Team.
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Volleyball (Women): Kelly Ferguson, Ariel Hamby, Cassie Haut, Alyssa LaFace,
Mallory Rajewski and Jordan Smith were named to the Academic All-MAC Team.



Volleyball (Women): Kelly Ferguson was named to the All-MAC Honorable Mention
team.



Eastern student-athletes recorded a Graduation Success Rate of 83 percent, and
increase of two points over last year’s rate. Four women’s teams – golf, gymnastics,
tennis and volleyball – each boasted a 100 percent rate.



Assistant football coach Neal Neathery is one of 58 nominees for the Broyles Award,
given to college football’s assistant coach. Neathery is only one of three nominees
from the MAC.

* * *

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents Meeting
October 20, 2017
These are the proposed minutes of the October 20, 2017 Board of Regents meeting.
The meeting of the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents was called to order by
Chairman Morris at 12:00 p.m. in Room 201, Welch Hall, Ypsilanti, Michigan.
The Board members present were: Regent Dennis Beagen, Regent Michelle Crumm, Regent
Mike Hawks, Regent Eunice Jeffries, Regent Mike Morris, Regent Alex Simpson, Regent
Mary Treder Lang and Regent James Webb.
Board members absent: None
There was a quorum.

Section 1
PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE JUNE 27, 2017 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Regent Hawks moved and Regent Crumm seconded that the proposed minutes for the June
27, 2017 Board Meeting be approved as submitted.
Motion Carried

CONSENT AGENDA
Chairman Morris asked the Board if there were any items on the consent agenda the Board
members wished to vote on separately. Hearing none, it was moved by Regent Treder Lang
and seconded by Regent Simpson that sections 2-10 be approved in their entirety as
presented.

Section 2
STAFF APPOINTMENTS

Recommended that the Board of Regents approve 29 staff appointments for the reporting
period of June 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017: Jimmy Wooten, Steven Bryant,Anika
Awai-Williams, Kyle Martin, Kathy Miller,Jabaar Milton, TaQuinda Johnson, Rayna
Ketchum, Thomas Phelps,Amy Ducher, Peter Winters, Brian Constanti, Stephanie LaGore,
Alycia Butler,Katherine Minasola, Katie Gonzales,Arthur Ignaczak, Krystal Lancaster,
Josiah Pankiewicz, Eric Gerbens, Rachel Johns, Kyler Ludlow, Jayson Wiseman,Stephen
Graham,Sandra Mullally,Andrew Rowdon,Benjamin Bigelow, LaRae Brannon and Amelia
Parnis.
Section 3
STAFF SEPARATIONS/RETIREMENTS

Recommended that the Board of Regents approve 70 separations and retirements for the
reporting period of June 1,2017 through September 30,2017: Alexa Adams, Mohamed
Alghaithi, Katherine Augustaitis, Niki Baccile, Dean Backos,Amy Barker,Jane Bartman,
Dallas Becerra, Jody Beutler, Charles Bollinger,Kelly Brennan, Tracey Cade, Jerry
Campbell,Robert Corn, Debra Craig, Sharon Curry,Patricia Cygnar,Jacinda Dady,Sean de
Gracia,Kevin Devine, Susann deVries,Candace Dorsey,Louis Dumas, Zachary Fairchild,
Nicate Ferrill,Elizabeth Getty, Sarah Ghotane,Luciano Gianino,Robertta Goffeney,
Christian Hanselmann, Norman Harrington, Christopher Hoppe,Bryan Howard, Travis
Howell, Tuong-Vi Huynh, Barbara Jones, Richard King,Wendy Kivi,Margaret Kreyling,
Jennifer Laskowski, Timothy Linderman,Jacinda Lisi,Sally Lucas,Lynn Maas, Emily
McGrew, Anastasia Mehaffey,Karen Metz, Thomas Murray, Carol Paul, Marge Preston,
John Priess, Mariel Rakijas,Jason Rhoades, Diana Rhoton, Lauren Richardson, Karen
Rodeff,Doyle Rouseau, Abby Rudnicki, Michael Shearer,Timothy Siecinski, Solomon
Simmons,Mary St Louis, Thomas Staicar, Izabela Stanescu, India Taylor, Joseph Tiboni,
Lillian Tusson,Michelle Vlodyka,Jimmie Williams and Karen Williams-Newman.
Section 4
EMERITUS STAFF ST ATUS

Recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Staff Status to 13 staff members:
Jody Beutler,Barbara Jones, Lillian Tusson, Thomas Staicar, Doyle Rousseau,
Jerry Campbell, Jane Bartman, Dr. Mary Zdrojkowski, Sally Lucas, Amy Barker,Richard
King,Karen Metz and Pat Cygnar.
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Section 5
EMERITUS FACULTY STATUS
Recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Faculty Status to seven (7) former
faculty members: Ronald Cere, Chris Wood Foreman, Flora Hoodin, Linda Polter, Gretchen
Dahl Reeves, Thomas Vosteen, and Patricia Williams-Boyd.
Section 6
HONORARY EMERITUS STATUS FOR MERITORIOUS SERVICE
Recommended that the Board of Regents grant Honorary Emeritus Status for Meritorious
Service to Ms. Nancy Harbour, J.D.
Section 7
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS ADMINISTRATIVE/PROFESSIONAL
APPOINTMENTS/TRANSFERS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve two (2) Administrative/Professional
appointments (Michael Tew and Steven Pernecky) and 11 Administrative/Professional
transfers (David Winters, Patrick Koehn, Doris Fields, Rhonda Fowler, Ramona Caponegro,
John Cooper, William Baker, Ann Blakeslee, Paul Chao, Zafar Khan, and Philip Lewis).
Section 8
F ACULTY APPOINTMENTS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve one (1) new faculty appointment for the
2017-2018 academic year: Annemarie Kelly.
Section 9
LECTURER APPOINTMENTS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve nine (9) new lecturer appointments for the
2017-2018 academic year: Kimberley Barker, Brian Coffey, Toni Jackson, Mark
Kenworthy, Joseph Radding, Derek Shapiro, Christopher Sorenson, Christina Wall and
Camille Watson.
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Section 1 0
ACADEMIC RETIREMENTS/ SEPARATIONS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve 22 retirements: (Betty Beard, Barbara
Bleyaert, Rita Bullard, Ronald Cere, Janet Fisher, Sandra Hines, Flora Hoodin, Joan Jones,
David Leapard, Susan McCarthy, Ann Orr, Linda Polter, Gretchen Reeves, Philip Taitalone,
James Vandenbosch, Thomas Vosteen, Patricia Williams-Boyd, Judy Block, Lisa Laverty,
Thomas Meyer, John Morgan and David Nickell) and ten (10) separations: Susann deVries,
Amy Knopps, Regina Luttrell, Zaki Malik, Abbey Marterella, Eric Owen, Donald
Ritzenhein, Robin Dec, Russell Jones and Megan Shaughnessy-Magill) for the period of
March 1, 2017 through August 31, 2017.
Motion Carried

REGULAR AGENDA
Section 1 1
MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Regent Beagen moved and Regent Jeffries seconded that the Student Affairs Committee
Agenda for the October 20, 2017 meeting and the Minutes of April 21, 2017 meeting be
received and placed on file.
Motion Carried

Section 1 2
ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES
Regent Hawks moved and Regent Simpson seconded that the Board of Regents receive and
place on file the working agenda for the October 20, 2017 meeting and June 26, 2017
minutes.
Motion Carried
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Section 13
APPROVAL OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR HEAD WOMEN'S
GYMNASTICS COACH
Regent Hawks moved and Regent Simpson seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
five-year Employment Agreement for Head Women's Gymnastics Coach, Katherine
Minasola.
Motion Carried

Section 14
FACULTY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES
Regent Webb moved and Regent Simpson seconded that the Faculty Affairs Committee
Agenda for the October 20, 2017 meeting and the Minutes of the April 21, 2017 meeting be
received and placed on file.
Motion Carried

Chairman Morris asked the Board if there were any items in the Educational Policies
Committee section the Board members wished to vote on separately. Hearing none, it was
moved by Regent Beagen and seconded by Regent Jeffries that sections 15-19 be approved in
their entirety as presented.
Section 15
EDUCATIONAL POLICIES COMMITTEE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND
MINUTES
Recommended that the Educational Policies Committee Agenda for the October 20, 2017
meeting and the Minutes of the June 26, 2017 meeting be received and placed on file.
Section 16
APPOINTMENT OF CHARTER SCHOOLS BOARD MEMBER
Recommended that the Board of Regents appoint Eric McCloud to a three-year term on the
Board of Directors of the Academy for Business and Technology.
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Section 17
COMMENCEMENT SPEAKER AND HONORARY DEGREE RECIPIENT
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve Ms. JoAnn Chavez, J.D., Vice President,
Legal and Chief Tax Officer, DTE Energy, as Commencement Speaker at the Saturday,
December 16, 2017 commencement ceremony. In addition, it was recommended that the
Board award an honorary Doctor of Commerce degree (Com. D.) to Ms. Chavez.
Section 1 8
APPROVAL OF NEW ACADEMIC PROGRAM
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve a New Academic Program: Electrical and
Computer Engineering Major (Bachelor of Science).
Section 1 9
ACADEMIC CALENDAR
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve a change to the 2018-19 Academic
Calendar to realize energy savings. The University will be closed on Friday, July 5, 2019.
Motion Carried

Section 20
F INANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND
MINUTES
Regent Crumm moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents receive and
place on file the minutes from the June 27, 2017 Finance and Investment Committee meeting
and the Working Agenda for the October 20, 2017 meeting.
Motion Carried
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Section 21
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2017
Regent Crumm moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents receive and
place on file the University's audited fiscal year 2016-2017 financial statements and auditor's
report.
Motion Carried

Section 22
2018-19 GENERAL FUND SCHOLARSHIPS, AWARDS AND GRANTS REQUEST
Regent Crumm moved and Regent Simpson seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
2018-19 General Fund Scholarships, Awards and Grants proposal for $58,789,000.
Motion Carried

Section 23
FISCAL YEAR 2019 STATE CAPITAL OUTLAY PLAN
Regent Crumm moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
University's Capital Outlay Plan and delegate authority to the President to submit the
renovation of Sill Hall as the University's top project request for State cost participation for
Fiscal Year 2019.
Motion Carried
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NEW BUSINESS AND PRESENTATIONS
TAB A
RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO STUDENT
ORGANIZTION AND FREE SPEECH SPEAKER POLICY
Regent Simpson moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
proposed amendments to Board Policy 8.4.3, Student Organization and Free Speech Speaker
Policy, effective October 20, 2017.
Motion Carried

TAB B
UPDATED POLICY: 3.4.2.4: EMERITUS STAFF
Regent Jeffries moved and Regent Treder Lang seconded that the Board of Regents approve
revisions to the Emeritus Staff Status Policy.
Motion Carried

TAB C
RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO SEXUAL
MISCONDUCT POLICY
Regent Webb moved and Regent Simpson seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
amendments to Board Policy 3.7.7, Sexual Misconduct and Interpersonal Violence Policy,
effective October 20, 2017.
Motion Carried
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TAB D
APPROVAL OF PART-TIME LECTURERS CONTRACT
Regent Beagen moved and Regent Simpson seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
recently negotiated collective bargaining agreement between Eastern Michigan University
and the EMU Federation of Teachers Full-Time Lecturers bargaining unit (EMUFT) which
represents the University's Part-Time Lecturers. It was further recommended that the Board
of Regents authorize the President to execute the Agreement on its behalf.
Motion Carried

TAB E
GRANT OF NON-MOTORIZED PATH EASEMENT TO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
OF PITTSFIELD AND GRADING PERMIT TO WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD
COMMISSION
Regent Treder Lang moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents approve
and authorize the President to sign the Non-Motorized Path Easement to the Charter
Township of Pittsfield, Michigan, the Consent to Grade to the Washtenaw County Road
Commission, and any accompanying ancillary documents necessary to complete these grants.
Motion Carried

TAB F
NUMBER 1- RECOGNITION OF THE 2016-1 7 CARTWRIGHT AWARD
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY DEPARTMENT OF ATHLETICS
Regent Hawks moved and Regent Beagen seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
resolution congratulating the EMU Athletic Department and Athletic Director Scott
Wetherbee for earning the 2016-17 Cartwright Award.
Motion Carried
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NUMBER 2 - RECOGNITION OF CADET TRAVIS WATERS
Regent Jeffries moved and Regent Beagen seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
resolution for Cadet Travis Waters for being named Cadet of the Week and for outstanding
service to the United States.
Motion Carried

TAB G
PRESIDENTIAL SCHOLARS OF FALL 201 7
Chairman Morris introduced Dr. Mary Ramsey who presented the 2017 Presidential Scholars
Video and introduced the distinguished students.

TAB H
President's Report
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents Meeting
October 20, 2017
Mr. Chairman and Distinguished Members of the Board of Regents:
The 2017-18 academic year is off to a great start, thanks, in large part, to the tremendous expertise
and support of Eastern Michigan University faculty and staff. As an individual who has spent a
great deal of time in the classroom in my own career, I have great respect for the difference our
faculty members make in the lives and success of our students.
During this time of declining enrollment trends affecting universities nationwide, it is more
important than ever that Eastern remains responsive and nimble to adjust to our changing
environment.
This is why, in addition to suppo1ting our traditional student recruitment initiatives targeting first
year, transfer and graduate students in Michigan and nearby states, we continue to look for
opportunities to expand our base of international students, as well as increase opportunities for
online degrees, which data shows is the fastest growing population of students nationwide.
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Our success in attracting new students is evidenced by this fall's enrollment of the third
largest entering class in our history. Since fall 2010, when the University enrolled a total of
2,008 new first-year students, the entering class has grown by 39 percent.
The class also displays solid academic preparation. The average GPA of incoming freshmen
is 3.29, an increase from 3.12 in 2011. Average ACT scores increased to 22.4, trending
positively from an average of 21.1 in 2011.
The entering class also underscores Eastern as one of the most diverse and inclusive
universities in Michigan. The total number of newly enrolled African American, Hispanic,
Native American, Asian American/Pacific Islander, and multi-race students, makes up 30
percent of the entering first-year class.
The Honors College, which accepts students entering with typically at least a 25 ACT score
and 3.5 high school GPA, continues to grow. The Honors College currently enrolls more than
1,600 students -- nearly double the number of students from six years ago.
International student enrollment in the entering class showed a significant increase as well,
rising 43 percent. Overall, 4 percent of Eastern' s students are international, representing
more than 80 nations.
However,as is true for nearly all of our peers in the state, overall enrollment continues to
decline and we have to confront that challenge in a variety of ways.
I thank the Board for taking another strong step in helping students succeed. Today's approval of
$58.8 million in financial aid for next year represents a 3 percent increase over this year. During
the past 10 years, we have doubled student financial aid, reflecting our central mission of helping
Michigan students achieve academic success, earn their degrees and continue on to excellent
careers.
Speaking of excellent careers, our new Bachelor of Science in Electrical and Computer
Engineering, approved today, will prepare students for positions in the automotive, energy,
communication and consumer electronics industries. Graduates will be at the forefront of
filling the need for electrical and computer engineers in Michigan and across the nation. The
new program is in addition to the new Mechanical Engineering major, which has been well
received after being launched this Fall.
While on the subject of engineering, we are pleased the Board has approved the capital
outlay recommendation for the renovation of Sill Hall and the expansion of the College of
Technology to create a technology/engineering complex. This will help address a significant
shortage of skilled workers in these areas that is critical to our state's continued economic
growth.
We are already showing the state that Eastern is a good steward of its capital outlay
investment. Strong Hall, Eastern's previous capital outlay request, is largely gutted as a
massive renovation of the STEM-focused facility is well underway. It's quite a sight, and
hints at the exciting changes to come.
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Other highlights that I'd like to note are as follows:
• Earlier this week, Eastern j oined the newly formed American Center for Mobility
Academic Cons01iium in a signing ceremony with Governor Snyder. Eastern will
contribute our expertise in info1mation assurance, cyber security, mechanical
engineering, deep-skilled robotics and simulation and animation to help fill the growing
needs in the autonomous vehicle industry.
•

Eastern students earned a bronze medal in the Marketing Edge Echo Challenge,
competing against more than 200 teams from around the world.

•

For the 15th consecutive year, Eastern Michigan University has been rated as one of the
Best Colleges in the Midwest, according to The Princeton Review.

•

Our Music Therapy program was recently ranked in the top 10 nationally by
TheBestSchools.org.

•

Eastern Michigan's online Bachelor of Science in Dietetics was recently ranked fourth in
the nation by AffordableColleges.com.

•

Joy-Ann Reid, a political analyst for MSNBC and host of "AM Joy," has been selected as
the keynote speaker for Eastern Michigan University's 32nd annual Martin Luther King
Jr. Celebration. This year' s event, titled "Live the Legacy: Look Back, Be Present, Move
Forward," runs from J anuary 11-16.

•

JoAnn Chavez, vice president, legal and chief tax officer of DTE Energy, will be our
commencement speaker in December's ceremony and will be presented with an honorary
Doctor of Commerce degree. She will offer a strong perspective to this year' s graduates that
embraces the importance of diversity and inclusion, and further reflects Eastern' s welcoming
environment to people of all backgrounds.

Other accomplishments are listed in the Appendix to this report on the University website.
Thank you, Chairman Morris.
James M. Smith, Ph.D.
P resident
Eastern Michigan University
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Recognition
• Competing against more than 200 teams from around the world, students from EMU
recently placed third in the worldwide Marketing Edge ECHO Challenge, the first
time Eastern undergraduates have medaled in the competition. The bronze medal
team included Amanda Derengoski, Anthony Nucullat, Glori Avneet Singh,
Megan Spencer, and Meagan Welsh. The team of Jordan Mallet, Amanda
Salazar, and Emily Villarreal advanced to the semi-finals. The graduate student
team of Taylor Frey, Rebecca Jensen, Don Kline and Mark Lubin advanced the
final four round; over the years, graduate students in Eastern's IMC program have
won 1 5 top medals in this international competition.
•

40 students from the School of Nursing participated in the Motor City Medical
Mission at Cobo Center on Aug. 9-11 , where free medical, dental and optical care
was provided to thousands of metro Detroit citizens.

•

The Clinical Psychology doctoral program received a $391 , 098 grant from the
Michigan Health Endowment Fund to establish specialty training in
geropsychology. The program will enable Southeast Michigan families to receive
home-based or clinic-based integrated behavioral health services from doctoral
students at a low cost.

•

The Construction Management program received a $50,000 donation from
NEXUS Gas Transmission. The funds will pay for lab safety equipment, soil
density and acoustic measuring devices, and educational oppo11unities.

•

A brewery school will be included in a $20 million investment by Midtown Detroit
Inc. and its partners for the Selden Corridor Initiative, a mixed-use
redevelopment. Eastern will run the brewery school and will offer a bachelor's
degree in Fermentation Science to students.

•

A group of longtime friends from the Arm of Honor Alumni Association at EMU
recently donated $2,500 to the Fermentation Science program. The gift will help
support student research and field experiences. The group has also recently supported
EMU's Forensics Program and Eastern' s varsity swimmers' pai1icipation at the
Olympic Trials.

•

EMU ' s Society for Human Resource Management (SMHRM) chapter has once
again been named an Outstanding Student Chapter by the national organization.
Only 20 schools nationally were chosen for the honor, which is the society's highest
award, and EMU was the only Michigan chapter selected.

•

Wendy Burke, a professor of curriculum and instruction in Teacher Education and
the director of student teaching at EMU, will serve as the 201 7-18 John W. Porter
Distinguished Chair in Urban Education. Burke' s project supports the
implementation of an innovative approach to preparing educators in Southeast
Michigan.
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Events
• EMU and Fresh Thyme Market partnered to help students in need of food
assistance. Food, supplies and funds were collected for Swoop's Food Pantry on
Oct. 9-15.
•

The campus community joined Michigan Congresswoman Debbie Dingell for the
"Out of Darkness Community Walk" on Sept. 29, to bring attention for suicide
prevention and awareness.

•

A 9/1 1 remembrance ceremony was held at Eastern's beam from the World Trade
Center on Sept. 11.

•

Two recent EMU computer science graduates offered computer programming skills
and career perspectives during a week-long Bits and Bytes camp for middle-school
girls in early August. The camp was funded by the National Center for Women and
Information Technology.

Of Note
• EMU will become the first university in Michigan to offer a fully-staffed Amazon
pickup location to pickup and return Amazon orders.
•

EMU has partnered with Ann Arbor-based InfoReady Corporation to use Thrive
software to encourage student engagement. The program will be rolled out to
freshmen this year.

•

Eastern and the Washtenaw County Convention and Visitor's Bureau produced a
new "#YouAreWelcomeHere" video highlighting the diversity and inclusivity of
Ypsilanti and Washtenaw County.

Athletics
• Baseball (Men): Sam Delaplane, Davis Feldman, Max Schuemann, and Brennan
Williams were named as MAC Spring Distinguished Scholar Student-Athletes.
•

Football (Men): Jason Beck has been nominated by the National Football
Foundation and College Hall of Fame as one of 181 semifinalists for the 201 7
William V. Campbell Trophy, college football's premier scholar-athlete award.

•

Football (Men): Eastern held its fourth annual Youth Day, with more than 200 local
children participating in football-related fun events on the Rynearson field.

•

Golf (Women): Thelma Beck, Maria Connelly, and Kelsey Murphy were named as
All-American Scholars by the Women's Golf Coaches Association.

•

Golf (Women): Kelsey Murphy was named as a MAC Spring Distinguished
Scholar Student-Athlete.
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•

Golf (Men): Jared Mutter, Kyle Rodes, Nie Ross, and Philippe Weppernig were
named as Srixon/Cleveland Golf All-American Scholars by the Golf Coaches
Association.

•

Golf (Men): Beau Breault and Jared Mutter were named as MAC Spring
Distinguished Scholar Student-Athletes.

•

Golf (Men): EMU received the President's Special Recognition Academic Team
Award from the Golf Coaches Association of America. Eastern was the only MAC
school to be honored,and was one of 19 Division I teams named.

•

Golf (Men): Beau Breault finished as the runner-up at the 1 06th Michigan Amateur
Championship.

•

Rowing (Women): 21 Eagles received the 2017 Colonial Athletic Association
Commissioner's Academic Award for the Winter semester. Honored were
Samantha Allen, Sarah Anderson, Jennifer Bucci, Karissa Fald, Amanda Flora,
Mia Forman, Taylor Heard, Baylee Kinkade, Autumn Little, Christa Maddick,
Lauren Magnuson, Caitlyn Maguire, Karson Mahaney, Ashley Matzek, Johni
Morris, Cailey Muir, Addison Oblanas, Makenna Rothert, Kelli Sharples,
Rachel Turner, and Rebekah Wheeler.

•

Rowing (Women): The rowing team hosted a kayaking event as part of the Special
Olympics State Fall Games for the second straight year.

•

Softball (Women): The National Fastpitch Coaches Association named Arielle
Anderson, Ariana Chretien, Haley Hostetler, Samantha Isaly, Michelle
Kriegshauser, Olivia Logan, Abbie Minsker, Brandice Olmos, and Alex Peters,
as All-American Scholar Athletes.

•

Softball (Women) : Michelle Kriegshauser was named as a MAC Spring
Distinguished Scholar Student-Athlete.

•

Softball (Women): The Eagles earned recognition from the National Fastpitch
Coaches Association for its accomplishments in the classroom last year,finishing
sixth in the MAC and 55th in Division I.

• Track & Field (Women): Anna Aldrich, Alsu Bogdanova, Sofie Gallein, Jessica
Harris, Jordann McDermitt, Sydney Meyers and Natalie Uy were named as MAC
Spring Distinguished Scholar Student-Athletes.
•

Track & Field (Women): Jordann McDermitt received Second Team Academic
All-American honors from the College Sports Information Directors of America.

•

Track & Field (Women): The Eagles were named an All-Academic Team by the U.S.
Track and Field and Cross Country Coaches Association.
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•

Track & Field (Men): Willy Fink, Nick Raymond, and Tyler Underwood were
named as MAC Spring Distinguished Scholar Student-Athletes.

•

Track & Field (Men): Willy Fink received Third Team Academic All-American
honors from the College Sports Information Directors of America.

•

Track & Field (Men): The Eagles were named an All-Academic Team by the U.S.
Track and Field and Cross Country Coaches Association.

•

Volleyball (Women): The Eagles were recognized by the American Volleyball
Coaches Association for academic excellence with the AVCA Team Academic
Award.

•

The men's and women's Cross Country and Track & Field teams spent their bye
week volunteering at the JDRF One Walk. More than 120 student-athletes worked
at registration, food distribution, route greeting, face painting, and helped with set up
and tear down at the event.

•

The MAC awarded the 201 6-17 Cartwright Award to EMU for its program
excellence in academics, athletics and citizenship. This is only the second time
Eastern has won the prestigious award.

•

During the 2016-17 academic year, EMU scholar-athletes on 21 teams participated in
more than 3,900 volunteer hours.

•

In partnership with the MAC and the College Football Playoff Foundation, the EMU
Athletic Department will donate $5,000 to the Ypsilanti Community Schools. The
funds will be used for in-classroom supplies for middle school and elementary
schools.

•

Eastern welcomed eight new members into the E-Club Athletic Hall of Fame on
September 22. The Class of2017 includes Brian Bixler (Baseball), Walter Church
(Football), Lauren Clark (Softball), William DuLac (Football), Jessica Hupe
(Soccer), Robin Loheide (Gymnastics), Lela Nelson (Track & Field), and Tiberia
Patterson (Track & Field).

•

In support of the Championship Building Plan, Eastern launched a new brick
campaign. The proposed site for the bricks will be in Championship Plaza.

•

The lights at Rynearson Stadium have been upgraded with new high-performance
energy-efficient LED stadium lights. The new system provides more illumination
with a significant reduction in energy consumption.
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TAB I
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF REGENTS 2018 MEETINGS

Chairman Morris announced the five (5) dates the Board of Regents plan to meet in 2018.
Friday, February 9, 2018
Friday, April 20,2018
Friday, June 22, 2018
Thursday, October 25, 2018
Friday, December 14, 2018

TAB J
OPEN COMMUNICATIONS

Vice President Reaume announced that five (5) people requested to address the Board of
Regents. Each speaker was given up to three (3) minutes to speak.
1 . Rebecca Sipe - Thank you for the support of the Honors College throughout my seven
year tenure
2. Miles Payne (Student Government) - Student Body update
3. Larry Borum III (Student Government) - More investment in student affairs resources
4. Judith Kullberg (EMU-AAUP) - Shared governance and online degree programs
5. Kangkana Koli (Center for Multicultural Affairs) - The work that the CMA has done for
this campus and the support we may need from administration in the future - Ms. Koli
was unable to attend the meeting

Chairman Morris reminded attendees that the next meeting is scheduled for Friday,
December 15, 20 1 7. He called for any further business to be brought before the Board.
There being none, Regent Jeffries made a motion to adjourn. Regent Treder Lang seconded
to adjourn the meeting.
Motion Carried
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The meeting was adjourned at 1 2:50 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Vicki Reaume
Vice President and Secretary to the Board of Regents

18

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

SECTION : 2
DATE :
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RECOMMENDAT ION

STAFF APPO I NTM ENTS
ACT I ON REQU ESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents appro ve 1 1 staff appoi ntments for the
reporting period October 1 , 2 0 1 7 through November 1 5 , 20 1 7 .
STAFF SUMl\'lAR Y
Of the 1 1 appointments, 3 (27 percent) are females, 8 (73 percent) arc males.
Demographics o f the total group i ndicate 1 (9 percent) African Americans, 1 (9 percent)
Asian, and 9 (82 percent) Caucasians.
FISCAL IMPLICAT IONS
The sal aries are part of the Uni versity's 2 0 1 7-2 0 1 8 budget as approved by the Board of
Regents.
ADM INISTRATIVE RE COMMENDAT ION
The proposed Bo ard action has b een reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
STAFF APPOINTMENTS
For Activity Date Reporting Period
October 1, 2017 through November 15, 2017
-~-- -�~- �----

Current Hire

Annual
Salary

Appt %

Ethnicity

Last Name

First Name

Job Title

E Class Grade

Org Title

O'Brien

Matthew

Studio Lab Coordinator

PE

08

School of Art and Design

10/2/2017

$47,094.00

92 WH

M

Bigelow

Benjamin

Studio Lab Coordinator

PE

08

School of Art and Design

10/2/2017 S47,094.00

92 WH

M

McCarthy

Sean

Asst Compliance Dir, Monitor

PE

07

Compliance Athletics

10/2/2017 $47,476.00

100 WH

M

Hotchkiss

Garrett

Records System Specialist

PT

06

Office of the Registrar

10/2/2017 $40,557.00

100 WH

M

Donahue

Erin

BCBA Therapist, ACC

PE

09

Autism Collaborative Center

10/3/2017

$57,842.00

100 WH

F

Korn

Brian

Asst Coach Sftb,Cc/Trk,Vol,Bsb

AC

11

I A Mens Track and Field

10/11/2017 $43,922.00

100 WH

M

Rawdon

Andrew

Senior Assoc Athletic Director

AP

MGIL2

I A Administration

10/16/2017 $100,000.00

100 WH

M

Dotson

Katherine

Records System Specialist

PT

06

Office of the Registrar

10/16/2017

$40,557.00

100 WH

Shields

Justin

Asst Coach Sftb,Cc/Trk,Vol,Bsb

AC

11

I A Womens Swimming

10/30/2017 $38,000.00

100 WH

Ye

Xingbei

Assc Dir, Admissions

AP

MGILl

Adm Internal Oper

11/1/2017 $72,000.00

100 AS

Brown

Michael

Officer Campus Police

CP

0 1*

Public Safety

11/13/2017 $47,796.81

100 BL

Date

Gender

M

M

BOARD OF REGENTS

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

S ECTION : 3
DATE:
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RECOMMENDATION

STAFF SEPARA TIO NS/RETIREMENTS
ACT ION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve 12 separations and retirements for
the reporting period of October 1, 20 1 7 through November 1 5 , 20 1 7 .
STAFF SUMMARY
Of the 1 2 separations and retirements there are 5 (42 percent) femal es and 7 (58 percent)
males . Demographics of the total group indicate 1 2 ( 1 00 percent) Caucasians.
FIS CAL IMPLICATIONS
None
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Bo ard action has been reviewed and is recommended for Bo ard approval.
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2c;1
7

Date

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
STAFF SEPARATIONS and RETIREMENTS
For Termination Date Reporting Period
October 1, 2017 through November 15, 2017
Termination
I Current Hire Date Date

Ethnicity

l:nder

First Name

Job Title

IE Class

�ad
_
e___ �itle

Barnhart

Amy

Prog Coord, NewStd & TransProg

PE

08

Orientation

7/28/2008

10/13/2017 WH

F

Bazzy

Mark

Groundsperson

FM

12

Grnds Walks Roadways

3/13/2015

11/1/2017 WH

M

Beaudrie

Nicholas

Cook

FM

06

Dining Admin

10/25/2010

10/18/2017 WH

M

Bowling

Roberta

Account Specialist Senior

cs

06

I A Administration

3/3/1986

10/27/2017 WH

Cook

George

Budget Analyst, Acad Bud & Ops

AP

PFSPl

Office of the Provost

11/7/2014

11/1/2017 WH

M

Griffith

Timothy

Assistant Controller

AP

MGIL2

Controller

2/18/1987

10/13/2017 WH

M

Morton

Michael

Custodian

FM

06*

Custodial Services

9/6/2016

10/18/2017 WH

M

Palombit

Cynthia

Telecommunications Specialist

PE

08

Infrastructure and Secur ty

i

8/6/1984

10/6/2017 WH

Peters

Benjamin

Systems Administrator II

PT

09*

Infrastructure and Secur ty

i

10/2/2006

10/27/2017 WH

M

Quiel

Clifford

Din Serv Unit L dr I Culinary

FM

12

Dining Admin

11/2/2009

10/17/2017 WH

M

Tefft

Emily

Sponsored Res Acct/Analyst Sr.

PE

09

Controller

10/29/2012

11/10/2017 WH

Zdrojkowski

Mary

Coord, Sel Students Support Sv

PE

08

Sel Stdnt Support Sv

1/2/1998

10/2/2017 WH

kast Name

�

B OARD O F R E G E N TS
EASTE R N M I C H I GA N U N IVE RS ITY

SECTION:· 4
DATE :
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RECOM M E N DATI O N
E M E RITUS STAFF STATUS
ACTI O N REQU ESTE D
It is reco m mended that the Board of Rege nts g ra nt Emeritus Staff Status to F ive (5 )
staff membe rs : Cynthia Palom bit, Te leco m m u n ications S pecial ist, Offi ce of
I nfo rmation Tech no logy, who reti red October 5 , 2 0 1 7 , Luciano G ia n i n o , D i recto r of
Rec/l M , who retired on S e ptember 30 , 2 0 1 7 , Candace Dorsey, Po lice Officer/ Cri m e
P revention Coo rd i nator, Office o f Public S afety, who reti red o n September 1 5 , 20 1 7 ,
M a ry Jo St. Lo u i s , Teacher/P lacement S pecia l i st, Office of Mathe matics and
Statistic, who reti red o n August 1 1 , 2 0 1 7 and Wendy Kivi , S pecial Events Manager,
School of Co m m u n icatio n s , Med ia and Theatre Arts , who retired on Aug ust 1 1 , 2 0 1 7.
STAFF S U M M ARY
Accord i ng to U nive rsity poli cy, retiri ng Ad m i n istration P rofessio n al (AP ) , Ath letic
Coaches (AC ) , Confidential C l e rical (CC), Food Service , Custod ial & Maintenance
( F M ) , Profess ional Techn ica l ( PT) or Clerical S ecretaria l (CS) staff members who
h ave served the U n ive rs ity fo r at least fiftee n ( 1 5 ) ye ars , may be g ra nted Emeritus
Staff Status. S u ch status is co nferred based o n the reco mmendation of the
P resid ent and a p p rova l of the Boa rd of Rege nts.
FISCAL I M P LICATI O N S
None
AD M I N ISTRATIVE RECO M M E N DATION
The pro posed action has been reviewed and is reco m m ended fo r Board approva l .

m e s M . S m ith , P h . D .
resid e nt

Date

Cynthia Palombit retired on October 5, 20 1 7 after 33 years of service
at EMU. Cynthia was a Telecommunications Specialist in the Office of
Information Technology. Cynthia has had several different roles across
cainpus including her last 5 years in IT. She had a 1najor part in the
i1nplementation of VoIP Technology. She worked with many
depart1nents to quickly phase out hundreds of analog and fax lines across
catnpus saving the University annually over $ 1 00,000.00. Cynthia has
demonstrated an outstanding c01n1nit1nent to EMU. She is a pleasure to
work with in every area. She has always been friendly and shown her
loyalty to the University. We are pleased to award the Emeritus Staff
Award to Cynthia Palombit.
Luciano Gianino retired on September 30, 20 1 7 after 30 years of
service at EMU. Luciano (Lou) was Director of REC/IM. Lou has been
an integral me1nber of the REC/IM for over 30 years. His committed to
students, staff, faculty and EMU has been incredible. He is a behind the
scenes kind of man but everyone knows what an outstanding job and
effort he gives always. Lou has been recognized for several awards
including Gold and Silver Medallion. We are pleased to award the
Emeritus Staff Award to Luciano Gianino.
C andace Dorsey retired on September 1 5, 2017 after 20 years of
service at EMU. Candace was a Police Officer/ Crime Prevention
Coordinator in Public Safety. Candace has been dedicated and loyal
employee who is always going above and beyond in her normal job
duties. She is professional in all the trainings she does on campus and is
very knowledgeable in all subject 1natters. Her passion and genuine
concerns for others is easily recognized. Candace has a unique ability to
capture any audience and always leaving a lasting impression. She is a
dynamic figure in her role as a police officer. She's a great leader and

will do what's best and right always. We are pleased to award the
E1neritus Staff Status to Candace Dorsey.
Mary Jo St. Louis retired on August 1 1 , 20 1 7 after 19 years of service
at EMU. Mary Jo was a Teacher/Placement Specialist in Mathe1natics
and Statistics. Mary Jo is dedicated to the student learning and advising.
She has contributed to the 1naking of the Developmental Mathematics
Program. Mary Jo has a delightful attitude and learning and shares this
passion with her students. She has been TRUEMU 1ne1nber her entire
career. We are pleased to award the Emeritus Staff Status to Mary Jo St.
Louis.
Wendy Kivi retired on August 1 1 , 20 1 7 after 16 years of service at
EMU. Wendy was a Special Events Manager in the School of
Communications, Media and Theatre Arts Department. Wendy's care
and quality along with professionalism make her a perfect candidate for
Emeritus. She' s a hard worker, dedicated to faculty, students, staff and
the University. Wendy has planned 24 Undergraduate Sy1nposiums. She
has overseen the process from start to finish. She has been referred by
many as Magic because annual reports, events, newsletters would
magically appear when need because Wendy would quietly get them
done. Wendy' s quality of work and effort is highly noted and deeply she
will be missed. We are pleased to award the E1neritus Staff Status to
Wendy Kivi.

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
E MERITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMMENDATION
The Department/Office of Information Technology recommends the awarding of Emeritus Staff Status
for the following
retiring/retired staff member:
Name of staff member: Cynthia Palombit
Title upon retirement: Telecommunications Specialist
Date of hire at EMU: 08/04/1984

Retirement date: I 0/05/2017

Number of years at EMU: 33 (Minimum of 1 5 years of service required)
Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This infonnation is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directory.

Home address:
E-mail address: cpalombit@emich.edu

Home telephone:
N ame of spouse: Raymond P alombit
Degree(s)/institutions/year: B accalaureate: 2000
Masters:
Doctoral:

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, please forward this fom1 and letters of support to: CFO, I O l Welch Hall. Upon
approval of the President, the recommendation will be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Office of the Chief Financial Officer.
Updated 8/24/12

September 13, 2017

Emeritus Staff Status Recommendation
Cynthia Palom bit
Retirement Date: 10/5/2017 from the Division of I nformation Technology

It is my pleasure to submit this letter of recommendation for Cynthia Palombit as the University's Board
of Regents considers granting Emeritus Staff honors.
Cynthia has been an employee of the U niversity for 33 years, serving in several different roles across
m u ltiple departments including the last 5 years served as the Telecommunications Specialist in IT.
Cynthia's final project in IT involved the identification of hundreds of a nalog and fax phone lines made
obsolete by the University's implementation of VoIP technology. Cynthia worked with departments
across campus to quickly phase out these lines which were set to double in cost this fiscal year. This
project alone will result in annual savings of over $100,000 for the U niversity.
Just prior to coming to IT, Cynthia served in Purchasing and was instrumental in assisting IT with our
vendor relations with Dell and Apple in support of the Computer Refresh Program.
It has been a pleasure to work with Cynthia. She has continually demonstrated an outstanding
comm itment to the University through service to its students, faculty, and staff. It is certainly my honor
to be able to recommend that the Board of Regents recognize her 33 years of service by granting
Emeritus Staff status.

Assistant Vice-President and Chief Information Officer
Division of Information Technology
rwoody@em ich .ed u
(734) 487-2290

Septem ber 1 8, 20 17

Re: Em eritu s Statu s fo r Cynth i a P a lo m bit

To who m it m a y co n cern :

I a m ve ry plea sed to recom m e n d Cynth i a P a l o m b it for em eritus status. She has earned it with
her many ye a rs of dedicated service to the u n iversity.
When I fi rst ca m e to the university in 1986, we wo rke d together in the H um a n Reso u rces
Dep artment. Always knowledgeable and wil l i n g to h e l p, sh e was a great asset to th e Benefits
Dep a rt m ent. Our p aths crossed aga in when she worked in the P u rchasing Depa rtment. It d i d n't
matter if th e issue were credit ca rds, phon es, o r req u isitions, Cindy a lways gave it her best and
wo rked ti relessly to ensu re a l l d eta i ls were h a n d led co rrectly. N ow in the I T d ivision, I h ave the
p leas u re of working with her yet aga i n .
T h e U n iversity h a s b e nefited gre atly from her h a rd work a nd she is truly e ntitled to the
emeritus staff title.

Ca rolyn ON eill, Adm i n i strative M a n ager
D ivision of I T

- -----------------------,
EASTERN MICH I GAN UN IVERSITY
EM ERITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMMENDATION
The Department/Office of Student Recreation Intramural Compl ex (Rec/IM) recommends the awarding of
Eme ritus S taff Status for the following
Name of staff memb er: Luci ano (Louie) Lucky Gianino
Titl e upon retirement : Director, Rec/IM
Date of h ire at EMU: 9/ 1 6/ 1 987

Retirement date : 9/3 0/20 1 7

Number of years at EMU : 30 (M inimum of 1 5 years of service required)
Please comp lete the followin g information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submittin g this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/S taff/Student Directory .

Home address :
H o m e tel ephone :

E-mail address : lgianino@emich.edu

Name of spouse: NIA
Degree(s)/institutions/year:
Baccalaureate: Bachelor of Science, April 1 983, Recreation, Eastern Michigan Uni versity
Masters : Master of Science, Oct. 1 9 85, Recreational Sports Management, Eastern Mi chigan Univ.

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Counci l member si g ns , p lease forward this fonn and letters of su pp ort to : CFO , 1 0 1 Welch H a l l . Upon
a pp rova l of the President , the recommendation wil l be sent to the Board of Re gents. Emeritus S taff status is contin g ent u p on
the a pp roval of the Board of Re gents. The above information wil l be ke p t on fi l e in the O ffice of the Chief Financial Officer.
Updated 8/24/ 1 2
-----------------------------

- ..

EASTERN

M IC H I G A N U N IVERSITY
Education First

RECREATION/INTRAMURALS
emich.edu/recim

October 31, 2017
Eastern Michigan U niversity has been Lou Gianino's home for over four decades. Luciano Lucky Gianino
a rrived at EMU during the Fall of 1974. He completed two degrees from EMU, Bachelor of Science in
Recreation('83) and Master of Science in Recreational Sports Management(85'). Lou has provided
service to the campus community in a variety of capacities, including Bowling Alley supervisor, Associate
Director of Facility Operations a n d in 2014 was promoted to Director of The Olds/Robb Student
Recreation Complex (Rec/lM). Lou retired with distinction on September 29, 2017 after 30 years of
dedicated service.
Lou was instrumental to the operation of the newly built, state-of-the-art, student recreation facility built
in 1982. The Rec/lM was recognized as one of the top facilities in the country setting a new industry
standard for the integration of programming, facilities, and business operations. Lou, a true visionary,
was a n integral player d u ring the planning of additional facility enha ncements:
• Aerobics studio, a second weight-lifting room, a new wrestling/combatives room, the
"Courtside" concessions area, the Competitive Edge Pro Shop, and the U n iversity Park and Lake
house (another campus landmark), were developed in 1991-1992
• Intra mural softball com plex on the west side of campus in 2004
• Thirty person hot tub in the Club Pool in 2010
Other notable distinctions:
• Lou was recognized by the university community with a nu mber of awards including the
prestigious Gold Medallion Award in 2007 and the Silver Medallion Award in 2012
• He has been a n active member in the Michigan Intramural a n d Recreation Sports Association
(MI RSA) including a term of 2 years as State Director (1991-1993)
The Robert England and Lou Gianino Rec/lM Student Employee Endowed Scholarship" was
created in 2008
•

11

Lou is beloved by faculty, staff, al umni, fellow colleagues, comm unity members, and especially students.
He has mentored and touched the lives of hu ndreds of students who have since gone on to serve in the
field of recreation and intramural sports at institutions across the cou ntry. He has a lways considered the
student ' s ability to pursue recreation a priority. We often joke when we scramble to find available space,
Louie would gladly allow his office to be used for any intra mural sport for any interested student. We are
pleased to offer this strong recommendation to honor Lou Gianino for emeritus status. Lou has the
reputation of a true role model, amiable person and committed member of the E M U family. He is and
always will be a credit to the success of the Rec/lM Department and a lifelong advocate for Eastern

October 3 1 , 201 7
To Whom It May Concern,
I am pleased to offer this recommendation on behalf of Lou Gianino for emeritus status at
Eastern Michigan University. In my role as director of the Recreation/lntramurals Department
(Rec/lM), I have watched Lou's evolution (over the last 30 years) from a student leader on
campus to a professional staff member in our department.
Lou has been an integral member of the Rec/lM for over thirty years. He treats his staff and
constituents like family. He is the behind-the-scenes kind of guy who works hard for the
department a nd the university, but rarely takes credit. He works long days, often seven days a
week to ensure all events run smoothly. His outstanding job performance positioned him for
promotion to Associate Director and then Director (after I retired).
Lou always contributes to organizations and events outside the scope of his job. Some
highlights include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Organized Meals on Wheels golf tournaments
Served on Meals on Wheels Board of Directors
Organized Cope O'brien Volleyball Tournaments for Washtenaw County Drug Prevention
For 30 years coordinated the all EMU faculty/staff golf leagues and tournaments
Served on the EMU Alumni Board
Created the Rec/lM Texas Hold'em weekly tournaments which have been going on for
over thirteen years. This involved thousands of participants and many hours above his
regular work schedule. In addition, he collected food donations and prizes for this event.

Former Director, Recreation and lntramu als Department
Eastern Michigan University
Consultant, Syracuse University Rec Ce ter

�
�

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMMENDATION

The Department/Office of

v% recommends the awarding of Emeritus Staff Status for the following

retiring/retired staff member:
Name of staff member: �bAC.G Uo�SE'--1
Title upon retirement:

th \\e,-e., �lCE'<k. / c..e.ims yie_f\J<c tvno/0

Date of hire at EMU: � ) q1

C-co�'v1 0A-to«...

Retirement date: � l I

Number of years at EMU: s2.Q_ (Minimum of 15 years of service required)
Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directory.

Home address:
Home telephone:
Name of spouse:

E-mail address:

#

Wof'5ej IQ)em1c.� . ed u

Degree(s)/institutions/year: Baccalaureate: E't-'\l) --�
Masters:

EMU -,Jrov:,

Doctoral:
Please attach 2 letters of support to this application
'f -

-

Date

I+

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, please forward this form and letters of support to: CFO, 101 Welch Hall. Upon
approval of the President, the recommendation will be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Office of the Chief Financial Officer.

Updated 8/24/12

EASTERN
M I C H I G A N U N IVERSITY

Education First

� � PHYSICAL PLANT
www.emich.edu

September 19, 201 7
To Whom It May Concern:
I have known Candace Dorsey for over 20 years. It was always a pleasure to see or call
on her whenever needed. She has been a dedicated and loyal employee to Eastern
Michigan University who was always willing lo go above and beyond her normal
required work duties.
On a personal note, she exhibits good work ethics and loyal dedication to EMU . I have
attended several of her training sessions. She is always very professional and serious
f
about her work at EMU She is great with staf as well as students. I am surely going
to miss her.
I would strongly recommend that you grant her Emeritus StaffStatus when she retires,
September 15, 201 7.
Ifyou have any questions, please feelfree to contact me. I would greatly appreciate the
opportunity to support my requestfurther.

s·

I

�

: .,

Eastern Michigan University
Facilities Manager, Housing
Office: 734. 487.2278

P' HYSlCAL
PLANT
September 8, 201 7
Mike Valdes
Office of the CFO
1 0 1 Welch Hall
Dear Mr. Valdes,
I am honored to support Mrs. Candace Dorsey for emeritus status. Candace has been a
dynamic figure on campus for the last 20 years as part of the public safety department.
Candace always strived for the greater good of the EMU community. She was
professional, knowledgeable, and approachable. Her passion and genuine concern for
others was easily recognized. No matter what the issue Candace always did her best to
do what was right.
I was particularly impressed with her tireless efforts to educate the students and staff
when it came to personal safety on campus. She had a unique ability to captivate her
audience during her training sessions. Whether one-on-one or with a large group she
was able to connect with the audience and leave a lasting impression.
I cannot say enough about Candace, former employee and great all around human
being. She was a fine colleague who loved EMU. She did everything in her power to
make sure students, faculty and staff were served. We should honor her with emeritus
status.

co t torrar
Director of Facilities Planning & Construction

Eastern Michigan University - Physical Plant • 875 Ann St. • Ypsilanti, Ml 48197
Phone: (734) 487-3591 • Fax: (734) 8680

EAST E R N M I C H IGAN UNI VE RSITY
E IVI E RITUS STAFF STATUS R ECOIVI M E NDAT I O N
The Departm � nt/Orfice o f Mathematics and Statistics recommends the nwarclinge,l�p�<t� ¥ts,�aff Status
1'.Cl.,£1 V
for the followrng

.CU

StP i 9 2017

retiring/retired staff member:

liuman ttesourcc�
Eastern Michigan Universit�

Name of staff member: MarY Jo St. Louis
Titl e upon retirement: Tc::acher1 Placement Specialist. PE08
Dare o l" hire at EMU: 8/ 1 6/ 1 998

Reti rem-.nt date: 8-' I I /20 1 7

! ·umber o f years at EMU: 1 9 ( M i n i m u m o f 1 5 :--ears of serv ice required)

Home address:
Home telephone:
Name o f spouse: Vince
Degree(s)/institutions/year: Baccalaureate: 1 973
Masters: 1 980
Doctoral:
Please attach 2 letters o f support t o this application
Ela ine J . Richards
Recommended bv

8. 03 20 I 7
Date

Dr. Debra lng:ram
Recommended by

8, 03 20 1 7
Date

REC'D OCT 1 8 2017
Date S u b m i tted to Board of Rt:!gents
A lh:r the [:-.:: ecutivc Counci I 1111:rnber ;igns. please forn,ard th is form and kners of support to: CFO. IO I Vv elch I !al I . upon
appro, al of the' President. the reco111 me11clarion 1v i l l be sent to the B'oard of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the Jpproval of the Board or Re gems. The: abo've in formation 11 i l l be kept on ti le i n the O ffice or the Chief Financial Otlicer.
Updated 8 2-i I 2

EASTERN

MICH IGAN UNIVERSITY
Education First

DEPARTMENT 0/ MATHEMATICS

------

math.emich.edu

September 15, 2017

To Whom It May Concern:
It is my pleasure to add my support and recommendation for Emeritus Staff Status for Mary Jo St. Louis.
The enthusiastic recommendation of Ms. Elaine Richards, Program Administrator for Developmental
Mathematics and Mathematics Placement Testing, describes Mary Jo's profound contributions to
teaching and student learning at Eastern Michigan University. Mary Jo's dedication to student learning
and advising has contributed to making the Developmental Mathematics program at Eastern one of the
most successful developmental math programs I have ever worked with.
Mary Jo was a loyal EMU employee and identifies deeply with Eastern Michigan University. Emeritus
Staff Status will be very meaningful to her and there is no question she will continue to represent the
university with pride and responsibility.
Sincerely,

Dr. Debra Ingram, Professor and Head
Department of Mathematics and Statistics

5 1 5/5 16 Pray-Harrold, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 • 734.487.1444 , Fax: 734.487.2489

EASTERN
M ICH IGAN U N IVERSITY
Education First

DEPARTMENT 0/ MATHEMATICS
math.emich.edu

September 1 5, 20 1 7
Letter of Suppo1t for Emeritus Staff Status
Mary Jo St. Louis, PE08
Developmental Mathematics Program
I am the administrator for the Developmental Mathematics Program. I have worked closely with
Mary Jo St. Louis at EMU for over 1 9 years. She has been an integral part of our program.
wholeheartedly recommend Mary Jo for Emeritus Staff Status.
Mary Jo successfully taught both levels of developmental mathematics at EMU since 1 998. Her
teaching style encourages students to become actively involved in the learning process. Mary Jo
has a delightful attitude about learning and shares this passion with her students. Her students
and I certainly miss Mary Jo this semester as she retired last month.
Accurate academic advising and appropriate course placement are essential elements of our
Developmental Mathematics Program. Mary Jo always patiently provided concise details to
students seeking mathematics placement information. She was very encouraging during advising
sessions, offering study options and outlining realistic academic goals. Mary Jo has been a
TRUEMU member at EMU for her entire career.
Mary Jo assisted with all aspects of course development in our program. She was instrumental in
coordinating materials used by our educators for our Basic Mathematics course. When asked to
work on a specific project, Mary Jo energetically did so, working alone or as part of our team. As
an Emeritus, Mary Jo will stay actively involved with our Developmental Mathematics Team and
EMU.
I am very pleased to have worked with Mary Jo St. Louis at EMU. I support her application for
Emeritus Staff Status as she enjoys retirement. If you need additional information, please contact
me by email at erichards l'il1emich.edu, or by phone at 734-487-4474.
Sincerely,

Developmental Mathematics Program Administrator
Eastern M ichigan University

5 1 5/5 1 6 Pray-Harrold, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, 734.487.1 444 , Fax: 734.487.2489

•

EASTERN M ICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS STAFF ST A TUS RECOMMENDATION

The S chool of Communication, Media and Theatre Arts recommends the awarding of Emeritus Sta ff
Status for the fol lowing
retiring/retired staff member:
Name of staff member: Wendy Kivi
Title upon retirement: Special Events Manager
Date of hire at EMU : 0 8/0 1 /200 l

Retirement date: 08/ 1 1 /20 1 7

Number of years at EMU : 1§ (Minimum of 1 5 years of service required)
Please comp lete the followi n g information on the retiri n g staff member for whom you are submittin g this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directory .

Home address :
E-mai l address : wkivi@emich .edu

Home telephone :
Name of spous e: David Kivi

Degree(s)/institutions/year: Baccalaureate: EMU BS in Communication 1 9 89
Masters: EMU MA in Communication 1 99 1
Doctoral :
Please attach 2 letters o f support to this application

•

I

I I

y

Date

Date

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Counci l member si g ns , p lease forward th is form and letters of su pp ort to : CFO , I O l Welch Hall. Upon
a pp roval of the President , the recommendation wi l l be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff statu s is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above i nformation will be kept on file i n the Office o f the C h i e f Financial Officer.
Updated 8/24/1 2

EASTERN

COLLEGE 0/ ARTS AND SCIENCES

M IC H IGAN U N IV E RSITY

Edumtion First

Letter of Support for Wendy Kivi
For
Emeritus Staff Status

emich.edu

September 2 0 1 7
You just got to get up and m ilk andfeed the cows. Cows don 't take any excuses. - Unknown

While on the surface the above quotation would not seem like a recommendation for
Wendy Kivi to receive emeritus staff status, but upon closer examination it exemplifies
her work ethic and years of service at EMU. She had that quotation hanging in our office
for years because she believed that "the work had to get done and you just did it". What
it does not tell you about Wendy Kivi is the extraordinary level of care, quality and
professionalism that she brought to work everyday.
I have had the pleasure of working with Wendy for over 30 years and being her office
mate for a large percentage of that time. I can tell you I do not know anyone who has
worked harder and has been more dedicated to the faculty, staff and students of EMU and
specifically to the Undergraduate Symposium and the School of Communication, Media
and Theatre Arts than Wendy. In her role as Special Event Coordinator, she has
coordinated numerous fundraisers, alumni events, graduation receptions, celebrations and
most notably the Undergraduate Research Symposium.
Wendy Kivi has planned and coordinated twenty-four Undergraduate Symposiums. She
has helped grow the event to include a Design Expo for students to exhibit their design
based projects. In the 2017 Undergraduate Symposium, 341 students presented and were
sponsored by 166 faculty mentors. Wendy has overseen the process from start to finish
including being actively involved in friend raising and fund-raising. I cannot imagine an
Undergraduate Symposium without Wendy Kivi.
As Wendy's office mate in the School of Communication, Media and Theatre Arts, I
would marvel at how Dennis Beagen would have an innovative (and sometimes crazy
idea) for either the department or undergraduate symposium and Wendy would patiently
listen then make it happen. I would joke with Wendy about how events, newsletters,
annual reports, would just magically appear. Clearly, it was not magic. It was Wendy
Kivi quietly getting the job done without fanfare or bringing attention to herself. I believe
that we in the workplace we are all replaceable though Wendy Kivi leaves a bigger void
than most of us and I will and do already miss the magic.

Office of the Dean, 214 Pray-Harrold, Ypsilanti, Ml 48197 • 734.487.4344 • Fax: 734.485.9592

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

SCHOOL

0/

COMMUNICATION, MEDIA & THEATRE ARTS

Education First

emich.edu/CMTA

August 29, 2 0 1 7
Dear EMU Regents:
As a professor in the School of Communication, Media, & Theatre Arts I strongly and
enthusiastically recommend Wendy Kivi for E meritus Staff Status. Wendy's official
title of "Special Events Manager" does not begin to capture the scope and quality of
the contributions Wendy has made in her many years of service to Eastern Michigan
University.
Wendy is probably best known on campus for her work directing and coordinating
the Undergraduate Research Symposium. Typically held at the end of March, the
Symposium involves months of planning and preparation to accommodate the
hundreds of students and faculty who participate in it every year. The Symposium
is known as one of the best showcases in the country for undergraduate research,
and Wendy has graciously worked with faculty from other universities who want to
emulate the model she established at EMU. Students who have participated in the
program have found themselves better prepared for graduate school, law school,
medical school, and their careers. It is hard to think of another single event which
has positively impacted students' lives and success.
What many people do not know is the variety of other events Wendy has planned
for the School of Communication, Media, and Theatre Arts. She has coordinated
numerous fundraisers for the school over the years which have directly benefitted
our forensics team and our media and theatre programs. She has planned
retirement parties, alumni reunions, faculty and staff recognitions and celebrations,
promotional materials, and list goes on and on and on. Wendy has always shied
away from any recognition for her achievements and accomplishments, preferring
to quietly work behind the scenes to ensure each event or project is a success.
Wendy has been the heart and soul of the School for many years. We will miss her
greatly in the fall. With everything she has done for our students, faculty, school, and
university, she is highly deserving of Emeritus Staff status.
Sincerely,

Dennis Patrick O'Grady, Ph.D.
Professor
School of Communication, Media, & Theatre Arts

1 24 Quirk Hall, Ypsilanti, M I 48 1 97 • 734.487.3131 • Fax: 734.487.3443

SECTION : 5
DATE :

BOARD OF REGENTS

December 1 5 , 20 1 7

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION
EMERITUS FACULTY STATU S
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Faculty Status to five ( 5) former
faculty members : Betty Beard, School of Nursing from 1 976 to 20 1 7, who retired after 4 1 years;
Rita Bullard, Uni versity Library from 1 9 73 to 20 1 7, who retired after 43 years ; Joan Jones,
Department of Mathematics from 1 99 8 to 20 1 7 , who retired after 1 9 years; David Leapard, S chool
of Technology and Professional Services Management from 1 992 to 20 1 7, who retired after 25
years ; Alexandra No11on, Department of Engl ish from 1 989 to 20 I 6, who retired after 2 7 years .
STAFF SUMMARY
The Collective Bargaining Agreement between Eastern Michigan University and the Eastern
Michigan University Chapter of the American Association of University Professors (AAUP)
provides that a faculty member who has served the University for at least fi fteen ( 1 5) years may be
nominated for Emeritus Faculty Status upon retirement.
The nomination for this individual has received the support of the department head or school
director, the dean of the college, and the Provost and Executive Vice President.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None .
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS FACULTY STATUS RECOMMENDATION
December 15, 201 7

Betty Beard
Professor, School of Nursing from 1976 to 2017
(41 years)
Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

University of Michigan
Wayne State University
University of Michigan

Rita Bullard
Professor, University Library from 1973 to 2017
(43 years)
Masters
Baccalaureate

Eastern Michigan University
University of Michigan (AMLS)
Eastern Michigan University

Joan Jones
Professor, Department of Mathematics from 1 998 to 2017
(19 years)
Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

Georgia State University
Georgia State University
Herbert Lehmen College

David Leapard
Professor, School of Technology and Professional Services Management from 1992 to 2017
(25 years)
Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

University of South Carolina
University of South Carolina
Georgia Southern University

Alexandra Norton
Professor, Depa11ment of English from 1989 to 2016
(27 years)
Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

University of California,Berkeley
University of Vermont
New York University

SECTION :

6

DATE :

BOARD OF REGENTS

December 1 5 , 20 1 7

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNI VERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

MONT HLY REPORT & M INUTES
STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
ACTI ON REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Student Affairs Conunittee Agenda for December 1 5 , 20 1 7 and the
Minutes of October 20, 2 0 1 7 be received and pl aced on file.
STAFF SUMMARY
The December 1 5 , 20 1 7 agenda includes an update from Student Leader Group, an update from
Student Govermnent, a presentation regarding the recent changes in the Office of Wellness and
Community Standards (formally the Student Conduct, Community Standards and Wellness
Office), and a presentation from the Om buds Office sharing data related to student concerns .
In addition, several announcements wil l be made.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been revi ewed and is recommended for Board approval .

I

'I

Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
Student Affairs Committee

December 15, 2017
9:45 a . m .

Welch Hall Room 201

Agenda
1. Approval of agend a and October 20, 2017 minutes

Regent Beagen

2. Student Leader Group Presentation
3. Office of Wellness and Com m u n ity Standards Presentation

Sean Woolf

4. Ombuds Office Presentation

Chiara Hensley &
Julia Heck

5. Board Policy Updates

Ch iara Hensley,
LaMarcus Howard,
Sean Woolf

6. Annou ncements

Eastern M ichigan University
Board of Regents
Student Affairs Committee
M in utes of October 20, 2017
MEMBE RS PRESENT
Regents:

Dennis Beagen, Eu nice Jeffries

Administratio n : E l l e n Gold, Lucas Langdon, Calvin Phillips
Students:

Mona Beydoun, Alyssa Sook Way Choo, Shawntae Den a i l H arris, Emily Jannaro,
Sarah Kurz, Tremain Lasenby, Miles Payne, Jordan Wilshaw, Elijah Zagorski

GU ESTS
Admin istration: Sarah Ayers, Sonia Chawla, Regent M ichelle Cru m m, Chris Finch, Leigh Greden, Julia
Heck, Bob Heighes, Chiara Hensley, Caro l i n e Horste, Jill Hunsberger, Becky Janes,
Ann Klaes, Geoff Larcom, M ary Larkin, Lisa Lauterbach, Kevin Lawson, Kyle Martin,
Regent Mike Morris, Sarah Kersey Otto, William Shell, Lewis Savage, Michael Tew,
Wade Tornqu ist, Jea nette Zalba
Stud ents:
Larry Borum, Sam Jones-Darling
Regent Beagen convened the meeting at 9 :46am. The m i nutes from April 21, 2017 were a pproved.
Student Leader Group Priorities for 2017-18
Sarah Kurz and Tremain Lasenby introduced themselves and then invited Student Leader Group
members to introduce themselves. Sarah a n d Tremain then shared a presentation about the areas
that Stud e nt Leader G roup plans to focus on for the 2017-18 academic year. These include fostering a
culture of gender neutrality i n classrooms, support for programs that help retain marginalized
students, general education requirements and developmental courses, parking and shuttle concerns,
stu dent services staffing (specifically in Counseling and Psychological Services and the Office of
International Students and Scholars), internationa l and graduate student engagement, a n d housing
a n d food insecurity on campus.
Student Government Priorities for 2017-18
Miles Payne, Student Government President, and Larry Borum, Student Government Vice President,
d iscussed what they hope to accomplish du ring the 2017-18 academic year. These include laying the
fou ndation for the a b i l ity to use Flex Dining money at off campus locations, continued renovation of
the Rec/lM Build in g, providing feminine hygiene prod ucts on cam pus, general education reform, and
improving the relationship with Athletics. Within this year they hope to i mplement a parking app,
pi lot the feminine hygiene program, reallocate office space i n the Student Center, influence the
culture of Stude nt Government, increase Student Government visibil ity, and i mpact funding for
Diversity a n d Commun ity Involvement.

Miles a n d Larry asked those in attenda nce to help by being visible, looking for ways to meet the
n eeds of the student population, and considering internal process changes.
Regent Beagen asked M iles Payne to share some of the comments that he made at the meeting
rehearsal on October 12, 2017. M iles rep lied that a positive cultu re on campus leads to student
retention. Students come to, a n d remain at, Eastern M ichigan U n iversity because of the activities and
opportun ities outside of the classroom that are offered. We must work to find a way to fulfi l l this
need. Larry added that com m u n ication is very i mportant.

Student Affai rs Annual Report
Ellen Gold a n d Chiara Hensley shared a presentation about the 2016-17 Student Affairs Annual
Report. This p resentation listed all of the departments in Student Affa irs, and the Mission and Vision
of Student Affa irs at Eastern M ichigan U niversity. Strategic goals of Student Affairs a reas were
shared. These goals include fostering student h olistic development t h rough i n n ovative p rograms and
services; e n h a n cing d iversity and m u lticultural competence while cultivating a safe, inclusive
com m u n ity; fostering student appreciation of l ife-long learning, i ndividual responsibility a nd
interpersonal civility; and demonstrating responsible stewardship of our fiscal, physical, technological
a n d h u ma n resources.
Student Affai rs departments/u nits conducted a total of 114 assessments in the areas of student
needs, program/service effectiven ess, benchmarking, student learning outcomes, and operational
outcomes. The departments/u nits also engaged in many programs that support diversity and
inclusion. A fou r page handout of key h ighlights/ach ievements was provided to those who attended
the m eeting.
Proposed goals for 2017-18 include continued assessment; a l ignment of current resources to
maxim ize the student experience, a n d seeking out alternative avenues of funding; provid ing
professional d evelopment and team building opportun ities, a n d developing Student Affa i rs Campus
Action Plans; reco mmending mechanisms to develop d iversity skills and competences for Student
Affai rs staff; a n d growing relationships with underrepresented a n d m a rginalized student populations
through Student Affairs programs, training and events.
Calvin P h i l lips commended the d irectors a n d staff in Student Affa i rs for the A n n u a l Report. He
t h a n ked Ellen Gold a n d Chiara Hensley for the work that was done on the report. Regent Beagen
t h a n ked Lucas Langdon for the work he does with the Student Leader Group.

Annou ncements
• Miles Payne a n nounced that there will be a "Chi l l a n d Grill" on Thu rsday, October 26, 5 :307 : 30pm at the Lake H o use. Students can come to meet police officers. Food will be served
from 5 :30-6 :30pm, a foru m with police officers will occur from 6 : 30-7:30pm.
• Regent Beagen stated that h e recently met with M i l es Payne, J i l l Hunsberger and Clyde
Barnett. He asked Miles to s hare more about this meeting. M iles stated that J i l l was looking
for a way to encourage students to be m o re engaged while on campus. The hope is that they
will then become more i nvolved a l u m n i . Meet-up M o ndays will be held the i st M onday of

each month. There w i l l be food, a raffle a nd the opportun ity for students to network and
m ake c o n nect ions with a l u m n i .
The m eeting adjourned a t 1 0 : 3 2 a m .
Respectfu l ly subm itted,
M ichele Rich
Student Affai rs C o m mittee Recording Secretary

1 1/27/2017

2011-2018
STU ENT LEAD ER G O U P
p IORITIES UPD TE

ACADEMIC ISSUES
SLG met with Mi chael Tew, Associate Provost & Associate Vice
President for Academic Programs and Services to d i sc u ss:
•
•
•
•
•

Gen Ed & grad uation credit req u i rements
Developmental courses d elaying progress to graduation
Gen der neutrality i n the c u rri culum
Retention of stud ents of color
Use of preferred names in the classroom

1

11/27/2017

PARKING & SHUTTlE CONCERNS
SLG met with Dieter Otto, Director of Custod ial, Motor Pool, &
G rounds Services
• COB parking availability

• Rynearson shuttle inconsistency

• Parking fee added to student account results in fees
• Cornell apartment lot hangtag restrictions

• App to communicate space availability in lots

TITLE IX
SLG met with Melody Werner, Title IX Coordinator and Anika
Awai-Williams, Title IX I nvestigator
• Broad overview ofTitle IX policy and services

• Mandated reporter vs. confidential

2

11/27/2017

FUTURE CONVERSATIONS
• Stu dent services s taffi ng
• I nternational and graduate student engagement
• Housing & food i n secu rity on cam p us

QUESTIONS?

3

1 1 /27/2 0 1 7

1

1 1 /27/20 1 7

2

1 1 /27/20 1 7

3

1 1 /27/2 0 1 7

New Term i n o logy
Administrative Sanction

Administrative Action

Secondary Sanction
University Judicial Board
Judicial Appeal Board
Informal Meeting

Restorative Action
�

Formal Hearing Panel
Appeals Hearing Panel
Community Standards Review

4

1 1 /27/20 1 7

5

1 1 /2 7/20 1 7

6

1 1 /27/2 0 1 7

7

1 1 /27/20 1 7

/

Office of the Ombuds
Update: Fall 201 7
Presented By: Eastern Michigan U niversity
Julia Heck, M.A. - Associate Director, Office of the Om buds
Chiara Hensley, Ph.D. - Assistant Vice President for Academic & Student Affairs

1

1 1 /27/20 1 7

Rei nventing, Rebuilding, & Rebrand ing Tra nsition
Institution
Review

Change in
Culture

Change in Staffi ng
Part-Time
Ombuds

Ombuds & Case
Manager

Change in Reporting
President

Assistant Vice
President

Change i n Title
U niversity
Ombudsman

Associate
Director

2

1 1 /27/20 1 7
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Services

Confidential
Consu ltations

Facilitated
Conversations
W.•••-W••·•�fff

.. --.......
- - .. ......... -- -·· ..�..... ...
·-. ·---. -···---�•. ,---·-·
- .. ..
,.-...

...

�"-�

- - . -· --·- .
.... --. --·-·-· · -··-,, -·
... -. ....·-..--·
,,

--

.--- -·-, _,..,.
--·. ---......... - .

·-·___
- ·-·_
.. ______
-....... ----··--·-•-·-..···
.··--.• ___
•-'-

.,.

·
,

.

---., ,.,

@

•

U n iversity
I nitiatives Culture Change
Ex-Officio
Committee
Involvement

•
•
•
•

Active
Resolution/
Referral
Conflict
Resolution
Tra i n i ngs &
Workshops
Un iversity Policy
Reviews

Annual
Recommendation
Report for
Leadership

Consu ltation &
Referra l
Students, Faculty, Staff, and
Administrators can contact our
office to engage i n confidential
consultation, active resolution,
or referra l.

3

1 1 /27/20 1 7

Pol icy Reviews &
Recom mendations

10

19

4

Facil itated
Conversations,
Tra i n i ngs, & Workshops
Students, Faculty, Staff, and
Administrators can contact our
office to request facilitated

Audience of 20+
on average for trainings
& Workshops

conversations, as well as conflict
resolution trainings & workshops.
*Facil itated Conversations are a new service a s of 201 7-20 1 8 academic year.

4
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U n iversity Cultu re Change & I nvolvement

5

• Diversity, Equ ity, and
I nclusion Training
• Pronoun Policy

Ex-Officio
Committee
Involvement

• Enhanced
Commu nication Efforts
• Syl labi Enhancement
Train ing

Ca m pus Activities & Engagement
Fast Track & First Four
The Office of the Om buds now
actively participates in all new
student and transfer student
activities at the start of both Fall and
Winter semesters.

.,�,........,.,.�. �--:"�'"--"�··: .U i.1'1!• '-"'
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·;Tl1e Office ofthe Ombuds has built
padnersfopswith the" Faculty
Development Center and Academic
Human Resources to engage in all
new facuity. orientation sessions.
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More
We are a neutral third pa rty in the
institution that helps community
members to plan courses of action to
best resolve their concerns and
q uestions. We also seek to surface
t rends to higher administratration so
t hat they may be add ressed
institutionally.

Less
We are here to help you solve
whatever problems you may be having,
or overcome a ny barriers you may
encou nter, during your time at Eastern

Longitud i na l Data on Add ssing Concerns

606 2834 2432
Points of

Points of
Contact

478

Points of

Points of

2017 • 2018 . To Date

Cases

Cases

Cases

Cases

1 55

6
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Actively: seel< OJ!P-Oltunities to
tall< witli all ol our. constituent
grouf!s in tlie rainy, cloui.ly,
anil sunn� times.

Identifying our Constituent's Needs
• Clarification of University policy
• Help with institutional navigation
• Hand holding
• Goal clarification
• Conflict Management
• Articulating pol icy
• Creating fai r processes
• Access to power

7
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EMU ecosystem
l?Jrn1111

Fostering relationships
that a re sustainable and
bui lding trust cannot be
done with in silos.
By engaging the whole
comm u nity as an
ecosystem, we are able to
build stronger,
mai ntainable constituent
relationships.

E M U Strategic Plan
We Articulated Vital Connections
• Institutional Effectiveness, Goal I , Objective 1.4
o Facilitate effective, timely, and transparent
communication among university stakeholders
• Student Engagement & Success, Goal 2, Objective 2. I & 2.2
o Identify, design, and implement seamless connections
among academic/non-academic programs and services
that facilitate student persistence and graduation.
o Connect students through existing structures to resources
that will support student well-being across the
university
• Core Value, Respect
o We care for our people, communities, and the
environment and show respect for the dignity of the

8
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• Offer feedback and input to the Criterion 2
writing team: Integrity, Ethical, and
Responsible Conduct
• Offer feedback and input on the Federal
Compliance Report - Specifically, complaints

9
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E M U as a National Leader i n Om buds Services
· 201 7 ACR Annual
Conference - October

Institutionalizing Ombuds
Practice in Higher
Education: Embracing
Conflict as a Means for
Institutional Growth

� � Association for
�
Conflict Resolution
_,

J

O�·i'BUDS�IAN
"' , � Q r r , r I t.> "

· 201 8 IOA Annual
Conference - April
Proposal Submitted

O u r Opportun ities
• Train all Office of the Ombuds staff i n mediation.
In addition, once trained, i mplementing
mediation as a scope of service for the Office of
the Ombuds.
• Actively partici pate in professional organizations
• Engage in ex-officio involvement in various
committees in the E M U community
• Enhance resource documents that will aid
students in resolving conflicts on their own.
• Expand partnerships with EMU
offices/departments to enhance overall services
and resources provided to students

10
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Ad d ressi ng I n stitutiona l/Student Needs
· · · · · · · · · · ·• Service &

Organizational,
Strategic,

Compliance

Mission Related

Related

Values, Ethics, and

Communication &

Standards Related

Relationship
Related

Presented By: Office of the Om buds
J ulia Heck, M.A., jheck3@emich.edu, 734-487-0074
Chiara Hen sley, Ph.D., chensle5@emich.edu, 734-487-6741

Tha n k you !
" e r·ti O r:, .:::ir- ).
n
, U
"'

_:::i
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DATE :

BOARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E R N M I C H I G A N UN I V E R S I T Y

7

Decemb er 15 , 20 7

RECOMMENDATION
ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
ACTION REQ UESTED
It is requested that the Board of Regents receive and pl ace on fil e the working agenda for the
December 1 5, 20 1 7 meeting and October 20, 20 1 7 minutes .

STAFF SUMMARY
• Approval of Friday, October 20, 20 1 7 Minutes
• Men ' s & Women ' s Cross Country Champi onship and NCAA Finish
• Academic News
• External Relati ons
• Fal l Sports Recap-Volleyb all, Football, Men ' s & Women' s Cross Country
• Highlight Department-Davi d Bolyard-Head Coach-Wrestling
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
To be determined

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval

Datt(
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BOARD OF REGENTS

ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
December 15, 2017
201 Welch Hall
8:45 a.m.
AGENDA
A.

New Eagles

B.

Men's & Women's Cross Countty Championship and NCAA Finish

C.

Academic News
a. 35 4.0 from spring
b. 83% graduation rate-highest ever

D.

External Relations
a. Championship Building Plan Brick Campaign
b. Crowdfunding Initiative
c. FY 1 8 To Date

E.

Fall Sports Recap-Volleyball, Football, Men's & Women's Cross Country

F.

Highlight Department-David Bolyard-Head Coach-Wrestling

SW/lb
Agenda November 27, 20 l 7

Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Minutes of October 20, 2017

Members:
Regents: Michelle Crumm, Mike Morris, Alexander Simpson, Mary Treder Lang, Jim Webb
Athletics: Scott Wetherbee, Athletics Director/Vice President

Regent Mike M orris called the Athletic Affairs Committee meeting to order at 8:50a.m.
Updated Staff News:
Scott Wetherbee, who has been here three months provided a brief introduction to the 14 new coaches
and staff members who joined the Athletics Department and an update on the one promotion awarded.
Andy Rawdon from Texas Tech was hired as the new Senior Associate AD for External Affairs and Dan
McLean was promoted to Senior Associate AD for Development. A handful of Assistants have been hired
as well. Both Eric Gerbens and Sean Pryor in Student Athlete Support Services, Sean McCarthy in
Compliance, Dominci Velotta in Equipment and Katie Gonzales and Kyler Ludow in Media Relations. We
have two new head coaches. Katie Minasola was hired as the Women's Gymnastics Head Coach and
Jayson Williams as the Women's Tennis Head Coach. We had Assistants hired in Gymnastics, Track and
Field, Volleyball and Swimming.
Facility Updates:
Rynearson Stadium underwent a number of facility improvements over the summer, most notably the
installation of the new stadium LED lights which will enhance the fan and viewer experience at our home
football games. The visiting team locker room had new flooring installed and received a fresh coat of
paint, while the concourse, restrooms and press box received some aesthetic upgrades. In addition to the
Stadium projects, the javelin runway was re-surfaced to address safety concerns.
Academic News:
Eastern Michigan has won the Cartwright Award for the second time in school history for the 2016-17
academic year. This is the Mid-American Conference's most prestigious award voted on by your peers,
presented annually to the institution which achieves overall program excellence based upon academics,
athletics and citizenship.
External Relations:
The University's contract with The Aspire Group, who handles ticket operations and outbound sales for
our athletics events, was extended through 2023. With the contract, a third full-time staff member has
been added to the team, which will further enhance the ticket sale efforts. We are currently at 826
football season tickets sold to date, which is nearly 300 more season tickets sold than last year. We are in
the midst of Homecoming Week and look forward to welcoming all at the TruEMU Block Party and Pep
Rally this evening, as well at the football game versus Western Michigan on Saturday afternoon. In an
effort to continue to build the Block E brand, we have started BlockEFriday, encouraging fans to post
photos of themselves wearing a Block E to social media in the most creative ways possible. The response
has been strong and we look to continue growing this initiative with our fans. Basketball is about to start
and on November 1 0 we will be hosting the 1 0 th Annual Education First Kids Day. This game brings in
about 3 100 students from the surrounding Ypsilanti schools.

Development:
For the fou rth year in a row, we have sold out th e Eagles Pride Suite and for th e first time, we have sold
out the Eagles Pride Loge. Scott Wetherbee's father purchased one on the 50 yard line and Mike Morris
purchased o n e for student organizations. The brick campaign for the Championship Building Plan went
public at the end of August and over a hundred bri cks have been s old to date. Cortland Selmon, College of
Business alumnus and former fo otball stud ent-athlete, has j o ined the Champions Advisory B oard,
b ringing the total number of members to 1 7. Athleti cs and the Foundation are launching a new
crowdfunding fundraising initiative. It offers donors alumni and fans a modern avenue to directly
support E M U student-athletes and the teams most meaningful to them. This is sport specific fundraising
and will a llow better communication of how donors support positively impacts the athletes. It will also
allow teams to visually show their sp ecific fundraising goals to donors and display how they are
a chieving them. We've also hosted a number of donor and alumni events this fall semester, which have
been well attended and received. The Football Season Premier Dinner was at full capacity, 9 0 guests
attended the Track & Field Reunion, 1 19 RSVP' d for the Football Alumni Reu nion and 9 1 golfers signed
up fo r the upcoming Wrestling Golf Outi ng.
Fall Sports-Update:
The M en's Cross Country team claimed their eighth straight Mid-American Conference title on Saturday,
O ctober 28, while the women captured its third Mid-American Conferen ce Championship. Football we
are currently 2 and 4 and Volleyball 10 and 14 and 2 and 6 in the MAC. The Volleyball team is more
competitive and continuing to improve. Women's Soccer won last night, beating WMU; the first time
since 2 0 1 4. If Soccer wins their last two games, they will be in postseason play. They are a young team
that includes 8 freshmen.
Highlight Program-Lauren Pottschmidt-Student-Athlete Advisory Council President for 2017-18:
Lauren is a Women's Cross Country /Track and Field Student-Athlete and a General Business Maj or. Her
parents both attended E M U; her Dad ran for Bob Parks. During her sophomore year she joined SAAC as
th e S ocial M edia Chair and decided in h er junior year she would run for President. Lauren hopes to
communicate more with C oaches and Administrators while she is President. Currently, she is planning
J ock Jamz and has discussed not h osting an end of year banqu et and have more of a group activity. She
hopes to see more school spirit while she is President. One of the best things she hopes to gain from her
time as Pres ident is Time Management skills . She is learning how to budget her time between Cross
C ountry /Tra ck, Student and President.
Meeting was adjourned at 9 : 3 5a.m.
Respe ctfully submitted,

Lori B arron
Administrative Secretary

1 1/30/2017

Boa rd of Regents M eeting
Athletic Affairs
December 15, 2017

Depa rt m e nt of Ath l etics - Staff N ews

New Eagles:
1.

Women's Gymn astics Assistant Coach - Danielle Guider

E_
1

1 1/30/2017

Men's Cross Cou ntry
• E ighth stra ight MAC championship, tyi ng the record fo r
most consecutive titles
• H lynur Andresson won his first i n d ividual championship
and re prese nted EMU in the NCAA National
Championship
• John Good ridge earned h is 12 th MAC Coach of the Yea r
award
• Tea m fi nished fourth in the N CAA G reat La kes Regional

Wom e n's Cross Cou ntry
• Th i rd straight MAC c h a m p i o n s h i p
• Fo u r Eagles earned All-MAC honors
• Sue Pa rks was n a m e d MAC Coach of the Yea r for t h e
fou rth t i m e i n h e r career, t h i rd time w h i l e a t E M U
• Tea m fi n i s h e d fou rt h i n t h e N CAA G reat La kes Reg i o n a l,
earn ing a n at-la rge bid to the N CAA Championships fo r
t h e t h i rd time in p rogra m h i story
• Tea m ra n to a 27th -place fi n i s h at the N CAA
Cha m p ionships

E_
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Aca d e m i c N ews
• 4.0 Luncheon - 3 5 student-ath letes with a 4 . 0 G PA i n
Winter 2017
• N CAA G ra d uation S uccess Rate
- 2016-17 = 83%
- 2015-16 = 8 1%
- 2014-15 = 81%

• 4 Scholar Ath l etes of t h e week
• 21 Aca demic Al l-MAC

Extern a l Relations
Athletics Development Update
• Championsh ip Build ing Plan - Brick Campaign
• Crowdfu n d i ng I n itiative
• FY18 Year-to-Date

3
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Exter n a l R e l a t i o n s

T h e Aspire G roup - Ath l etic Ticket Office
• Footba ll attenda nce i ncreased by 6%
- High est since 2010 football season

• Basketba l l season ticket u pd ate
- Highest since 2005-06 season

• Women's Basketball atte nda nce u pdate
• M e n's Basketball atte ndance u pd ate

Fa l l Sports Recap
• M e n's Cross Cou ntry
• Wome n's Cross Cou ntry
• Footba l l
• Women's Soccer
• Vo lleyball

E.
4

1 1/30/2017

H i g h l ight Progra m
Wrestl i ng
• David Bo lya rd - Head Coach
- Fourth season at E M U
- H a s coached n i n e wrestlers to the N CAA championships in
h i s first three seasons
- Team has earned t h ree-straight top-ten finishes in the
NWCA All-Academic stan d i ngs, including first-place in 2015
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SECTION 9
DATE :

BOARD OF REGENTS

December 1 5, 20 I 7

EASTERN MICH IGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

EDUCATIONAL POLICIES COMMITTEE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES
ACTION REQUESTED
It is requested that the Educational Pol icies Commi ttee Agenda for December 1 5 , 20 1 7, and the
Minutes of the October 20, 2 0 1 7, meeting be received and placed on file .
SUMMARY
The primary items for the December 1 5 , 20 1 7 , Educational Policies Committee meeting include :
Agenda and Minutes; Emeritus Faculty; Appointment of Charter S chools Board Members ; New
Academic Pro gram : Informati on Technology Maj or, Bachelor of Science; a report on the James
H . Brickley Endowment for Faculty Professional Development and Innovation 20 1 7 award
winners; and the Degree Completion and Retention Plan annual rep01i.
FIS CAL IMPLICATIONS
The fiscal impact of the actions taken is listed in the appropriate sections and in the Board
m inutes.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

Datq

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents
Educational Policies Committee
December 15, 2 0 1 7
8:45 - 9 : 3 0 a.m.
205 Welch Hall
AGENDA
8:45

Sectio n 9 :

Agenda and Minutes (Regen t Beagen, Chair)

Sectio n 5 :

Emeritus Faculty (Rhonda Longworth)

Section 10: Appointment of Charter Schools Board Member (Malverne Winborne)
Sectio n 11:

New Academic Program: Information Technology Major, BS (Mohammad
Qatu)

Section 12: James H. Brickley Endowment for Faculty Professional Development and
Innovation 2 0 1 7 Award Winners
Discussion Items:
9: 10

Degree Completion and Retention Plan - Annual Report (Rhonda Longworth & Michael
Tew)

EASTERN M I C H I G A N U N I VERSITY
BOARD OF REGENTS

E DU CATI ONAL POLICIES COMM ITTEE MINUTES
October 20, 2017
8:45 a.m. - 9:30 a.m.
205 Welch Hall

Attendees: (seated at tables) Regent Beagen (Chair), J. Ca1Toll, D. Clearwater, A. Ducher, Regent
Jeffries (Vice Chair), R . Longworth, M. Tew, W. Tornquist, and M. Winborne.
Guests: (as signed in) S. Chawla, J. Heck, C. Hensley, B. Kubitskey, L. Polter, M. Rich, M. Sayler and

D. Winters.

Regent Beagen convened the meeting at 8 :45 a.m.

Report and Minutes (Section 1 5)

Regent Beagen requested that the Educational Policies Committee Agenda for October 20, 2017 and
Minutes of the June 26, 2017 meeting be received and placed on file.

Emeritus Faculty (Section 5)

Dr. Rhonda Longworth, Provost and Executive Vice President Academic and Student Affairs,
recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Faculty Status to seven (7) former faculty
members: Ronald Cere, Department of World Languages from 1985 to 2017, who retired August 2017
after 32 years; Chris Wood Foreman, School of Communication, Media and Theatre Arts from 1994 to
2016, who retired December 2016 after 22 years; Flora Hoodin, Department of Psychology from 1998 to
2017, who retired August 2017 after 19 years; Linda Polter, Department of Special Education from 2002
to 2017, who retired August 2017 after 15 years; Gretchen Dahl Reeves, School of Health Sciences from
2001 to 2017, who retired August 2017 after 16 years; Thomas Vosteen, Department of World
Languages from 1991 to 2017, who retired August 2017 after 25 years; Patricia Williams-Boyd,
Department of Teacher Education from 1996 to 2017, who retired after 21 years.

STAFF SUMMARY
The Collective Bargaining Agreement between Eastern Michigan University and the Eastern Michigan
University Chapter of the American Association of University Professors (AAUP) provides that a
faculty member who has served the University for at least fifteen (15) years may be nominated for
Emeritus Faculty Status upon retirement.
The nomination for this individual has received the support of the department head or school director,
the dean of the college, and the Provost and Executive Vice President.

Honorary Emeritus Status for Meritorious Service (Section 6)

Dr. Rhonda Longw orth recommended that the Board of Regents grant Honorary Emeritus Status for
Meritorious Service to Ms. Nancy Harbour, J.D., who provided exceptional leadership in her role as
faculty member and Program Coordinator for the Paralegal Program. Ms. Harbour joined Eastern in
2004 as a lecturer, was promoted to assistant professor in 2005, promoted again to associate professor in
2009, and promoted again to full professor in 2014. During her time at the University, she provided
outstanding leadership on a number of initiatives including establishing the Washtenaw County-EMU

Educational Policies Committee Meeting Minutes October 20, 20 I 7 continued
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Legal Resource Center, successfully renewing EMU's Paralegal Program's accreditation with the
American Bar Association, serving as the president of the American Association for Paralegal
Education, and establishing the Alice Callum endowed scholarship for students in the Paralegal
program.
STAFF SUMMARY
According to University policy, retiring employees who have served the Uni versity for fewer than 1 5
years may be granted Honorary Emeritus Status for Meritorious Service. Candidates for honorary
emeritus status must have a significant number of years of service and a record of meritorious
performance in one or more of the following: (a) a substantive record of scholarly achievement
commensurate with national or international standards within the specific discipline, (b) a record of
outstanding teaching and or educational contributions, (c) clear evidence of service to the University
beyond the normal expectations, (d) clear evidence of exceptional institutional leadership, advancement
of the University or extraordinary service to students.
Ms. Harbour resigned from Eastern in 20 1 6. In her twelve years of employment at EMU, she
demonstrated exemplary service to the students and faculty of the university, and the Washtenaw
County Community, as evidenced by her outstanding record of achievements.

Academic Affairs Administrative Professional Appointments/Transfers (Section 7)

Dr. James Carroll, Associate Provost and Associate Vice President for Budget and Operations
recommended that the Board of Regents approve two (2) Administrative/Professional appointments and
eleven (11) Administrative/Professional transfers at the rank and effective date shown on the listing.

Faculty Appointments (Section 8)

Dr. James Carroll recommended that the Board of Regents approve one ( l ) new faculty appointment for
the 2017-2018 academic year at the rank, salary, and effective date shown on the listing.
STAFF SUMMARY
The new faculty member is female.

Lecturer Appointments (Section 9)

Dr. James Carroll recommended that the Board of Regents approve nine (9) new lecturer appointments for
the 2017-2018 academic year at the rank, salary, and effective date shown on the listing.
STAFF SUMMARY
Demographics show that five (5) are male and four (4) are female.

Academic Retirement/Separations (Section 10)

Dr. James Carroll recommended that the Board of Regents approve twenty-two (22) retirements and ten
( l 0) separations for the period of March 1, 20 l 7 through August 31, 20 1 7.
STAFF SUMMARY
Of the thirty-two (32) retirements and separations, twenty (20) are female and twelve (12) are male.
Demographics show that 94% are Caucasian, 3% are Asian and 3% are Native-American.

Charter Schools Board Member Appointment (Section 1 6)

Dr. Malverne Winborne, Director of Charter Schools, recommended that the Board of Regents appoint
Eric McCloud to a three year term on the Board of Directors of the Academy for Business and
Technology.

Educat i o n al P o l i c i e s Com m i ttee M ee t i ng M i n utes Octobe r 20, 20 1 7 contin ued
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STAFF S U M MARY
Accord i n g to th e reso l uti ons whi c h estab l ish these pub l i c school acad emies ( c h arter sc hoo ls), vacanc ies
o n the Boards of Di rectors sha l l be fi l led by the Eastern Michigan University Board o f Regents .
Dr. W i nborne anno unc ed that the next Math Fact Challenge is scheduled for W ednesday, May 3 0, 20 1 8 .
Com m e n c em e n t Spea ke r and Hon o ra ry Degree (S ecti o n 1 7)
Dr. Rhonda Longworth recom mended that the Board of Regents approve M s . JoAnn Chavez, J.D., Vice
P resi dent and Chief Tax Officer, DTE Energy, as Commencement S peaker at the Saturday, December
1 6 , 20 1 7, commencement ceremo ny. In addition, it is recommended that the Board award an hono rary
Doctor of Commerc e degree (Com. D . ) to Ms . Chavez.
New Aca d e m i c Progra m : E l ectrical a n d Co mputer Enginee ri ng Ma j o r (Section 1 8)
Dr. Rhonda Longworth recommended that the Bo ard of Regents approve a New Academic Program :
E lectrical and Computer Engineering Maj or (Bachelor of S cience).
SUMMARY
The B achelor o f Science in Electrical and Computer Engineering (EECE) program will prepare
engineers for exciting and chal lenging positions in diverse fields of electrical and computer engineering
from automotive, energy , communication to consumer electronics such as smartphones, tablets,
computers, appliances, and much more. The program prep ares graduates to be at the forefront of
designing the next generation of electrical devices .
Upd a te to 20 1 8- 1 9 Acade m i c Cal e n d a r (Sec tio n 1 9)
Dr. Rhonda Longworth recommended that the Board of Regents approve a change to the 20 1 8- 1 9
Academic Calendar. To realize energy savings, the University wi ll b e clo sed o n Friday, July 5 , 20 1 9 .

SUMMARY

An Academic Calendar Committee works with the Provost's Office and the Registrar to develop the
Unive rs ity Calendar. Faculty Senate appo ints members to the Cal endar Committee and the full body
provided input on the structure of the calendar in Apri l 2 0 1 5 . Approval for the 20 1 8- 1 9 calendar was
granted by the Board of Regents at the June 1 6 , 20 1 5 , meeting.
Discussion Ite m :
Dr. Rhonda Longworth and Dr. Michae l Tew, Associate Provost and Associate Vice President/or
A cademic Programming and Services, presented the Academic Affairs reorganizati on.
Regent Beagen thanked those i n attendance, and adj o urned the meeti ng at 9 : 3 5 a.m.
Res pectfully submitted,
Debbie Clearwater
Executive Assi stant, Office of the Provost
Academic and Student Affairs

S E CTIO N :
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DATE :
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RECOMMENDATION
APPOINTMENT OF CHARTER SCHOOLS BOARD MEMBERS
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents appoint Tracey Carpenter and Pamela Theri ot to
three-year terms on the Board of Directors of the Commonwealth Community Development
Academy and re-appo i nt Jonathan Kinloch to a three year term to the B oard of Directors of
Detroit Public Safety Academy .
STAF F SUMMARY
According to the resolutions which establish these public school academies (charter schools) ,
vacanc ies on the Boards o f Directors shall be filled by the Eastern Michigan University Board o f
Regents .
Com m o nwealth Com m un ity Development Acad emy
Tracey Carpenter is an OBGYN Medical Assistant at Hutzel Women ' s Health Special i sts in
Detroit, Michigan. She earned a Phlebotomy Technician ce1iificate from Career Health Studies
in Harper Woods, Michigan in 2 0 1 1 . She earned a Medical Assistant ce1iificate from Kaplan in
Detroit, Michigan in 2009. She is a parent of a student at Commonwealth Community
Development Academy. This is a new appointment.
Pamela Theriot is a Transportati on Driver for Rainbow Rehabilitation in Livonia, Michigan since
20 1 4. S he earned a diploma from Detroit International Academy in 2 0 0 8 . S he is a parent of a
student at Commonwealth Community Devel opment Academy. S he is a co-leader of Girl Scouts
of South Eastern Michigan . This is a new appointment.
Detroit Pu blic Safety Academy
Jonathan Kinloch is the President of The Kinloch Group, Inc. in Ferndale, Michigan since 1 99 1 .
He attended Wayn e State Uni versity in Detroit, Michigan and i s currently pursuing a B .A. in
executive management at Central Michi gan University in Mt. Pleasant, Michigan. He is currently
the vice chairman of the Board of Directors of Wayne County Port Authority and a board
member on the Board of Directors of the Michigan Association of School Boards . Thi s is a re
appoi ntment.
FISCAL IMPLI CATIONS
None.
ADMINISTRATI VE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board acti on has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

2 0 1 7 - 1 1 - 1 0 09 : 5 4

H u t z e l Womens H e a l t h 3 1 3833880 1 > > + 1 . 3 1 3 . 3 66 . 94 7 1

TRACY CAR P E NT E R
De troit , M l

Org a n ized , goal oriented , tea m pl ayer seeking a position i n a n established medical o ffice supporti ng physici a n s ,
nu rs8s, a n d ot her medica l staff t o focilltate, pa tient care.
Work E x p e r i e nce
Med i ca l Assista nURece pti o n i st
H UTZEL WOM E t�·s HE;\L TH SPEC IALI ST - DE!{roit. M l
Seplember 20·1 I t o Pres e n t
• Front office work including computer skills, E M R , an swering phon es, filing , paperwork.
·working with sta ff members in a l1igl1 paced and detailed ori en ted environment seeing over 30 patients a day.
'Provide work in labs such as venipuncture, autoclaving ancl scheduling diagnostic test.
·Ass i s ted physicians with in office procedures s ucl1 as IUD inserti ons � n d rem ovals, colposcopies, endomelrial
biopsies, etc .
'Maintained pati e n t exam rooms.
'Perform fi nger sticks , u rin0 dips , ancl pregnancy tes t .
'Secured pregnant pa tients t o N S T
'Administer medication and Injections, a s well a s prepare and collect blood , urine a n d tissue spccirriens for l aborator/
testing.
'Centrifuge blood samples and autoclave surgical equipment.
'Vit<1I signs , blood pressurn, temperature, and weigllt.
'Assist witl) recep tion duties as needed.
Ed ucati o n

-------�- ..·--··-----· .................

__

· ----------

C e rtifi cati on i n P h l e b o t o my Tech n i c i a n
Career rleallh Studies - Harper Woods, M l
20 1 1 to 20 '1 1
D i p l oma\Ce rtificate In M e d ic a l A s s i st a nt
Kaplan • DBtrolt, M l
2008 to 2009
H i g h S c h o o l D i p l o m a i n G e nera l stu d i e s
Trombly H . S . - Detroit, Ml
200!5 to ?.00G

P 1/1

PA M E LA A . T H E R I OT

OBJ E CTIVE: O u tg o i ng p a re n t s e eking p o s i tio n o n school- b o a rd to b e come m o r e i nv o l v e d i n d a u g hters
sch o o l care e r .
S l< I LLS : G R EAT COM M U N I CAT I ON
P E O P L E F R I E N D LY
E FF I CI EN T W O R K E R
EDU CATI O N :

E M P LOYM E N T :

Detroit I nte r n a ti o n a l Aca d e m y
D i p l o m a Rece ived 2008
R a i nbow R eh a b i l itation Centers
Li vo ni a , M l
Tra nsportation D river, R e h a b Assista n t
M a rch 2 0 14- p r e s e n t
Rege n c y H e a l thcare Cent re
Taylor, M l
Ce rti fi e d N u rsing Assistant
August 2012- June 2 014

P OS I TI O N S :

Detro i t Pri ncess Riverboat
Detro i t, M l
S e rver
M a rch 2012-S e pt e m b e r 2012
G i rl Scouts of South East e r n M i c h igan Co-Le a d e r
T roop 41865
October 201 7 - pres e n t

J O N ATH A N C L EV E LAN D K I N L O C H

Wo rk

Ex p e r i e n c e : 1 9 9 1 -P res e nt: T h e K i n l o c h G ro u p , I n c . - P re s id e nt - M a n a g es the h o ld i n g com p a n y
which p rod u ce re cord ed m u s i c fo r m aj o r reco rd labels a n d med i a partne rs h i p s . Co-own
and d irect the m u sic p u b l i s h i n g for 300 so ngs with Wa rner M usic G ro u p and Sony ATV .
M a n a g i n g P a rt n e r i n N ew York based CMA of West N ew York H o l d i n g s , I n c. and it's
s u b s i d i a ry C MA M u sic P u b l i s h i n g , I n c. / Kobalt M u sic G r o u p .
1 9 89 -9 2 : Tre n d I n d us tri es, I n c . - D i re ctor of Govern me n t a n d C om m u nity Relations h a nd l ed com m u n ity a n d n o n -p rofit org a n i zati o n s req uest fo r donation s a n d a d d ressed
m atters from govern ment agencies and offici a l s . Served on vari o u s boards and
m a i n ta i ned p rofessi o n a l o rg a nization mem berships wit h i n the a uto ind u stry on b e h a lf of
the company.
1 9 8 7 - 8 9 : State of M i c h i g a n , State S e n ate - Legislative Aide to fo rme r Senator J a ck
F a x o n - hand led co n stituent concern s , State P o l ice a n d C o rrecti o n s d epa rtme nt issu es.
1 9 8 6 -8 7 : City of Detroit, Office of the O m b u d s m a n - Research Ass ista nt (intern) g athered i nfo rmation for former O mb ud s man Marie Farre l l Donaldson for i nvestig ative
re p o Ii s .
1 9 84-8 6 : C i ty of D etro it, C ity C o u n ci l - Youth Represe ntative (i ntern) to F o rmer C ity
C o u n c i l Presid e nt Erma L . Hen d e rson ass isted with constitu e nt com p l a i nts and
represented the Council President at events .
P rofess i o n a l
I nv o l v e m e nt:
20 1 4- P res e n t: Detroit - Wayn e C o u nty P o rt Auth o rity , B o a rd of D i recto rs Vice C h a i rm a n
20 1 4 - P rese nt: D etroit - Wa y n e C o u nty Po rt A u th o rity , B o a rd o f D i re cto rs Board Member
20 1 4 - P rese nt: M i c h i g a n Ass o ciati o n of S c h o o l B o a rd s , Board of D i rectors B o a rd Member
2 0 1 3 - P resent: Detroit B oard of E d u c a ti o n - B o a rd M e m be r - At Large

Res u m e-J o n a t h a n C l eve l a n d Ki n l o c h
Page 2
2009- Present: National Association of Parliarnentarians2003- Present: National Notary Associ ati o n - Member·
2008-20"1 3 : Detroit L i brary C o m m i s s i o n - Commissioner
2 0 1 2 - 1 3 : Detroit Library Commission - President
2009- 1 2 : Associ ation for Li brary Trustees, Advocates, Friends a n d
F o u n dations, Leg i s l ative Committee - Member
2009- 1 2 : M u s i c Hall Ce nter for the Performing Arts Board of Trustees
Member
2009-1 1 : American Library Associati o n , Awards Comm ittee - Member
2008-1 1 : Detroit Libra ry Commission, Committee o n B o oks and Literacy
C h airperson
200 8-1 1 : Detroit Li brary C ommission, Comm ittee o n A u d i t - Member
2009- 1 0 : American Library Association,
Progra m m i n g Award - J u ry C h ai r

Mars h a l l

Caven dish

Library

2008-1 0 : Detroit Library Commission, Committee o n B u i l d i ng s - Member
2006- 08:

Detroit B o a rd o f E d ucation- Board Member - District 2

2006-08: Detroit Board of Educati o n , Committee o n H u m a n Resources,
P o l icy a n d Legisl ative Affa irs - Chairperson
2006-08: Detroit Board of E d u cation, C o m m ittee on Safety, Exp u lsions a n d
Student Code o f Conduct - Member
2006-08: M i c h i g a n Association of School Boards, Legisl ative Action Network
- Detroit Representative
2006- 0 8 : Michigan Association of School Boards, Government Relations
Com mittee- Member,
·1 998-2007: C i ty of Detroit, Board of Zo n i n g Appeals- Board Member
1 9 89-1 9 9 ·1 : The Cou n ty o f Wayne M i c h i g a n , P l a n n i n g and Deve lopment
C om m i s s ion- Member and Treasurer

l_- - -

·~--�---·--- --·---- --- -·--·---� ·-.

Res u me-Jonatl1an Cleve l a n d f(i n l o c h
Page 3

C o m m u n ity
I nvo lvement :
Member - Triu m p h Church
Former Member- C linton Street Greater Bethlehem Temple Ch urch
fVl .W. Prince Hall Grand Lodge, F . &A . M . , - Ab iff Lodge No. 2 1 - Master Mason
M.W. Prince Hall G rand Lodge, F. &A. M . - Wolverine Consistory #6
Lifetime Member - Detroit Chapter NAACP
Executive Board Member - Detroit Chapter NAACP
Precinct Delegate - ·1 3 th Congressional District Democratic Party Org .
1 3 Dist. D elegate - M i chigan Democratic Pa rty State Central Committee
Officer - at - Large - Michigan Democratic Party ( M OP)
Chair - Democratic Open Government Caucus of the Michigan Democratic Party
Member- Michigan Democratic Party Policy and Resolution
Fmr President -U nited Nations Association of the United States of America
(Greater Detroit C hapter)
Fmr. C hairman - Childre n Center of Wayne Cou nty - General Outpatient
Advisory Comm ittee
F m r. Bel. Mem. ,Trea s . ; C hair Core City Neighborhoods, I nc.
Fmr. Board Member - Alternative For Girls, Inc.
Fmr. Board Member - Michigan Ave n u e Commu nity Org . (MACO)
Fmr. Secretary - Michiga n Young Democrats
-Partial Listi n g -
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BOARD OF REGENTS

DA TE: December 1 5 , 20 1 7

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION
NEW ACADEMIC PROGRAM
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve a New Academic Program: Information
Technology Major (Bachelor of Science)
SUMMARY
The Bachelor ofScience in Information Technology will focus on IT infrastructure, project management
and integration, systems and network administration, security, and IT architecture.
PROPOSAL ELEMENTS
Rationale

The last decade has witnessed a surge in the already fast-paced technology changes. New
platforms were introduced while others became obsolete. New areas of study have
emerged, which were not previously conceivable, but now due to great advancements
and lower prices of various types of resources, such as storage, memory and processors
have made them more viable. From B ig Data, Data Science and Engineering, Mobile
Development & Computing, Internet of Things, Maker movements, Raspbeny Pi, and
many others that have revolutionized technology as a field of study and made a very
attractive field for students to pursue. This proposed program would prepare them for the
large number ofjobs that have been increasingly posted in various job search engines,
which require such technical skills, such as "Systems Admin", "Network Admi11'', "IT
Engineer", "IT Specialist", "IT M anager" and others.

Program
Distinction

Currently, no public university in Southeast Michigan offers a bachelor's degree in
Information Technology. A major in information technology would be a point of
distinction and competitive advantage for Eastern in our region and should help to attract
students to Eastern.

Curriculum The proposed Major requires students to complete 78 credit hours (24 required courses, 2
Design
restricted electives). Graduates of this proposed IT program will have excellent
opportunities in various areas that revolve around systems, networks, database
management, ERP, Web application development and administration, and security (A
mix of Computer I nformation Systems, Computer Science, information Assurance, and
Information Technology course work).
Projected
Enrollment

In Thibodeau (20 1 2), it is stated that "By 2020, employment in all computer occupations
is expected to increase by 22%, but some IT fields will fare better than others," according
to BLS. This includes "Faster than average" (28%) growth in network & computer
administration and other similar positions that are IT related, ergo the title of this article.
In addition, White (2009) addressed the slight downturn in enrollments at four-year and
two-year colleges in IT programs, and explained the reasons and proposed remedies to
address this issue. Fu1thermore, Adeptia (20 1 5) outlines Detroit-Warren-Dearborn, MI as
one of the top 5 cities with the most technical jobs. In this same summary article, they
indicate how healthcare is expected to see a 20% increase in its need for IT professionals,

wh i ch may contribute to an overa l l 22% anti ci pated gro wth i n IT j obs by 2 020, despite
off-shoring of programm ing.
Additional ly, the proposed I T program wi l l also contain courses in secur i ty mak i ng it a
un ique and sought degree . I t i s n oticeable th at our p roposed IT program w i l l be a good
tool to prepare students for these j obs. Therefore, we expect a lot of interest in th i s
program as it presents an opportu n ity for students t o take advantage of that changing
trend toward i nsour c i n g and to be educated i n a such a d i versified program, wh ich wi l l
help make our students ready fo r future I T j obs . Final ly, according to U . S . News (20 1 620 1 7), emp l oyment in re lated jobs is not expected to slow down anytime soon, but rather
w i l l grow annual ly unti l at least 2022.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
Program costs w i l l be absorbed by the cu1Tent Academic Affai rs budget.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been rev iewed and is recommended for Board a p prova l .

EASTERN M I C H I GAN U N IVE R S I T Y
D I V I S I O N O F A C AD E M I C AN D S T U D E N T A F F A I R S
I N T E R O F F I C E M E M O R AN D U M

TO :

Chris Shell, Re gistrar
Suleiman Ashur, Director (I) , School of Information Security & Applied Computing

FRO M :

:tv1ichael Tew, A s s ociate Provost & Associate Vice

SUBJ ECT :

Information Technology, BS (New Program)

DATE:

November 3, 2 0 1 7

amming and Services

The attached proposal fr o m the School of Information S e c urity & Applied Computing and the College o f Technology for a
new undergraduate program B achelor of Science in Information Technology, is approved.
The e ffective date will be determined following consideration by the Academic O fficers Committee, Michigan
Association o f S tate Universities and the Eastern :tvlichigan University Board of Regents .
If you have any questions, p lease contact Evan Finley, Academic Catalogs & Curriculum D evelopment (487-8954,
efinley2@emich.edu) .

cc:

Rhonda Longworth, Provost & Executive Vice President o f Academic and Student Affairs
Mohamad Qatu, Dean, College o f Technology
Mary Brake, As sociate Dean, College o f Technolo gy
Faculty Senate
Calvin McFarland, D irector, University Advising and Career Development
D o ris Fields, Director, Undergr aduate Studies
Sarah Otto, Director, Career Development & Outreach
Colleen Kibin, Assistant Director, Community College Relations
Extended Programs
J ohn Feldkam p , Assistant Director, Honors College
Ramona :tvlilligan, Coordinator, Re gi stration
Carol Evan s , Trans fer Equivalency Coordinato r, Records & Registration
Erin Burdis, Assistant Registrar
Karen Schiferl, Director, Student-Athlete Support Services
Mary Butkovich, Halle Libra ry
Samir Tout, School of Information Securi ty and A pp lied Com p uting
James Banfield, School o f Information Security and Applied Computing
O riginal, Co urse and Program Development

Eastern Michigan
University

2018-2019 Undergraduate Catalog I Working
Draft

Information Technolo gy I BS

New Program I Effective Date TBD
The effective date ,Pill be determined following co11sidemtio11 by the Academic Officers Co111111ittce, Michigcm Associatio11 of State Universities
and the Easten, Michigan University Board of Regrnts.

School Information
Information Security and Applied Computing. College of Tech11ology
Suleiman Ashur, Ph.D. I Interim Director I 109 Sill Hall I 734.487.0354 I sashur@emich.edu

Advisor Information
Contact department for advisor information

Program Admission
Requirements
Students must meet the following criteria to be admitted to the S1SAC programs: completion or transfer credit of IS 215 and LA
110 with a grade of B- or above
Limitations
1. Students can NOT apply courses at the 300-level or above to this program, if not taken at EMU
2. ALL students MUST take at least 45 credits at the 300-level or above in the IT program
Process
Students who wish to be admitted to the IT program must do the following
1. Complete all requiremerrts listed above. St11dent; 111ay be enrolled in ont.' or two of the required courses listed abon: during tire
semester t/1ey apply.
2. Submit a transcript to the attention o f the school director by October 1, February 1, or July 1
3. Attend a mandatory meeting with a SISAC faculty member or a designated COT staff advisor. The ,;tt1dmt will lie co1Ltactd to
schedule a11 appointment after the receipt of their application.
Decision Notification Proce�s - Students will be notified by letter and/ or through email after a decision is made. This notification
will be made no later than the start nf the semester following the application.

General Education Re q uirements:

For ,pecific Gcncr,11 Educ<1tion requiremcnb, click bffi'. or print a General Education Worksheet

Major Requirements: 78 hours
Students must maintain a minimum cumulative EMC or transfer GPA of 2.5.

Core Courses: 72 hours
Foundational Courses: 6 hours
CET 215 - Computer Hardware and Software 3 hrs
COSC 105 - Everyday Computing and Social Responsibility I GEGA 3 hrs
Information Assurance Courses: 30 hours
• IA 110 - Concepts of Network and Business Technology 3 hrs
, IA 150 - Networking I 3 hrs
• IA 212 - Open Systems Platform and Network Administration 3 hrs
• IA 244 - Administration of Computer Systrn1s 3 hrs
• IA 329W - Policy Development in [nforrnation Assurance I GEW1 3 hrs
• IA354 - Networking II 3 hrs
• IA 385 - Database Management & Security 3 hrs
• IA 387L4 - Cooperative Education I GELB 3 hrs
• IA 445 - Ethical Hacking and Offensive Security 3 hrs
• IA 462 - Advanced Operating Systems Security and Administration 3 hrs
Information Systems Courses: 15 hours
• IS 215 - Information Systemsfor Business 3 hrs
• IS 350 - Enterprise Reso1.1rce Planning and A rchitecture 3 hrs
• IS 425 - IS Project and Risk Management 3 hrs
• IS 427 - Business Process and ldentitv Management 3 hrs
• IS 437 - Introduction to Business Information Technology Audit 3 hrs
Information Technology Courses: 21 hours
IT 145 - Task Automation for IT Admins 3 hrs
• IT 219 - Introduction to Human-Computer Jnteraction 3 hrs
• IT 221 - Web Server Administration and Development 3 hrs
• IT256 - Managing Virtualization and Ooud Computing 3 hrs
IT367 - Application Server Administration 3 hrs
• IT 375 - Wireless Networks Administration 3 hrs
• IT 495 - Capstone 3 hrs

Restricted E lectives: 6 hours
Choose two IA, IT, COSC, or CIS courses, not already taken. Each course 11111st be nl the 300-lcvcl or above.

Minor Re q uirement:
This major does 110/ require a minor.

Pro gram Total:

�tudL•nt,; mu�t earn ii minimum tot,1I nf 1 2.i credits at the 1 00-lcvel or above.

Critical Graduation Information
The following are minimum requirements for all bachelor's degrees awarded by Eastern Michigan U niversity. Some majors
and minors require more than the minimum i n one or more of U1e areas below; students are urged to consult the on-line catalog
for the requirements of their particular programs.
• Earn a minimum total of 12-+ credits at the JOO-level a11d above. Courses with numbers below 100 will not be counted
toward this degree requirement. At most 8 credit hours of physical education (PEGN) activity courses will be counted
toward this requirement.
, Meet the requirements of the General Education program (see information below).
• Complete a Writing Intensive (GEWI) Course in your major.
Earn a minimum of 60 credits from a four-year college or university; courses taken at community colleges cannot be used to
meet this requirement. (Some formal program-to-program articulation agreements modify this requirement. See specific
agreements for details.)
Earn a minimum of 30 credits from courses taken at EMU.
Complete 10 of the last 30 hours for the degree from courses taken at EMU.
• I-lave a minimum of 30 1111iq11e credit hours in their major and 20 1miq11e credit hours in their minor for a total of at least 50
unique credit hours between them. Some majors that require 50 or more hours themselves do not require a minor; students
should check requirements of the selected major in the undergraduate catalog to see if a minor is required.
, Earn no more than 60 credit hours in one subject area (prefix). Credits in excess of the 60 maximum will not be counted
toward the minimum of 124 credits required for a bachelor's degree.
• Earn the minimum number of credits in 300-level and above courses in each major and minor as specified below - these
credits must be earned in distinct courses; that is, no course can be used to fulfill this requirement in more than one major or
minor.
o Earn a minimum of 6 credits in 300-level or higher courses at EMU in each minor
o Earn a minimum of 9 credits in 300-level or higher courses at EMC in each major that requires a minor.
o Earn a minimum of 15 credits in 300-level or higher courses at EMU in each major that does not require a minor
Transfer credit wiJI be awarded for courses taken at colleges and universities that arc accredited by one of the recognized
regional accrediting bodies only if the courses are college-level (equated to 1 00-level or above at EMU) and the student earned
a "C" (or 2.0 on a 4 point scale) or better. Transfer credit may be awarded on a case-by-case basis for college-level courses i n
which a "C" (2.0) o r better was earned at institutions outside the U.S. or a t non-accredited U.S. institutions; the internal
review of such courses is conducted by individual dep<Htments/ schools withi.n EMU, and addition.:il documentation may be
required. Please note: EMU awards only credits for transferred courses; grades are not used in the calculation of an EMU GPA.
• Earn a minimum cumulative CPA of 2.0 in courses taken at EMU in order to graduate. In addition, a minimum cumulative
GPA of 2.0 must be reached in each major and mi.nor. Only courses taken at EMU and those applied to a student's major or
minor will be used in the calculation of their major and minor cumulative GPAs. (Note: some programs may require a higher
GPA - check with your program advisor.)
General Education Requirements EMU's General Education Program requires students to choose from a menu of approved
courses in several difierent areas; do not assume that other courses in the same department or with similar n,1mes will fulfill these
requirements. A detailed description of General Education requirements is available in the General Education section of the
catalog.
Students who transferred to EMU may have modified general education requirements bc1sed on Michigan Transfer Agreement
(MTA) or ill"ticulation agreements; consult your academic advisor for additional information.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
DIVISION OF ACADEMIC AND STUDENT AFFAIRS

OUTLINE FOR SUBMITTING PROPOSALS FOR NEW DEGREE PROGRAMS
Use this outline to prepare proposals for new programs, including undergraduate majors and minors and
graduate majors. Proposals should be submitted in narrative form, organized according to the following
outline. Guidelines for submitting such proposals are on the following pages.
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I. Description:
A. Goals, Objectives, Student Learning Outcomes
Goals
We propose a Bachelor of Science with a major in Information Technology (IT) program, which will be offered by the
School of Information Security & Applied Computing (SISAC) and housed i n the College of Technology (CoT) at
EMU. The program will consist of multiple CIS, IA courses, and several new IT courses. This program will focus on
IT infrastructure, project management and integration, systems and network administration, security, and IT
architecture. This program will be consistent with the mission of CoT, which is to be a leader college in educating
students about emerging technologies and preparing them to fill key technical jobs that are needed in various sectors of
our economy. There are two associated goals of this program are:
1 . Produce students that are ready for today's fast-paced technology market
2 . Achieving and retaining ABET accreditation

Program Educational Objectives
The objectives of the B.S. program in Information Technology at School of Information Security and Applied
Computing as defined by ABET is the abilities of the alumni three to five years after graduation will be:
• Function successfully in field of Information technology and communicate effectively to design, implement, and
evaluate solutions to IT and security technical problems.
Advance professionally through increasing level of responsibility of information technology, and/or by
transitioning into leadership position in industry, government, and/or education.
Actively seeking life-long learning through self-study, completion of advanced degree(s), continuing education,
and IT related certification(s)/licensure or other professional development related to their career.
Demonstrate ethical, social, and professional commitment to community by applying technical skills and
knowledge to support various service activities.
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Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs).

2

The IT program SLOs are adapted from ABET General Criteria 3 for Accrediting Computing Programs, General
Criteria 3 . The following outcomes must be attained by students upon graduation.
(a) An ability to apply knowledge of computing and mathematics appropriate to the program's student outcomes
and to the discipline
(b) An ability to analyze a problem, and identify and define the computing requirements appropriate to its solution
(c) An ability to design, implement, and evaluate a computer-based system, process, component, or program to
meet desired needs
(d) An ability to function effectively on teams to accomplish a common goal
(e) An understanding of professional, ethical, legal, security and social issues and responsibilities
(f) An ability to communicate effectively with a range of audiences
(g) An ability to analyze the local and global impact of computing on individuals, organizations, and society
(h) Recognition of the need for and an ability to engage in continuing professional development
(i) An ability to use current techniques, skills, and tools necessary for computing practice.
(i) An ability to use and apply current technical concepts and practices in the core information technologies of
human computer interaction, information management, programming, networking, and web systems and
technologies.
(k) An ability to identify and analyze user needs and take them into account in the selection, creation, evaluation
and administration of computer-based systems
(1) An ability to effectively integrate IT-based solutions in the user environment.
(m) An understanding of best practices and standards and their application
(n) An ability to assist in the creation of an effective project plan
Please note that outcomes (a) thorough (i) are general outcomes required by all programs accredit by the ABET's
Computing Accreditation Commission (CAC): Computer Science and Similarly Named Computing Programs,
Information Systems and Similarly Named Computing Programs, and Information Technology and Similarly
Named Computing Programs. In addition, outcomes (j) thorough (n) are specific IT program outcomes required by
CAC.
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B. Program
The proposed program is composed of 124 credits. The IT maj or accounts for 72 credits while electives are 6 credits.
Course
IS 2 1 5

Course Name
Information Systems for Business

New/Existing
Existing (CIS)

Comments
3

CET 2 1 5

Computer Hardware and Software

Existing (CET)

3

Everyday Computing and Social Responsibility

Existing (COSC)

3

IA 1 1 0

Concepts of Network and Business Technology

Existing (INCD)

3

IT 145

Task Automation for IT Admins

New

3

IA 1 50

Networking I

Existing (WCD)

3

IA 2 1 2

Open Systems Platform and Network Administration

Existing (WCD)

3

IT 2 1 9

Introduction Human-Computer Interaction

New

3

IT 221

Web Server Admin and Dev.

New

3

IA 244

Systems Administration

Existing (WCD)

3

IT 256

Managing Virtualization and Cloud Computing

New

3

IS 425

IS Project and Risk Management

Existing (CIS)

3

IA 329W

Policy Development

Existing (WCD)

3

IA 354

Networking II

Existing (WCD)

3

IS 427

Business Process and Identity Management

Existing (CIS)

3

IS 3 50

Enterprise Resource Planning and Architecture

Existing (CIS)

3

IT 3 67

Application Server Administration

New

3

IT 375

Wireless Networks Admin

New

3

IA 3 85

Database Management and Security

Existing (WCD)

3

IA 387

Cooperative education (GELB)

Existing (WCD)

3

IA 445

Offensive Security

Existing (WCD)

3

IS 437

Introduction to Business Information Technology Audit

Existing (CIS)

3

IA 462

Systems Administration and Security

Existing (WCD)

3

IT 495

Capstone

New

3

cosc

1 05

72

Total Core
Restricted Electives: 6 hours

Choose two courses from any IA, IT, COSC, or CIS course not already taken. Each course must be at 300-level or
above.
Total Electives
Total

Miller, New Program Guidelines
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C. Admission
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1 . Requirements for Admission
Students must meet the following requirement to be admitted to the SISAC programs: completion or transfer
credit of IS 2 1 5 and LA 1 1 0 with a grade of 8- or above
2.

Application Process
Students who wish to be admitted to the IT program must do the following:
a. Complete all requirements listed above. Students may be enrolled in one or two of the required
courses listed above during the semester they apply.
b. Submit a transcript to the attention of the school director by October 1 , February 1 , or July I
c. Attend a mandatory meeting with an SISAC faculty member or a designated COT staff advisor. The
student will be contacted to schedule an appointment after the receipt of their application.
Decision Notification Process
d. Students will be notified by letter and/or through e-mail after a decision is made. This notification will
be made no later than the start of the semester following the application.

3 . Limitations
a.

Students can NOT apply courses at the 300-level or above to this program, if not taken at EMU

b. ALL students MUST take at least 45 credits at the 300-level or above in the IT program
4. Requirements for Graduation
a.

Students must maintain a minimum cumulative EMU or transfer GPA o f 2.5.

D. Projections
General Enrollment:
The National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) released a report titled "Projections of Education Statistics to
2022" in which they point out that, although college enrollment growth is projected at 1 6%, which although slower,
relative to the past decade, it is still considered to be fairly aggressive, especially given that the "traditional college-age
population is expected to decline over the same period" [ I ] . Considering NCES' s good track record over the past
couple of decades, whereby its projections are said to be within 13% of the actual totals, this is a good indicator that
college enrollment in general is on a rising trend.
IT Enrollment:
In [2], it is stated that "By 2020, employment in all computer occupations is expected to increase by 22%, but some IT
fields will fare better than others," according to BLS. This includes "Faster than average" (28%) growth in Network &
computer administration and other similar positions that are IT related, ergo the title of this article. In addition, White
[3] addressed the slight downturn in enrollments at four-year and two-year colleges in IT programs, and explained the
reasons and proposed remedies to address this issue. Furthermore, Adeptia (4] outlines Detroit-Warren-Dearborn, MI
as one of the top 5 cities with the most technical jobs. In this same summary article, they indicate how healthcare is
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expected to see a 20% increase in its need for IT professionals, which may contribute to an overall 22% anticipated

5

growth in IT jobs by 2020, despite off-shoring o f programming. Additionally, the proposed IT program will also
contain courses in security making it a unique and sought degree. It is noticeable that our proposed IT program will be
a good tool to prepare students for these jobs. Therefore, we expect a lot of interest in this program as it presents an
opportunity for students to take advantage of that changing trend toward insourcing and to be educated in a such a
diversified program, which will help make our students ready for future IT jobs. Finally, according to U.S. News [5],
employment in related jobs is not expected to slow down anytime soon, but rather will grow annually until at least
2022.

II. Justification/Rationale
The last decade has witnessed a surge in the already fast-paced technology changes. New platforms were introduced
while others became obsolete. New areas of study have emerged, which were not previously conceivable, but now due
to great advancements and lower prices of various types of resources, such as storage, memory and processors have it
them more viable. From Big Data, Data Science and Enginee1ing, Mobile Development & Computing, Internet of
Things, Maker movements, Raspberry Pi, and many others that have revolutionized technology as a field of study and
made a very attractive field for students to pursue. This proposed program would prepare them for the large number of
jobs that have been increasingly posted in various job search engines, which require such technical skills, such as
"Systems Admin", "Network Admin", "IT Engineer", "IT Specialist", "IT Manager" and others. As detailed in the list
of courses and their associated descriptions, we provide adequate coverage of key areas, especially those emphasized
in the Student Learning Objectives (SLOs) above.
Labor Force Statistics, The Special Interest Group for Information Technology Education, and Employment
Possibilities:
Although our school does not yet have solid figures for SISAC alumni who have been employed after graduating from
our programs, there is an evident growth in the number of students who have reported that they found jobs at renowned
companies around the nation, such as HP, Amazon, Google, CISCO, Plante Moran, Government Agencies, etc. We
have also received multiple leads form past alumni to share with our students about job openings [6]. We anticipate the
same trend to continue growing for our IT program as it shares quite a few of our existing IA courses and especially
that most of our students found jobs related more to IT, such as Systems Administration, Network Administration,
Network Security, etc.
Graduates of this proposed IT program will have excellent opportunities in various areas that revolve around systems,
networks, database management, ERP, Web application development and administration, and security (A mix of CIS,
COSC, IA, and IT course work). The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) has a table containing the fastest
employment growth areas for 20 1 2 - 2022 [7], which includes Information Security Analysts as an occupation in
which our IT graduates will be able to compete while [8] projects an I 8% growth for Computer and mathematical
occupations. More importantly, in [9], the BLS proj ects an improvement of the growth for 201 2-2022 above that of
Miller, New Program Guidelines

Sept. 09

New Program Guidelines

6

2002-2 0 1 2 for the Information service-providing occupations. Furthermore, the wage data for IT related occupations in
[ 1 0] also holds promise for our graduates as it sheds light on relatively high paying IT jobs, such as Database Admins
(82K/year), Network and Computer Systems Admins (SOK/year), and Computer Network Architects ( 10 I K/year), and
others.
The Special Interest Group for Information Technology Education (SIGCTE), which is part of ACM (www.sigite.org)
is an authoritative entity that is composed of"IT faculty (teachers and researchers), students, and industry
professionals, with over 400 members worldwide, SIGITE drives the creation and dissemination of the computing
discipline of information technology." SIGITE established IT as an "Academic Discipline" that is separate from CS
and IS, despite natural overlaps with them. They indicate in [ 1 1 ] that "Information Systems focuses on the information
aspects of information technology. Information Technology is the complement of that perspective: its emphasis is on
the technology itself more than the information it conveys. It is a new and rapidly growing field that started as a
grassroots response to the practical, everyday needs of business and other organizations." And "the IT discipline has a
key role to play." Furthermore, in another table by BLS, the expectation of growth in 2 0 14-2024 is evident for multiple
IT areas, including administrators of various types and support specialists, which are at the core of IT [ 12].
Appendix A includes a list of existing IT programs around the nation, some of which are well established. We
conducted an analysis of their curriculum and compared them to ours. The rest of the worksheets delve into that
comparison and concludes with a gap analysis that helped guide the selection of the courses for our IT curriculum.
SISAC has also received several letters of support for the new IT program. We are including two of these letters in
Appendix B .

III. Preparedness
In Fall 20 1 5, the School of lnformation Security & Applied Computing (SISAC) hired a new faculty, Dr. Bilquis
Ferdousi, with a solid Systems Administration and IT background. In the Fall of 20 1 6 the SISAC and as part of their
position requirements, we have included the following areas, which are at the core of the IT program:
1. Systems/Network Security and Administration
11. Software Development (Web, Mobile, Cloud, Secure Dev, Architecture, etc.)
111. Data Administration, Analytics, Mining, and/or Management
1v. Systems Integration, Capacity Planning, Enterprise Computing

A. The Faculty Qualifications
Our current faculty and newly hired faculty have significant experience in multiple IT and security areas and can teach,
evaluate student learning, and monitor student progression, as well as direct courses and their online course shells. We
have attached the CVs of our entire SISAC faculty in Appendix C.
B. Current Library Resources
The library is well positioned to support the IT program. The associated bibliographies included in the new course
proposals list a total of over 1 00 print and electronic titles in support of the courses. The current library prints holdings
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listed. In all courses, we have access to the majority of the titles in the bibliography, with most courses lacking EMU
content/access to only a few titles.
The library prints and electronic holdings do provide access to materials similar (and in many cases more current) to
those in the bibliographies. The existing collection should provide ample support for this new maj or and this range of
new courses shown in Appendix D, with one caveat. A very large proportion of access to the titles above are all
provided from a single electronic book package - Books24x7. The subscription to this package is covered by campus
IT and Human Resources (with a much smaller contribution from the library to provide links to the materials through
the library catalog.) Books24x7 is part of the license for the Skillport Online Skill Training package.

C. Adequacy of Existing Facilities and Laboratories
SISAC has multiple rooms that are equipped with modem machines and advanced networking configurations, which
currently support the IA classes and are expected to easily support the addition of the new IT courses. Roosevelt Hall
rooms 2, 6, 1 6, and 1 3 as well as Room 8's data center contain sufficient horsepower to adequate fulfill the computing
needs of these courses with 1 6 machines in Room 2, 24 newly updated machines in Room 6, 2 1 machines in Room 1 6,
and 28 machines in Room 1 3 .

D . Supportive Courses, Faculty, and Equipment Outside SISAC
The IA program has historically worked closely with faculty and administration from departments that are outside of
SISAC. Faculty from the Computer Science department have taught IA courses and provide at least one service course
for us. The CIS department in the College of Business also has been cooperative and will provide a service course for
the IT program.

E. Plan for Marketing Proposed Program and Recruiting Students
To recruit students for the proposed IT program, SISAC will focus on three different target populations: 1) High
school seniors, 2) Transfer students from community colleges, 3) current IT professionals who want to finish their
degree. Faculty will visit local high schools, be present in the open houses that take place yearly on the EMU campus.
We will also institute visits for students/parents to our classrooms, data center, and labs. Furthermore, we will be
working on refining our existing articulation agreements with local and regional community colleges, in order to
recruit high school seniors and transfer students from these colleges. To recruit current IT professionals, we will
contact local IT industry, and are meanwhile working on forming an advisory committee to help in this regard. 1n
addition, the EMU marketing department has always been and will continue to extend a helping hand to spread the
word to prospective students and parents about our programs.
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IV. Assessment/Evaluation
The plan is to have the new IT program become ABET accredited. The program will develop an assessment plan to
evaluated the student learning outcomes and program obj ectives in order to have an assessment based continuous

improvement of the program. The assessment plan will have the process, tools, timelines, and success criteria to assess
outcomes and objectives. The tools will use direct (e.g., exams, homework, presentations, portfolio, etc.) and indirect
(e.g., surveys and interviews) assessment tools. The plan will include details on the data collection and analysis and
how it will be collected and evaluated. The assessment committee develop a summary report of the findings and
provide recommendations for continuous improvement of the program.
The following table shows a sample of the assessment or course learning outcomes that is planned for the IT program.

Course Learning
Outcomes
Students will learn the
concepts, tools, and
problem-solving techniques
in business information
systems.

Where
Assessed
IS 2 1 5
Information
Systems for
Business

Who
Assessed
Course
Instructor

The main topics of this
course are: IT infrastructure,
data communications and
network, data management,
electronic business, strategic
information systems such as
ERP, CRM, and SCM, the
role of information systems
in business processes,
security, impact of IS on
society, and business
applications using Microsoft
Office.
Students will demonstrate
their understanding of the
usability evaluation in the
design of interactive
software systems, ability to
select appropriate usability
evaluation methods applying
quantitative and qualitative
approaches in usability
assessment based on factors
including the task domain,
usability objectives, and
end-user culture.
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IT 2 1 9Introduction to
Human
Computer
Interaction

Course
Instructor

How Assessed
Students' basic knowledge will
be assessed on essential
Information Technology topics
such as basic Computer
Concepts, Applications,
Programming, Networking,
Database, and Web
Fundamentals.
Besides Hands-on Tests and
Lab assignments, students will
be given Web-based research
projects on each topic. The
research proj ects will evaluate
students' ability and skills to
apply their theoretical
knowledge of Information
Technology to problem solving
and decision making in real
world situations.
Students will be given project
to design, develop and
successfully perform usability
tests of interactive system.
On completing the usability
model test students will
prepare, analyze and present
(verbally and written) the
results of usability tests to
explain the purpose of usability
evaluation in the design of
interactive systems.

Results/Bene
hmark
70% of the
students
should be able
to
demonstrate
competency
with 80%
accuracy m
basic
computer
technology.

70% of the
students
should be able
to
demonstrate
competency
with 80%
accuracy in
designing,
developing
and
performing
usability tests
of interactive
system.
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70% of the
students
should be able
to
demonstrate
competency
with 80%
accuracy in
understanding
and
explaining the
advantages
and
disadvantages
of a diverse
range of
usability
evaluation
methods.
Students will demonstrate
their understanding of main
concepts and application of
Web Server; secure coding,
ability to evaluate Web
Server technologies through
acquired foundational skills
and knowledge and employ
them in real world
environments.

IT 221 -Web
Server Admin
and Dev

'

Course
Instructor

Different real world projects
will be assigned to assess
students learning of the set-up,
configure, and administer of
Web Server architecture that
include create dynamic web
applications using Server
controls, validate form data
using server-side validation
controls, create dynamic Web
applications that interacts with
a database using server-side
programming, debug and
troubleshoot Web server.

9

70% of the
students
should be able
to
demonstrate
competency
with 80%
accuracy in
development
of advanced
websites and
web-based
applications
including
database
back-end, web
services.

Assessment Infrastructure/Use of Findings:
The IT faculty will meet at the end of the academic year and review the assessment results for the year. The overall
achievement rates will be measured against the assessment benchmark to determine if the goals are met across all
courses assessed. Then, individual course assessment results will be reviewed and compared to the ABET students
learning outcomes. If the assessment results fall short of the goals, faculty will discuss reasons, possible modification
of instructional strategies and map out a plan for the following year in terms of assignments to use, teachings strategies
and support services such as tutoring that would help increase student success. Faculty teaching different sections of
the assessed course work collaboratively on teaching and assessment strategies. In addition, due to the constantly
changing nature of technology, IT faculty will reexamine the adopted assessment tools to ensure that the tools are the
most appropriate for use in assessing the stated learning outcomes.
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V. Program Costs

This proposal and associated costs has the full support of the Dean of the COT. Current IA facilities
and faculty are in place to offset that portion of the costs. The School of Information Security and
Applied computing is well funded by the COT and can support this new program much is did the
former IA-NSA program. The new program will share resources with the existing program.

VI. Action of the Department/College
1. Department/School (Include the faculty votes signatures from all submitting departments/schools.)
Vote of faculty:

Against
O
5
For
(Enter the number of votes cast in each category.)

I support this proposal. The proposed program can.___,_X�__cannot._
additional College or University resources.

O __
Abstentions._____::_

_ ___ be implemented without
_

Suleiman Ashur
Department Head/School Director Signature

4/1 1/20 1 7
Date

2. College/Graduate School (Include signatures from the deans of all submitting colleges.)
A. College.
I support this proposal. The proposed program can_____ cannot______
affected College without additional University resources.

be implemented within the

Mohamad Qatu
College Dean Signature

Date

B. Graduate School (new graduate programs ONLY)
Graduate Dean Si gnature

Date

VII. Approval
Associate Vice-President for Academic Programming Signature

Miller, New Program Guidelines
Sept. 09

Date

New Program Guidelines

References

11

[ I ] Inside Higher Ed (20 1 4 ). The Enrollment Slowdown. Retrieved from
https://www. insidehighered.corn/news/2014/02/28/us-projects-col lege-enrol lment-grow- l 4-through-2022 .
[2] Thibodeau (2012). IT jobs will grow 22% through 2020, says US. Retrieved from
http://www.computerworld.com/a11ic le/2502 348/i t-managemen t/it-jobs-wi I l-grow-22--through-2020--says-u-s
. html
[3] White, G. (2009). Decline in I.nfonnation Technology College Enrollments - A National Trend. Retrieved from
https://www.academia.edu/2478773/Decl ine in Information Technology College Enrollments A National Tre
nd
[4] Adeptia (20 1 5). Where Are The Highest Paying IT Jobs in the Country?" Retrieved from
https://adeptia.corn/sites/default/files/articles/WFOG ITSalaries 0 8 1 0 1 5 .pdf
[5] U.S. News. Online Information Technology Bachelor's Degree. Retrieved from
http://www.usnews.com/educarion/online-education/inforrnation-technology-bachelors-degree
[6] IA Blog (20 1 5). Retrieved from http://blogs.emich.edu/ia/
[7] U.S. BLS (20 12). Fastest Growing Occupations, 2012 and projected 2022. Retrieved from
http://wv.,w.bls.gov/news .release/ecopro.t04.htm
[7] U.S. BLS (20 1 2). Employment by Major Occupation group, 2012 and projected 2022. Retrieved from
http://www.bls.gov/news.release/ecopro.t06 .htm
[8] U.S. BLS (2012). Employment by major industry sector, 2002, 20 1 2, and projected 2022. Retrieved from
http://www.bls.gov/news.release/ecopro.t03 .htm
[9] U.S. BLS (20 1 2). National employment and wage data from the occupational employment statistics survey by
occupation, May 20 1 4. Retrieved from http://www.bls.gov/news.release/ocwage.tO l .htm
[ 1 0] U.S. BLS (2009). The 30 fastest growing occupations covered in the 2008-2009 Occupational Outlook Handbook.
Retrieved from http://www.bls.gov/news.release/ooh.tO l .htm
[ 1 1 ] ACM (20 1 1 ) Infonnation Technology - An Academic Discipline. Retrieved from http://www.sigite.org/,vp
conteot/uploads/20 1 1 /03/IT-Discipline-Surnrnarv.pdf
[ 12] Bureau of Labor Statistics (2014). Employment by Detailed Occupation. Retrieved from
http://www.bls.gov/emp/ep_table_ 1 02.htm

VIII. Appendices

Miller, New Program Guidelines
Sept. 09

New Program Guidelines

Appendix A
Existing IT Programs in the U.S.

This table can be found in the second worksheet within the above workbook. We highlighted some of the
existing national programs that we found to be commensurate with the goals and objectives of our newly
introduced program. These schools offer both IT and CIS programs.
�/:,t\} .. .,:. '" i:,:: -t..'Yw iliTil ■�ITT1 1T:.l'·�<.'
Brigham Young University
Capella University
Drexel University
East Tennessee State University
George Mason University
George Mason University
Georgia Southern University
Indiana -Purdue University Indianapolis
Kennesaw State University
Massachusetts Institute of Technoloi:?:v
Middle Georgja State University
New Jersey rnstitute of Technology
New Mexico State University
Northern New Mexico College
Purdue University at West Lafayette
Purdue University Calumet
Rochester Institute of Technology
Slippery Rock University
Southeastern Louisiana University
The Univ�rsity of Toledo
United States Military Academy
United States Naval Academy
University of Cincinnati
University of Missouri - Kansas City
University of New Hampshire
University of North Florida
University of North Texas
University of South Alabama
University of South Carolina
Walden University
Winston-Salem State University
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Provo, UT, US
Minneapolis, MN, US
Philadelphia, PA, US
Johnson City, TN, US
Fairfax, VA, US
Fairfax, VA, US
Statesboro, GA, US
Indianapolis, IN, US
Kennesaw, GA, US
Cambridge, MA, US
Macon, GA, US
Newark, NJ, US
Las Cruces, NM, US
Espanola, NM, US
West Lafayette, fN, US
Hammond, IN, US
Rochester, NY, US
Slippery Rock, PA, US
Hammond, LA, US
Toledo, OH, US
West Point, �'Y, US
Annapolis, MD, US
Cincinnati, OH, US
Kansas City, MO, US
Durham, N"H, US
Jacksonville, FL, US
Denton, TX, US
Mobile, AL, US
Columbia, SC, US
Minneapolis, MN, US
Winston-Salem, NC, US

"vww.byu.edu
www.capella.edu
www.drexel.edu
www.etsu.edu
www.gmu.edu
www.gmu.edu
www.georgiasouthern.edu
www.iupui.edu
www.kennesaw.edu
www.mit.edu
www.mga.edu
www.njit.edu
www.nmsu.edu
http://www.nnmc.edu/
www.purdue.edu
www.purduecal.edu
www.rit.edu
www.sru.edu
www.selu.edu
\VWW. utoledo.edu
www.usma.edu
www.usna.edu
www.uc.edu
www.umkc.edu
www.unh.edu
www.unf.edu
www.Lmt.edu
www.southalabama.edu
www.sc.edu
www.waldenu.edu
www.wssu.edu
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Appendix B
Letters of Support for New IT Program
The following are letters of support are from Altarum and Dominos
A L T A R U M
I

SYS T E M S
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R ( � E ,t,. !l C H

T

F O fl

I

T

U

B E T f E fl

T

I:.

HE•lTH

MEMORANDUM

April 6. 2016

To:

\Vhom It May Concern

From:

Steven J . Towell

S ubject:

College of Technology - Potential for New Program

To V{hom [t May Concern:
It has come Lo my aucntion that the Eastern lvlichigan University College of Technology is
cc.m�i<lcring a program within lhe lnfom1alion Assurance program that will mirror the foTTT1cr
Network and lnfonnatioo Technology Administration (NffA) progiam.
As a 20+ year professional in tJ1e 1.nformation Technology industry, I can say I find the skills
such a program can present to an employer to be quite valuable. I myself went through the
NlTA program and have an Enterprise Network !-,·t anager that g.rnduated from the same program.
I also had two fom1er staff members that graduate-d from the EMU College of Technology
through course� of study similar to the NIT,\ program.
Some may say !he demand for administrators is on the decline. Information Technology work i.,
done as a team; we've long seen one individual cannot fulfill every aspect of I.he team cfficien1ly
or effectively. Security is pan of tliC team, but so is Informa.tiou Technology administration. It
i:-s my opinion (and the opinions e�pressed here arc my own and not necessarily those of Altarum
Institute) that Ea.stem Michigan University should continue to lt�ad1 to ti1e enure team. not just
sdcc::I pusnions.

Thank )'OU,

Corporate lnformaci-1n Securi ty and Technology
Alt.arum lnstllutc
3520 Green Court. Suite 300
AM Arbor, Ml 4�105
734 302 - 4600
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Ron lJlko
Domino's PiZZJ LLC
30 FrJnl< Llo'(d Wri@hl Dr
Ann Arbor. Ml 4810>
Apt ii 6, 20H,
J<?me; BJnfield
EJ Hern M ,ch igan Uni ,·er.:ty
9CO Oakwood St.
Yp;iiJnll. Mi 48197
James B,infield
W1tn over 20 ye.ir1 oi exp�rience in my fiP.ld of 1nro,mati1in s � curit.y, having an ex-tens,·,e knowled�e of
te,hnolog'I ts crucial to being s uccessful. I spe,1d my da'/ proteo::11ng my employ�, fron: security vtilnP.rabilitie;
It would not be pos�i!Jle to do any 10b without kno•Ning how compute, s •1or1' on an internal level �nd how
variom forms o' te<hnology integrate with e.ich other.
When we loulc for new team members, we !ind tl1a11 having t h e right kincl� of bdsc knuwledg,;, about computes
and network tEchnologie, is ke•r. Ofh:n hme� we will turn ;Jway prospe<tive team m,;mbers who have been
siloed in one> area or anotlier. When it come; to the inform,>t1on s;;cunty side ot the hou�c M1d
inves tig�HOM, we loo� for team meml>er� who l:a,,e well rm.nded b.1 ckgrounds 1n hard•N.are and technology
5,mply tmderstand bu;ine;s p1ocess or how t h e bu,in11ss functions can become a ddicit rather thJn .l •, Jlue
.add without tile adda,onal t�chrucal understanding,

Ron Ulko
Senior Information Security, Intelligence and forcn�ics.
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11/28/2017

I nformation Technology New
Major Proposal at Eastern
College of Technology (CoT)
• Established in 1 980
• 1 ,900 undergraduate, 400 g raduate students
• Four schools and one department within the college
• Programs that emphasize practical applications of
scientific knowledge
- 1 8 Undergraduate programs (BS)
- 1 0 Graduate programs (9 MS and 1 PhD)
- 9 Graduate Certificates

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE�TECHNOWGY

Challenges
• Declining programs
- Shelved Distribution Operations and Technical Sales and
Applied Technology programs

• Student and program portfolio
- Mostly able to attract 1 8-24 ACT

• Employer portfolio
- Most jobs offered to recent graduates ($30K-60K)

• Challenge from community colleges
- Some starting to offer BA
- Enrollment (including transfer students) are declining

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE"' TECI-L�OLOGY

1

11/28/2017

Why Information
Technology (IT) at
Eastern?
• Several data sources suggest talent
shortages in I nformation Technology at
all levels
- National (Bureau of Labor Statistics)
- State (Michigan's Top 50 Job Needs)
- Regional (industries and businesses)

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE <t TECHNOWGV

IT Needs in Michigan and
Nationwide
• Thousands of jobs in IT related occupations in
Southeast Ml (Monster.com)
• IT specialists are needed in most industries
(automotive, banking, academia, etc.)
• IA is currently the program with the largest
number of students in CoT
• Bureau of Labor Statistics is reporting an increase
rate of 24% for information security analyst and
15% for computer and information research
Other sources show nationwide needs : (
lists total job numbers, annual average wages and more

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE <f TECHNOLOGY
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Enrollment in IT per year (Profiles.Asee.org)
2013 2014 2015 2016
Oakland University
FT
77
120
93
144
50
PT
61
49
158
Michi an Dearborn
FT
158
187
200
224
PT
78
87
71
90
Central Michigan University
University of Toledo

FT
PT
FT

190

135

213

83

62
15

48
17

52
14

55
13

% Increase
87%
222%
42%
155

EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

. OWGV
COLLEGE<I TE{.'H'\;

Why IT at Eastern?
• CoT Enrollment
- Replace declining disciplines with popular programs
- Ensure controlled and responsible enrollment growth

EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLI..EGE.f TECH..'\;'OLOGY
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Why IT at Eastern?

• Student demand
- Recruitment: students do not enroll at EMU because
we offer limited options

• Example: Mechanical Engineering
- Started Fall 201 7 . Freshman : 38 students,
Sophomore : 20 students, Juniors : 1 5 students

EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE" TECHNOLOGY

Why IT at Eastern?
• Attract and retain competitive faculty
(and research)
- Need to advance research portfolio at CoT
- Need to attract faculty from research intensive
universities with experience in grants and scholarship
- Complement research opportunities in information
assurance, computer science and big data

EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

C0UEGE<I TEOIN'0L0GY
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Why IT at Eastern?
• Program/Student portfolio
- Students who graduate with a BS in IT
• have a high (almost 1 00% ) employment rate
• Starting salaries of ($55K-$75K - some reporting $95K)

- More successful g raduates
• Graduation rate with 6 years > 80%
• Salaries $ 1 00K within 5-1 0 years (successful alumni)

- Our students are attracted to regional and major
companies like Google and Amazon.

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE<ITECHNOWG\'

Why IT at Eastern?
• We are ready (resources)
- More than 1 5 faculty members with PhD in
information technology and/or computer science (5 in
SISAC)
- 2 o en ositions faculty to be hired in Information
Assurance in Fall 201 8
- Existing labs (with natural growth and maintenance)
- EMU has already invested in labs and faculty but has
not realized the potential that labs and faculty can
bring to the University.

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE '1 TEOL�OLOGY
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EMU Engineering
• Ready for ABET-CAC accreditation
- Puts us on par with our peers

• Small classes
- 1 5-30 students / section

• Application oriented

- Co-op recommended

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE <1TEC.:HNOWC."Y

Program Delivery (New Courses)

- I nformation Assurance
- I nformation Systems
- Computer Science

• Small classes
- Only 7 New courses are introduced

• Existing Faculty are capable of
teaching introduced courses

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COU.EGE4 TEl."Hi'-OLOGY
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Thank you
•
•
•
•
•
•

Board of Regents
President Smith

Provost Longworth (and Provost's office)
Chair and Faculty in Computer Science, CIS
Director and Faculty in SISAC
Drs. Tout, Che, and Ashur

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE <ITECHNOWGY
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SECTI O N : 1 2
DATE :

B O ARD OF RE G E N T S

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

December 1 5 , 20 1 7

REPORT
REPORT : FALL 20 1 7 BRICKLEY ENDOWMENT FOR FAC ULTY PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION AWARDS
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents accept and place on file the Repo1i on the Fall 20 1 7
Brickely Endowment for Faculty Professional Development and Innovation awards.
STAFF SUMMARY
The James H. Brickley Endowment for Faculty Professional Development and Innovation award
wi1mers for fall 2 0 1 7 have been identified. Infonnation on the award recipients and their
winning projects is found on the following pages. We expect that as a result of the awards
provided, we will be abl e to come back to you in future meetings to report on subsequent
research activity by these faculty, whether it be in receiving internal or external grant awards, or
patents, or other recognition for their scholarship. In this manner we hope to portray a continuum
of faculty research activity.
The purpose of the fund is to " facilitate faculty professional development and innovation through
a broad range of activities, including but not limited to, things such as ( 1 ) reassigned time from
teaching for scholarly, creative, and innovative endeavor; (2) conference presentati ons; (3)
travel; ( 4) hiring of research assistants; (5) purchase of special equipment or supplies for
teaching, scholarly, research, creative, or innovative activities; (6) development of a grant
proposal for external funding; and (7) similar or related academic activities.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None . The cost of awards is covered by an expendable fund associated with the James H.
Brickely Endowment for Faculty Professional Development and Innovation.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Bo ard ap p roval .

\

\ Date

James H. Brickley Endowment for
Faculty Professional Development and Innovation
Fall 2017 Award Winners
Crystal Coles (School of Social Work). "Gaining Insight Into Systemic
Transitions in Child Welfare Through the Lens of Child Welfare Personnel."
$1,000. Dr. Coles will use her award to fund a graduate student worker to assist in
documenting nonverbal cues in 100 hours of qualitative interviews to explore the
experiences of child welfare personnel in Southeast Michigan. The study will
explore a population responsible for the well-being of abused and neglected
children, and results could identify ways to better support a marginalized working
population of social workers.
Margaret Dobbins (Department of English Language and Literature). "'A
Man Who Pays His Bills On Time Is Soon Forgotten"': Oscar Wilde's Queer
Economic Legacy." $1,400. Dr. Dobbins will travel to UCLA to uncover day-to
day financial records of Oscar Wilde-often considered incidental to his legacy
in order to prepare the final chapter of her work, Queer Accounts: Victorian
Literature and Economic Deviance. Her research enriches our understanding of
one of history's most influential luminaries and reveals the enduring coextension
of sexual and economic forms of queer difference in a capitalist society.
Cory Emal and Gregg Wilmes (Department of Chemistry).
"Cicerone Certification: Faculty Preparation for a New
Curriculum" $ 1,295. Prof. Cory Emal and Prof. Gregg Wilmes
will use the award to fund training to become Certified Cicerones.
The certification will help the faculty members gain perspective and
experience as they are the co-creators and principal faculty
members of the new Fermentation Science program at EMU and
are developing the curriculum for the joint EMU-Northern United Brewing Company (NUBC)
brewing school in Midtown Detroit.
Audrey Farrugia-Bernard (Department of Special Education). "Special
Education: From Michigan to Malta." $ 1,000. Dr. Farrugia-Bernard will travel to
Malta for the Euro-Mediterranean International Conference on Disability Studies and
Disability Activism. There she will forge connections between EMU and her
international counterparts to build a multi-tiered, study abroad, academic service
learning, partnership program. In addition, at the conference she will conduct
phenomenological interviews for a study that focuses on the perceptions of international
faculty regarding accommodations for students with disabilities in higher education.
" The Brickley A vvard will allow me to update and revitalize the graduate optic5 lahoratory . . .
vVirh this grant. our grnduates 11·il/ be helter prepared to enter the 11·orkforce with relevant
hands-on experience in the emerging.field c�f(!ber optics. " -Eric Paradis

_

Xianghong Feng (Department of Sociology, Anthropology, and Criminology).
"Seeking Travel Funds to Conduct an International Collaborative Research:
Community Participation and Poverty Reduction through Eth nic Tourism in
China." $ 1,000. Dr. Feng will initiate a new collaborative research project with
the School of Ethnology and Sociology at Guizhou Minzu University to study
community-based tourism and the sustainability of its equitable distribution of its
benefits among villagers in the Langde Mio Village in China.

Olivia Ford (School of Health Sciences). "Dancing Tomatoes." $1 ,000. Dr. Ford's
award will fund the production and editing of four-part, video-based nutrition
education program aimed at children ages 6-11. The production, which includes
cooking demonstrations, will be facilitated by a dietetics graduate student and will be
piloted at the local St. Joseph Mercy Hospital's family-based weight management
program, ShapeDown.
Sam Fullerton (Department of Marketing). "Consumer Actions and Attitudes
Regarding Initiatives Directed towards Sustainability." $1,000. Sam
Fullerton's award will support the collection of data from 800 US residents
regarding their sustainable behaviors as consumers and their perceptions of
corporations' behaviors in "green" initiatives. This research will further develop
the understanding of green marketing.
Maria Luz Garcia (Department of Sociology, Anthropology, and Criminology).
"Collaborative Development of Mayan Language Materials." $1,000. Dr. Garcia's
funding will support the production of a children' s book as designed by her
anthropology students. The books will help Mayan language-speaking children make
the linguistic and cultural shift to living in the US. The books will be delivered in three
languages, Ixil Mayan, Spanish, and English, and will be piloted in communities in
Ohio that do not have recent histories of immigration.
Jeromy Hopgood (School of Communication, Media & Theatre Arts).
" Initiating a Digital Media Commission for the United States Institute for
Theatre Technology." $1,200. Jeromy Hopgood will travel to the United States
Institute for Theater Technology Conference, representing the Digital Media
Commission as the newly elected Vice Commissioner of Education. Hopgood will
be responsible for serving as liaison between his commission and other commissions
and for initiating educational programming, media projects, and professional
development workshops in the field of digital media design for live performance.

··This award s11ppor1s not only me as a neil'erfaculty member, hut is helping provide an
opportunityfor o graduate student to gain valuable experience parricipating in the research
process. '' -Olivia Ford

Andrey Kashlev (Department of Computer Science). ''Strengthening Data
Science & Analytics Program with Cloud Computing" $ 1,000. Dr. Kashlev will
receive training and two certifications: the Amazon Web Services (A WS) Ce11ified
Developer - Associate and the A WS DevOps Engineer - Professional. These
certifications will help him enhance the teaching and resource knowledge needed for
EMU's newly developed Data Science and Analytics program and big data courses.
Tareq Khan (School of Engineering Technology). "A cloud based smart
expiry system using QR code." $998. Dr. Khan will develop a smartphone
app that tracks and reminds consumers of expiry dates of consumable items in
the home. The project will focus on using QR codes and cloud data storage to
relay messages from products to grocery checkout to the user's smat1phone
without the hassle of manual entry.
Deborah Laurin-Phelan (Department of Teacher Education). "The Pikler
approach, Proximal Processes, and Child Care Theory : Re-envisioning Infant
Toddler Diapering Practices for nurturing the relationship." $1,036. Dr. Laurin
Phelan traveled to the October 2017 Pikler Meets Neuroscience Conference in Los
Angeles to present her research on proximal processes in diapering. Her theory,
specifically recommends the use of care routines as a main factor in infant and
toddler pedagogy to promote child well-being.
Huei Lee (Department of Computer Information Systems). "Development of
Complete Text Materials for Information Systems Audit." $1,000. Dr. Lee
will purchase new auditing-/security-related software and hire a student assistant
to test the hands-on exercises and format of text materials he has created for a
university curriculum on information systems audits.
Dennis O'Grady (School of Commu nication, Media & Theatre Arts). "Teaching
Practices that Support and Hinder the Success of Trans gendered and Non
Binary Students." $ 1,000. Dennis O'Grady will conduct interviews within the
transgender and non-binary population at EMU to aid in the professional
development of faculty to support these students. He will hire a transgender or non
binary student to help assist with the research. He will purchase a voice recorder and
contract transcription services with the remainder of his award.

" The Brickley Award supported my travel to present at an international conference to introduce
a theory ofcare and new research connecting care routines with neuroscience. "
- Debbie Laurin-Phelan

John Oswald (Department of Geography and Geology). "Invisible Divisions: Analyzing
Urban Separation in Ann Arbor, Michigan." $931. Dr. Oswald will travel to
the Association of American Geographers national conference in New Orleans to
present his research and receive critical feedback to inspire future publications and
course curriculum. Oswald's research focuses on the identification of informal,
"invisible," social boundaries that develop within the formal boundaries of large
communities. He will measure communal differentiation and socio-economic
separation through the use of GPS data collection, Census data and social media
analysis in Ann Arbor, Ml.
Eric Paradis (Department of Physics and Astronomy). "Advanced Fiber Optics
Lab." $950. Dr. Paradis will purchase fiber optic lab equipment to develop a new
two-week lab as part of the graduate course, Modern Optics, which will introduce
graduate students to various aspects of light transmission through fiber optic cables.
Delbert M Raymond (School of Nursing). "Risk of h omelessness and
characteristics of youth in detention homes." $1,050. Dr. Raymond' s award
will suppo11 her research in understanding the impacts of transitional homelessness
in detained youth at the Juvenile Detention Facilities of Wayne and Washtenaw
countries. Funding will support incentives for survey participants, staff
refreshments, and pay for a graduate student to manage data entry from the study.
Heather Shouldice (School of Music and Dance). "Purchase of Special Software
for Teaching and Scholarly Activities." $350. Heather Shouldice will purchase a
music notation software program, Finale, that will allow her to create music
notations for use in the classroom and within her work to disseminate and illustrate
key concepts related to her research on Edwin E. Gordon's Music Learning Theory
in professional presentations.
Samir Tout (School of Information Security and Applied Computing).
"Strategy for Establishing a Self-Driving/Autonomous Vehicle (SD/AV)
Research Practice at EMU." $800. Dr. Tout will take courses in achieving his
Self-Driving Car Engineer Nanodegree to advance his knowledge in the Self
Driving/Autonomous Vehicle (SD/AV) field. As a result, he plans to create and
implement a research strategy that will position EMU as a major player in SD/AV
technology and security research.
Sarah VanZoeren (School of Social Work). "Developing Knowledge and Skills
in Qualitative Inquiry ." $1,000. Dr. VanZoeren will travel to the Fourteenth
International Congress of Qualitative Inquiry to facilitate her professional
development in areas outside of her specialty, quantitative research. She will utilize
her knowledge from the conference to expand her research capabilities and
classroom curriculum in the disciple of social work.

BOARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E RN M I C H I G AN UNIVERSITY

RECOMMENDATION

SECTION : 13
DATE :
December 1 5 . 20 1 7

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
ACTION RE Q UESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents receive and place on file the minutes from the
October 20, 20 1 7 Finance and Investment Committee meeting and the Working Agenda for the
Decemb er 1 5 , 2 0 1 7 meeting.
STAFF S U M M ARY
October 2 0 20 1 7 Meeting Agenda
Agenda items
• Financial Statements FY I 7 (June 3 0, 20 1 7)
• Financial Aid Authorization
• State Capital Outlay
• Emeritus Staff Awards
December 1 5 20 1 7 Meeting Agenda
Agenda items
• FY 1 9 Room and Board, Apartment Rates
• Eastern Michigan University Foundation Financial Reports ( June 20, 20 1 7)
• Amendment to Parking Ordinance
• Parking Concessionaire Agreement
• Approval of Capital Proj ects
• Emeritus Staff Awards
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

d is recommended for Board approval .

Date

BOARD O F R E G E N TS
E astern M ichigan U niversity
2 0 1 Wel c h H a l l
(734) 487-24 1 0

FINANCE and INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Friday, December 1 5, 20 1 7
1 0:45 a.m.

R EGULAR AGENDA
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Minutes from October 20, 2 0 1 7
December 1 5, 2017 Finance and Investment Committee Agenda
FY 1 9 Room and Board, Apartment Rates
E astern Michigan University Foundation Financial Reports ( June 20, 201 7)
Amendment to Parking Ordnance
Parking Concessionaire Agreement
Approval of Capital Proj ects
Emeritus Staff Awards

Eastern Michigan University
Finance and Investment Committee
Meeting Minutes
October 20, 2017
The meeting was called to order by Regent Michelle Crumm at 10:45 a.m.
A motion was made, seconded and approved to accept the minutes from the June 27, 2017
Finance and Investment Committee meeting.
The agenda includes (4) items.

Section 21:

Recommendation: Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Information as of June 30, 2017

It is recommended that the Board of Regents receive and place on file the University's audited fiscal
year 2016-20 1 7 financial statements and auditor's report

Section 22:

Recommendation: 2018-19 General Fund Scholarships, Awards
and Grants Request

It is recommended that the B oard of Regents approve the 2018-19 General Fund Scholarships, Awards
and Grant proposal for $ 58,789,000

Section 23:

Recommendation: Fiscal Year 2019 State Capital Outlay Plan

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the University's Capital Outlay Plan and
delegate authority to the President to submit the renovation of Sill Hall as the University's top project
request for state cost participation for Fiscal Year 2019.

Section 4:

Recommendation: Emeritus Staff Status

It is recommended that the B oard of Regents grant Emeritus Staff Status to Thirteen (13) staff
members: Jody B eutler, Graduation Clearance Advisor, Office of Records and Registration,
who retired June 30, 2017, B arbara Jones, Senior Corporate Relations Manager, Office of
Career Services (UACDC), who retired July 14, 20 1 7, Lillian Tusson, Account Specialist,
B usiness and Finance Accounting Office, who retired August 1 1 , 2017, Thomas Staicar,
Library Assistant III, Office of University Library, who retired on August 1 1 , 2017, Doyle
Rouseau, College Tech II, Office of IT, who retired August 1 1, 2017, Jerry Campbell, Postal
Clerk, Office of Support Services/Physical Plant, who retired July 7, 20 1 7, Jane Bartman,
Secretary, Office of Heal th Promotion and Human Performance, who retired August 1 , 2017,
Dr. Mary Zdrojkowski, Coordinator, Select Student Support Services, who retired Oct 2,
2017, Sally Lucas, Administrative Secretary, Arts and Sciences Dean's Office, who retired
June 30, 2017, Amy B arker, Accountant/Analyst, Controllers Office, who retired July 2 1 ,
2017, Richard King, Region Director, Small Business Development Center, who retired July
14, 2017, Karen Metz, Senior Secretary, Office of Engage, who retired July 7, 20 1 7 and Pat
Cygnar, Director, Community College Relations, who retired July 3 1 , 2017.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:40 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Jada Wester
Executive Assistant to the
Chief Financial Officer

B OARD OF REG ENTS

E A S T ERN M I C H I G AN UN IVERS ITY

SECTION : 1 4
DATE :
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RECOMMENDATION

2 01 8-1 9 ROO M , APARTM E N T AN D BOARD RATES
ACTION REQU ESTE D
It i s recommended that the Board of Regents approve an average increase of 2 . 9 5 % for all University housing
and an average increase of 2 .75% for meal plan rates for FY 1 8 - 1 9 .
STAFF S U M MARY
This recommendation is for an increase of $ 1 60/academic year or £20/month for all University housing. This
increase ranges from 2 .0% to 3 . 9% depending on location. The increase will continue to support the
University's ongoing investment in improving the quality of residential facilities and also help address a portion
of the deferred maintenance associated within these buildings .
This recommendation also requests an average increase of 2.75% on meal plans. This increase ranges from
2 . 0% to 3 . 0% depending on meal p l a n . This meal plan increase cotTesponds to the expected inflation rate for
food services, and allows for the maintenance of high quality food offerings within our dining facilities.
These increases are all below the 5 -year average for the Uni versity, in the respective categories, with the
residence hall increase being the lowest increase in this time period.
F I SCAL I M P LICAT I O N S
These proposed rates wil l b e reflected in the Housing and Dining sections of the F Y 1 8- 1 9 Auxiliary budget
recommendation that will be presented to the Board in June 2 0 1 8 .
AD M I N ISTRATIVE RECO M M E N DATION
The proposed B oard action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.
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Average Room, Board and Tuition Increase History
Academic
Year

Residence Apartments Board
Halls

Tuition

2018-19

2.88%

2.97%

2.75%

TBD

2017-18

3.33%

2.20%

2.00%

3.91%

2016-17

4.00%

4.00%

1.50%

4.10%

2015-16

4.00%

5.00%

5.00%

7.85%

2014-15

4.00%

4.00%

4.00%

3.20%

2013-14

3.75%

1.55%

3.75%

3.75%

5-Year Avg. 3.82%
(FY14-FY18)

3.35%

3.25%

4.56%

1

Academic Year
2017-2018

Recommended
Increase $

Academic Year
2018-2019

$4,770

$ 160.00

$4,930

$4,230
$6,834

$ 160.00
$ 160.00

$4,390
$6,957

$5,480
$7,904

$ 160.00
$ 160.00

$5,640
$8,190

Academic Year
2017-2018

Recommended
Increase $

Efficiency/Studio
Large Studio/Small One Bedroom
Regular One Bedroom

$6,188
$6,750
$7,334

$160.00
$160.00
$160.00

$6,348
$6,910
$7,494

Large One Bedroom
Suite

$4,814
$4,814

$ 160.00
$ 160.00

$4,974
$4,974

$5,992
$6,416
$6,444
$6,618

$ 160.00
$ 160.00
$ 160.00
$ 160.00

$6,152
$6,576
$6,604
$6,778

$4,070
$4,412
$4,522
$4,852

$160.00
$160.00
$160.00
$160.00

$4,230
$4,572
$4,682
$5,012

$4,756

$160.00

$4,916

Residence Halls
Best, Buell, Downing, Phelps,
Double Occupancy

Hill, Hoyt, & Pittman
Double Occu pa ncy
Single Occu pancy

Village
Double Occupancy
Single Occu p a ncy

On-Campus Apartments
Brown/Munson
Single Occupancy

Double Occupancy

Cornell Courts/Westview
Single Occupancy
One
One
One
One

Bedroom
Bedroom
Bedroom
Bedroom

- ST U F
- UP UF
- ST F
- UP F

Double Occupancy
Two
Two
Two
Two

Bedroom
Bedroom
Bedroom
Bedroom

-

ST U F
UP UF
ST F
UP F

601 West Forest (all units)

1

I

Academic Year
2018-2019

Prior Meal Plan
Anytime Basic
Platinum 19
Gold 14
Flex

New Meal Plan
E-Style Anytime
E-Style 3 per day
E-Style 2 per day
E-Style Flex
E-Style (Promotional Hyb

FR/SO/JR/SR
FR/SO/JR/SR
FR/SO/JR/SR
SO/JR/SR
JR/SR

Description
Unlimited at Commons
3 meals per day
2 meals per day
Debit Account Style Plan

FY18 Current Meal Plan
Annual Cost Flex/sem Tfr/sem
175
5,084 $
so
$
5,084 $
100
0
$
4,880 $
75
0
$
4,266
0
$
$

100 meals/sem + $750 Flex

FY19 Current Meal Plan
Recommended Increase
Annual Cost Flex/sem Tfr/sem
Amount
Percent
100
5,237 $
75
153
3.0%
$
$
100
0
5,237 $
3.0%
153
$
$
5,026
100
0
146
3.0%
$
$
$
4,351 $
0
85
2.0%
$
$
$

2

3,700

$

750

B OARD OF REGENTS

E A S T E RN M I C H I GAN UN IVERS I TY

SECTION : l 'l
DATE :
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RECOMMENDATION
REPORT : The 2 0 1 6-20 1 7 E astern Michigan University Foun dation Co nsolid ated Financial Report

ACTION REQU ESTED
It is requested that the Eastern M i chigan Un ivers i ty Board of Regents rece ive and place on fi l e the Eastern
Michigan University Foundation Consolidated Financial Report for the year ended June 3 0 , 2 0 1 7 .

STAFF S U M MARY
In accordance with Section C . 8 . of the Agreement B etween Eastern Michigan University and the Eastern
Michigan University Foundation, it is our responsibility and privi lege to present for your review the
consolidated financial report of the Eastern Michigan University Foundation for the year ended June 30, 20 1 7 .
The annual financial audit o f the Foun dati on and its subsidiary was performed b y Plante & Moran, PLLC, and
they have provi ded an unqual ified financial op inion.
Total endowment and planned gift assets reported at year-end were $73 ,27 1 , 329, which represents $72 ,649,465
(pg. 2 0) of endowment assets and $62 1 , 8 64 (pg. 3 ) of p l anned gift assets . Th is represents a 7 . 9 percent increase
from the June 3 0 , 20 1 6 market value, which was $67,90 8,05 8 . Fundra ising during 20 1 6-20 1 7 totaled
$5 ,404 ,099 (pg . 1 4) of whi ch $5 ,265,275 represents cash gifts and $ 1 3 8 , 8 24 represents gifts-in-kind.
During thi s fiscal year, the endowment portfolio experienced an investment return of 1 1 . 3 percent vs . the
portfolio benchmark of l 0.4 percent, which is comparable to endowment portfolio returns at other institutions
with endowments in the $ 5 1 -$ 1 00 million range. The average annual return since inception on September 30,
1 992, of 8 . 0 percent continues to surpass the benchmark of 7 . 5 percent.
Ctment expendable gifts and gi fts -in-kind distributed to and received directly by Eastern Michigan University
for programs and schol arships totaled $3,560, 5 3 5 (pg . 4) for the year ended June 3 0 , 20 1 7 . In addition, funding
distributed to EMU from endowed scholarships and endowments totaled $2,0 1 5 ,073 (pg. 4).

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None

ADMINISTRATIVE REC OMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been rev ·
d and is recommended for Board approval .
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Consolidated Financial Report
June 30, 20 1 7
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Trustees
Eastern Michigan University Foundation
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Eastern Michigan University
Foundation (the "Foundation"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 20 1 7 and
the related consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Eastern Michigan University Foundation as of June 30, 20 1 7 and the
consolidated changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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To the Board of Trustees
Eastern M ichigan U n ive rsity Foun dation

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously aud ited Eastern M ichigan U n iversity Fou ndati o n ' s 20 1 6 conso l i d ated fi nancial
state ments, and we expressed an u n m od i fi ed aud it o p i n ion o n those aud ited consoli date d financial
statements i n our report d ated September 1 9 , 20 1 6 . I n our opinion, the s u m marized c o m parative
i n formation presen ted h e re i n as of and for the year ended J u ne 3 0 , 20 1 6 is consistent, in a l l material
respects , with the audited conso l idated fi nancial statements from which it has been d erived .

Septem ber 1 8 , 20 1 7
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Consolidated Balance Sheet
June 30, 20 1 7

(with comparative totals for June 30, 20 1 6)
June 30, 20 1 7
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments (Note 4)
Contributions receivable (Note 2)
Other assets:
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Accounts receivable
Building held for sale and equipment (Note 3)
Investments held under split-interest agreements (Note 4)

$

$

1 28, 1 1 5
66,387,308
1 ,449,492
209, 1 38
9,992
1 ,397,068
672,252

2 1 5 ,6 1 6
1 0,599
1 ,377,73 1
6 2 1 ,864
$

Total assets

I , 1 2 1 ,392
7 1 ,595 ,628
2,773,620

June 30, 20 1 6

77,7 1 6,450

$

70,253,365

894,205
444, 1 00

$

457,5 1 0
500,240
4,474

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Split-interest obligations
Other liabilities

$

Total liabilities
Net Assets (Note 5)
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets
$

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3

1 ,3 38,305

962,224

I , 1 77,625
25,4 1 2,639
49,787,88 1

1 ,055,48 1
1 9,475,235
48,760,425

76,378, 1 45

69,29 1 , 1 4 1

77,7 1 6,450

$

70,253,365

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Consolidated Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 3 0, 20 1 7
(with comparative totals for year ended June 30, 20 1 6)
Year Ended June 30
20 1 7
Temporarily
Permanently
Restricted
Restricted

Total

Total

6,728,227 $

8,649,545

1 ,488,000
400,738

1 ,593,000
145,229

7,200,924
1 6 ,428

( 1 ,5 1 7,026)
32,778

1 5,834,3 1 7

8,903,526

3,560,535

3,560,535

3,600,788

2,01 5,073

2,01 5,073

1 ,902,654

655,620
2,671,973

655,620
2,671 ,973

1 , 1 1 0,080
2,447, 1 36

8,903,20 I

8,903,201

9,060,658

6,93 1 , 1 1 6

( 1 57 , 1 32)

Unrestricted
Revenue, Gains, and Other Support
Contributions (Note 8)
Administrative and management fee
(Note 6)
Investment income (Note 4)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)
on investments (Note 4)
Miscellaneous income
Net assets released from restrictions

$

309,367 $
1 ,488,000
226,5 1 6

Total revenue, gains, and
other support
Expenses
Contributions to EMU:
Expendable contributions
Contributions from endowment
income
General and administrative Foundation management
Fundraising (Note 9)
Total expenses

20 1 6

5,3 9 1 ,404 $

1 ,027,456 $

1 74,222

6,976,462

7,200,924
1 6,428
(6,976,462)

9,000,345

5,806,5 1 6

1 ,027,456

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets Before other changes in net assets

97,144

5,806,5 1 6

Funds Transferred from EMU

25,000

1 43,933

1 68,933

SO, 1 37

( 1 3 ,045)

( 1 3,045)

(50,357)

Change in Value of Split-interest
Agreements
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of year
Net Assets - End of year

$

1 ,027,456

1 22, 1 44

5,937,404

1 ,027,456

7,087,004

1 ,055,48 1

1 9 ,475,235

48,760,425

69,29 1 , 1 4 1

( 1 57,352)
69,448,493

1 , 1 77,625 $ 25,4 1 2,639 $ 49,787,88 1 $ 76,378, 145 $ 69,29 1 , 1 4 1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 20 1 7
(with comparative totals for year ended June 30, 20 1 6)

Year Ended
June 30, 20 1 7
June 30, 20 1 6
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Change in cash surrender value of life insurance
Change in value of split-interest agreements
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes
Impairment expense on property
Changes in operating assets and liabilities which
(used) provided cash:
Contributions receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Other liabilities

$

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Payments on split-interest agreements
Proceeds from contributions restricted for long-term
purposes
Net cash provided by financing activities

7,087,004

$

( 1 57,352)

29,75 1
(7,200,924)
(6,478)
1 3,045
( 1 ,027,456)

86,923
1 ,5 1 7,026
1 08,7 1 3
50,357
(4,635,848)
3 70,000

( 1 ,324, 1 28)
(607)
436,695
(4,474)

1 23,064
( 1 54)
1 1 0,399

( 1 ,997,572)

(2,426,872)

( 1 0,4 1 4)
(20,253,355)
22,296,347

( 1 6,329)
(27,504,297)
25,290. 1 50

2,032,578

(2,230,476)

(69, 1 85)

(73,708)

1 ,027,456

4,635,848

958,271

4,562, 1 40

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

993,277

(95,208)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year

1 28, 1 1 5

223,323

$

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1 , 1 2 1 ,392

$

1 28, 1 1 5

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 20 1 7
Note I - Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
Eastern Michigan University Foundation (the "Foundation"), located in Ypsilanti,
Michigan, receives, holds, invests, and administers funds for the purpose of contributing
to and making expenditures on behalf of Eastern Michigan University (EMU). Under
governmental accounting principles, the Foundation is considered a component unit of
EMU. Planned Real Estate Corp. (PREC), a wholly owned nonprofit subsidiary of the
Foundation, was incorporated as a title holding company for the purpose of owning and
managing real estate donated to the Foundation.
Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Foundation and its wholly owned subsidiary, PREC. PREC had no
activity during the year ended June 30, 20 1 7.
Cash Equivalents - The Foundation considers all highly liquid investments purchased
with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments - I nvestments in mutual funds, corporate stocks, government securities,
and CDs are carried at quoted fair value whenever available. Fair value is determined
based on the fair value measurement principles described in Note I 0. The commingled
funds, hedge funds, and private equity funds, which are not readily marketable, are
measured at fair value, valued at net asset value per share as the practical expedient.
Those estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been
used had a ready market for these securities existed. The investments in the real estate
holding and land are recorded at cost or historical donated value. The cost of real estate
holding was determined by appraisal when real estate was originally contributed to the
Foundation in a prior year. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded as of the
trade date. Gain or loss on the sale of investments is computed using the average cost
method. Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and is reported in the
consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets, net of related expenses.
These expenses amounted to $353,792 for the year ended June 30, 20 1 7.
The methods described above and in Note I O may produce a fair value calculation that
may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, while the Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and
consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a
different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 3 0, 20 1 7
Note I - Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
{Continued)
Contributions Receivable - Contributions receivable that are expected to be
collected within one year are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional promises
to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present
value of their estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are
computed using risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are
received. The rates range from 0. 1 I to 1 .24 percent. Amortization of the discounts is
included in contribution revenue. An allowance for uncollectible contributions is
provided when evidence indicates amounts promised by donors may not be collectible.
Functional Allocation of Expenses - The costs providing the program and support
services have been reported on a functional basis in the consolidated statement of
activities and changes in net assets. Indirect costs have been allocated between various
programs and support services based on estimates, as determined by management.
Although the methods of allocation used are considered reasonable, other methods
could be used that would product a different amount.
Life Insurance Cash Surrender Value - The Foundation is the owner of certain life
insurance policies on various donors who have named the Foundation as beneficiary.
These policies are valued at their cash surrender value. The cash surrender value is
based on the amount paid less any surrender charges and outstanding loans or interest.
Changes in the cash surrender value are recorded on the consolidated statement of
activities and changes in net assets within interest income.
Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost when
purchased and at estimated fair value when donated. Depreciation on property and
equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, ranging from 3 to 39 years. Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30,
20 1 7 amounted to $29,75 1 . The asset held for sale as further discussed in Note 3 is not
being depreciated.
Impairment of Long-lived Assets - The Foundation reviews the recoverability of
long-lived assets, including buildings, equipment, and furniture and fixtures, when events
or changes in circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying value of the asset may
not be recoverable. The assessment of possible impairment is based on the ability to
recover the carrying value of the asset from the expected future cash flows
(undiscounted and without interest charges) of the related operations. If these cash
flows are less than the carrying value of such asset, an impairment loss is recognized for
the difference between estimated fair value and carrying value. The measurement of
impairment requires management to make estimates of these cash flows related to long
lived assets, as well as other fair value determinations.
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 3 0, 20 1 7
Note I - Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Split-interest Agreements - The Foundation is a remainder beneficiary of several
charitable annuities and unitrusts. Required distributions to other beneficiaries range
from 4.9 to 1 1 .9 percent of gift or market value, as defined by each agreement. The
discount rates used to calculate the present value range from 1 .2 to I 0.0 percent.

Classification of Net Assets - Net assets of the Foundation are classified as
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted depending on the
presence and characteristics of donor-imposed restrictions limiting the Foundation's
ability to use or dispose of contributed assets or the economic benefits embodied in
those assets.
Donor-imposed restrictions that expire with the passage of time or can be removed by
meeting certain requirements result in temporarily restricted net assets. Permanently
restricted net assets result from donor-imposed restrictions that limit the use of net
assets in perpetuity. Earnings, gains, and losses on restricted net assets are classified as
temporarily restricted until expended unless the donor or applicable law specifies them
as permanently restricted.

Contributions - Contributions to the Foundation of cash and other assets, including
unconditional promises to give in the future, are reported as revenue when received,
measured at fair value. Donor promises to give in the future are recorded at the present
value of estimated future cash flows. Contributions resulting from split-interest
agreements, measured at the time the agreements are entered into, are based on the
difference between the fair value of the assets received or promised and the present
value of the obligation to the third-party recipient(s) under the contract.
Contributions received with donor-imposed time or purpose restrictions are reported
as restricted revenue. All other contributions are reported as u n restricted revenue.
Contributions to E M U are recorded as expense when approved by the Foundation.

Fundraising - Fundraising costs are charged to expense as incurred. The majority of all
development activities for the benefit of E M U and the Foundation are conducted by the
Foundation.

Tax Status - The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under Section
SO I (c)(3) of the U nited States Internal Revenue Code. PREC is exempt from federal
income taxes under Section 50 I (c)(2) of the U nited States Internal Revenue Code.
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 20 1 7
Note I - Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Use of Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the U nited States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, and
other changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
Concentration of Credit Risk Arising from Deposit Accounts - The Foundation
maintains cash balances at several banks. Accounts at each institution are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. The Foundation evaluates the
financial institutions with which it deposits funds; however, it is not practical to insure all
cash deposits.
Summarized Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 20 1 6 - The
consolidated financial information presented for comparative purposes for the year
ended June 30, 20 1 6 is not intended to be a complete financial statement presentation in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
Foundation's 20 1 6 consolidated financial statements from which the summarized
information was derived.
Risks and Uncertainties - The Foundation invests in various investment securities.
Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and
credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at
least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements.
Subsequent Events - The consolidated financial statements and related d isclosures
include evaluation of events up through and including September 1 8, 20 1 7, which is the
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 3 0, 20 1 7
Note I - Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Upcoming Accounting Changes
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 20 1 6- 1 4, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, in August 20 1 6. ASU No. 20 1 6- 1 4 requires
significant changes to the financial reporting model of organizations that follow FASB
not-for-profit rules, including moving from three classes of net assets down to two
classes: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. The
ASU will also require changes in the way certain information is aggregated and reported
by the Foundation, including required disclosures about the liquidity and availability of
resources. The Foundation is currently evaluating the impact of the standard and will
present the two classes of net assets, add the liquidity footnote, expense matrix, and
related disclosures. The new standard is effective for the Foundation's year ending June
30, 20 1 9 and thereafter and must be applied on a retrospective basis.
The FASB also issued ASU No. 20 1 6-02, Leases, which will supersede the current lease
requirements in ASC 840. The ASU requires lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset
and related lease liability for all leases, with a limited exception for short-term leases.
Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with the classification affecting the
pattern of expense recognition in the statement of operations. Currently, leases are
classified as either capital or operating, with only capital leases recognized on the
balance sheet. The reporting of lease-related expenses in the statements of operations
and cash flows will be generally consistent with the current guidance. The new lease
accounting requirements are not expected to have a significant impact to the
Foundation. The leases described in Note 1 2 will be recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet. The new lease guidance will be effective for the Foundation's year ending
June 30, 202 1 and will be applied using a modified retrospective transition method to
the beginning of the earliest period presented.
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 20 1 7
Note I - Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
In May 20 1 4, the FASB issued ASU No. 20 1 4-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Topic 606) , which will supersede the current revenue recognition requirements in
Topic 605, Revenue Recognition. The ASU is based on the principle that revenue is

recognized to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature,
amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer
contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets
recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new guidance will be
effective for the Foundation's year ending June 30, 2020. The ASU permits application
of the new revenue recognition guidance to be applied using one of two retrospective
application methods. Management has assessed the various revenue streams of the
Foundation and determined that major revenue streams are not expected to be
significantly impacted by the standard.
Note 2 - Contributions Receivable
Included in contributions receivable are the following unconditional promises to give at
June 30, 20 1 7:
$

Gross contributions promised
Less allowance for uncollectibles

9, 1 03,587
(6,097,997)
3,005,590

Subtotal

(23 1 ,970)

Less unamortized discount
Net unconditional promises to give
Amounts due in:
Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total

11

$

2,773,620

$

3,676,548
5,397,039
30,000

$

9, I 03,587

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 3 0, lO 1 7
Note 3 - Building Held For Sale and Equipment
The cost of property and equipment at J une 30, 20 1 7 is summarized as follows:
Building held for sale
Equipment and software

$

Total cost

I , 1 29,855
357,967
1 ,487,822

Less accumulated depreciation

(1 1 0,09 1)
$

Net carrying amount

1 ,377,73 1

During the year ended June 30, 20 1 6, the Foundation's board of trustees concluded to
vacate its building. The Foundation engaged a professional broker to actively market the
property and review potential offers. Management estimated a fair value of this property
to be approximately $ 1 , 1 30,000, which is based on market information provided by the
real estate expert. The net carrying value of the building was reduced by $370,000 to
reflect the estimated fair value. As of June 30, 20 1 7, the building remains held for sale.
No additional impairment charge was recognized for the year ended June 30, 20 1 7.
Note 4 - Investments
Investments consisted of the following at June 30, 20 1 7, including investments held
under split-interest agreements:
Mutual funds - Equity
Mutual funds - Fixed income
Mutual funds - Real asset
Corporate stock securities
U.S. government securities
Certificates of deposit (long term)
Commingled funds - Equity
Commingled funds - Fixed income
Commingled funds - Balanced
Hedge funds
Private equity funds

$

Subtotal

4,568,354
8,630,070
5, 1 64,366
1 99,575
438,377
6 1 8,048
20,026,988
8,738,369
1 5,570,477
4,95 1 ,0 1 3
2,644,52 1
7 1 ,550, 1 58

Real estate holding
Land

55,000
6 1 2,334

Total

$

12

72,2 1 7,492

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 3 0, 20 1 7
Note 4 - Investments (Continued)
Net realized and unrealized gains in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been offset with related losses. Investment income for the year ended June 30,
20 1 7 is as follows:
$

Dividend and interest income
Realized gains - Net

400,738
763,398

Subtotal

I , 1 64, 1 36

Net u n realized gain

6,437,526
$

Total investment gain

7,60 1 ,662

Note S - Net Assets
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:
Purpose-restricted:
Scholarships
Specific program use
Time-restricted - Annuity trust agreements
Total

$

1 5,009,027
1 0,225,848
1 77,764

$

25,4 1 2,639

Permanently restricted net assets are endowments invested in perpetuity, the income
from which is expendable for distributions to EMU for scholarships and other programs.
Unrestricted net assets consist of the following:
Designated to support underfunded EMU priorities and endowments
that support scholarships and academic programs and departments:
Funds functioning as endowments for specific purposes
Funds not yet allocated

$

579,44 1
339,554
9 1 8,995

Total designated
Undesignated:
Foundation operations
Permanently restricted endowment losses in excess of corpus

493,730
(235, I 00)

Total undesignated

258,630

Total unrestricted net assets

$

13

I , 1 77,625

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, .20 1 7
Note 6 - Related Party Transactions
Under operating agreements with E M U , the Foundation has the responsibility to
manage and invest endowment and other contributed assets held for the benefit of
E M U and manage development and fundraising programs for the benefit of E M U ,
including management o f gift records and receipts.
In order to support fundraising activities on behalf of E M U , E M U pays to the Foundation
an amount to be determined annually. For the year ended June 30, 20 1 7, the amount
paid to the Foundation was $ 1 ,488,000.
As of June 30, 20 1 7, the Foundation has contributions payable to E M U of $83 1 ,480 and
management, general, and fund raising payables to E M U of $43,596 recorded in accounts
payable. During the year ended June 30, 20 1 7, the Foundation incurred $582,408 in
management, general, and fundraising expenses payable to E M U .

Note 7 - Defined Contribution Plans
The Foundation sponsors a defined contribution 403(b) plan for all eligible full-time
employees, as defined. Employees may make elective contributions to the 403(b) plan i n
accordance with IRS regulations. The Foundation may make contributions to the 403(b)
plan up to 6 percent of the employees' base salaries. During fiscal year 20 1 7, the
Foundation contributed 4 percent of the employees' base salaries.
Total contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 20 1 7 amounted to
approximately $54,000.

Note 8 - Fundraising Collections
Fundraising efforts of the Foundation result in both currently collectible gifts and
pledged gifts for the benefit of EMU that are recorded as revenue in the Foundation's
consolidated financial statements but are collectible over a period of years. Total
fund raising collections for the year ended June 30, 20 1 7 were as follows:
Accrual basis contribution revenue
Current gift deferrals in excess of collections on deferred gifts and

$

6,728,227
(1 ,324, 1 28)

amortization
Total fundraising collections

$

5,404,099

$

826,45 1

Note 9 - Fundraising Expenses
Fundraising expenses are comprised of the following:
Gifts and records

1 , 845,522

Other fundraising
$

Total
14

2,6 7 1 ,973

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, l.0 1 7
Note I O - Fair Value Measurements
Accounting standards require certain assets and liabilities be reported at fair value in the
financial statements and provide a framework for establishing that fair value. The
framework for determining fair value is based on a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
and valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
The following table presents information about the Foundation's assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis at June 30, 20 1 7 and the valuation techniques used by the
Foundation to determine those fair values.
Fair values determined by Level I inputs use quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Foundation has the ability to access.
Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs use other inputs that are observable, either
d irectly or indirectly.
These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, and other
inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted
intervals.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, including inputs that are available in situations
where there is little, if any, market activity for the related asset. These Level 3 fair value
measurements are based primarily on management's own estimates using pricing
models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques taking into account
the characteristics of the asset.
In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the
above fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation. The Foundation's
assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements
requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset.
The Foundation's policy is to recognize transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period. For the year ended June 30, 20 1 7, there
were no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy.
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 3 0, 20 1 7
Note I O - Fair Value Measurements {Continued)
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at June 30, 20 1 7

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level I}
Investments - Including
investments held under
split-interest agreements:
Mutual funds - Fixed
income
Mutual funds - Equity
Mutual funds - Real
asset
Corporate stock
securities
U.S. government
securities
Certificates of deposit
(long term)
Commingled funds Equity measured at
net asset value
Commingled funds Fixed-income
measured at net
asset value
Commingled funds Balanced measured
at net asset value
Hedge funds measured
at net asset value
Private equity funds
measured at net
asset value
Total

$

8,630,070
4,568,354

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2}

$

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3}

$

Net Asset
Value

$ 8,630,070
4,568,354

$

S, 1 64,366

5, 1 64,366

1 99,575

1 99,575
438,377

438,377

6 1 8,048

$

Balance at
June 30, 20 1 7

1 9, 1 80,4 1 3

6 1 8,048

$

438,377

$

20,026,988

20,026,988

8,738,369

8,738,369

1 5, 570,477

1 5 ,570,477

4,95 1 ,0 1 3

4,95 1 ,0 1 3

2,644,521

2,644,52 1

$ 5 1 , 93 1 ,368

$ 7 1 ,550, I 58

The fair value of U.S. government securities at June 30, 20 1 7 was determined primarily
based on Level 2 inputs. The Foundation estimates the fair value of these investments
by using contractual cash flows, benchmark yield and credit spreads, prepayment
speeds, and collateral performance.
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Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 20 1 7
Note I O - Fair Value Measurements (Continued)
The Foundation has processes in place to select the appropriate valuation technique and
unobservable i nputs to perform fair value measurements. These processes include
q uarterly meetings with the Foundation's investment committee for calibration and
review of i nvestment monthly or q uarterly fund manager statements and annual audited
financial statements. The Foundation cannot independently assess the value of these
underlying positions through a public exchange or over-the-counter market. The
Foundation utilizes a third-party investment manager to monitor, participate in fund
manager calls, and obtain underlying financial information on the investments.
Land and real estate held for investment of $6 1 2,334 and $55,000, respectively, are
valued at cost or historical donated value. Accordingly, these investments are therefore
not included in the fair value measurements above.

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis at June 30, 20 1 7
The Foundation also has an asset that under certain conditions is subject to
measurement at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. This asset is the building held for sale,
which is measured at fair value because events or changes in circumstances occurred
that indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. The
Foundation has estimated the fair value of this asset based primarily on Level 3 inputs,
which include real estate broker market data and potential third-party offers to
purchase.

Investments in Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value per Share
The Foundation holds shares or interests in investment companies whereby the fair
value of the investments is measured on a recurring basis using net asset value per share
(or its equivalent) of the investment companies as a practical expedient.
At year end, the fair value, unfunded commitments, and redemption rules of those
i nvestments are as follows:
Investments Held at June 30, 20 1 7
Redemption
Unfunded
Fair Value
Equity funds (a)
Fixed-income funds (b)
Balanced funds (c)
Hedge fund of funds (d)
Opportunistic/Private equity (e)
Total

Commitments

$ 20,026,988
8,738,369
1 5,570,477
4,95 1 ,0 1 3
2,644,521

$

$ 5 1 ,93 1 ,368

$

17

6,084,547
6,084,547

Frequency, if
Eligible

Redemption
Notice Period

Daily
2-30 days
Daily
1 -2 days
Weekly, Monthly
5-30 days
Monthly, Quarterly 65-75 days
N/A
N/A

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 20 1 7
Note I O - Fair Value Measurements (Continued)
(a) Equity funds invest in publicly traded securities listed in domestic, international, and/or emerging
markets. This segment of the portfolio is intended to provide global growth exposure. Investments
are diversified across market capitalization and geographic region.
(b) Fixed-income funds invest in debt instruments of sovereign and/or corporate issuers. This segment of
the portfolio is primarily focused on income generation. Investments are diversified across credit
quality, market sector, and geographic region.
(c) Balanced funds have the ability to invest in equity, fixed income, and real assets. The balanced
segment is primarily focused on diversification and volatility mitigation via liquid tactical strategies
providing exposure which may otherwise be difficult for the portfolio to obtain. The strategies are
focused on providing an attractive absolute return at a reasonable level of risk.
(d) Hedge fund of funds - A fund of hedge funds is an investment vehicle whose portfolio consists of
shares in a number of hedge funds. These strategies are typically diversified by manager and
investment style and may include allocations to styles such as relative value, event-driven, hedged
equity, and global macro, among others. Fund of hedge funds typically target an absolute return that is
independent of market returns. Investments in this asset class are meant to provide a diversified alpha
source. Holdings in hedge funds are recognized to be less liquid than public market securities and may
include a lockup for initial investments. Risk in this asset class is specific to the strategy being utilized.
The volatility of hedge funds of funds typically is similar to that of fixed income.
(e) Opportunistic/Private equity - Private equity is an ownership interest in a non-publicly traded limited
liability company (LLC) or limited partnership (LP). The segment is primarily focused on providing
global growth exposure. The segment may be diversified across a spectrum of markets, geographies,
and investment styles. Investments in this asset class are illiquid and typically include multi-year
investment horizons. Risk is specific to the strategy being utilized and may be above that of the
general market.

Note I I - Donor-restricted and Board-designated Endowments
The Foundation's endowment includes donor-restricted endowment funds and funds
designated by the board of trustees to function as endowments. Net assets associated
with endowment funds, including funds designated by the board of trustees to function
as endowment funds, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.
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Note I I - Donor-restricted and Board-designated Endowments
(Continued)
Interpretation of Relevant Law
The board of trustees of the Foundation has interpreted the U niform Prudent
Management of I nstitutional Funds Act ( U P M I FA) as requiring the preservation of the
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds
absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the
Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made i n
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted
endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expend iture
by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by
UPMIFA.
I n accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation con·siders the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
( I ) The duration and preservation of the fund
(2) The purpose of the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment fund
(3) General economic conditions
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
(6) Other resources of the Foundation
(7) The investment policies of the Foundation
Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund as of June 30, 20 1 7

Temporarily
Restricted

Unrestricted
Donor-restricted endowment
funds
Board-designated endowment
funds
Total funds

$

(235, I 00) $

22, 5 1 7,243

Permanently
Restricted
$

49,787,88 1

Total
$

579,44 1
$

344,34 1
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72,070,024
579,44 1

$

22,5 1 7,243

$

49,787,88 1

$

72,649,465

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 20 1 7
Note I I - Donor-restricted and Board-designated Endowments
(Continued)
Changes in Endowment Net Assets for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20 1 7
Temporarily
Restricted

Unrestricted
Endowment net assets Beginning of year
Investment return - Net of

$

depreciation (realized and

1 35,556

$

208,785

unrealized)
Contributions and board transfers
to endowment funds
Appropriation of endowment

End of year

$

48,760,425

Total

$

7,308,767
1 ,027,456

1 ,302,560

(3,406,453)
$

344,34 1

$

22, 5 1 7,243

67,235 ,806
7,5 1 7,552

275 , 1 04

assets for expenditure
Endowment net assets

1 8,3 39,825

Permanently
Restricted

(3,406,453)
$

49,787,881

$

72,649,465

Funds with Deficiencies
From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the
Fou ndation to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP,
deficiencies of this nature that are reported in unrestricted net assets were $235, I 00 as
of June 30, 20 1 7. These deficiencies resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations that
occurred after the investment of permanently restricted contributions and continued
appropriation for certain programs that was deemed prudent by the board of trustees.
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Note I I - Donor-restricted and Board-designated Endowments
(Continued)
Return Objectives and Risi< Parameters
The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets
that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its
endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Foundation
must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period, as well as board-designated
funds. Under this policy, as approved by the board of trustees, the endowment assets
are invested in a manner that is intended to satisfy the spending policy and allow for
additional growth in the portfolio at least equal to the rate of inflation net of investment
management fees, in order to maintain the portfolio's purchasing power. The asset
allocation approach is to diversify portfolio exposures to balance risks across markets
and strategies. The target policy of the Foundation is I O percent domestic all cap
equities, 4 percent international equities, 4 percent emerging international equities, 1 2
percent global equity, I O percent core fixed income, 5 percent absolute return fixed
income, 5 percent emerging market debt, 1 5 percent global asset allocation/risk parity,
I 5 percent hedge funds, I O percent real assets, and I O percent opportunistic/private
equity. The Foundation expects its endowment funds, over time, to provide an average
rate of return of approximately 6.2 percent annually. Actual returns in any given year
may vary.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives
To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return
strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation
(realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The endowment
funds are well diversified and include investments in cash and cash equivalents, equity,
fixed income, multi-asset, and alternative asset classes. The asset allocation policy
adopted by the Foundation's board of trustees defines the investment goals and
objectives as well as asset class targets and ranges. The diversification of investment
assets is designed to control risk and dampen the variability of endowment returns from
year to year.
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Note I I - Donor-restricted and Board-designated Endowments
(Continued)
Spending Policy and How the I nvestment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy
The Foundation has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year 3 percent of an
eligible endowment fund's average market value over the prior 1 2 quarters through the
second fiscal year end preceding the fiscal year in which the distribution is planned; the
fiscal year 20 1 6-20 1 7 appropriation was based on the 1 2-quarter average market value
of the fund as of June 30, 20 1 5. In establishing this policy, the Foundation considered the
long-term expected return on its endowment. In addition to this specific appropriation,
the Foundation also distri butes up to 2.0 percent of an endowment fund's 1 2-quarter
average market value to the Foundation's operating budget as a source of revenue for
the Foundation's operating expenses. Accordingly, over the long term, the Foundation
expects the current spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at an average of
6.2 percent annually. This is consistent with the Foundation's objective to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term, as
well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

Mortgage Payable to the Endowment Fund
In October 2009, the Foundation utilized temporarily restricted earnings on endowment
assets to settle a mortgage due to an unrelated party. The total mortgage paid with
endowment funds was $2,03 1 ,499. A 25-year note payable was established to
reimburse the endowment fund with monthly principal and interest payments of
$ 1 2,842. The amount due to the endowment fund from unrestricted funds or the
release of temporarily restricted funds is $ 1 ,682,3 3 1 at June 30, 20 1 7.

Note 1 .2 - Lease Commitments
The Foundation is obligated under certain operating leases for office equipment. The
terms of the leases are generally 60 months with
approximately $2,600 and quarterly payments of $750.
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monthly payments totaling

Eastern Michigan University Foundation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 3 0, 20 1 7
Note 1 2 - Lease Commitments (Continued)

The future minimum lease payments are as follows:
Years Ending
June 30

Amount

20 1 8
20 1 9
2020
202 1
2022

$

34,944
34,20 1
34,20 1
1 5 ,985
2,230

Total ==========
$
1 2 1 ,56 1
Rent expense for 20 1 7 was $33,3 1 4.
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BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

RECOMMENDATION
REGARDING THE APPROVAL AND
ADOPTION OF A NEW PARKING ORDINANCE

SECTI O N : 16
DATE :
December 1 5 ,
201 7

ACT I ON RE QUEST ED
It is requested that the Board of Regents approve and adopt a new Parking Ordinance, to replace
in its entirety the Parking Ord inance originally adopted by the Board in 1 979.
STAFF SUMMARY
The P arking Ordinance adopted by the Board in 1 979 (the 1 979 Ordinance) was authorized by
and designed to comply with the provi sions of Michigan law relating to the regulation of parking
facilities and vehicles on the campuses of public universities. Policies, rules and regulations
promulgated by the Board and the University under the 1 979 Ordinance have been variously
amended, but the 1 979 Ordinance remains as origi nally adopted. The 1 979 Ordinance does not
now adequately address Parking System matters, including facilities and traffic, that have
evolved since its adoption.
In addition, the Board has approved a Concession Agreement relating to the University's Parking
S ystem, which contains provi sions which are not in confonnance with the 1 979 Ordinance.
For the purposes of updating the provisions of the 1 979 Ordinance and to confonn the 1 979
Ordinance to the tenns of the Concession Agreement, the University Administration has
presented a new Parking Ordinance for consideration by the Board . The new Parking Ordinance
will confonn to the tenns of the Concession Agreement and provide more cunent direction
regarding the policies, rules and regulations governing the University' s responsibilities with
respect to the P arking S ystem in the context of the Concession Agreement.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None.
ADMINI STRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Bo ard approval .

9t;tfell(#( 1s; Zv/

Date

B LOO M F I EL D 28748-26 1 960603v1
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
PARKING ORDINANCE
Adopted on December 15, 2017
WHEREAS, Section 1 of Act 291 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1967, as amended
(Michigan Compiled Laws Annotated, Section 390.891), authorizes the Board of Regents of
Eastern Michigan University to enact parking, traffic, and pedestrian ordinances for the
government and control of its campuses, and to provide fines for violations of such ordinances;
and Section 3 of Act 291 permits the Board of Regents to establish a Parking Violations Bureau
as an exclusive agency to accept admissions of responsibility in cases of civil infraction
violations of any parking ordinance and to collect and retain fines and costs as prescribed in the
ordinance for such violations; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the above-designated authority, and in discharge of the
responsibility imposed thereby, the Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University deems it
necessary to adopt this parking ordinance in replacement of the Eastern Michigan University
Parking Ordinance previously adopted by the Board on December 5, 1979;
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF EASTERN MICHIGAN
UNIVERSITY HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:
ARTICLE 1 - STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY
It is the intent of the Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University to herewith
establish a parking ordinance for the protection of health and property on the campus of Eastern
Michigan University for students, faculty, staff, and visitors.
ARTICLE 2 - STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY
This Ordinance is enacted by the Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University
pursuant to and in accordance with the authority and responsibility of said Board as provided in
the Constitution of the State of Michigan, Act 300 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1949
(Michigan Vehicle Code), as amended, and Act 291 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1967, as
amended.
ARTICLE 3 - DEFINITIONS AND GENERAL PROVISIONS
Section 1.

Words and Phrases

The following words and phrases when used in this Ordinance shall, for the purpose of
this Ordinance, have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in this Article. Whenever any
word or phrase used herein is not defined herein but is defined in the Michigan Vehicle Code,
Act No. 300 of the Public Acts of 1949, as amended being §257.1 et seq. of the Michigan
Compiled Laws, the definition therein shall be deemed to apply to the words and phrases used
herein.
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(1)

Act 291
“Act 291” means Act 291 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1967, as amended.

(2)

Alley

“Alley” means a minor thoroughfare, opened to public use, for the purpose of
ingress and egress to service adjacent buildings.
(3)

Board
“Board” means the Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University.

(4)

Campus

“Campus” means all real property wheresoever situated, owned, or held by the
Board in its capacity as the governing board of the University.
(5)

Concession Agreement

“Concession Agreement” means the Concession Agreement for Eastern Michigan
University Parking System between the Board and the Concessionaire, approved by the
Board on December 15, 2017, as it may be amended or restated from time to time.
(6)

Concessionaire

“Concessionaire” means Preston Hollow Capital, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, and its successors and assigns under the Concession Agreement.
(7)

Crosswalk
“Crosswalk” means either of the following:
(a)
That part of a roadway at an intersection included within the lateral lines
of the sidewalks on opposite sides of the highway measured from the curbs or, in
the absence of curbs, from the edges of the traversable highway.
(b)
Any portion of a highway, at an intersection or elsewhere, distinctly
indicated for pedestrian crossing by lines or other markings on the surface.

(8)

Enforcement Operator

“Enforcement Operator” means the “Enforcement Operator” as such term is
defined in the Concession Agreement.
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(9)

Freight loading zone

“Freight loading zone” means a space adjacent to a curb or elsewhere set aside for
the exclusive use of vehicles during the loading or unloading of freight.
(10)

Handicapped Person

“Handicapped Person” means a person who has a physical characteristic
categorized as a handicap, which limits ambulation or necessitates the use of a wheelchair
for mobility. The term also means a person who is blind.
(11)

Intersection
“Intersection” means either of the following:
(a)
The area embraced within the prolongation or connection of the lateral
curb lines, or, if none, then the lateral boundary lines of the roadways of two
highways which join one another at, or approximately at, right angles, or the area
with which vehicles traveling upon different highways joining at any other angle
may come in conflict.
(b)
Where a highway includes two roadways 30 feet or more apart, then every
crossing of each roadway of such divided highway by an intersecting highway
shall be regarded as a separate intersection. In the event such intersecting
highway also includes two roadways 30 feet or more apart, then every crossing of
two roadways of the highways shall be regarded as a separate intersection.

(12)

Metering Devices

“Metering Devices” means parking meters, pay and display stations, electronic
metering devices, and other technology that may be used from time to time in connection
with the parking system operations to assess, charge or collect hourly parking fees.
(13)

Michigan Vehicle Code

“Michigan Vehicle Code” means Act 300 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1949, as
amended.
(14)

Motor bus/bus

“Motor bus” or “bus” means a motor vehicle designed for carrying more than 10
passengers and used for the transportation of persons.
(15)

Operator

“Operator” means a Person who drives or is in actual physical control of a vehicle
regardless of whether the person is licensed as an operator or a chauffeur.
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(16)

Parking

“Parking” means standing a vehicle whether occupied or not, upon a street or
other area when not loading or unloading, except when making necessary repairs.
(17)

Parking Violation Notice

“Parking Violation Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 742(9)(a) of the
Michigan Vehicle Code and means a notice, other than a citation, directing a person to
appear at the Parking Violations Bureau and to pay the fines and costs, if any, prescribed
by this Ordinance for the parking or standing of a motor vehicle in violation of this
Ordinance.
(18)

Parking Violations Bureau

“Parking Violations Bureau” means the parking violations bureau established by
the University pursuant to this Ordinance and Section 3 of Act 291, as an exclusive
agency to accept admissions of responsibility in cases of violations of this Ordinance and
to collect and retain fines and costs as prescribed in this Ordinance if the violation is
designated a civil infraction.
(19)

Passenger curb loading zone

“Passenger curb loading zone” means a place adjacent to a curb reserved for the
exclusive use of vehicles during the loading or unloading of passengers.
(20)

Pedestrians
“Pedestrian” means a person afoot.

(21)

Police officer, officer

“Police officer” or “officer” means that group of University employees within the
University Police Department who are regularly constituted law enforcement officers by
virtue of being deputized by the Washtenaw County Sheriff or otherwise, and any person
who is a sheriff or deputy sheriff or an officer of the police department of a city, village,
township, or an officer of the Michigan State Police.
(22)

Roadway

“Roadway” means that portion of a street or highway improved, designed or
ordinarily used for vehicular travel. In the event a street or highway includes two or
more separate roadways, the term “roadway,” as used herein, shall refer to a roadway
separately, but not to all such roadways collectively.
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(23)

Sidewalk

“Sidewalk” means that portion of a street between the curb lines, or the lateral
lines of a roadway, and the adjacent property lines intended for the use of pedestrians.
(24)

Stand, standing

“Stand” or “standing” means the halting of a vehicle, whether occupied or not,
other than for the purpose of, and while actually engaged in, receiving or discharging of
passengers.
(25)

Stop, stopping

“Stop” or “stopping,” when prohibited, means any halting, even momentarily, of a
vehicle, whether occupied or not, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other
traffic or in compliance with the directions of a police officer or traffic-control sign or
signal.
(26)

Street, highway

“Street” or “highway” means the entire width between boundary lines of every
way publicly maintained when any part thereof is open to the use of the public for
purposes of vehicular travel.
(27)

Traffic

“Traffic” means pedestrians, vehicles, and other conveyances either singly or
together while using any street for purposes of travel.
(28)

Traffic control devices

“Traffic control devices” means signs, signals, markings, and devices placed or
erected under the authority of this Ordinance for the purpose of regulating, warning, or
guiding traffic.
(29)

Traffic control signal

“Traffic control signal” means any device whether manually, electrically, or
mechanically operated by which traffic is alternately directed to stop or proceed.
(30)

University
“University” means Eastern Michigan University.
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(31)

Vehicle

“Vehicle” means every device in, upon, or by which any person or property is or
may be transported or drawn upon a highway, excepting devices exclusively moved by
human power.
Section 2.

Tenses

The present tense includes the past and future tenses; and the future, the present.
Section 3.

Number, gender

The singular shall include the plural and the plural shall include the singular; the
masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, as requisite.
ARTICLE 4 - ENFORCEMENT OF ORDINANCE
Section 1.
The Enforcement of this Ordinance, pursuant to Section 1 of Act 291, shall be by
law enforcement officers of the City of Ypsilanti, the County of Washtenaw, Michigan and/or
the Michigan State Police, as well as the Department of Public Safety of the University. Such
law enforcement officers are hereby appointed and empowered to enforce this Ordinance.
Enforcement by law enforcement officers, other than those in the Department of Public Safety of
the University, shall occur pursuant to agreement between the University and the public
employer of the particular law enforcement officers.
Section 2.
The Concessionaire and the Enforcement Operator and its employees are
authorized, pursuant to Section 742(7) of the Michigan Vehicle Code, to issue Parking Violation
Notices for the parking or standing of a motor vehicle in violation of this Ordinance.
Section 3.
It shall be the duty of the Executive Director of the Department of Public Safety,
or his/her subordinates, to establish restrictions upon access to or use of the University parking
lots, streets, or other property of the University, or portions thereof, as may be deemed necessary
or desirable for the convenience and effective conduct of the affairs of the University; provided
that the Executive Director of the Department of Public Safety, or his/her authorized
representatives, shall make such restrictions known by use of signs, barricades, posting of the
University’s police officers, or other authorized person possessing official identification, or
establishing lines of restriction beyond which unauthorized persons are not permitted to pass.
Section 4.
Nothing contained in this Ordinance is intended to limit the power of any
governmental unit or law enforcement agency to enforce on University property any laws,
ordinances or regulations which otherwise would be enforceable on such property.
ARTICLE 5 - PARKING
Section 1.

Standing or parking close to curb
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No person shall stand or park a vehicle in a roadway other than parallel with the edge of
the roadway headed in the direction of lawful traffic movement and with the right-hand wheels
of the vehicle within 12 inches of the curb or edge of the roadway except as otherwise provided
in this article.
Section 2.

One-way streets

Vehicles may park with the left-hand wheels adjacent to and within 12 inches of the lefthand curb on properly signed one-way streets.
Section 3.

Obedience to angle parking signs or markings

Upon those streets which have been signed, or marked for angle parking, no person shall
stop, stand, or park a vehicle other than at the angle to the curb or edge of the roadway indicated
by such signs or markings.
Section 4.

Parking not to obstruct traffic

No Person shall park any vehicle upon a street or parking lot, in such a manner or under
such conditions as to leave available insufficient width of the roadway for free movement of
vehicular traffic.
Section 5.

Stopping, standing and parking, prohibited places and manner

No Person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid conflict
with other traffic or in compliance with law, or the directions of a police officer or traffic-control
device, in any of the following places:
(a)

On a sidewalk.

(b)

In front of a public or private driveway.

(c)

Within an intersection.

(d)

Within 15 feet of a fire hydrant.

(e)

On a crosswalk.

(f)

Within 20 feet of a crosswalk, or if there is not a crosswalk, within 15 feet of the
intersection of property lines at an intersection of streets.

(g)

Within 30 feet upon the approach to any flashing beacon, stop sign, yield sign or
traffic-control signal located at the side of a street.

(h)

Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when such stopping,
standing, or parking would obstruct traffic.

(i)

On the street side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street.
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(j)

At any place where official signs prohibit stopping, standing, or parking.

(k)

In any place or in any manner which blocks immediate egress from any
emergency exit or exits conspicuously marked as an emergency exit of a building.

(l)

In any place or in any manner which blocks or hampers the immediate use of an
immediate egress from a fire escape conspicuously marked as a fire escape
providing an emergency means of egress from any building.

(m)

In a parking area clearly identified by an official sign as being reserved for use by
Handicapped Persons, unless the person is a Handicapped Person, or unless the
person is parking the vehicle for the benefit of a Handicapped Person. A
certificate of identification issued by the University, or the state to a Handicapped
Person, or a special registration plate issued by the state to a Handicapped Person
shall be displayed on the vehicle.

(n)

In violation of an official sign restricting the period of time for or manner of
parking.

(o)

On a grass area.

(p)

On a margin.

Section 6.

Motor buses; stopping

Motor buses, for the purpose of taking on or discharging passengers, may be stopped at
the places designated in subparagraphs b, d, and f of Section 5, or on the street side of a vehicle
illegally parked in a designated bus loading zone.
Section 7.

Parking in alleys

No Person shall park a vehicle in an alley, except when authorized by official signs, nor
shall any person stop or stand a vehicle in any alley except while actually in the process of
loading or unloading such vehicle.
Section 8.

Parking for certain purposes prohibited

No Person shall park a vehicle upon any street for the principal purpose of:
(a)

Displaying such vehicle for sale.

(b)

Washing, polishing, greasing, or repairing such vehicle, except repairs
necessitated by an emergency.

(c)

Displaying advertising.

(d)

Selling merchandise from such vehicle.

(e)

Storage for more than 48 continuous hours.
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Section 9.

Standing or parking on one-way, roadways

In the event a street includes two or more separate roadways and traffic is restricted to
one direction upon any such roadway, no person shall stand or park a vehicle upon the left-hand
side of such one-way roadway unless signs are erected to permit such standing or parking.
Section 10.

Standing in passenger curb loading zone

No person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle for any purpose or period of time except for
the expeditious loading or unloading of passengers in any place marked as a passenger curb
loading zone during hours when the regulations applicable to such passenger curb loading zone
are effective, and then only for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes.
Section 11.

Standing freight loading zone

No person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle for any purpose or length of time except for
the expeditious unloading and delivery or pickup and loading of material in any place marked as
a freight loading zone during hours when the provisions applicable to such zones are in effect,
provided that the driver of a vehicle may stop temporarily at a place marked as a freight loading
zone for the purpose of and while actually engaged in loading or unloading passengers when
such storming does not interfere with any motor vehicle used for the transportation of material
which is waiting to enter or about to enter such zone.
Section 12.

Stopping, standing, or parking of buses

The operator of a bus shall not stop, stand, or park upon any street at any place other than
at a bus stop except that this provision shall not prevent the operator of any such vehicle from
temporarily stopping in accordance with other stopping standing, or parking regulations at any
place for the purpose of and while engaged in the expeditious unloading or loading of
passengers.
Section 13.

Restricted use of bus stop

No Person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle other than a bus in a bus stop, when such
stop has been officially designated and appropriately signed, except that the driver of a passenger
vehicle may temporarily stop therein for the purpose and while actually engaged in the
expeditious loading or unloading of passengers when such stopping does not interfere with any
bus waiting to enter or about to enter the bus stop.
Section 14.

Metered parking zones

When a Metering Device is installed adjacent or in close proximity to a space marked for
parking and the collection of hourly parking fees, such space shall be a metered parking zone and
no person shall stop a vehicle in any such zone for a period of time longer than designated on
such Metering Device upon the payment of United States currency in the amounts designated on
such Metering Device on the days and during the time said regulations are in force as designated
on such Metering Device, except government-owned vehicles shall be exempt from payment of
the meter fee.
9

Section 15.

Drivers to park within spaces

No person shall park any motor vehicle in any parking lot or parking structure other than
within the boundaries of the space designated as allocated for the parking of a single motor
vehicle, by appropriate lines or other markings. Where a space has been designated for the
parking of compact automobiles or other small vehicles only, and appropriate signs erected, it
shall be unlawful to park a larger or other type of vehicle thereon so as to extend beyond the
designated boundaries of such space.
Section 16.

Parking gates

When parking gates are installed to restrict use of a parking area or parking lot, no person
shall use such area without an applicable parking permit for such parking area or parking lot or,
if the parking lot is not restricted to permit holders, by payment of the applicable parking fee,
according to the operating instructions designated for the parking gate.
Section 17.

Parking gates; entrance and exit

No person shall drive or attempt to drive a vehicle through parking lot exits or entrances
controlled by parking gates except in the manner posted and indicated by the nature of the
operation of the parking gate nor shall any person drive or attempt to drive a vehicle into a
parking lot through the exit side of the parking gate or drive a vehicle from a parking lot through
the entrance side of the parking gate unless directed to do so by a police officer.
Section 18.

Restricted parking areas

No person shall stop, stand, or park any vehicle in any reserved or specially assigned
parking lot or parking area unless such vehicle has been registered with the University and has a
currently effective appropriate parking permit displayed. It shall be unlawful to have displayed
on any motor vehicle any University registration and/or parking permit which has not been
issued for the motor vehicle, on which or in which such permit is displayed.
Section 19.

No parking tow-away zone

Where temporary or permanent no parking zones are established and there are posted
tow-away zone signs, vehicles parked in violation may be towed away and impounded. The
necessary cost of removal and storage shall be borne by the owner. Ownership of the vehicle
will be determined according to the records of the State of Michigan, Department of the
Secretary of State, or the University or Concessionaire’s record of permit holder. The
owner/permit holder will be held responsible for payment of all outstanding parking tickets
before a vehicle release form is issued.
Section 20.

Impoundment or immobilization for six unpaid violations

When any vehicle is found in violation of any of the provisions of this Article, and when
it is determined that there are six (6) or more outstanding Parking Violation Notices or citations
for illegal parking against the same vehicle, the vehicle may be towed away and impounded or
immobilized. Such a vehicle shall not be released from impoundment or immobilization until all
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outstanding Parking Violation Notices or citations for illegal parking relating to the vehicle have
been cleared with the University or through the appropriate Court. The necessary cost of
removal and storage of the vehicle shall become a lien on the vehicle and the person into whose
custody the vehicle is given may hold the vehicle until the expenses involved have been paid.
ARTICLE 6 - ADMINISTRATION
Section 1.
The President of the University and the Treasurer of the Board are authorized to
establish rules and regulations for the issuance of parking permits and the enforcement of this
Ordinance in accordance with Michigan Vehicle Code and Act 291.
Section 2.
The Executive Director of the Department of Public Safety and the Vice President
for Operations and Facilities shall be responsible for determining and installing proper timing
and maintenance of traffic control devices; to plan and direct the operation of traffic on streets
within the boundaries of the University; to establish parking areas therein, designating
limitations and uses thereof; the establishment of stop signs, standing or parking or stopping
regulations and speed restrictions; to establish one-way streets, alleys, crosswalks, safety zones,
and traffic lanes, and such other markings, restrictions, and street designations as may be deemed
necessary for the public interest, and for the protection of vehicles and pedestrians.
Section 3.
Subject to the terms of the Concession Agreement, the Executive Director of the
Department of Public Safety and the Vice President for Operations and Facilities shall determine
and designate metered parking zones, and to install and maintain as many parking meters as
necessary in said metered parking zones where it is determined that the installation of parking
meters shall be necessary to aid in the regulation, control and inspection of the parking of
vehicles; also to determine or designate parking lots or areas which shall be controlled or
restricted by parking gates, and to install and maintain as many parking gates as may be
necessary in said areas where it is determined that the installation of parking gates shall be
necessary to aid the regulation and control of the parked vehicles.
Section 4.
The Treasurer of the Board is hereby empowered to establish special restricted
parking areas (and signs which indicate such restrictions) where such restrictions are necessary
for essential activities of the University and/or where interference with such operations may
adversely affect the public interest in maintaining a safe and well-ordered campus.
Section 5.
Motor vehicles parked on campus, in reserved or specially assigned areas, must be
registered with the University, and have the appropriate parking permit displayed.
Section 6.
Charges for parking to faculty, staff, students, and visitors shall be established as
set forth in the Concession Agreement. The President of the University and the Treasurer of the
Board may establish rules and regulations for exemption of certain employees, or groups of
employees, students, or visitors from such charges.
ARTICLE 7 - PENALTIES AND PROCEDURE ON VIOLATIONS
Section 1.
There is hereby established a Parking Violations Bureau within the Department of
Public Safety to accept admissions of responsibility in cases of violations of this Ordinance and
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to collect and retain fines and costs as prescribed in this Ordinance if the violation is designated a
civil infraction.
Section 2.
Violation of parking regulations set forth in Article 5 of this Ordinance shall
constitute “civil infractions,” and shall be enforced and processed in accordance with the rules
and procedures developed in accordance with Section 1 above
Section 3.
In any proceeding for violation of this Ordinance proof that the person named in
the complaint or citation was at the time set forth therein the registered owner of the vehicle
and/or was the person who registered the vehicle with the University for the period during which
the alleged violation occurred shall constitute in evidence a prima facie presumption that such
person was the person who parked or placed such motor vehicle at the point where the alleged
violation occurred.
Section 4.
Whenever any motor vehicle without a driver is found parked or stopped in
violation of any of the restrictions imposed by this Ordinance, the officer finding such vehicle
shall take its registration number and may take any other information displayed on the vehicle
which may identify its user and shall conspicuously affix to such vehicle a violation notice.
Section 5.
Whenever an officer removes and impounds a vehicle, as authorized herein, and
the officer knows or is able to ascertain the name and address of the owner thereof, such officer
shall within a reasonable period of time give or cause to be given a notice, in writing, to the
owner of the fact of such removal, the reason, therefore, and the place to which such vehicle has
been removed. In the event any such vehicle is stored in a garage, a copy of such notice shall be
given to the operator of such garage.
Section 6.
Whenever an officer removes and impounds a vehicle, as authorized herein, and
does not know and is not able to ascertain the name of the owner, or for any other reason is
unable to give notice to the owner as hereinbefore provided, and in the event a vehicle is not
returned to the owner within a period of three (3) days, the officer shall, within a reasonable
period of time, send or cause to be sent a written report of such removal by mail to the
Commissioner of the Michigan State Police, and shall file a copy of such notice with the operator
of such garage in which the vehicle may be stored. Such notice shall include a complete
description of the vehicle, the date, time and place from which removed, the reasons for such
removal, and the name of the garage or place where the vehicle is stored.
Section 7.
Any person who commits a civil infraction under this Ordinance shall be punished
by the fine specified below or in other provisions of this Ordinance, or, if there is no such
provision, by a $25.00 fine. As of the effective date of this Ordinance, the following fines shall
be imposed for the following violations:
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Schedule of Parking Violation Fines
Violation Description
Fine
Parking in Restricted Zone
$25.00*
Not Parked Within Space
$25.00
Parking in Reserved Parking
$50.00
Illegal Exit
$45.00
Prohibited Parking 2AM-6AM
$35.00
Parking in Handicapped Zone
$200.00
Traffic Hazard
$35.00
Parked in Margin/Grass/Sidewalk
$35.00
Parking in Violation of Time Restriction
$25.00
Overtime Meter
$10.00
Prohibited Parking
$35.00
Illegal Entry
$10.00
*Penalty is $10 if person presents valid Permit within 48 hours of issuance. Permit must be registered to
owner of the vehicle, purchased and picked up prior to issuance of violation.

Section 8.
The President of the University and the Treasurer of the Board are authorized to
modify the parking fines set forth in Section 7 above from time to time as may be determined to
be appropriate for enforcement of this Ordinance, subject to the terms of the Concession
Agreement. If a civil infraction included in this Ordinance substantially corresponds to a
provision of the Michigan Vehicle Code, the parking fine for that infraction shall not exceed the
maximum civil fine for the substantially corresponding provision of the Michigan Vehicle Code.
Section 9.
All civil infraction fines for parking violations are payable at the Parking
Violations Bureau or other designated location. Admissions of responsibility in cases of civil
infraction parking violations of this Ordinance, including rules and regulations issued thereunder,
shall be processed exclusively through the Parking Violations Bureau with resulting fines and
costs to be retained by the University. All other alleged violations of this Ordinance, including
rules and regulations issued thereunder, shall be processed in the court system as provided by
law for similar alleged violations occurring in the City of Ypsilanti and Washtenaw County.
Section 10.
In the event that a defendant is found to have violated this Ordinance by a Court
of proper jurisdiction, the fine schedule provided in Section 7, above, shall be applied by such
Court as a minimum fine schedule. In the event of hardship, the Court may suspend the
minimum fine, or in the event such violation merits a fine greater than the minimum, the Court
may levy a greater fine as permitted under the court rules. In the event such defendant fails to
appear in Court and a warrant is issued, the Court may levy a warrant fee in accordance with the
regular authority and practice of the Court.
Section 11.
The Chief of the University Police Department shall be responsible for causing
the Concessionaire to issue violation notices and complaint forms in such form as he/she deems
necessary and appropriate, and shall cause the Concessionaire to maintain or cause to be
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maintained a record of every such violation notice and complaint form issued.
Concessionaire shall retain a record of every notice so issued.

The

ARTICLE 8 - MISCELLANEOUS
Section 1.

Short title

This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the Eastern Michigan University Parking
Ordinance.
Section 2.

Severance provision

If any provision of this Ordinance or part thereof shall be adjudged invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, then such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a
whole or any provision or part thereof not so adjudged invalid.
Section 3.

Saving clause

All proceedings pending in all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved, and such proceedings may be consummated
under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings are or were
commenced. This Ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending
prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or
impliedly repealed by this Ordinance for violations committed prior to the effective date of this
Ordinance; and all prosecutions instituted after the effective date of this Ordinance for violations
committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance may be continued or instituted under and
in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of
such violation.
Section 4.

Effective date

This Ordinance, as amended, shall take effect immediately. It shall repeal all prior
versions of it. Copies of this Ordinance shall be made available at the University Department of
Public Safety.

BLOOMFIELD 28748-26 1952862v6
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BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

SECTION: 1 7
DATE:

December 1 5 ,
20 1 7

RECOMMENDATION
REGARDING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF A PARKING SYSTEM
CONCESSION AGREEMENT AND RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION
OF THE CONCESSIONAIRE THEREUNDER
ACTION REQUESTED

It is requested that the Board of Regents ( 1 ) approve the Concession Agreement for Eastern
Michigan University P arking System (the Concession Agreement), which grants a concession to
the Concessionaire named therein to operate, maintain and improve the University' s parking
assets for thirty-five years, and (2) approve P reston Hollow Capital, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, as the Concessionaire under the Concession Agreement.
STAFF SUMMARY
As reported to the Board of Regents at its last meeting, the University had submitted to
prospective partners a Request for Qualification regarding a concession for the operation,
maintenance and improvement of all parking assets of the University (the P arking System),
which has since been followed by a Request for P roposals, the negotiation of terms and
conditions, the receipt of bids from candidates, and the finalization of an agreement, in the form
of the Concession Agreement. The Concession Agreement grants to the Concessionaire the
exclusive right to operate, maintain and improve the P arking System, subject to the
comprehensive "Operating Standards" which are part of the Concession Agreement. Under the
Concession Agreement, the Concessionaire will have the exclusive responsibility for operating
and maintaining the P arking System, including the sale of p ennits, the setting of rates within
agreed-upon parameters, maintenance and staffing of parking facilities, enforcement of rules
regarding use of parking facilities, and future improvement of facilities as required. The
University will have no material responsibility for, and will receive no material future income
from, the Parking System during the tenn of the Concession Agreement.
The principal objectives of the concession ainngement embodied in the Concession Agreement
are to provide quality parking facilities and services for students, staff and faculty of the
University at no cost to the University, and provide substantial upfront compensation to the
University for investment in the education of its students.
In consideration of the grant of the Parking System concession, the University will receive from
the Concessionaire, upon closing of the transaction no later than April 3 0, 2 0 1 8, immediately
available funds in the amount of $55 ,000,000, for use by the Board in furtherance of its core
educational mission and enhancement of the University' s financial position.

Preston Hollow Capital , LLC has been proposed as the Concessionaire , based on the Universit y
Administration' s dete1mination that Preston Hollow Capital , LLC would best provide the
financial support for proper maintenance and improved and ex p anded p arking facilities and the
most efficient and student-fri endl y services under the Concession Agreement .
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
The Concession A greement, upon closing of the transaction no later than A p ri l 3 0, 20 1 8 , will be
inco rp orated into the 2 0 1 8 fiscal y ear bud g et.
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION
The Action Re quested has been reviewed and recommended for Bo ard approval .
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Eastern Michiga n Pa rking Concession

Fina nce a nd I nvestment Com m ittee
Decem ber 15, 2017

Eastern Michiga n Pa rking Concession
P rocess :
- Extensive p u b l ic bid process, with pre-q u a l ified pa rties receivi ng RFP
- Extensive operational expertise and fin a ncial ca pacity req u i red
- Tea m of professiona ls su pported E M U tea m in process
• PFM F i n a ncial Advisers, LLC ( Fi n a n ci a l Adviser)
• Desm a n , I nc . ( Pa rking Consu lta nts)
• Dicki nsonWright ( Lega l )

- EMU tea m i ncl uded Procu rement, Lega l, Pa rki ng Operations, a n d
Business a n d Fi n a n ce
- Defined operating sta n d a rds ensures performa nce is m a i nta i ned or
i m proved

Eastern M ichiga n Pa rking Concession
Recommendations
• Co ncessiona i re : P resto n H o l l ow Ca pita l
- D a l l a s based n o n - ba n k specia lty fi n a nce co m p a ny with more t h a n $ 1 b i l l i o n i n
ca pita l
- Long-te rm I nvestors; rea l estate, a n d i nfrastruct u re a ssets

• Pa rki ng Operato r: LAZ Pa rki ng
- Operator o f ove r 2500 pa rki n g l ocations a c ross U S
- Operator for O h i o State U n iversity a n d n u m e rous m u n icipal p u b l ic-p rivate
pa rtners h i ps

Eastern Michiga n Pa rking Concession
Key Terms:
- 35 yea r agreement
- $55 m i l l ion u pfront payment
- $4.2 m i l l ion i n ca pita l expen d itures i n first 2 yea rs
- Exclusive pa rking system operator (with certa i n exce ptions)
- Futu re Rates
• Rate i ncreases a re less t h a n E M U 7 yea r ave rage ( 17 %}
• N o greate r t h a n 5% i n crease, each of fi rst 5 yea rs of Agreem e nt
• Futu re yea rs, greate r of 4% o r CPI

Eastern Michiga n Pa rking Concession
Key Terms (Co nti n u e d ) :
- M ai nta i n affordable pa rki ng option/sh uttle
- Concessionaire has su bsta nti a l technology development p l a n s
- Tra nsition period TB D

Eastern Michiga n Pa rking Concession
Expected Ti m e l i n e :
- With Boa rd Approva l, expect to sign Agreement before yea r e n d .
- Fi n a ncia l Closing no later t h a n April 30, 2018
- Tra nsition p l a n n i ng to begin i m med iately after awa rd

B OARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E RN M I C H I G A N UN I V E R S I T Y

SECTION: 18
DATE:
December 15, 2017

RECOMMENDATION
CAPITAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the following supplemental F Y 2018
capital project expenditures:
• Renovation and expansion of Sill Hall supporting the existing, new and future
engineering programs. The estimated cost of the project is $40,000,000.
• New construction of a building to house the student athlete training facilities and sports
medicine services. The estimated cost of the project is $20,000,000.
• Renovation of the Rec/IM facility to be initiated in summer of 2018. The estimated cost
of this project is $16,000,000.
Total supplemental capital projects - $76,000,000.
STAFF SUMMARY
The investment in Sill Hall supports the University's newly developed engineering programs which will be key to the future of the University, while the construction of the new building for
the student athlete training facilities will provide contemporary sports medicine and performance
training services for the University' s student athletes.
•

The Sill Hall renovation and expansion project provides the engineering programs
renovated lab space for research, computer simulation, virtual and augmented reality and
other specialty purposes, lecture halls, collaborative learning spaces and administrative
offices. The existing 92,635 gsf at Sill Hall will be renovated while expanding the
building space by an additional 16,000 gsf. The capital investment in these programs
provides the foundation in these engineering programs that will allow them to be a
growth area for the University for years to come. This authorization will begin the multi
year process of a project that will be conducted in phases to accommodate the currently
underway Strong Hall project, as well as maintain ongoing operation of Sill Hall during
the project. Sill Hall remains the University's top priority for State Capital Outlay, and
any work completed during this phased project will reduce the overall cost of any State of
Michigan approved project.

•

The new construction project for sports medicine and student athlete training facilities
provides for a 60,000 gsf, pre-engineered structure that will house the University's

student athlete sports medicine and performance training space and equipment, team
meeting rooms and coach ' s offices, whi le also including a video board at Rynearson
Stadium . The structure will be located near the northwest corner of Rynearson Stadium.
The capital investment wi l l provide a modern training and sports medicine services
environment for the University' s approximate 5 5 0 student athletes. The proj ect cost
reflects the total cost of the proj ect, which will be mitigated by fundraising effo1ts. An
ongoing fundraising effort in Athletics has resulted in substantial commitments to the
proj ect, and additional gifts are expected. The timeline for this proj ect has not been
finalized .
•

The renovation of the Rec/IM faci l ity provides needed updates and repairs to the existing
facilities. Originally constructed in 1 98 1 , the Rec/IM facility has not received any maj or
improvements other than minor routine maintenance since its original construction.
The proposed capital improvement proj ect consi sts of the reconfiguation of existing
spaces to accomodate new and expanded locker rooms, a zero entry pool modification to
the Club pool and open spaces to accomodate cardio and weight training equipment.
Renovations are expected to cost $ 1 6,000,000 incl usive of design and equipment costs.
This proj ect will be implemented in phases to maintain operations during construction.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
Approval of the capital proj ects wil l establish the authorization for spending in excess of the
capital Budget approved on February 7, 20 1 7 for the 20 1 7-20 1 8 Capital Budget. Funding for
these proj ects will include fundraising, University resources, and future University borrowing,
and, in the case of Sill Hall, may also include State funding .
The phasing for Sill Hall is expected to result in $3 .0M in improvements to the facility in both
FY I 9 and FY20 .

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
•

7

'

l

eviewed and is recommended for Board approval .
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PRESIDENT'S COMMISSION ON
DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Preliminary Recommendations
In Response to the
Commission Charge Issued by
Dr. James M. Smith, President,
Eastern Michigan University
Submitted
November 27, 2017
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President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion
Preliminary Recommendations
Executive Summary

In December 2016, Eastern Michigan University President James M. Smith appointed a
thirteen member President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion. The creation of the
Commission came in the immediate aftermath of several recent stress points in EMU's path
toward becoming an institution of inclusion and excellence. These include incidents of racial
hate messaging on campus, protests over the pace of resolution regarding these instances,
longer standing unresolved racial grievances, and the issuance of the Black Student Ten
Point Plan in 20 1 5. The Commission on Diversity and Inclusion is the most recent of
multiple institution-wide efforts, dating back nearly fifty years, to address EMU's
engagement with the challenge of racial equality imprinted on the nation's agenda by the
Modem Civil Rights Movement of the 1 950's and 1 960's.
President Smith charged the Commission to:
• Provide recommendations to undertake systematic campus climate assessment,
including a study on the campus racial climate;
• Identify existing programs and resources that have succeeded in strengthening a
climate of respect and inclusiveness on our campus and other campuses; and
• Provide input, and make specific recommendations, to the President and to the
campus community about campus climate and the means of creating a more
inclusive culture.
The President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion issues the following eight
Preliminary Recommendations in response to this charge.
1 . Biennial Campus Climate Assessment
2 . Periodic Institutional Diversity Audit
3. Office of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion led by a Chief Diversity Officer
Reporting Directly to the President
4. Comprehensive University Strategic Action Plan for Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion
4. Diversity Impact Analysis
6. Accountability Driven Performance Evaluation System
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7. Curricular Improvement and Development
•
•
•
•

Masters degree in Africology and African American Studies.
General Education assessment of student learning outcomes for DEL
Inclusion of student representation in General Education Assessment.
Required
team-taught,
interdisciplinary,
interdepartmental
undergraduate course on systemic and structural inequity.

8. Community Engagement and Transformation Study Group
In presenting these Preliminary Recommendations, the Commission addresses the
components of the Black Student Ten Point Plan (See Appendix 1 ) through protocol and
process recommendations, and as stand-alone propositions.
The President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion presents below a more detailed
delineation of the Prelimina,y Recommendations, and a process for receiving input from the
campus and broader community on each of the eight.
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President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion Charge

President Smith tasked the Commission to:
•

Provide recommendations to undertake systematic campus climate assessment,
including a study on the campus racial climate;

•

Identify existing programs and resources that have succeeded in strengthening a
climate of respect and inclusiveness on our campus and other campuses; and

• Provide input, and make specific recommendations, to the President and to the
campus community about campus climate and the means of creating a more
inclusive culture.
Vision Statement - President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion

In recommending a template to address this charge, and to achieve institutional excellence
based upon diversity, equity and inclusion (DEi) at Eastern Michigan University, the CDI
envisions a university that:
•

Ensures the well-being and empowers the voice of all members of the university
community;

•

Integrates diversity, equity and inclusion as a threaded strategic imperative of all
dimensions of institutional excellence;

•

Aligns policies, procedures and outcomes with official express10ns of mission,
goals and values;

•

Eliminates process, structural and systemic barriers to achieving institutional
diversity, equity and inclusion;
• Integrates the creative talents of the entire university community into university
programming, decision-making, and operations;

•

Implements a coordinated accountability driven, continuous improvement model of
programming, staffing and operations; and

•

Leverages its historical legacy, its geographic location in southeastern Michigan,
and its institutional strengths to position itself for 21" Century leadership in
transforming the region and the nation.
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Definitions
For the purposes of these recommendations, the President's Commission on Diversity
and Inclusion adopts the following operational definitions of diversity, equity and
inclusion:
Diversity: Addresses and acknowledges individual differences such as personality and
life experiences as well as group identities of race and ethnicity, gender and gender
identity, sexual orientation, socioeconomic status, language, culture, national ongm,
religious beliefs and identity, age, disability status, and political perspective.
Equity: The purposeful creation of opportunities and resources to remediate the
differential impact of policies, practices, and structures on diverse persons, promote
j ustice, impartiality and fairness within the procedures, processes, and distribution of
resources by the institution, and actively challenge and respond to bias, discrimination,
and harassment.
Inclusion: Deliberate and intentional efforts to ensure a community where diverse
individuals are able to participate fully in the decision-making processes, different
perspectives are heard respectfully, and members have a sense of belonging.
Timetable and Mechanism for Providing Input on the
President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion
Preliminary Recommendations
The Commission on Diversity and Inclusion will issue a final set of first year
recommendations, together with a first year report, early in 2 0 1 8. To inform its
deliberations toward that final product, the President's Commission seeks the input of the
campus community regarding its Preliminary Recommendations. It invites comment on this
preliminary release through:
• Completing the CDI Preliminary Recommendations Survey Form at
https ://www.survevmonkev.com/r/Z5GKP PC
• Attending one or more of the two face-to-face listening sessions, dates and times
TBD.
The CDI also plans sessions with various groups on campus. To schedule a presentation by
the Commission on D iversity and Inclusion, please contact CDI Vice Chair, Professor Dibya
Choudhuri at dchoudhur@emich.edu

s
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Preliminary Recommendations

The President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion recommends that the Eastern
M ichigan University institute the following:
1 . A Biennial Campus Climate Assessment developed by an external agency according to
specified criteria and implemented through appropriate university offices as designated by
the President. Administered on an ongoing basis, this assessment will use mixed methods
to measure:
The atmosphere or ambience of Eastern Michigan University as perceived by the
campus community, and as reflected in institutional structures, policies, and
practices;
The attitudes and values of the campus community members and its leaders; and
The personal interactions and experiences, regarding diversity, equity, and
inclusion, that reflect the level of personal safety, value, fairness and respect
perceived by all sectors of the university community, i.e., students, faculty, staff,
and administrators.
2. A Periodic Institutional Diversity Audit, administered by appropriate offices as
designated by the President, to gather data on the diversity, equity and inclusion profile of
all university programs, protocols, policies, facilities, students, and personnel. This data
will be a first step in determining the impact of institutional inequity on all phases of
university operations, and in developing a path forward toward comprehensive institutional
excellence.
3. The Creation of an Office ofDiversity, Equity, and Inclusion led by a chief diversity
officer reporting directly to the President and sitting as a member of the Executive Council.
The office will have responsibility for coordinating diversity, equity and inclusion at
Eastern Michigan University. This includes oversight of development and implementation
of the Comprehensive University Strategic Action Plan for Diversity, Equity and Inclusion,
per Preliminary Recommendation # 4.
DEI is a core plank of institutional excellence in higher education, as in any other
complex organization. However, EMU has historically lacked an administrative
structure to steward this overarching, cross-divisional strategic imperative.
The CDI recommends the immediate convening of a critical mass of university in
house expertise, to define the scope, responsibilities and operating parameters, and
available resources of an Office of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion, and its
administrative head.
4. A Comprehensive University Strategic Action Plan for Diversity, Equity and Inclusion,
informed by the data secured from the Biennial Campus Climate Assessment and the

6

CDI-Preliminary Recommendations 1 1 .27.17

Institutional Diversity Audit. The Strategic Action Plan for DEi will be developed through a
process coordinated by the Office of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion in conjunction with
appropriate administrative offices as designated by the President. The plan will include
metrics by which to evaluate success in achieving designated DEi goals, as reflected in
periodic audits and assessments.

5. Diversity Impact Analysis will demonstrate how proposed recommendations regarding
programming, re-organization, personnel, and budget will affect the pursuit of DEI within
the unit in question. Its goal is to address the operation of implicit bias and systemic
inequities by creating purposeful pro-active awareness of and integration of the impact on
DEI of routine university decision-making. Appropriate offices, as designated by the
President, will develop the Diversity Impact Analysis.
6. An Accountability Driven Performance Evaluation System that includes DEi metrics
for all hiring authorities. This will be synchronized with unit or divisional metrics identified
in the Comprehensive University Strategic Action Plan for Diversity, Equity and Inclusion.
These metrics will be linked to DEi focused themes of the University Strategic Plan. A tie
barred component of the Performance Evaluation System will be DEi training applicable to
university staff with hiring or supervisory authority
7. Curricular Improvement and Development.
The curriculum focused items of the Black Student Ten Point Plan implies a critique of the
effectiveness of EMU's curricular requirements: that the current requirements do not
address, in full academic capacity, the unresolved issues of inequity, marginality and
exclusion at EMU or in the greater society. Curricular improvements, scaled to this
potential, requires the initiation, support, and leadership of the Office of the Provost, in
collaboration with Faculty Senate, appropriate bargaining units, and other appropriate
faculty input committees. The process of programmatic improvements should include:
•

Development of a Masters degree in Africology and African
American Studies. This is in process in the College of Arts and
Sciences, and the efforts on the part of AAAS faculty and the College
Advisory Council (CAC) to review and implement this proposal is
commended by the President's Commission. It is recommended that the
proposal, once approved by the CAC, receive full support by the
Provost and President for eventual approval by the Board of Regents.

•

General Education assessment of student learning outcomes for
DEi. A widened, cross-cutting scope of GE assessment to include
measurable learning outcomes pertaining to students' acquisition of
conceptual and applied tools to recognize and address challenges of
pervasive inequities, both on campus and in the broader world;

•

Inclusion of student representation in General Education
Assessment.
The General Education Assessment Committee will
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ensure the inclusion of student voices in the development of cross
cutting General Education learning outcomes, and student participation
in developing the metrics devised to measure these outcomes;
•

A required team-taught, interdisciplinary, interdepartmental
undergraduate course on systemic and structural inequity. Offered
by each College and supported by the Dean of each College, to foster
students' acquisition of conceptual and applied tools to recognize and
address challenges of pervasive inequity, both on campus and in the
broader world. The President's Commission encourages the Deans, and
the EMU faculty in each College to consider the feasibility and structure
of such a course.

This recommendation recognizes systemic and structural inequities in
American life and culture as deeply rooted, difficult to extricate,
complex and layered phenomena with multiple points of entry for
solutions. It further invites the Office of the Provost and Executive Vice
President, working in conjunction with the Deans, Faculty Senate,
appropriate bargaining units, and faculty input, to assess the operational,
cost, and contractual aspects associated with these recommendations,
and to provide resources and leadership in development.
8. Community Engagement and Transformation

Located in a region that is a microcosm of the challenges of racial and economic inequities
in the nation, EMU has engaged these challenges for several decades through various
institutes, programs and collaborations. The President's Commission on Diversity and
Inclusion believes that an even more robust engagement is required. An initiative in this
direction would build upon EMU's tradition in this area and would acknowledge that Eastern
Michigan cannot address its DEI vision without simultaneously attending to operating
inequities within the county and region.
The process should include a group, bringing together students, faculty, administrators, and
community representatives, to assess the various initiatives historically and currently being
offered in the community. The goal would be to leverage the university's assets with a
community/regional consortium and maximize transformative impact upon the region,
through grants and collaborations. The group should synchronize with the research and
community transfom1ation initiatives coming from EMU (e.g. Climate Study, Diversity
Audit) Washtenaw County government, local municipalities, higher education, business and
the philanthropic sector. This initiative will be led by appropriate university offices as
designated by the President.
Respectfully submitted
The President's Commission for Diversity and Inclusion
November 27, 2 0 1 7

8

CDI-Prcliminary Recommendations 1 1 .27.17

Appendix I
The Black Student Ten Point Plan.

I : Percent of black faculty to equal that of black students at EMU ( excluding
AAS)
2: All students take a General Education course on race, ethnicity and racism
3 : A course on black studies will be built into every major;
4 Mandatory cultural competency training for all faculty and staff, including DPS
5. Designated space where marginalized students can gather safely and learn
about financial and academic resources available to black students.
6. Explore options for utilizing outside vendors to provide culturally appropriate
food for certain student organization events;
7. Alternate meal plan options for low-income students;
8 . Professional staff designated to identify by financial resources for black
students;
9. Committee designated by members of BSU to serve on the homecoming
Committee with the freedom to plan events for Black Homecoming;
1 0. Doctorate and Master's Program for Africology and African American
Studies with adequate funding and no less than full time graduate assistantships

9
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Appendix II
Eastern Michigan University
President's Commission on Diversity and Inclusion
Members

Ronald C Woods - Professor of Africology and African American Studies, Chair
Devika D ibya Chaudhuri - Associate Professor of Leadership and Counseling, Vice
Chair
Sharon Abraham - Director of Diversity and Affirmative Action
Jessica 'Decky' Alexander - Director of Engage @ EMU, Professor of CMTA
Steven Bryant - Director, Diversity & Community Involvement
Melissa Gentile - Head Coach EMU Softball
LaMarcus Howard - Associate Director of D isability Resource Center; President Black
Faculty and Staff Association, Graduate student
Christine ' Kate' Mehuron - Chair, Women's Commission, Professor of Philosophy
Amber Morseau - Graduate Assistant, Office of Diversity & Community Involvement
Eric Reed - EMU Opportunity Coordinator; Past President Black Faculty and Staff
Association, Graduate Student
Desmine Robinson - EMU Student (Psychology)
Michael Tew - Associate Provost/Academic Programs; Professor of Communication
Inaugural members no longer serving:
Adam Baraka- EMU Honors College Student (Biochemistry)
Gregory Peoples - Community Representative, Former University Ombudsman
Candace Dorsey - Crime Prevention Coordinator, Department of Public Safety,
EMU
Steven Kwasny, Student Administrative Assistant to the President's Commission on
Diversity and Inclusion ( Political Science)
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Fifty year
history of
i nstitutionwide
efforts to
address
DEi
challenges

Diversity
challenges
not unique
to campus
nor is EMU
uniquely
targeted

High turnover
in campus
leadership

creates
institutional
knowledge
gaps
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Local focus on
inequality and the
national
conversation race,
diversity, equity and
i nclusion

Black Student 1 0
Point Plan

Provide recommendations to undertake

Provide

Formation
and
Charge

systematic campus climate assessment,
including a study on the campus racial
climate;

Identify

Identify existing programs and resources
that have succeeded in strengthening a
climate of respect and inclusiveness on our
campus and other campuses; and

Provide

Provide input and make specific
recommendations, to the President and to
the campus community about campus
climate and the means of creating a more
inclusive culture.

December
201 6
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Conceptual
I r: 1 ;,
Impact of
policies,
practices, and
positions

Cultural
Competence,
Advocacy, and
Empowerment

I,i

r

People,
experiences and
perspectives

Power, voice,
and
organizational
structure

Prel iminary Recommendations
1. Biennial Campus Climate Assessment
Developed by an external agency according to
specified criteria and i mplemented through
appropriate university offices
2. Periodic Institutional Diversity Audit
To gather data on the DEi profile of all
operations

university

3
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Preliminary Recommendations
3. Office of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion:
Adm inistered by a Chief Diversity Officer reporting
directly to the President.
Responsible for coordinating DEi at EMU i ncluding
the
development and
implementation of the
Comprehensive University Strategic Action Plan fo

DEi .

Preliminary Recommendations
4. Comprehensive University Strategic Action
Plan for Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

• I nformed by the data secu red from the Campus
Climate Assessment and the Diversity Audit.
• Developed through a coordinated process;
• Includes success metrics

4
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Preliminary Recommendations
5. Diversity Impact Analysis :
• demonstrate how unit or division recom mendations
regarding programming, re-organization, personnel,
and buclget will affect the pursuit of DEi
• address the operation of implicit bias and systemic
inequities; purposeful pro-active awareness of the
i m pact on DEi of routine university decision-making.

Preliminary Recommendations
6. Accountability Driven Performance Evaluation
System:
I ncludes DEi metrics for all hiring and authorities.
Synchronized with unit or divisional metrics identified in
the Comprehensive University Strategic Action Plan for DEi
Linked to DEi focused themes of the University Strategic
Plan;
I ncludes DEi training for hiring or supervisory authorities

5
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Preliminary Recommendations
7. Curricular Improvement and Development
• Masters degree in Africology and African American Studies;
• General Education assessment of student learning
outcomes for DEi with a focus on:
a. tools for recognizing and addressing pervasive
i nequities,
b. metrics for measuring outcomes
Student representation in General Education Assessment

Preliminary Recommendations
7 • Curricular Improvement and Developmen
(cont.)
• Required team-taught, interd isci plinary,
interdepartmental undergraduate cou rse on
systemic and structural inequity,--what is it,
how does it operate, and what are the
solutions to addressing it.

6
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Preliminary Recommendations
urricular Improvement and Development (cont.)

• Recognizes
the complex, layered phenomenon;
solutions from multiple points of entry;
• Offered by each colleges
development and approval

following

faculty

• Calls Office of the Provost, working in conjunction
with the Deans, Faculty Senate, bargai ning units,
and faculty to assess the operational, cost, and
contractual
aspects
associated
with
this
recommendation.

Prel i m i nary Recommendations
8. Community Engagement and Transformation
Study Group
li nkage between EMU, its DEi vision and pervasive inequities
in Washtenaw county and southeastern M ichigan;
• EMU as a community engaged comprehensive u niversity
rooted in a tradition of teacher training, and
• Synergistic and transformative impact of EMU, working in
conjunction with stakeholders across the
broader
commun ity.

7
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Next Steps
1 . Continued meeting with campus groups for feedback and
distribute survey to EMU Community
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/Z5G KPPC
2. Reporting out on the results of Feedback duri ng the EMU
Martin Luther King's, Jr. Day Celebration, January 1 5, 201 8

3 . Final First Year Report and Recommendations--February,
201 8

Co111111ission Me111bers
• Chair: Ronald C Woods - Professor of Africology and African
American Studies .
• Vice Chair: Devika Choudhuri - Associate Professor of
Leadership and Counseling
• Sharon Abraham - Director of Diversity and Affirmative
Action
• Jessica 'Decky' Alexander - Director of Engage @ EMU
• Melissa Gentile - Head Coach EMU Softball
• LaMarcus D Howard - Associate Director of Disability
Resource Center
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Commission Members
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Christine 'Kate' Mehuron - Professor of Philosophy
Steven Bryant - Director of Diversity and Community
I nvolvement
Amber Morseau - GA, Office of Diversity & Community
I nvolvement
Eric Reed - EMU Opportunity Coordinator
Desmine Robinson - EMU Student {Psychology)
Michael Tew - Associate Provost for Academic
Prog ramming
Student Administrative Assistant: Steven Kwasny - EMU
Student (Political Science)

Thank You!
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BOARD OF REGENTS

SECTION: B
DATE:

EASTERN M I C H IGAN UNIVERS ITY

RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO BOARD POLICIES
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University approve the
attached fifteen revisions and five deletions to Board Policies:
Revisions
Section 6. 1 . 1
Section 6. 1 .2
Section 6.2. 1 .3
Section 6.2. 1 .4
Section 6.2. 1 .5
Section 6.2 . 1 .6
Section 6.3 . 1 .2
Section 8.1
Section 8.3
Section 9.3 . 1
Section 9.3.2
Section 9.3.6
Section 1 2. 1 . 1 1
Section 1 2. 1 . 1 2
Section 1 2.2.3

Degrees, Certificates and Requirements for Graduation
General Curricular Requirements
Undergraduate Grades and Academic Progress
Undergraduate Drops and Withdrawals from Courses
Undergraduate Total Withdrawals from all Courses
Undergraduate Academic Standing
Continuing Education Units
Student Conduct Code and Judicial Structure
Prohibition Against Discrimination on the Basis of Disability
Public Act of 1 967
Traffic and Parking Regulations
List of Other References to Traffic and Parking
Registration Fee
Late Registration Fee
Charges for Transcripts of Credits

Deletions
Section 6.3. 1 . 1
Section 6.3 . 1 .3
Section 9.3.3
Section 9.3.4
Section 9.3.5

Continuing Education Division
In-Service Courses
Vehicle Registration
Parking Rates
Parking and Pedestrian Ordinance

STAFF SUMMARY
All University policies must be approved by The Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan
University. A University policy is defined by all of the following: a) has broad application
throughout the University; and b) helps to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, promotes operational efficiencies, enhances the university's mission or reduces
institutional risks.
C.\U1er11Qhag&\OoctJmont1\Regents Ra,conwnend&Uons\Poliey Compilat.lo"· Oec;. 2017 dot
2S-NOY• t7 llb

In an ongoing effort to enhance the transparency of the actions of the University and to align
University practice with Board policy, Board Policies are subj ect to ongoing review and updated
as appropriate. All Board Policies are published.
The policies listed above are recommended for revision in accordance with the attachments,
which include the existing policies with the changes highlighted. The policies recommended for
deletion have been streamlined with existing policies to enhance clarity and efficiency (Section
9) or describe offices or services which have been discontinued (Section 6).
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

'llzc�bvt
Gloria A. Hage
General Counsel

Date

J � ;x; 11
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Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 6. 1 . 1
Issue: Degrees, Certificates and Requirements for Graduation
Effective Date: 6-9-1960
Revision Date: 12 08 2015 1 2 - 1 5-10 I 7

DEGREES
The Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University, on recommendation of the president and
the faculty, !lli!LConfers the following degrees:
Doctor of Philosophy
Specialist in Arts
Master of Arts, Master of Science, Master of Business Administration, Master of Business
Education, Master of Arts Teaching, Master of Fine Arts, Master of Public Administration,
Master of Health Administration, Master of Liberal Studies, Master of Music, Master of
Occupational Therapy, Master of Science in Nursing, Master of Social Work
Graduate Certificates
Post-baccalaureate Certificates
Bachelor of Science. Bachelor of Arts. Bachelor of Fine Arts. Bachelor or Business Education.
Bachelor of Business Administration. Bachelor of Music Education. Bachelor of Art Education.
Bachelor of Athletic Trainin!l. Bachelor of General Studies. Bachelor of Mw,ic. Bachelor of
Music Therapv. Bachelor of Science in Nursin!l. Bachelor of Social Work
Q.aekelarorI\ns

B+�h�or ofMw;it.: Edut�H-itln HtK�-tl4-'.-Arl falw.:ution
Uttl·helorofAthletk.:.irH+Hi11g gtit.4leh•1rl�ni�nerol 8Lud+es -Ur1d-tdof o·t' 11,,k�
Budtdor nf Must;;-4-4lt!-ri½f))'-l�eh�lor or S.cit'11c.:1.' i1+-Wtt�'-ht.a!+tl'-tlf��IlA'ork
Undergraduate Certificates
TEACHING CERTIFICATES
Teaching certificates are issued by the State Board of Education upon recommendation of
Eastern Michigan University.
The University will recommend for tl+tl·1.-h1�fU+t-certification only those individuals who have
satisfied the curricular requirements in one of the many teacher education d�g r� programs� aHd
successfully passed the appropriate State of Michigan Board of Education subject competency
tests (MTTC).
:i-lte--Mkhig,m �Ullt' Bottfd•o-fi �ttt:ai.,m h:,11e:; �•i'< yctu l"'ff•�i�Hnh���t -tl�
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11m,u�,�h�tt�&it+HffiT' �1ic 'ithnnl iH Mi<:ili�H½. Al•..tt¼tlff.ili�the hHlder tn lcdt.:h i1� n :;df
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CERTIFICATEOFADVANCED STUDIES IN ClJIUUCUbUMAND INS1'RUCTION
GJ;NERAbINFOl�MATION CONCERNING CERTIFIC.\TION
Teachit=1g eertifienles •Aill Bt.' grmueEI e1dy le p,useRs •Ahl1 are 18�ears efageerelder.
�,�ienehiAgeertiliea1es will he grnHleEI 0111:,10int:lividt1ols 'Aha are eiti ;ienseftlie
URiteEI Sti:1:les.
Pl�OCEE>URE FOR CONTINUING CERTIFICATION
'l he hele:ier afeBelementaryar seeendary provi!iional eertiticrue wl:iev,ishes ta e0�aii:ia
�ti/ieote 11-lw;t meet 1ke following qt1aliliea1i011s:
+, BeaUHileEI Simes ei ti;!en.
� TeaeAsueeessfi:1lly forihr�e years su6se1:jt:1ef1l lo tl�e issuunee afIha �1ichigan pr(lvisiGHAf
certificate wi lhin 1he ·•·t11idi1:, efthe intfr,idt1ol'!;Jl.liehigen 13F01·isi0Hal eeni tiea1e.
;.,_ i,ern 18 sem-!Sh!Fheurs .:reeti1 st1lisequenH&ffle-i!r.n1nt1ee tifthe Miehi�tm f)ro•,isieHal
eer1iliea1e iAllt1IHn11ed eem�e tifsh,ttl). rhe first18 semester h0t1r'.; ORame'.aer';;
�ewi11g the issl:laAee ofthe riffl'<l-+Sienal eeF1iliea1e is ueeeritable. as are ether
fllOm1etl llFOgrams with BA Apflro•.·ed 1eael!er IFtliAiAg iAslihlliflll.AflOF!mA ,,,,i1h an eernecl
m&sler':, er higher de!;FC� !las met 1he at.�11iremeRIS. The rilanned J•FogrGA-J
shouJEl be 8f.Jf>H1Vt!6iA Htl\·mwe 0ythe OfticeefAet:1ele1:tiie R�eeFdsHAei Teacher
GenilieatioR.
The rireeeeure 11f!er1hree y<larsflfsueee:1sl1:1I 1euehing and1hceami Rg af18 seme:aer ho�1P.-;
ertd8il iH (Ill 8f)Jireve0 f)laRHeel pregraA� su0seqm�Al le the issuaAeeoflhe13revisieAal e0rtifietUe is
�ttl\.'r.r,

·nlt.� a�J�lieaHt •Nill:
.1-, Oh1ain BA Bflpliea1ien blanl, from 1l1e Ofliee ofAcaaemie Reet,rds aAtl Teeeher
c�rtifieutiei:1
a, Fillot1t 1hetlflt1liea1i o11 as reqtiiFetl and re1urn ii 10 1he Oflit:e or Aeao:leA1ie Reeofli.; and
�1t'r Ct.'Ftifiel'41ieA.
The ortiee wiU
-h bvaltuue t1�eerec4tts ertrAeS and€1:lHlact the school distriel aftke eaASidot� for
reeemmeAeta1i0As eoneerniAg 1he1eael1ing e.�perit'Aee 10 ase-er1ui11 ifthe reEjuiretnettl5--fflf
the eontim,iRg ee,�ilieate ha,elleea met

;;!.. �'ffil-ttttctltl 1111:.· candirlalt? lo the �lttle Boar'th}f Edt+L'frlc��ll-i-twing c�rtifi1mtion fr
�-tiantlicbte'c; quulifit:t1l•eRs--n��ttftd�4,fttctttr, . Ih� M!clli:;1m �tflh! Di:?parl ment of
Fdncalion will mail �he coAlinUfflg l:.'t?fliJicnt� lo lhl:' 1.undi1clmt?.
OTHER PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATES (Not issued In Eastern Michigan Univcrsih,
but for which students mm· he eligible based on their educa tion at Eastern Michigan
l'nin�n;ity)
Certificate in Medical Technology
The American Society of Clinical Pathologists awards a certificate for registration as a medical
technologist upon successful completion of the medica 1 technoJogy curricu 1 um and the nationa1
examination conducted by the Board of Registry of Medical Technologists.
Certificate in Occupational Therapy
The American Occupational Therapy Association issues a certificate in occupational therapy
upon successful completion of the Occupational Therapy curriculum and the board examinations
administered by the American Occupational Therapy Association. This certificate qualifies the
holder for professional registration with the American Occupational Therapy Association.
Certificate in Dietetics
The American Dietetic Associalion issues a certificate in dietetics upon successful completion of
the coordinated dietetics curriculum. Successful completion of the national examination
administered by the American Dietetic Association results in professional registration status with
the American Dietetics Association.
Certificate in Speech Pathology
The American Speech and Hearing Association issues Certificates of Clinical Competence to
individuals who present satisfactory evidence of their ability to provide independent clinical
services to persons who have disorders of communication {speech, language, and/or hearing). An
individual who meets these requirements may be awarded a Certificate in Speech Pathology or in
Audiology, depending upon the emphasis of his preparation. Note: The program at Eastern
Michigan prepares individuals to meet the requirements in Speech Pathology only. Specific
requirements may be obtained from the advisers in Speech Pathology.
Licensure in Nursing
Graduates of the nursing program receive a !!�achelor of s�cience in Nursim.! degree and are
eligible to qualify as registered nurses through the Michigan State Board of Nursing Licensure
Examination. This examination is given at times and places specified by the State Board of
Nursing, usually three times a year. Candidates should file application immediately after official
completion date of degree requirements. Upon receipt of application and all credentials, a

temporary permit to practice will be issued and examination date assigned. Licensure is granted
upon successful completion of the State Board of Licensure Examination.
REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADUATION

Each undcrnraduatc student will be responsible for the fulfillment of the requirements or their
equivalents of the Eastern Michigan University catalog in force at the time of his or her initial
registration at a college or university or a subsequent catalog including the one in effect at the
time of his or her graduation.
In the event the-an unden.?.rnduatc_student does not complete the degree requirements within
seven years of the date of his or her original registration at a college or university, the student
may be required to have his or her credits re-evaluated by the academic department(s) of his or
her major/minor in keeping with catalog requirements in force during the year of his or her
graduation.
Sec the Graduate Catalog for graduate student req uircmcnh.

APPLICATION FOR GRADUATION -FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

A formal application for graduation must be filed by candidates for graduation and/or
certification during their final semester. The application should be filed after final registration is
complete but as near the beginning of the final semester as possible.
Failure to meet an application deadline could result in the candidate's graduation being delayed
until the following graduation period.
Applications must be submitted with the graduation fee.
Students are eligible for diplomas and final academic transcripts only after all of their financial
obligations to the University have been met.
A candidate for graduation who enrolls at another college or university for credit to be
transferred to Eastern Michigan University and applied toward meeting degree requirements
must submit an official transcript of such credit prior to the closing date of the semester in which
the degree is to be awarded. Delay of at least one enrollment period in granting the degree will
result if transfer credit has not been received by that time. Grade reports and/or letters from
instructors will not be accepted in lieu of official transcript.
Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the State Board of Education, June 9, 1 960.
Minutes ofthe Board of Regents, March 1 9, 1 969, para. .763M.

Minutes of the Board of Regents. March 1 9, 1 980, para. . 2214M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, October 30, 201 2

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 6. 1 . 1
Issue: Degrees, Certificates and Requirements for Graduation
Effective Date: 6-9-1 960
Revision Date: 1 2-1 5-201 7

DEGREES
The Board of Regents of Eastern Michigan University, on recommendation of the president and
the faculty, may confer the following degrees:
Doctor of Philosophy
Specialist in Arts
Master of Arts, Master of Science, Master of Business Administration, Master of Business
Education, Master of Arts Teaching, Master of Fine Arts, Master of Public Administration,
Master of Health Administration, Master of Liberal Studies, Master of Music, Master of
Occupational Therapy, Master of Science in Nursing, Master of Social Work
Graduate Certificates
Post-baccalaureate Certificates
Bachelor of Science, Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of Fine Arts, Bachelor of Business Education,
Bachelor of Business Administration, Bachelor of Music Education, Bachelor of Art Education,
Bachelor of Athletic Training, Bachelor of General Studies, Bachelor of Music, Bachelor of
Music Therapy, Bachelor of Science in Nursing, Bachelor of Social Work

Undergraduate Certificates
TEACHING CERTIFICATES

Teaching certificates are issued by the State Board of Education upon recommendation of
Eastern Michigan University.
The University will recommend for certification only those individuals who have satisfied the
curricular requirements in one of the many teacher education programs, successfully passed the
appropriate State of Michigan Board of Education subject competency tests (MTTC).
OTHER PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATES (Not issued by Eastern Michigan University,
but for which students may be eligible based on their education at Eastern Michigan
University)

Certificate in Medical Technology
The American Society of Clinical Pathologists awards a certificate for registration as a medical
technologist upon successful completion of the medica 1 technology curricu 1 um and the nationa 1
examination conducted by the Board of Registry of Medical Technologists.
Certificate in Occupational Therapy
The American Occupational Therapy Association issues a certificate in occupational therapy
upon successful completion of the Occupational Therapy curriculum and the board examinations
administered by the American Occupational Therapy Association. This certificate qualifies the
holder for professional registration with the American OccupationaJ Therapy Association.
Certificate in Dietetics
The American Dietetic Association issues a certificate in dietetics upon successful completion of
the coordinated dietetics curriculum. Successful completion of the national examination
administered by the American Dietetic Associalion results in professional registration status with
the American Dietetics Association.
Certificate in Speech Pathology
The American Speech and Hearing Association issues Certificates of Clinical Competence to
individuals who present satisfactory evidence of their ability to provide independent clinical
services to persons who have disorders of communication (speech, language, and/or hearing). An
individual who meets these requirements may be awarded a Certificate in Speech Pathology or in
Audiology, depending upon the emphasis of his preparation. Note: The program at Eastern
Michigan prepares individuals to meet the requirements in Speech Pathology only. Specific
requirements may be obtained from the advisers in Speech Pathology.

Licensure in Nursing
Graduates of the nursing program receive a Bachelor of Science in Nursing degree and are
eligible to qualify as registered nurses through the Michigan State Board of Nursing Licensure
Examination. This examination is given at times and places specified by the State Board of
Nursing, usually three times a year. Candidates should file application immediately after official
completion date of degree requirements. Upon receipt of application and all credentials, a
temporary permit to practice will be issued and examination date assigned. Licensure is granted
upon successful completion of the State Board of Licensure Examination.

REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADUATION
Each undergraduate student will be responsible for the fulfillment of the requirements or their
equivalents of the Eastern Michigan University catalog in force at the time of his or her initial
registration at a college or university or a subsequent catalog including the one in effect at the
time of his or her graduation.
In the event an undergraduate student does not complete the degree requirements within seven
years of the date of his or her original registration at a college or university, the student may be
required to have his or her credits re-evaluated by the academic department(s) of his or her
major/minor in keeping with catalog requirements in force during the year of his or her
graduation.
See the Graduate Catalog for graduate student requirements.

APPLICATION FOR GRADUATION -FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS
A formal application for graduation must be filed by candidates for graduation and/or
certification during their final semester. The application should be filed after final registration is
complete but as near the beginning of the final semester as possible.
Failure to meet an application deadline could result in the candidate's graduation being delayed
until the following graduation period.
Applications must be submitted with the graduation fee.
Students are eligible for diplomas and final academic transcripts only after all of their financial
obligations to the University have been met.
A candidate for graduation who enrolls at another college or university for credit to be
transferred to Eastern Michigan University and applied toward meeting degree requirements
must submit an official transcript of such credit prior to the closing date of the semester in which
the degree is to be awarded. Delay of at least one enrollment period in granting the degree will
result if transfer credit has not been received by that time. Grade reports and/or letters from
instructors will not be accepted in lieu of official transcript.

Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the State Board of Education, June 9, 1 960.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 1 9, 1 969, para. .763M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 1 9, 1 980, para. .221 4M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, October 30, 201 2

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 6. 1 .2
Issue: General Undercraduate Curricular Requirements
Effective Date: 3-2-1964
Revision Date: 02-19-20 1 3

DEGREE REQUIREMENTS
Each curriculum leading to a bachelor's degree requires a minimum of 124 semester hours of
academic credit at the 1 00-level and above. Courses with numbers below I 00 will not be
counted toward this degree requirement. No more than eight hours of credit in physical
education activity courses may be applied to this minimum of 1 24 semester hours except that
students majoring in Physical Education, Recreation or Dance may apply to the minimum 1 24
credit hours the minimum number of hours in activity courses required for their respective
maJors.

GENERAL EDUCATION PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS (effet:!ti,·e foMolutfenls ��h1:1
�undergrndu1Uc f)f�f"tHltc ffll 21UH or k�
The General Education Program sets up minimum requirements which all students in the
University must meet in five broad areas of study: Effective Communication. Quantitative
Reasoning. Perspectives on Diversity. Knowledge of the Disciplines. Learning Beyond the
Classroom.
A minimum total of 39 semester hours in the General Education Program is required. Tn1nslated
in�o :,f!�ilie Off'e:;. l.he Gt:!nen1I 1:!du1=1uion Pre�rntH iflt!lt1tlc!s:

Elleethe Communit:uliEln ........................................ t•,'l·o cour;�s required

I.

One cours� in Wriuen CtHnro:;itiun

2.

One C0�1rsc? in Oral Conmrnnica.lien

(.)tttlllttiali\e H-�il!iOHin:; . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Ollt'-ettH���

1)t>r.-if�l!lf'+'e;on Di·1er•;ily ... . . . .. . . . ........ .. . ..... .. .... ..... .. w,o �tHmHes r��

2.

��urning Bt'� ('lh:I Ow ('{a·;�,f'Ot+Al

. . . . ... . . ... . . . . . .. . ... ... . . .. . I�ngrnup•; Ft:'quir�d

--s...eiH1·-ttfltt �

.
I+

,

5.
(,,_

REQUIREMENTS IN MAJORS AND MINORS
Each student must complete a major si.� of at least 30 unique semester hours and a minor
•,11h_jeci of not less than 20 unique semester hours with the following exceptions:

A. A student in the elementary teaching curriculum may present three minors of not less
than 20 semester hours each, at least two of the minors being subject fields taught in
elementary grades.
B. A student who completes the speeiali2ed eurrieulum,; for teaehers ofart, teachers or
e1:1si1tess edHeeli011, leuehers ofiHduslrittl edueatiaA. RHe-w-aehers af:.music. or lhe
rrufrssieAal e1iffie1:1hnns iA erf.1liec4 seienee, B1::tsi1�ess at.lmini4ra{ien.-+Mff'Sing. musi£
therapy, inclustrial leehtwlog) , ttfltl aceupttlienal 1hernp� ·t,ill OHlelflaEieally titHisry m�jer:
miAor reqt1i�ments. a major \.\ hich requires more than 50 hours ,\ill not be required to
complete a minor. unless required bv the major pro!.?.ram.
Hours of credit counted in a minor may not also be applied to a major or another minor, or vice
versa. General Education courses may be applied toward a major or minor� where appropriate.
Credits in the required 1 2 1 English composition course and credits in professional education
courses do not count toward majors and minors� except in cases where such courses are
specifically required or indicated as permissible as part of that major or minor.

RESIDENCE REQUIREMENTS
Candidates for the bachelor's degree must earn at least 30 semester hours at Eastern Michigan
University. These 30 hours may be taken on or off campus. or online.
Of the last 30 semester hours: prior to the granting of the bachelor's degree, at least 1 0 hours
must be taken in courses offered by Eastern Michigan University. These 1 0 hours may be taken
either on or off campus or on line.
Students with credit from ajunior or community college must earn a minimum of@-45 semester
hours exclusive ofjunior or community college credit. This rule tS-rna, be waived if a program
to-program articulation agreement is involved and the agreement is approved by the appropriate
Eastern Michigan University departmental facultyt department head, and college dean and a
Provost's office representative.

SCHOLARSHIP
No student will be graduated if his or her cumulative grade point average is less than 2.0. To be
eligible for graduation, a student must also maintain a minimum grade point average of2.0 in
each major and minor (some programs may require a higher GPA based on approved program
requirements).

COURSE LEVEL

At least 6 credits in 300-level or higher courses must be earned at EMU in each minor.
At least 9 credits in 300-level or higher courses must be earned at EMU in each major.
At least 1 5 credits in 300-level or higher courses must be earned at EMU in each major which
does not require a minor.

LIMIT ON HOURS IN ONE SUBJECT

Not more than 60 semester hours in any one subject code may be applied toward the minimum of
124 hours required for a bachelor's degree. unless sp�cijical I� " aivcd as !)art of th� curriculum
il[)JXO\jtl ,Vl'OCL'..:'§,

The University Graduate and Undergraduate catalog are the organs for promulgation of official
University policy concerning curriculum, degree requirements, course offerings, and the
like. The Catalogs are revised annually and, upon approval of the Board of Regents, become
official University policy.

Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 2, 1 964; para. .8.0 1 .4 1 M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, February 1 9, 1 969; para. . 753M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 1 9, 1980; para. 22 14M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, June 1 7, 1 997; para. .5250M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, February 1 9, 20 1 3

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 6. 1 .2
Issue: General Undergraduate Curricular Requirements
Effective Date: 3-2-1 964
Revision Date: 02-1 9-20 1 3

DEGREE REQUIREMENTS
Each curriculum leading to a bachelor's degree requires a minimum of 124 semester hours of
academic credit at the I 00-level and above. Courses with numbers below l 00 will not be
counted toward this degree requirement. No more than eight hours of credit in physical
education activity courses may be applied to this minimum of 124 semester hours except that
students majoring in Physical Education, Recreation or Dance may apply to the minimum 124
credit hours the minimum number of hours in activity courses required for their respective
majors.
GENERAL EDUCATION PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS The General Education
Program sets up minimum requirements which all students in the University must meet in five
broad areas of study: Effective Communication. Quantitative Reasoning. Perspectives on
Diversity. Knowledge of the Disciplines. Learning Beyond the Classroom.
A minimum total of 39 semester hours in the General Education Program is required.
REQUIREMENTS IN MAJORS AND MINORS
Each student must complete a major of at least 30 unique semester hours and a minor of not less
than 20 unique semester hours with the following exceptions:
A. A student in the elementary teaching curriculum may present three minors of not less
than 20 semester hours each, at least two of the minors being subject fields taught in
elementary grades.
B. A student who completes a major which requires more than 50 hours will not be required
to complete a minor, unless required by the major program.
Hours of credit counted in a minor may not also be applied to a major or another minor, or vice
versa. General Education courses may be applied toward a major or minor, where appropriate.

Credits in the required 1 2 1 Engljsh composition course and credits in professional education
courses do not count toward majors and minors, except in cases where such courses are
specifically required or indicated as permissib1e as part of that major or minor.
RESIDENCE REQUIREMENTS
Candidates for the bachelor•s degree must earn at least 30 semester hours at Eastern Michigan
University. These 30 hours may be taken on or off campus, or online.
Of the last 30 semester hours prior to the granting of the bache1or's degree, at least 1 0 hours must
be taken in courses offered by Eastern Michigan University. These 1 0 hours may be taken either
on or off campus or online.
Students wilh credit from a junior or community college must earn a minimum of 45 semester
hours exclusive ofjunior or community college credit. This rule may be waived if a program-to
program articulation agreement is involved and the agreement is approved by the appropriate
Eastern Michigan University departmental faculty, department head, and college dean and a
Provost's office representative.
SCHOLARSHIP
No student will be graduated if his or her cumulative grade point average is less than 2.0. To be
eligible for graduation, a student must also maintain a minimum grade point average of2.0 in
each major and minor (some programs may require a higher GPA based on approved program
requirements).
COURSE LEVEL
At least 6 credits in 300-level or higher courses must be earned at EMU in each minor.
At least 9 credits in 300-level or higher courses must be earned at EMU in each major.
At least 1 5 credits in 300-level or higher courses must be earned at EMU in each major which
does not require a minor.
LIMIT ON HOURS IN ONE SUBJECT
Not more than 60 semester hours in any one subject code may be applied toward the minimum of
124 hours required for a bachelor's degree, unless specifically waived as part of the curriculum
approval process.

The University Graduate and Undergraduate catalog are the organs for promulgation of official
University policy concerning curriculum, degree requirements, course offerings, and the
like. The Catalogs are revised annually and, upon approval of the Board of Regents, become
official University policy.

Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 2, 1 964; para. . 8.0 l .41M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, February 1 9, 1 969; para. .753M.
Minutes ofthe Board of Regents, March 1 9, 1980; para. 2214M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, June 1 7, 1 997; para. . 5250M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, February 1 9, 2013

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 6.2. 1 .3 - Change to 6.2.9 .1
Issue: l:Jnclergradttate Grades and Aeademie PFegress
Effective Date: 1 0-1 8-1978
Revision Date: 1 1-01-20 1 6
CLASSIFICATION

For purposes of determining class levels, the following hours classifications are used:
Class Semester Credit Hours
Freshman
0 - 24
25 - 55
Sophomore
Junior
56 - 84
85 or over
Senior
GRADES

The grades used by the University with their corresponding values in points are as follows:
Letter
Grades
A
AH
AA-H
B+

Grade
Point
Values

4.0
4.0
3.7
3.7
3.3

A with Honors Credit
A- with Honors Credit

B-H

3.3
3.0
3.0
2.7
2.7

C+

2.3

C

2.0

B+H
B

BH
B-

c.

B+ with Honors Credit
B with Honors Credit
B- with Honors Credit

1 .7
1 .3

D+
D
D-

0.7

E

0

Replaced with "F" effective fall 201 2

F

0

Effective faU 20 I 2

N

0

No Grade Submitted

AUD

0

Grade in audit elections

CR

0

Passing grade in Credit/No Credit courses

NC

0

No credit awarded in Credit/No Credit courses

s

0

Passing grade in Pass/Fail elections

u

0

Failing grade in Pass/Fail elections

SC

0

Passing grade in student teaching with certification

PN

0

Passing grade in student teaching but not sufficient for certification

UN

0

Failing grade in student teaching course

2YR

0

Academic forgiveness; no credit

1 .0

-G raduate students who earn a D+. D or D- grade will have an F urade posted on their academic
transcript as 1rrades below a C- are considered a fail inu 1.?.rade bY the Graduate School.
Credits earned by student teaching, credit/no credit classes or pass-fail options are not accorded
grade point values.
Credit for a course in which the grades of "E", ''F" or "U" have been received can be earned only
by repeating the course.

WITHDRAWALS
The grade of 11W 11 will be assigned only when an official withdrawal has been completed. If a
student discontinues attending a class without officially withdrawing from a class, the grade of
"F" will be assigned.
INCOMPLETES
An "I" is awarded only when an undergraduate student's work has been of acceptable quality
("C" or better), at least 50% of the coursework has been completed, but the required total amount
of coursework has not been completed because of illness, necessary absence or other satisfactory
reasons. A eraduate student's work must have been of acceptable guality (''B" or better. It is
never applied to poor work or to nonattendance of class by the student. Itis the responsibility of
U.1e sh:10eAt to request aA iReom13lele from Hte-instrnetoF l3FiOF to submission of gFades for the
eo\:lrse. ood lo 13ro\·if4e the reason and, if requested, 5Yf'J)Ol1ing Eloe1:1mentati0R fer tl�e request Jf
the-fostruetor is satisfied that th�asen and d0e1:1fflentati0R J:IFO'w'idee ftfe s1::1ffieienl Md ihat 1-ke
eonditions above are mel;--fle/.sl'te sh01:1ld pfo,·ideadeseri�tfon iA writing ofthe ,-.·erk to ee
eomfJle�e H:Re the-EieadliAe for eompletion; copies shettle be provieed to lhe student-and te the
deJ)artment headrThe deadline for completion can be no later than one year from the end of the
semester in which the course was taught.
An IP" ("In Progress") is assigned to all students in a course or section that continues past the
end of the semester. This grade does not apply to independent/directed studies courses or to
individual students seeking an incomplete (I) grade. Once assigned, the "IP" has the same effect
and is subject to the same rules and deadlines as the "I".
11

Afl "I" �reele must ee removed within one caleRear year from the enc4 of the semester or sessiofl
in hieh that graEle was given. The time fur reme•,·al efM "I" ma�· ee e?<teAaea ui,eA-'NFiUeA
r-eeeH1n:1eReati0n oHhe instraetor ana apf)ro;·al b�- me deefl--ef--+fte--eellege. Sueh eKtensioH wil1
ee gffiflted only unaer uAu,sual eirettFAstaflee5. +he initiati,•e fur conversion ofan "I' te alet-ter
grade rests with ti-le sU:1deAt. However, the inslf1:1cter ffia�· s1:1emita el:iaRge ef gfBde 'Nitheut
fttrther Ratificationifthe st1:1deRl heEI--Aet eetnf)letec4 the re1:1uiree work b,· the deat:ilifle s�e�Ree
by-the instruetor.
1A

Wlten al@H@r g:t1ael0 �e11@huiing 'T' KJr in@@mplete @I' "IP" fur in pr@gr@BB➔ is trnsteel to asH1el@nt1B
,rans0ript it will ee eom!ielereel finttl �mless an er,er iH attl@Hhtting the gntele is eliso1n1er00.
P@f'ffliHing astmhmt h� sue,nit missing worh or 1mtra @resit h� impr0,·eagrad@ is not aa
ae@epla@le r@asen Kl!' ehaHgii,g ag11ade.
Change freffl "I'' or "IP" Ele net reEt1::1ire def)artff'leAt head er dean signatures ifsubmitted 'NilRiH
ene year ofme eRd eft,he eet::trse. Afierene year the stuelent must pm•1ide an eNJ'llllflatieR of v,·hy
l:ke eoHrse werlt eo1:1lel Aet ee eompletee within oRe yearas F-e£tUif@d h)· tiRiversity policy; d'�e
e!deAsieA NtH ee granted only if both tl:10 instRJetof aRd tfieeea:R BJ'lpro•,·e. and l:ieih sigRMl:tfes
are required to chaRg@ an "I" er "IP" ee)·eRa one year.
1

PROCESS AND DEADLINES FOR CHANGING GRADES
When a letter IITfilk__{excludrng "l.:Jor inc;.nrnp�pr "IP" lodtl,n,rggre§s.}_is.J2,0Sl�Jp-Jl..S.tu.d�1irs
lmnscrirliLwjlI lw5Jlll§kki:�d...f@tlJmle,ss.JJn moJ in ��lruinJ Uh�rnde..is gj�.covf;[.e.di
rmnilling,,o.,stude11tJ.Q sybJlliJ ;nis,siqg \U)Ik.J1,r �Wl to inm.ro ·uzrndtl�..!_Un
ascepJable �JlSCIJl fi · �.b.muti� fil'.00��
If a calculation or grading error is identified, the instructor must file a grade change form
explaining the error. Tltis lafffl F@Ejttires apr3r0�f-d��Hflfnent-Jlood. a:Rd tlie apf)r01uiak!
deaf! 'Nill Fe•,iev.· m'ld approve grade ehtu'lges le ensttfe coRsisfel'te�· v,ilh aeaf!e�
ehm'lges in leUer gruaes (e.'teluding "I" of "IP" that are ean•,erh:H:I v,·itMn one yeaf) •.;-ill reqt1ire the
s-.gmm1re aft.he eean efthe eollege.
An)' aHe1'Hpl lo chaRge an indi•,·itfo�t:ie or teeon•,erHm "I" eu.1sl be initial:e&Ae--tatef then ofle
)'earfollo1Nin6 the semeswr-er�h the grade was gi•,cen . AA eme"si-on beyoAd 1his
#mi-tal-i�ted eAI;' ti�· the dean ef thecollege in-whieh Ille eet¼rse v,'d5 laken. Sueh
e.•ctensieAs ·Nill \:Jc lif&Rlee efll�-0A ¥ertfiable evidence ofemergency circumslanees. such as
serf.eus illness or mililaFy ohligalion. ·,�,hieh l:Jrevei;i1ed the 13etili0Aer frem aeli11g duFing the
preseribed period.
All grades are final three years following the end of the close of the term or at time of degree
conferral, whichever is first; no grade changes will be made, and "I" and "IP" grades cannot be
converted past that point without the approval of the Provost or his/her designee.
GRADE POINT AVERAGE
The EMU Grade Point Average is determined by taking the total number of grade point values
acquired and dividing by the total number of semester hours taken which carry grade point
values. The University may establish rules allowing students to repeat a limited number of
courses to exclude earlier grades from the calculation of the EMU grade point average. If
students repeat courses outside the limitations of that policy, each attempt and each grade for the
course will be included in the calculation.
The Academic Division may establish a policy of grade forgiveness (or "academic bankruptcy11)
in some courses for students who return to Eastern Michigan University after an absence of two
or more years. The affected courses will remain on the student's transcript with a designation
indicating that this policy has been applied and the grade has been removed from the calculation
of the EMU Grade Point Average.
PASS-FAIL OPTION
A student may elect to take a course under the Pass/Fail Option for various reasons (e.g. if he/she

wishes to experiment in an unfamiliar field without jeopardizing his/her grade point average.)
Under these circumstances, the limiting features of the option are as follows:
1 . I t may be exercised only by juniors and seniors i n good standing.
2. It may be applied only to free electives, that is, to courses that are outside the student's
major, minor, curriculum or general education requirements.
3. A maximum of six such courses may be applied toward graduation.
4. The student shall indicate his/her intention to take a course under the Pass/Fail Option at
the time of registration.
5. Students who elect a course on Pass/Fail may cancel the option and accept a letter grade
up to the last day of class before the official University scheduled final examinations.
6. The instructor will not be notified of the student's election of this option. The regular
letter grade reported by the instructor will be recorded on grade reports and transcripts as
follows:
a. Grades of A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, D+, D-, will be converted to S, and shall count
as credit toward graduation (if it is at the I 00 level or higher).
b. The grade of F will be converted to U and shall not count toward graduation.
7. A course taken under this option shall not be used in any way in the computation of the
student's grade point average. Thus a Pass/Fail-election shall not be approved for a course
in which the student previously received a letter grade.
AUDITING OF COURSES
A student may be permitted to enroll in a course as an auditor, that is, one who merely attends
class to "hear" or visit. No credit is awarded for an audit.
Subjeet 10 tl=ie approval efthe heae efthe Elef!aR!llent eff@Fing the eal:lfse, sh:JElents 1Nishing ta
a1:1aitaeeursem1:1sl regish?F fer itj!J5t as fer BR)" ether elass, and tken also tt:tm ifl at regisfrafien-a
"fl@Fn�ission to aueit" eaFa 1, ,itk the ¥etJMired Oj:lf'F0'lal.
1

llie sluaent's inlen�en ta a1:1aita eal:lfse Fa�er �fl ta take it fer credit must ee established at tke
time af registration. Shifting freffl eredit to ttttdit er froffl a1::1dit to eredit is net 1:1effflitted-afler the
ktst eay lkal ela5ses ma)· ee adaed er sectieR5 ehaflgeEI.
Tuition and fees for enrolling in courses for audit are the same as for enrolling in courses for
credit.
Under provisions of the University staff benefits programt full-time staff, facultyt and faculty
spouses may "audit" classes without regular registration by completing an approval process
initiated at the Staff Benefits office.
Except for a staff benefits audit, no person is allowed to attend class unless officially registered
on a credit or audit basis with appropriate fees paid.

Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, September 20, 201 1
Minutes of the Board of Regents, October 30, 201 2
Minutes of the Board of Regents, November 1 , 201 6
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Effective Date: 1 0- 1 8- 1 978
Revision Date: 1 1-0 1 -2016
CLASSIFICATION

For purposes of determining class levels, the following hours classifications are used:
Class Semester Credit Hours
0 - 24
Freshman
25 - 55
Sophomore
Junior
56 - 84
Senior
85 or over
GRADES

The grades used by the University with their corresponding values in points are as follows:
Letter
Grades
A
AH
AA-H

B+

Grade
Point
Values
4.0

4.0

3.7
3.7
3.3

A with Honors Credit
A- with Honors Credit

B+H
B
BH
BB-H

3.3
3.0
3.0
2.7
2.7

C+
C
C-

2.3
2.0
1 .7

D+
D
D-

1 .3
1 .0
0.7

B+ with Honors Credit
B with Honors Credit
B- with Honors Credit

E
F
N
AUD

0
0
0
0

Replaced with "F" effective fall 2012
Effective fall 20 1 2
No Grade Submitted
Grade in audit elections

CR

0

Passing grade in Credit/No Credit courses

NC

0

No credit awarded in Credit/No Credit courses

s

0

Passing grade in Pass/Fail elections

SC

0
0

Failing grade in Pass/Fail elections
Passing grade in student teaching with certification

PN

0

Passing grade in student teaching but not sufficient for certification

UN

0

Failing grade in student teaching course

2YR

0

Academic forgiveness; no credit

u

Graduate students who earn a D+, D or D- grade will have an F grade posted on their academic
transcript as grades below a C- are considered a failing grade by the Graduate School.
Credits earned by student teaching, credit/no credit classes or pass-fail options are not accorded
grade point values.
Credit for a course in which the grades of 11E", 11F11 or "U" have been received can be earned only
by repeating the course.

WITHDRAWALS
The grade of "W" will be assigned only when an official withdrawal has been completed. If a
student discontinues attending a class without officially withdrawing from a class, the grade of
"F" will be assigned.

INCOMPLETES
An "I" is awarded only when an undergraduate student's work has been of acceptable quality
("C" or better), at least 50% of the coursework has been completed, but the required total amount
of coursework has not been completed because of illness, necessary absence or other satisfactory
reasons. A graduate student's work must have been of acceptable quality ("B" or better. It is
never applied to poor work or to nonattendance of class by the student. The deadline for
completion can be no later than one year from the end of the semester in which the course was
taught.
An "IP" ("In Progress") is assigned to all students in a course or section that continues past the
end of the semester. This grade does not apply to independent/directed studies courses or to
individual students seeking an incomplete (I) grade. Once assigned, the "IP" has the same effect
and is subject to the same rules and deadlines as the "I".

PROCESS AND DEADLINES FOR CHANGING GRADES
When a letter grade (excluding "I" for incomplete or "IP" for in progress) is posted to a student's
transcript it will be considered final unless an error in calculating the grade is discovered.
Permitting a student to submit missing work or extra credit to improve a grade is not an
acceptable reason for changing a grade.

If a calculation or grading error is identified, the instructor must file a grade change form

explaining the error.

All grades are final three years following the end of the close of the term or at time of degree
conferral, whichever is first; no grade changes will be made, and "I" and "IP" grades cannot be
converted past that point without the approval of the Provost or his/her designee.

GRADE POINT AVERAGE
The EMU Grade Point Average is determined by taking the total number of grade point values
acquired and dividing by the total number of semester hours taken which carry grade point
values. The University may establish rules allowing students to repeat a limited number of
courses to exclude earlier grades from the calculation of the EMU grade point average. If

students repeat courses outside the limitations of that poJicy, each attempt and each grade for the
course will be included in the calculation.
The Academic Division may establish a policy of grade forgiveness (or "academic bankruptcy")
in some courses for students who return to Eastern Michigan University after an absence of two
or more years. The affected courses will remain on the student's transcript with a designation
indicating that this policy has been applied and the grade has been removed from the calculation
of the EMU Grade Point Average.

PASS-FAIL OPTION
A student may elect to take a course under the Pass/Fail Option for various reasons (e.g. if he/she
wishes to experiment in an unfamiliar field without jeopardizing his/her grade point average.)
Under these circumstances, the limiting features of the option are as follows:
I . It may be exercised only by juniors and seniors in good standing.
2. It may be applied only to free electives, that is, to courses that are outside the student's
major, minor, curriculum or general education requirements.
3. A maximum of six such courses may be applied toward graduation.
4. The student shall indicate his/her intention to take a course under the Pass/Fail Option at
the time of registration.
5. Students who elect a course on Pass/Fail may cancel the option and accept a letter grade
up to the last day of class before the official University scheduled final examinations.
6. The instructor will not be notified of the student's election of this option. The regular
letter grade reported by the instructor wHI be recorded on grade reports and transcripts as
follows:
a. Grades of A1 A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, D+, D-, will be converted to S, and shall count
as credit toward graduation (if it is at the 1 00 level or higher).
b. The grade of F will be converted to U and shall not count toward graduation.
7. A course taken under this option shall not be used in any way in the computation of the
student's grade point average. Thus a Pass/Fail-election shall not be approved for a course
in which the student previously received a Jetter grade.

AUDITING OF COURSES
A student may be permitted to enroll in a course as an auditor, that is, one who merely attends
class to "hear" or visit. No credit is awarded for an audit.
Tuition and fees for enrolling in courses for audit are the same as for enrolling in courses for
credit.
Under provisions of the University staff benefits program, full-time staff, faculty, and faculty
spouses may "audit" classes without regular registration by completing an approval process
initiated at the Staff Benefits office.

Except for a staff benefits audit, no person is allowed to attend class unless officially registered
on a credit or audit basis with appropriate fees paid.
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DROPS AND WITHDRAWALS FROM INDIVIDUAL COURSES
Drops and/or withdrawals from individual courses are permitted according to the following
schedule for all courses tauuht as full-semester sections during all semesters (fall, winter and
summer):

First Eight Days
Any drop in the student's enrollment occurring during this period is accomplished through the
regular registration adjustment system. Such drops are not recorded on the student's permanent
academic transcript.

Ninth Day through Tenth Week
All student-initiated withdrawals are accepted automatically and recorded as uwu grades during
this period. These withdrawals may be processed through the registration system or by
submitting a withdrawal form to the Office of Records and Registration.

After Tenth Week - Until last Day of Classes Preceding Final Exam Period
During this period, individual withdrawals are not automatically granted. A Late Withdrawal
(resulting in a "W11 grade) may be granted only if students have specific extenuating
circumstances that clearly prevented them from completing the course(s) in which they are
enrolled and which prevented them from withdrawing by the tenth week of the course. Students
must provide original, verifiable documentation of these circumstances along with their request
to withdraw.
The decision on awarding the 11W" will be made by the Provost or his/her designee. Students
should not stop attending class until they have received official notice that their requested
withdrawal has been approved. I f the application for administrative/late withdrawal is denied and
the student fails to complete the work of the course successfully, an appropriate grade (reflecting
any incomplete work and/or absences from class) will be recorded by the instructor.
*Appropriate dates for parts of term which do not meet the full 1 5 weeks of a semester will be
publicly posted and available to students.

Additional Notes
When withdrawal from the class brings the student's academic load below the minimum number
of hours necessary to qualify as a full-time student for University housing, scholarship aid,
student loans, or any other benefit he or she enjoys for which academic enrollment was a
prerequisite, the University may at its option take any or all of the following steps:
I . Cancel the benefits as of that date
2. Declare the student ineligible for present and/or any future benefits of a similar nature
Withdrawal from the student•s last/only enrolled course must be submitted to the Office of
Records and Registration and cannot be accomplished through the online registration system.
The Provost shall be responsible for establishing and making publicly available procedures to
support this policy. The Provost and Registrar shall be jointly responsible to establish specific
deadlines for regular and non-traditional terms and to make these dates publicly available to
students.
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DROPS AND WITHDRAWALS FROM INDIVIDUAL COURSES
Drops and/or withdrawals from individual courses are permitted according to the following
schedule for all courses taught as full-semester sections during all semesters (fall, winter and
summer):

First Eight Days
Any drop in the student's enrollment occurring during this period is accomplished through the
regular registration adjustment system. Such drops are not recorded on the student's permanent
academic transcript.

Ninth Day through Tenth Week
All student-initiated withdrawals are accepted automatically and recorded as "W" grades during
this period. These withdrawals may be processed through the registration system or by
submitting a withdrawal form to the Office of Records and Registration.

After Tenth Week - Until last Day of Classes Preceding Final Exam Period
During this period, individual withdrawals are not automatically granted. A Late Withdrawal
(resulting in a "W" grade) may be granted only if students have specific extenuating
circumstances that clearly prevented them from completing the course(s) in which they are
enrolled and which prevented them from withdrawing by the tenth week of the course. Students
must provide original, verifiable documentation of these circumstances along with their request
to withdraw.
The decision on awarding the "Wtt will be made by the Provost or his/her designee. Students
should not stop attending class until they have received official notice that their requested
withdrawal has been approved. If the application for administrative/late withdrawal is denied and
the student fails to complete the work of the course successfully, an appropriate grade (reflecting
any incomplete work and/or absences from class) wiU be recorded by the instructor.
• Appropriate dates for parts of term which do not meet the full 1 5 weeks of a semester will be
publicly posted and available to students..

Additional Notes
When withdrawal from the class brings the student's academic load below the minimum number
of hours necessary to qualify as a full-time student for University housing, scholarship aid,
student loans, or any other benefit he or she enjoys for which academic enrollment was a
prerequisite, the University may at its option take any or all of the following steps:
1 . Cancel the benefits as of that date
2. Declare the student ineligible for present and/or any future benefits of a similar nature
Withdrawal from the student's last/only enrolled course must be submitted to the Office of
Records and Registration and cannot be accomplished through the online registration system.
The Provost shall be responsible for estabHshing and making publicly available procedures to
support this policy. The Provost and Registrar shall be jointly responsible to establish specific
deadlines for regular and non-traditional terms and to make these dates publicly available to
students.
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TOTAL WITHDRAWALS FROM THE UNIVERSITY
ARundergraduate student who finds it necessary to withdraw from all classes for a given
semester is required to do so through the Office of Records and Registration. A student who is
unable to accomplish the withdrawal in person may do so by a written request mailed to the
Office of Records and Registration. The request should indicate the reason for the requested
withdrawal, and any tuition adjustment will be based on postmark date of that communication.
Eastern Michigan University shall publish in advance of each semester exact dates and deadlines
for withdrawal requests and related tuition credit adjustment that will be provided.

Late Withdrawal: The University recognizes that unexpected circumstances arise making it
necessary for a student to initiate a request for withdrawal after the completion of classes for a
term or after the deadline for a specific part of term. Normally, a late withdrawal will only be
considered for the current or immediately preceding term.
Late withdrawals may be granted for either one or both of the following reasons:
1 . Administrative: through an administrative problem or error, the student received an "F"
grade.
2. Mental or physical stress: subsequent to awarding of term grades, the student claims that
severe physical or psychological stress was present during the semester. Original

documentation of the circumstances and of the reasons for delay in seeking the
withdrawal must be presented by or on behalf of the student and a consultation with the
student may be required. In this case, the decision will affect all the classes the student
was registered for during the term in question.
In aJI cases, the student must initiate the request for retroactive withdrawal. The Provost shall be
responsible for establishing and disseminating criteria and the review procedures for these
requests.
A student with an approved retroactive withdrawal does not automatically receive any
consideration for tuition refund and grades of "W" will be posted on his/her official transcript.
These procedures also apply for the Summer semester. Eastern Michigan University will publish
exact withdrawal dates for each semester in advance of said semester.

READMISSION AFTER PROLONGED ABSENCE
Re-enrolling and Readmission: Students whose transcripts show no active enrollment for •
conseenti\'@ set:nesters (two full years� must reapply and be accepted for admission before
enrolling again. A student who withdraws from all courses with "W" grades on the transcript is
counted as enrolled for that semester. A student who drops all courses in a semester, removing
them from the transcript, is not counted as enrolled for that semester.
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TOTAL WITHDRAWALS FROM THE UNIVERSITY
A student who finds it necessary to withdraw from all classes for a given semester is required to
do so through the Office of Records and Registration. A student who is unable to accomplish the
withdrawal in person may do so by a written request mailed to the Office of Records and
Registration. The request should indicate the reason for the requested withdrawal, and any tuition
adjustment will be based on postmark date of that communication.
Eastern Michigan University shall publish in advance of each semester exact dates and deadlines
for withdrawal requests and related tuition credit adjustment that will be provided.

Late Withdrawal: The University recognizes that unexpected circumstances arise making it
necessary for a student to initiate a request for withdrawal after the completion of classes for a
term or after the deadline for a specific part of term. Normally, a late withdrawal will only be
considered for the current or immediately preceding term.
Late withdrawals may be granted for either one or both of the following reasons:
1 . Administrative: through an administrative problem or error, the student received an "F"
grade.
2. Mental or physical stress: subsequent to awarding of term grades, the student claims that
severe physical or psychological stress was present during the semester. Original

documentation of the circumstances and of the reasons for delay in seeking the
withdrawal must be presented by or on behalf of the student and a consultation with the
student may be required. In this case. the decision will affect all the classes the student
was registered for during the term in question.
In all cases, the student must initiate the request for retroactive withdrawal. The Provost shall be
responsible for establishing and disseminating criteria and the review procedures for these
requests.
A student with an approved retroactive withdrawal does not automatically receive any
consideration for tuition refund and grades of "W" will be posted on his/her official transcript.
These procedures also apply for the Summer semester. Eastern Michigan University will publish
exact withdrawal dates for each semester in advance of said semester.

READMISSION AFTER PROLONGED ABSENCE

Re-enrol1ing and Readmission: Students whose transcripts show no active enrollment for two full
years must reapply and be accepted for admission before enrolling again. A student who
withdraws from all courses with "W" grades on the transcript is counted as enrolled for that
semester. A student who drops all courses in a semester, removing them from the transcript, is
not counted as enrolled for that semester.
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ACADEMIC PROBATION AND DISMISSAL

An undergraduate student is placed on academic probation when his/her cumulative grade point
average at EMU; is less than 2.00 (a 11C1' average) and/or his/her cumulative completion rate at
EMU is less than 67%. Placement on academic probation is automatic and applies even if the
student states that official notification of such probation has not been received from the
University.
lfle-Yniv�rsity's aetioA ofpiecingosfueeAlOR aeoelemie f)roeation sheuld mal.c tlle sh,1deRt
aY.-ai:e tl=tat setisfoetory progress is not being-made-towatd-eompletiAg elegree req1:1iretflents. The
st1,1dent sheu�a also Feali.l:e--the need to take 5leps. sueh a5seeking additional helfr8:nel aEl\,iee, to
im13ro\1e the �1:,1ality ofhisther aeademie 13erfermafiee.
A student will be removed from academic probation only when his/her cumulative grade point
average at EMU is at least 2.00 (a 11C 11 average) and his/her cumulative completion rate at EMU
is at least 67%.
WitlliR the first thirt)· aa)·s ofase,nester aRa preferably v,ithin the first •week ofasemester tl=te
si.udeRl OR aeadefJlie probation is Fe�1:tiFed ta hen ae0Rferenee •;..ith his,lher assiigned aeademte
ad"i·iser lo Ftwie•,,.- the st1;1deAl1513rogroffl ofclassesaad histher plaR,s fer the semester. Funher
eonferenees may he rettuired, or the st1:tdet1t's aeademie ee1;1rse lead ma,· ee restricted. er the
sh:1deRt may be informea of speeial eonditioAs stipulated by-a designateEI academic review
eommiHee te hel� ens1:1re satisfaeter,· progress towaFd gFaduetioR.

Students on academic probation who fail to ach.i.eve the required grade point average and
completion rate in each term of enrollment at EMU while on probation will be subject to
dismissal for academic reasons.
Exceptions to the above policies may be made under the following conditions:

1 . A student o n academic probation who earns less than lhe required grade point average
and completion rate in an enrollment period may be retained on academic probation
provided this is the recommended judgment of the designated academic review
committee.

This policy is academic in nature and is not intended to have any application to the eligibility of
any student to participate in any Eastern Michigan University extracurricular activity (e.g.,
marching band, varsity athletics, forensics team, etc.). All Eastern Michigan University
extracurricular activities shall be free to define and implement their own standards for
participation, independent of the policy.

READMISSION
A student who is academically dismissed will normally not be eligible for reinslatement for one
calendar year following the dismissal. Readmission is not automatic; an application for
r-eaa1¥1iss.tett-reinstatement must be submitted along with supporting documentation. A
fead,nissiort inter,riewwiII nerm1dly be i:et1uir�
The student applying for readmission will be required to support his or her eligibility for
readmission through:

1 . Documentation of his or her activities during the dismissal period which relate to the

reasons for dismissal and which support his or her readiness to resume his or her
academic career at Eastern Michigan University.
2. Earning a minimum grade point average of 2.00 ("C" average) if courses are taken at
other accredited collegiate institutions.
A student who is readmitted and is dismissed a second time normally will not be readmitted
again.
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ACADEMIC PROBATION AND DISMISSAL
An undergraduate student is placed on academic probation when his/her cumulative grade point
average at EMU is less than 2.00 (a "C" average) and/or his/her cumulative completion rate at
EMU is less than 67%. Placement on academic probation is automatic and applies even if the
student states that official notification of such probation has not been received from the
University.
A student will be removed from academic probation only when his/her cumulative grade point
average at EMU is at least 2.00 (a "C" average) and his/her cumulative completion rate at EMU
is at least 67%.
Students on academic probation who fail to achieve the required grade point average and
completion rate in each term of enrollment at EMU while on probation will be subject to
dismissal for academic reasons.
Exceptions to the above policies may be made under the following conditions:
1 . A student on academic probation who earns less than the required grade point average
and completion rate in an enrollment period may be retained on academic probation
provided this is the recommended judgment of the designated academic review
committee.

This policy is academic in nature and is not intended to have any application to the eligibility of
any student to participate in any Eastern Michigan University extracurricular activity (e.g.,
marching band, varsity athletics, forensics team, etc.). All Eastern Michigan University
extracurricular activities shall be free to define and implement their own standards for
participation, independent of the policy.

READMISSION
A student who is academically dismissed will normaHy not be eligible for reinstatement for one
calendar year following the dismissal. Readmission is not automatic� an application for
reinstatement must be submitted along with supporting documentation. The student applying for
readmission will be required to support his or her eligibility for readmission through:
I . Documentation of his or her activities during the dismissal period which relate to the
reasons for dismissal and which support his or her readiness to resume his or her
academic career at Eastern Michigan University.
2. Earning a minimum grade point average of 2.00 ('1 C.. average) if courses are taken at
other accredited collegiate institutions.
A student who is readmitted and is dismissed a second time normally will not be readmitted
again.
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DEFINITIONS
The Continuing Education Unit (CEU) is defined as ten contact hours of participation in an
organized continuing education experience under responsible sponsorship and qualified
instruction.

LIMITATIONS

It is understood that Continuing Education Units are to be awarded for learning experiences
olfort:d lhFtlll�h4he-G++'iee,t'l1·CoAlinuiHg--btitk.'ill-ian-which impart organized noncredit instruction
to post-secondary learners� in p1·0t-"f�)fltdng-wthe follo·,,.ing �g.c��;.
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It is further understood that CEU1s cannot be converted to units of academic credit at Eastern
Michigan University.

EXCLUSIONS
Types of programs for which Continuing Education Units will not be awarded include the
following:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Programs carrying academic credit, either secondary or collegiate.
Programs leading to high school equivalency certificates or diplomas.
Organizational orientation training programs
Programs of short duration only casually related to any specific upgrading purpose or
goal.

RESPONSIBILITY
The Pnn ost di.!an ef�tJHlit+ttttti.; etlut:f;ltion wilJ be responsible for identifying the need for
programs in which Continuing Education Units will be awarded, anti for \Flt' t!OttnltRttt+oH tlnd
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COST-S
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DEFINITIONS
The Continuing Education Unit (CEU) is defined as ten contact hours of participation in an
organized continuing education experience under responsible sponsorship and qualified
instruction.

LIMITATIONS
It is understood that Continuing Education Units are to be awarded for learning experiences
which impart organized noncredit instruction to post-secondary learners.
It is further understood that CEU's cannot be converted to units of academic credit at Eastern
Michigan University.

EXCLUSIONS
Types of programs for which Continuing Education Units will not be awarded include the
following:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Programs carrying academic credit, either secondary or collegiate.
Programs leading to high school equivalency certificates or diplomas.
Organizational orientation training programs
Programs of short duration only casually related to any specific upgrading purpose or
goal.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Provost will be responsible for identifying the need for programs in which Continuing
Education Units will be awarded.
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UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of Eastern Michigan University to establish o otooent GOnEhiet code of Community
Responsibility. to be administered by the Office of Stl;ldent Cendust, Community Standards and Wellness_
and Community Responsibility. for the purpose of maintaining a campus environment that is conducive to
learning, protects the university's educational purposes, maintains reasonable order on campus, and
protects the rights of all members of the University community.

SECTION I: PURPOSE
The Student Cendl;JGt Code of Community Responsibility and the accompanying student disciplinary
policies are intended to foster ethical development, academic integrity, personal accountability and civility
toward others. The Student Cendl;JGt Code of Community Responsibility sets forth standards and
expectations of behavior applicable to all Eastern Michigan University students.
The Code embraces several core philosophies: preservation of the rights of free speech and peaceable
assembly; respect for freedom of inquiry and constructive criticism; a conviction that honesty and integrity
are key values to the University community; and the belief that all members of the University should be
part of a campus environment that respects diversity including but not limited to differences of culture,
gender, gender identity, religion, race, age, sexual orientation. and/or ability.
SECTION II: RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The President, as Chief Executive Officer of the University, has overall responsibility for implementation of
the St1:1dent Gend1:1st Code of Community Responsibility and the student disciplinary process and has
delegated its overall management to the Associate Vice President for Student Affairs and/or their
designee. The Office of Student Gendm;t, Wellness and Community Standardsand \/Vellness Responsibility
is directly responsible for the daily administration of the University's student send1:1stCommunity
Responsibility system.
SECTION Ill: JURISDICTION
The University has jurisdiction over misconduct that occurs on University premises and/or at
University-sponsored activities but may also address off-campus behavior if the University determines that
the behavior, or the continued presence of the student threatens, impairs, obstructs, interferes with or
adversely affects the community, mission, processes or functions of the University. Criminal offenses
committed off campus may also be considered violations of the Student Conduct Code of Community
Responsibility.
The University send1:1stCommunity Responsibilty system acts independently of criminal proceedings. The
University may pursue disciplinary action against a student while the student is facing criminal charges for
the same offense, even if the criminal prosecution is pending, has been dismissed or the charges have

been reduced.
SECTION IV: DEFINITIONS
A. For purposes of the Student CondUGt-Code of Community Responsibility only, the following definitions apply:
1. FACULTY MEMBER means any person hired by the University to conduct classes.
2. INSTITUTION or UNIVERSITY means Eastern Michigan University.
3. MEMBER OF THE UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY includes any person who is a student, faculty
member, University official or any other person employed or contracted by the University.
4. STUDENT includes all persons
Enrolled in any number of courses, in any format at EMU
• Who are not officially registered for a particular term but whose EMU record indicates a
continuing relationship with the University. The term relationship Includes but is not limited to:
o Those applying for reenrollment and/or readmission;
o Those involved in an appeal or grievance process;
o Those persons under any GisGiplinary saAStiGRadministrative action other than
permanent dismissal;
Who have been accepted into EMU and who are eligibfe to register for courses but have not
yet registered

•

•

5. GOOD STANDING means a student or student organization who is not presently
saqclianedunder an administrative action with disciplinary probation or higher.
6. STUDENT ORGANIZATION means a number of students who have complied with University
requirements for registration and/or recognition.
7. UNIVERSITY PREMISES includes all land, buildings, facilities, and other property in the possession
of or owned, used, or controlled by the University.
8. UNIVERSITY SPONSORED ACTIVITY means any activity on or off campus, which is initiated,
aided, authorized or supervised by the University.
9. COMMUNITY $TAIVDARD$RESPONSIBILITY ADMINISTRATOR is an individual who is trained
and designated by the Director of Student Conduct, Wellness and Community StaMafiifs..aRa
WellnessResponsibilitv. or designee, to investigate, hear and determine responsibility for cases of
student misconduct.
1 0. COMMUNITY STAll.'DARDSRESPONSIBILITY REVIEW is a meeting between a student and a
community standardsresponsibility administrator and the process by which
sanclionsadm,nistrative or restorative actions may be imposed::igreed upon.

SECTION V: VIOLATIONS
The following behavior is subject to disciplinary action under this Code. An individuat, a group of
individuals or a student organization may be charged with any of the violations under the stweAt �ood1.1et
Code of Communny Responsibility. In cases where a viotation is committed by an individual member of a
student organization, the entire organization may be held responsible. fn addition to the individual member,
when those members not directly invotved participate in the activity by encouraging, witnessing or
2

condoning the act in any manner.
A. Academic Dishonesty

Engaging in academic dishonesty in any form with respect to examinations, course assignments,
research projects, grades, and/or academic records, including, but not limited to the following:
1 . Cheating - using or attempting to use unauthorized materials, information o r study aids in any
academic assignment. Examples of cheating are: looking on someone else's paper; using any kind
of "cheat" sheet or other enhancement during a test; allowing someone else to take an exam in
your place; submitting the same work more than once for credit; using someone else's homework
or lab assignments; collaborating with another student on any assignment or take-home test if told
that collaboration was not allowed; assisting another student in committing an act of academic
dishonesty by allowing another student to copy homework or an exam; taking an exam for
someone else; or giving test information to students in other sections of the same class.
2. Falsification - falsification or invention of any information or citation in an academic assignment
Examples of falsification are: making up data on an assignment; making up a source to cite in a
paper; unauthorized altering then resubmitting returned academic work; giving false information to a
faculty or staff member to increase one's grade; or attempting to change, actually changing, altering
grades or any other unauthorized tampering with grades.
3. Plagiarism - presentation or use of someone else's work or ideas as one's own. Examples of
plagiarism are: quoting a source verbatim, or paraphrasing text from a given source, without properly
citing the source; turning in a research paper that was written by someone else; or in any other way
passing off someone else's work as one's own; or failing to give credit for ideas or materials taken
from someone else.
4. other Academic Dishonesty - public posting, selling of, or in any other way, distribution of notes of
class lectures, course handouts and outlines, and/or any other University supplied materials without
the express written permission of the instructor.
B. Misuse of Alcohol

1 . Possession, creation, distribution, or consumption of alcoholic beverages, in violation of local,
state or federal law, or university policies and procedures.
2. Violation of any section of the Sludent Condust Code of Community Responsibility white under
the influence of alcohol.
C. Misuse of Drugs

1 . Possession, creation, distribution, or use of illegal drugs, prescription drugs or other controlled
substances, in violation of local, state or federal laws.
2. Possession or use of drug paraphernalia.
3. Misuse or distribution of over the counter drugs, or substances used as drugs.
4. Violation of any section of the Swdent Conduct Code of Community Responsibility while under the
influence of legal or illegal drugs, or other controlled substances.
D. Computer Misuse

1 . Unauthorized access, entry or use of a computer, computer system, network, software, password,
account or data.
2. Unauthorized alteration or tampering with computer equipment, software, network, or data.
3. Unauthorized copying or distribution of computer software or data.
4. Use of computing facilities or equipment to send obscene, harassing, threatening or abusive
messages.
5. Use of computers to falsify records, tamper with records or commit any act of academic dishonesty.
6. Any other act in violation of law and/or University policies and guidelines regulating computer-related
use.
E. Disruptive Conduct

1 .Actions that impair, interfere with, or obstruct the normal operations of the University and/or interfere
with the rights of other members of the University community or visitors. This includes intentional
occupation of or blocking the entry or exit of University facilities, including but not limited to,
buildings, classrooms, offices, hallways, entryways, conference rooms and campus grounds.

2. Actions that impair, interfere with, or obstruct the orderly conduct, processes and functions within
the university community.
3. Participating in, leading or inciting others to disrupt scheduled and/or normal campus activities.
events and programs.
4. Intentional obstruction of the free flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic on University premises or at
University sponsored or supervised functions.
5. Solicitation on campus without prior approval from appropriate University officials. This includes, but is
not limited to, the disbursement of any forms of promotional/informational material on University
property or on items (e.g. motor vehicles) on University property, requests for donations, or the selling
or vending of any merchandise or services.
F. Failure to Comply

1 . Failure to comply with a lawful order or directive of a Univessity official. in the performance of his/her
duty.
2. Failure to comply with the sanctions r-enderedactions decided upon during the &tudeR�GoRdustCommunity
Responsibility process.
G. Falsification/Fraud/False Testimony

1. Furnishing false information to the University, including false reporting of emergencies, making
false accusations or giving false testimony during the disciplinary process.
2. Misuse, reproduction, alteration or forgery of any University related documents, records,
identification, keys, identification cards, access codes or property.
3. Providing a worth less check or money order in payment to the University or to a member of the
University community.
H. Gambling

Participation in games of chance on campus for money or other things of value except as provided
by local, state or federal law.
I. Guests
Students are responsible for informing their guests about campus regulations and may be
held accountable for the behavior of their guest.
J. Harassment/Bullying

The University's Sexual Misconduct and Interpersonal Violence Policy governs conduct of
a sexual or gender based nature. This section of the StudentConduet Code of Community
Responsibility applies only to conduct that is not covered by the Sexual Misconduct Polley.
1 . Intimidating conduct which would cause a reasonable person to feel as though there was
an imminent threat to the health and safety, or personal property, of themselves or another
individual.
2. Pervasive conduct directed toward another person or group that results in the intimidating, humiliating,
degrading, or otherwise harming of another person or group.
K. Discrimination by Student Organizations

Selecting its membership upon the basis of restrictive clauses involving race, religion, color, national origin, gender,
age, sexual orientation, gender tc:tentity or disablHty unless any given student organization's membershtp restriction is
shown to be specifically allowed by law.
L. Hazing

In cases where hazing is performed by an individua, member of a student organization and in which other
members of the organization encourage. or condone hazjng, the organization as a whole may be held
responsible. Any individual and/or organization found responsible for hazing may be subject to a minimum penalty
of suspension if the violation is found to directly impact the health and safety of an individual or group.
1 . Any action or activity committed by either active members, associate members or pledges of an
organization which inflicts or intends to cause physical or mental harm or anxieties; wmooWhich
may demean, degrade, or disgrace any person, regardless of location, intent or consent of
participants. Hazing includes, but is not limited to:
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a. Interference with a student's academic or work performance.
b. Forced consumption of any food, alcohol, other drugs, or any other substance.
c. Forced physical activity.
d. Deprivation of food or sleep.
e. Physical acts of violence
f. Requiring participation in any activity that violates University policies or any local, state or
federal law.
g. Other violations as outlined in the lnterfratemity Council (IFC), College Panhellenic Council
(CPC), National Pan-Hellenic Council (NPHC) Constitutions, or any other councils for
Greek Life which have been officially recognized by the Board of Regents.
2. Any action or situation, which intentionally or unintentionally endangers a student who is
attempting admission into or affiliation with any student organization.
M. Physical Abuse and Endangerment

The University's Sexual Misconduct and Interpersonal Violence Policy governs conduct of a sexual or gender
based nature. This section of the Student Conduct Code of Community Responsibility applies only to conduct
that is not covered by the Sexual Misconduct Policy.
1 . Physical violence or attempted physical violence toward another person orgroup.
2. Threat of physical violence against another person or group.
3. Any action that endangers the health, or safety of a person or group.
4. Damage to, removal or misuse of, or tampering with any fire safety systems, firefighting
equipment or other emergency warning or lifesaving equipment.
N. Property/Facilities/Services

1 . Theft, damage, destruction, littering, or defacement of University property or property of a member of
the University or visitor.
2. Theft, damage, destruction, littering or defacement of property not owned or controlled by the
University but occurs at an event sponsored by the University, or enacted by a student
representative of the University.
3. Wrongful appropriation of University property or property of a member of the University or visitor.
4. Unauthorized possession and/or use of University property or property of a member of the University
or visitor, including knowingly being in possession of stolen goods. This includes unauthorized use of
vehicles, equipment, services, the University name and logo.
5. Unauthorized entry into University facilities, including but not limited to buildings, classrooms,
hallways, entryways, conference rooms, and campus grounds.
6. Bringing animals and/or pets into University buildings, except where properly authorized.
7. Use or operation of rollerblades, skates, skateboards, bicycles, and similar items inside University
facilities, unless expressly permitted.
8. Violation of any policy or guidelines pertaining to specific usage of a University facility.
0. Sexual Misconduct/Sexual Harassment

All forms of Sexual Assault, Sexual Exploitation, Intimate Partner Violence, Stalking, Sexual or
Gender- Based Harassment and Retaliation are prohibited. Conduct of this nature, including
definitions, investigative procedures, interim measures, sanctions, and all other matters related to
sexual misconduct and interpersonal violence are governed by the Sexual Misconduct and
Interpersonal Violence Policy and not by the Student Coneuct Code of Community Responsibility .
(https://www.emich.edu/policies/policy.php?id=238)
P. Weapons/Firearms/Explosives

1 . Possession, sale, storage or use of firearms and other weapons, including non-lethal
weapons. Examples of such weapons may include, but are not limited to pellet guns, air-soft

guns and paintball guns.
2. Possession, sale, storage or use of firecrackers, gunpowder, ammunition, explosives or
incendiary devices, dangerous chemtcals, or other articles or substances which could
endanger health or safety.

a.

Other Violations

1 . Violation of any other published or posted University regulattons not specifically mentioned in
this Section, including, but not limited to:
• Board Policy Manual(s); http://www.emich.edu/policies/
• Gulde to Campus Living;
• Housing Contracts;
• Student Handbook: http://www.emich.edu/studenthandbook/
• Course Syflabi;
2. Aiding and abetting another in any violation of local, state or federal laws, and/or University
policies and procedures.
SECTION VI: SANG+!ONSACTIONS FOR
MISCONDUCTCODE VIOLATIONS

SanctionsActions may be imposed after a student is found responsible for a violation of the Student Conduct Code..Qf_
Community Responsibility. An administrative &aASt�action is generally combined with a secondary sanGtienrestorative
actton in order to promote corrective behavior. The sanctionsactions are determined by the community
standardsresponsibility administrator, or the hearing board assigned to the case, and take into account the impact of the
violation on the community, prior incidents and implemented sanctions. Sanctior1sact1ons. Actions issued may include,
but are not limited to:
A. Administrative SanGtionsActions

1 . Formal Reprimand: An official written statement of the University's disapproval of a student's
actions and a warning that any future violation(s) will be dealt with more severely.
2. Disciplinary Probation: An official notice that the student's conduct is in violation of the Sweem-
Conduct Code of Community Responsibility but does not warrant suspension or permanent
dismissal. Probation is for a designated period of time and includes the probability of more severe
disci19linary sanctior1sadministartive actions if the student violates another conduct code during the
probationary period. During the probation period, a student may be excluded from some programs
and curricular, or extra-curricular activities, including running for and/or holding office in any student
organization.
3. Suspension: An involuntary separation of the student from the University for a definite period of time
and/or until certain conditions for readmission are met Conditions for lifting the suspension, including
a subsequent probationary period (if any), will be provided to the student upon notification of the
suspension. The student must complete all sanctionsactions in order to be considered for readmission.
At the conclusion of a suspension period, the student will need to meet with the Director of the Office of
Student Conduct. Wellness and Community Star1daFcls and WellnessResponsibility (or designee) to Ifft
disciplinary holds, provided all conditions of the suspension have been met During the suspension
period, the student will be excluded from programs and curricular, or extra-curricular activities, and
may be banned from University Premises. (Suspension requires administrative review and approval
by the President or his/her designee.)
4. Deferred Suspension: The saFl8tiGRadministrative action of Suspension may be placed in deferred
status provided that the student completes other assigned sanctionsactions by the specified
deadlines. Failure to complete all sanctionsactions and provide proof of completion by the
deadlines will tesult in the automatic enactment of Che suspension. If a student is found
responsible for another violation of the Student Conduct Code of Community Responsibility during
the period of Deferred Suspension, the stude11t may be permanently dismissed from the
University. During the Deferred Suspension period, a student may be excluded from some
programs and curricular, or co-curricular activities, including running for and/or holding office in
any student organization.
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5. Permanent Dismissal: An involuntary pem,anent separation from the University. (Pemianent
dismissal requires administrative review and approval by the President or his/her designee.)
6. Delay and/or Denial of Degree Award: During the period disciplinary charges are pending against a
student, the University may deny and/or delay issuance of a degree. Further, the University may
refuse to issue a degree to a student who is serving a suspension or has been permanently
dismissed from the University.
7. Revocation of degree: An awarded degree may be revoked for violations of the Student Conduct
Code of Community Responsibility. which occur prior to the award of the degree but are discovered
after the degree has been awarded, where the violation is sufficient to justify the suspension or
pem,anent dismissal of the student. (Revocation of a degree requires administrative review and
approval by the President or his/her designee.)
8. SeGoRdary Sanctions
B. Restorative Actions
1 . Restitution: Compensation for loss, damage or injury.
2. Fines: Payment for alcohol or drug violations.
3. Community Service: A specified amount of time worked for an authorized
individual or group which directly relates to the violation of the Student
Cond1;1ct Code of Community Responsibility.
4. Educational Activities: A reflective writing assignment or attendance at an event directly related to
the violation of the Student Cond1;1ct Code.(Code of Community Responsibility. (e.g. alcohol/drug
workshop; diversity awareness training; ethics workshop). Students are responsible for all costs
related to sanctioned workshopseducational activities.
5. Restrictions: Temporary or permanent loss of privileges or the use of a University facilities
and/or services.
C. SanctionsAdministrative Actions for Student Organizations
1 . Formal Reprimand: An official written statement of the University's disapproval of a student
organization's actions and a warning that any future violation(s) will be dealt with more severely.
2. Disciplinary Probation: An official notice that the student organization's conduct is in violation of the
StudentConduct Code of Community Responsibility but does not warrant suspension of or pem,anent
temiination of the organization's University status. Probation is for a designated period of time and
includes the probability of more severe disciplinary sanctionsadministrative actions if the student
organization commits another conductcommunity responsibility code violation during the probationary
period. During the Probationary period, a student organization may also be excluded from campus
activities, forfeit student monetary allocations, and lose Campus Life status.

3. Suspension: An involuntary withdrawal of student organization status from the University for a definite period of time and/or until certain conditions for renewal of recognition are met. During this
time, the University will not in any way recognize nor support the continued operation of said student
organization. The Student organization must re-apply to the University for renewed recognition
following any period of suspension. The suspension shall be reported to said organization's national
office, if applicable. (Suspension requires administrative review and approval by the President or
his/her official designee.)
4. Deferred Suspension: The sanctionadministrative action of Suspension may be placed in deferred
status provided that the student organization completes other assigned sanctionsactions by the
specified deadline dates. Failure to complete all sanolionsactions and provide proof of completion by
the deadline date(s) will result in the automatic enactment of the suspension without charges or
hearing. If a student organization is found responsible for another violation of the Student Conduct
Code of Community Responsibility during the period of deferred suspension, the student organization
may have its University status permanently terminated.
5. Permanent Termination of University Status: An involuntary pem,anent withdrawal of student
organization status from the University. The University will not in any way recognize nor support the
continued operation of said student organization. The pem,anent termination shall be reported to said
organization's national office, if applicable. (Pem,anent termination requires administrative review and
approval by the President or his/her official designee.)
6. SeeoRdary SaRsUoRs: /1. Secondary SanctionRestorative Actions: A restorative action from section
"B" may be imposed upon the student organization, or involved members of the student
organization, in addition to those specified above.

SECTION VII: UNIVERSITY DISCIPLINE, RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITY
A. Reporting

Any member of the University Community, or an individual not affiliated with Eastern Michigan
University, may submit a report of an alleged violation of the Student Code of
GeAG�Community Responsibility_ All reports of student misconduct must be submitted, in
writing, to the Office of Sltldent Conduct, Coff!mt:mily Standards and Wellness and Community
Responsibility. Reports can also be written electronically at https://emichadvocate. symplicity.com/public report/index.php
B. Review

AU reports of alleged violation of the Student Conauet •Code of Community Responsibility will be
reviewed by the Office of etudeRt CondYct, CoFRFRunity Sta�daFGS-aAe-Wellness and
Community Responsibility or a designee. All information regarding the alleged violation will be
reviewed by a community standardsresponsibility administrator. If there are facts that
substantiate a potential violation of the � Code of Community Responsibility. the
student(s)/student organization involved will be notified of the allegation(s) and have the right to
meet for a community standards review. The community standards review will follow all poli6ies,
and pi::oeedures laid out by the Office of StudeR�u-et. Comi:mrnity StaAdards and
Wellness.Procedures established by the Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility
which shall comport with all elements of due process. Should the student/student organization
fail to schedule a review by the deadline, the community standardsresponsibility administrator
will schedule a review and notify the student of the meeting date and time. A failure to appear
will result in the review being conducted by the community standardsresponsibility
administrator. After the review, a decision will be made as to the students' responsibility.
The University and the Office of StudeAtCoRduGl; Wellness and Community Slaneaf'd&.aAd..
WellRess-Responsibility values student engagement and encourages students to engage in the
�stCommunity Responsibility system. Engagement in the process is necessary to provide
educational opportunities and outline the impact of misconduct on the University Community.
Should a student or student organization choose not to engage and meet with community
standardsresponsibility administrators, the University reserves the right to make a decision in
the student's absence.
c..-Rights of Charged StudentslStlulem-Qrgan�tions

1. The Offise of St1:1doru:-G&Aduct, Community StandaFds-aAEI-W-eUfless will afford all sludenls/skfflem
organizations the right of dueprosess.
�l,-A1ay el=loose lo remaifH.lle�sipate in the condlf-G�Feaess However, the Yniveffii4¥
reserves the i:ight le proceed will:l Jlndffi9&;-aREH&�MfieAS;-ba�fe�ua�l&.J:.-�eAttsluder:it organization ma� ho•,,ca a 1.iol1JAlaJ)• ad•.•isor, OF conduct adi,,ocalopFesent who may
partioipate in lhe pi:oceedings. TRe ad•,isoi: or aevooale-nmst eeamember of lt:.e l;ff!We.-&ity eomA1uRWf-aA-d-ffi
g0El(:I &l�eifl§-4 .A-sk.f!fer:il/stl,identmganil-alioA Fflay engagea i+--attomey, attt:ie stueleRtlsludent orgarmatie�
e:KpeRse aAly- -when sriminal proOOCtJtion isper:iaing on charges slemrniAg IK>m the-same inddent. The
altorney may api;iear-a�e prooeeelings ',\lit�Elel¼tfs) to pro>.•ide advise. �sem-the
stoo0Atf5�/sl1:1dent or=gaAtaati�sti()n or Grass e�amme,.wooesses, or, in ar:iy olher way,
parbslpal&-fA�
�h:ldem/studeAt organi,:;ationl=las the righttobe notified, .iR t.+JiitiAg;-�-aUegations of misoonduGl-.f�
vlhioh the studeAVstudeRI or-ganii;alion has-been�a,geEI, as well as notice of �kla�s-se�views-;
wnf.efences, meetings-, 01:1toomes of pr:ooee(HAgs, and apfJeals pmceeh,re
6. All sluEleAlslstueen�ii!alionsha•1e a.fight-lo aeeess and re•,iew lheirdisGipliA.'l� Gase-file1:-An stl:ld'm:it&&t�I organi2atlonsM.a!f,-pr.e&ent-wAAesses and submii-a�rtifleol, s1:1�ort�
do6Nr:Renta�on
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O.L_Appeals

The appeals procedure for students/student org anizations may be found on the Office of
Wetine�� and Community Responsibility website.
Except for cases that were referred back for review, and decisions resulting from an appeal, all
students or student organizations who are found responsible for a violation of the s.tooem
Conduot Code of Community Responsibitltv have a right to appeal the decision within a time
designated by the Office of Sl\.-ideRt Cor:iauot CommuRit;r StaRdares and Wellnes� and
Community Responsibility.
The appeal must be submitted to the Office of StudentConduct; Comm1:1nity Standares aAd
Wellness and Community Responsibility, in writing, by the designated deadline. Failure to
submit a letter of appeal before the deadline may result in an ineligibility for appeal:-Af}peaJ
le�eFG will be re¥iewed by the-OiFeetor of Student Cond1;1ot. GommuAiW StaRdaFds and \/•leUneS&
or aesignee. betters iorappeal must include aEle&GriptioR of the foundation fer the appeal. hr
api:ieal rnusl be made on tl=le basis of one of the following:...
�:4heFe weFe pF06ed1:1Fa�eFFOrs iR the case or iA-tl:ie-iAtei:pr:etat-ion of Uni•1ersity HJles-ene
retulalions wt:iich denied the6'1:1dent(s}JstudeAt 0F9ani2ation afair hear4�
2. Ther=e is new e>Jidense ofa sYbStaAti•1e A3Cl:4F8 Aot-pre•Jiously a•,ailable at the til'fle of the
Fe¥iew •NRieh waYlel have Materially affestec:I the aecisiGn.
J. The se\'eFity oftt=ie saAGtien is ElispropoAloRale to the ¥iolation(s) GOmmiltee.
4, The aecision was not supperteel By tRo e•,ieleAoe pre&eAtea at the review.
�mYAiW6laAdafds ac:lministrater •Nill re>Jiew tl:ie iP�oFma1ion aAel fact&,p�•.•ideEI in the leHer
efappeal. J:er cases-¥.11"lere an aell'f!iRi&tratP.•e san�on of s1:1spensioR, deferred suspensioA-;
permanentdisi:nissal, teFFRinall�n11lersity status, Elenial or delay of degr�
�,.•GGatien ef eegree is issuec:I, the case will bereferred to anappeals baal4. The SOAlmunity
stanaafds aaministrator, c:lesignee o�oaFEi May take any of �e-following actions:
1. Upholel ttte Elesision of t1:ie-administrati•1e review in its enti�
2. P..llei=-tt:ie sanatiol'IS imposed lily &l:te aaminis�Nve re¥iew,. �owe·1er, the se't'eri� of*@
SaAGliOAEi GaAROl be inGteased.
3. SOF1e theease lilask io bore¥i&J.Jed-13y asommunity standares ac:lministrator. Thi&
adAlinisvaior should be different from theorigiAal eoFAFAunlt>j staAdards-administrator.
4. OisFRiss the C3Se ag.aiR64-tl:ie-6tudent(s)Jstuc:lent organii!atien.
l=orcases sent baek for a sasoAd adA'liAi&tratj,.ie te\'iew. the skldenl(s)tst1;1ElenH1fiaRii!atieA wil�
be 31l8Faed &he same 9ue i:4osess-rights as pre\'iol:lsly gi11en. Tl=ledeoisieA resultif:lg f.Fe�e
appeal wm be consiaered final.
All aesisiens will be sen�to the studenl(s).'student orgaAication in WF�ing.
Tl=le ?@J!Oals QFoteEb�r:e tor stween'6.tst1:1dent orgaAizatioAs may tie found on the Offiee of
Sh,1EleF1t Coneust. Cemm1mity Stanaards and Wellness weesite:-

E.Q_,__Medical Amnesty

The Office of StudeAt Condust, Wellness and Community Standards aRd WellnessResponsibilitv will
develop and maintain a policy for medical amnesty with regards to alcohol and drug use. This policy will
encourage students who may be in violation of university policy to step forward and report an incident where
an individual's health and safety is at risk.
F--._
E_
. _Student Records and Files

Student's disciplinary files will be managed and maintained by the Office of Student Comlust.
Wellness and Community StandaFds and WellnessResponsibility. A policy regarding record
confidentiality, disclosure, and management will be included in the Office of St1a1dent Conduct,
Wellness and Community Standards and Wellness Responsibility policies and procedures.
VIII: PROVISIONS GOVERNING ACADEMIC DISHONESTY

A Academic dishonesty is both an academic matter between a student and his/her faculty member and a
violation under the Sh:1sent Cer:i,:11:i� Code of Community Responsibility subject to University disciplinary
action. An act of academic dishonesty may and should be handled by the faculty member, the student, and,
if appropriate, the faculty member's department head and/or the dean over that particutar academic
department. Sanctions that can be assigned by a faculty member range from giving a reduced grade on the
particular work in question to failing the student for the entire course. In addition, some academic
departments and programs have their own policies for dealing with academic dishonesty and/or violations of
Professional Codes of Ethics which allow the department or program to impose sanctions ranging from
probation to program dismissal. A sanction assigned by a faculty member and/or an academic department or
program is an academic, not a disciplinary sanctton.
B. If the matter is resolved satisfactorily between the student and the faculty member, and the faculty member
decides not to refer the student for university disciplinary action, the faculty member may still report the
incident to the Office of Skldent Ce1=1duct . Wellness and Community Standar:dsand Wellne�sResponsibility.
Faculty members are encouraged to report cases of academic dishonesty for documentation purposes. The
Office of SludentCond�e�,Wellness and Community .&tandar-ds and \11,fellnessResponsibility will maintain a
record of the reported incident and may elect to pursue university disciplinary action against a student who is
reported to that office for a subsequent act of academic dishonesty.
C. n the faculty member decides that formal disciplinary action is needed instead of or in addition to any
academic sanctions assigned by that faculty member, the incident may be referred to the Office of St4;jdent
Ceoo�Wellness and Community Slandard&-and !J\lelloessResponsibility for review and possible university
disciplinary action. Once the referral is made to the Office of Sk:ldeot Condt:1ct. Wellness and Community
Standards and WellnessResponsibility. the incident will be handled in the same manner as would any other
allegation under the SwdentConduct Code of Community Responsibility.
D. In cases where the student denies the allegation of academic dishonesty, the faculty member may elect to
postpone assigning any academic sanctions until after the student has gone through the university
disciplinary process. If at the end of that process, the charge of academic dishonesty is upheld, the faculty
member may then assign an academic sanction. The academic sanction is independent of any disciplinary
actions taken against the student by the University.
E. Academic sanctions assigned by the faculty member to a student or assigned by the faculty member after
the charge of academ[c dishonesty has been validated through the University disciplinary system cannot be
grieved under the University's Grade Grievance Procedure.

IX: INTERIM SANCTIONSADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS
A For alleged violations of the Student GoRdUG� Code of Community Responsibihty , interim
saRGtieflsadministrative actions, including but not limited to, interim suspension, reassignment to alternate
housing, limitation of access to destgnated University housing facilities and/or campus facilities by time and
location, and limitation of privilege to engage in specified University activities may be imposed by the
President or his/her designee. Such interim sanctionsadministrative actions are to be utilized only when
there is reason to believe that the student(s)/student organization's conduct poses a substantial threat of
harm to others, threatens or endangers University property, or d isrupts the stability and continuance of
normal University operations and functions.
B. FOR INTERIM SUSPENSIONS ONLY, a student will be denied access to the residence halls, and/or to the
campus (including classes), and to all other University activities or events, which the student might otherwise
be eligible to participate in or attend. A student organization will lose its University student organization
status and will be denied access to any University activities, events, or resources which the student
organization might otherwise be eligible to participate in or attend.
C. A studenUstudent organization will be notified of an interim sanctio1=1administrative action or interim
suspension, orally, by written notice served on the student/student organization, or by written notice sent to
the last address on record. The interim sanotionsadministrative actions or interim suspension takes effect
the day it is issued by the President or his/her designee.
D. A student/student organization issued an interim suspension or interim sanotionsadministrative action will be
given an opportunity to appear before the Associate Vice President for Student Affairs or a designee within
three (3) working days in order to discuss the following issues only:
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1 . The reliability of the information concerning the student/student organization's alleged misconduct.
2. Whether the conduct and surrounding circumstances reasonably indicate that the continued presence of
the student on University premises poses a substantial and immediate threat to himself/herself, to others,
or to property.
e:-The Associate Vice President for Student Affairs or his/her designee may affirm or alter the interim
sanotionsadministrative actions or interim suspension based on the discussion with the student/student
organization. If the decision is affirmed, the Associate Vice President or his/her designee will inform the
student/student organization of that decision at the conclusion of the discussion. Regardless of whether the
interim sanctionsadministrative actions or interim suspension is affirmed or altered, the Associate Vice
President or his/her designee will direct that a community standards review take place and the case be
heard according to University policies and procedures. lf the University fails to schedule the formal hearing
within the ten ( 1 0) day period, the interim sanctionsadministrative actions or interim suspension will cease
although the original charges will not be dropped and will still be handled through the University's disciplinaf'.
process.

Policies
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Revision Date: 7-01-17

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of Eastern Michigan University to establish a code of Community Responsibility, to be
administered by the Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility, for the purpose of maintaining a
campus environment that is conducive to learning, protects the university's educational purposes,
maintains reasonable order on campus, and protects the rights of all members of the University
community.

SECTION I: PURPOSE

The Code of Community Responsibility and the accompanying student disciplinary policies are intended to
foster ethical development, academic integrity, personal accountability and civility toward others. The
Code of Community Responsibility sets forth standards and expectations of behavior applicable to all
Eastern Michigan University students.
The Code embraces several core philosophies: preservation of the rights of free speech and peaceable
assembly; respect for freedom of inquiry and constructive criticism; a conviction that honesty and integrity
are key values to the University community; and the belief that all members of the University should be
part of a campus environment that respects diversity including but not limited to differences of culture.
gender, gender identity, religion, race, age, sexual orientation, and/or ability.
SECTION II: RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION

The President, as Chief Executive Officer of the University, has overall responsibility for implementation of
the Code of Community Responsibility and the student disciplinary process and has delegated its overall
management to the Associate Vice President for Student Affairs and/or their designee. The Office of
Wellness and Community Responsibility is directly responsible for the daily administration of the
University's student Community Responsibility system.
SECTION Ill: JURISDICTION

The University has jurisdiction over misconduct that occurs on University premises and/or at
University-sponsored activities but may also address off-campus behavior if the University determines that
the behavior, or the continued presence of the student threatens, impairs, obstructs, interferes with or
adversely affects the community, mission, processes or functions of the University. Criminal offenses
committed off campus may also be considered violations of the Code of Community Responsibility.
The University Community Responsibilty system acts independently of criminal proceedings. The University
may pursue disciplinary action against a student while the student is facing criminal charges for the same
offense, even if the criminal prosecution is pending, has been dismissed or the charges have been reduced.
SECTION IV: DEFINITIONS
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A For purposes of the Code of Community Responsibility only, the following definitions apply:
1. FACULTY MEMBER means any person hired by the University to conduct classes.
2. INSTITUTION or UNIVERSITY means Eastern Michigan University.
3. MEMBER OF THE UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY includes any person who Is a student, faculty
member, University official or any other person employed or contracted by the University.
4. STUDENT includes all persons

•
•

•

Enrolled in any number of courses, in any format at EMU
Who are not officially registered for a particular term but whose EMU record indicates a
continuing relationship with the University. The term relationship includes but is not limited to:
o Those applying for reenrollment and/or readmission;
o Those involved in an appeal or grievance process;
o Those persons under any administrative action other than permanent dismissat,
Who have been accepted into EMU and who are eligible to register for courses but have not
yet registered

5. GOOD STANDING means a student or student organization who is not presently under an
administrative action wiltl discipfinary probation or higher.
6. STUDENT ORGANIZATION means a number of students who tiave complied with University
requirements for registration and/or recognition.
7. UNIVERSITY PREMISES il'lcludes aU land, buildings, facilities, and other property in the possession
of or owned , used, or controlled by the Un,versity.
8. UNIVERSITY SPONSORED ACTIVITY means any activity on or off campus, which is initiated,
aided, authorized or supervised by the University.
9. COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY ADMINISTRATOR is an individual who is trained and
designated by the Director of Wellness and Community Responsibility, or designee, to
investigate, hear and determine responsibility for cases of student misconduct.
1 0. COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY REVIEW is a meeting between a student and a community
responsibility administrator and the process by which administrative or restorative actions may be
agreed upon.

SECTION V: VIOLATIONS
The following behavior is subject to disciplinary action under this Code. An individual, a group of
individuals or a student organization may be charged with any of the violations under the Code of
Community Responsibility. In cases where a violation is committed by an individual member of a student
organization, the entire organization may be held responsible, in addition to the individual member, when
those members not directly involved participate in the activity by encouraging, witnessing or condoning
the act in any manner.
A. Academic Dishonesty
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Engaging in academic dishonesty in any form with respect to examinations, course assignments,
research projects, grades, and/or academic records, including, but not limited to the following:
1 . Cheating - using or attempting to use unauthorized materials, information or study aids in any
academic assignment. Examples of cheating are: looking on someone else's paper; using any kind
of "cheat" sheet or other enhancement during a test; allowing someone else to take an exam in
your place; submitting the same work more than once for credit; using someone else's homework
or lab assignments; collaborating with another student on any assignment or take-home test if told
that collaboration was not allowed; assisting another student in committing an act of academic
dishonesty by allowing another student to copy homework or an exam; taking an exam for
someone else; or giving test information to students in other sections of the same class.
2. Falsification - falsification or invention of any information or citation in an academic assignment
Examples of falsification are: making up data on an assignmen� making up a source to cite in a
paper; unauthorized altering then resubmitting returned academic work; giving false information to a
faculty or staff member to increase one's grade; or attempting to change, actually changing, altering
grades or any other unauthorized tampering with grades.
3. Plagiarism - presentation or use of someone else's work or ideas as one's own. Examples of
plagiarism are: quoting a source verbatim, or paraphrasing text from a given source, without properly
citing the source; turning in a research paper that was written by someone else; or in any other way
passing off someone else's work as one's own; or failing to give credit for ideas or materials taken
from someone else.
4 . Other Academic Dishonesty - public posting, selling of, or in any other way, distribution of notes of
class lectures, course handouts and outlines, and/or any other University supplied materials without
the express written permission of the instructor.
B. Misuse of Alcohol

1 . Possession, creation, distribution, or consumption of alcoholic beverages, in violation of local,
state or federal law, or university policies and procedures.
2. Violation of any section of the Code of Community Responsibility while under the influence of
alcohol.
C. Misuse of Drugs

1 . Possession, creation, distribution, or use of illegal drugs, prescription drugs or other controlled
substances, in violation of local, state or federal laws.
2. Possession or use of drug paraphernalia.
3. Misuse or distribution of over the counter drugs, or substances used as drugs.
4. Violation of any section of the Code of Community Responsibility while under the influence of legal
or illegal drugs, or other controlled substances.
O. Computer Misuse

1 . Unauthorized access, entry or use of a computer, computer system, network, software, password,
account or data.
2. Unauthorized alteration or tampering with computer equipment, software, network, or data.
3. Unauthorized copying or distribution of computer software or data.
4. Use of computing facilities or equipment to send obscene, harassing, threatening or abusive
messages.
5. Use of computers to falsify records, tamper with records or commit any act of academic dishonesty.
6. Any other act in violation of law and/or University policies and guidelines regulating computer-related
use.
E. Disruptive Conduct

1 . Actions that impair, interfere with, or obstruct the normal operations of the University and/or interfere
with the rights of other members of the University community or visitors. This includes intentional
occupation of or blocking the entry or exit of University facilities, including but not limited to,
buildings, classrooms, offices, hallways, entryways, conference rooms and campus grounds.
2. Actions that impair, interfere with, or obstruct the orderly conduct, processes and functions within
the university community.
3. Participating in, leading or inciting others to disrupt scheduled and/or normal campus activities,
events and programs.
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4. lntentional obstruction of the free flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic on University premises or at
University sponsored or supervised functions.
5. Solicitation on campus without prior approval from appropriate University officials. This includes, but is
not limited to, the disbursement of any forms of promotional/informational material on University
property or on items (e.g. motor vehicles) on University property, requests for donations, or the selling
or vending of any merchandise or services.
F. Failure to Comply

1. Failure to comply with a lawful order or directive of a University official, in the performance of his/her
duty.
2. Failure to comply with the actions decided upon during the Community Responsibility process.
G. Falsification/Fraud/False Testimony

1 . Furnishing false information to the University, including false reporting of emergencies, making
false accusations or giving false testimony during the disciplinary process.
2. Misuse, reproduction, alteration or forgery of any University related documents, records,
identification, keys, identification cards, access codes or property.
3. Providing a worthless check or money order in payment to the University or to a member of the
University community.
H. Gambling

Participation in games of chance Oil campus for money or other things of value except as provided
by local, state or federal law.
I.

Guests

Students are responsible for informing their guests about campus regulations and may be
held accountable for the behavior of their guest.
J. Harassment/Bullying

The University's Sexual Misconduct and Interpersonal Violence Policy governs conduct of
a sexual or gender based nature. This section of the Code of Community Responsibility
applies only to conduct that is not covered by the Sexual Misconduct Policy.
1 . Intimidating conduct which would cause a reasonable person to feel as though there was
an imminent threat to the health and safety. or personal property, of themselves or another
individual.
2. Pervasive conduct directed toward another person or group that resufts in the intimidating, humiijating,
degrading, or otherwise harming of another person or group.
K. Discrimination by Student Organizations

Selecting its membership upon the basis of restrictive clauses involving race, religton, cotor, national origin, gender,
age, sexual orientation, gender identity or disability unless any given student organization's membership restriction is
shown to be specifically allowed by law.
L. Hazing

In cases where hazing is performed by an individual member of a student organization and in which other
members of the organization encourage, or condone hazing, the organization as a whole may be held
responsible. Any individual and/or organization found responsible for hazing may be subject to a minimum penalty
of suspension if the violation is found to directly impact the health and safety of an individual or group.
1 . Any action or activity committed by either active members, associate members or pledges of an
organization which inflicts or intends to cause physical or mental harm or anxieties: Which may
demean, degrade, or disgrace any person, regardless of location, intent or consent of participants.
Hazing includes, but is not limited to:
a. Interference with a student's academic or work performance.
b. Forced consumption of any food, alcohol, other drugs, or any other substance.
c. Forced physical activity.
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e. Physical acts of violence
f. Requiring participation in any activity that violates University policies or any local, state or
federal law.
g. Other violations as outlined in the lnterfratemity Council (IFC), College Panhellenic Council
(CPC), National Pan-Hellenic Council (NPHC) Constitutions, or any other councils for
Greek Life which have been officially recognized by the Board of Regents.
2. Any action or situation, which intentionally or unintentionally endangers a student who is
attempting admission into or affiliation with any student organization.
M. Physical Abuse and Endangerment

The University's Sexual Misconduct and Interpersonal Violence Policy governs conduct of a sexual or gender
based nature. This section of the Code of Community Responsibility applies only to conduct that is not covered
by the Sexual Misconduct Policy.
1 . Physical violence or attempted physical violence toward another person orgroup.
2. Threat of physical violence against another person or group.
3. Any action that endangers the health, or safety of a person or group.
4. Damage to, removal or misuse of, or tampering with any fire safety systems, firefighting
equipment or other emergency warning or lifesaving equipment.
N. Property/Facilities/Services

1 . Theft, damage, destruction, littering, or defacement of University property or property of a member of
the University or visitor.
2. Theft, damage, destruction, littering or defacement of property not owned or controlled by the
University but occurs at an event sponsored by the University, or enacted by a student
representative of the University.
3. Wrongful appropriation of University property or property of a member of the University or visitor.
4. Unauthorized possession and/or use of University property or property of a member of the University
or visitor, including knowingly being in possession of stolen goods. This includes unauthorized use of
vehicles, equipment, services, the University name and logo.
5.Unauthorized entry into University facilities, including but not limited to buildings, classrooms,
hallways, entryways, conference rooms, and campus grounds.
6. Bringing animals andlor pets into University buildings, except where proper1y authorized.
7. Use or operation of rollerblades, skates, skateboards, bicycles, and similar items inside University
facilities, unless expressly permitted.
8. Violation of any policy or guidelines pertaining to specific usage of a University facility.
0. Sexual Misconduct/Sexual Harassment

All forms of Sexual Assault, Sexual Exploitation, Intimate Partner Violence, Stalking, Sexual or
Gender- Based Harassment and Retaliation are prohibited. Conduct of this nature, including
definitions, investigative procedures, interim measures, sanctions, and all other matters related to
sexual misconduct and interpersonal violence are governed by the Sexual Misconduct and
Interpersonal Violence Policy and not by the Code of Community Responsibility .
(https://www.emich.edu/policies/policy.php?id=238)
P. Weapons/Firearms/Explosives

1 . Possession, sale, storage or use of firearms and other weapons, including non-lethal
weapons. Examples of such weapons may include, but are not limited to pellet guns, air-soft
guns and paintball guns.
2. Possession, sale, storage or use of firecrackers, gunpowder, ammunition, explosives or
incendiary devices, dangerous chemicals, or other articles or substances which could
endanger health or safety.
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Q. Other Violations

1 . Violation of any other published or posted University regulations not specifically mentioned in
this Section, including, but not limited to:
• Board Policy Manual(s); http://www.emich.edu/policies/
• Guide to Campus Living;
• Housing Contracts;
• Student Handbook; http://www.emich.edu/studenthandbook/
• Course Syllabi;
2. Aiding and abetting another in any violation of local, state or federal laws, and/or University
policies and procedures.
SECTION VI: ACTIONS FOR CODE VIOLATIONS
Actions may be imposed after a student is found responsible for a violation of the Code of Community Responsibility. An
administrative action is generally combined with a restorative action in order to promote corrective behavior. The actions
are determined by the community responsibility administrator, or the hearing board assigned to the case, and take into
account the impact of the violation on the community, prior incidents and implemented actions. Actions issued may
include, but are not limited to:
A. Administrative Actions

1 . Formal Reprimand: An official written statement of the University's disapproval of a student's
actions and a warning that any future violation(s) will be dealt with more severely.
2. Disciplinary Probation: An official notice that the student's conduct is in violation of the Code of
Community Responsibility but does not warrant suspension or permanent dismissal. Probation is for
a designated period of time and includes the probability of more severe administartive actions tf the
student violates another conduct code during the probationary period. During the probation period, a
student may be excluded from some programs and curricular, or extra-curricular activities, including
running for and/or holding office in any student organization.
3. Suspension: An involuntary separation of the student from the University for a definite period of time
and/or until certain conditions for readmission are met. Conditions for lifting the suspension, Including
a subsequent probationary period (if any), will be provided to the student upon notification of the
suspension. The student must complete all actions in order to be considered for readmission. At the
conclusion of a suspension period, the student will need to meet with the Director of the Office of
Wellness and Community Responsibility (or designee) to lift disciplinary holds, provided an conditions
of the suspension have been met. During the suspension period, the student will be excluded from
programs and curricular, or extra-curricular activities, and may be banned from University Premises.
(Suspension requires administrative review and approval by the President or his/her designee.)
4. Deferred Suspension: The administrative action of Suspension may be placed in deferred status
provided that the student completes other assigned actions by the specified deadlines. Failure to
complete all actions and provide proof of completion by the deadlines will result in the automatic
enactment of the suspension. If a student is found responsible for another violation of the Code of
Community Responsibility during the period of Deferred Suspension, the student may be
permanently dismissed from the University. During the Deferred Suspension period, a student
may be excluded from some programs and curricular, or co-curricular activities, tncluding
running for and/or holding office in any student organization.
5. Permanent Dismissal: An involuntary permanent separation from the University. (Permanent
dismissal requires administrative review and approval by the President or his/her designee.)
6. Delay and/or Denial of Degree Award: During the period disciplinary charges are pending against a
student, the University may deny and/or delay issuance of a degree. Further, the University may
refuse to issue a degree to a student who is serving a suspension or has been permanently
dismissed from the Universfty.
7. Revocation ofdegree: An awarded degree may be revoked for violations of the Code of Community
ResponsibiUty, which occur prior to the award of the degree but are discovered after the degree has
6
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been awarded, where the violation is sufficient to justify the suspension or permanent dismissal of
the student. (Revocation of a degree requires administrative review and approval by the President
or his/her designee.)
B. Restorative Actions
1 . Restitution: Compensation for loss, damage or injury.
2. Fines: Payment for alcohol or drug violations.
3. Community Service: A specified amount of time worked for an authorized
individual or group which directly relates to the violation of the Code of
Community Responsibility.
4. Educational Activities: A reflective writing assignment or attendance at an event directly related to
the violation of the Code of Community Responsibility. (e.g. alcoholfdrug workshop; diversity
awareness training; ethics workshop). Students are responsible for all costs related to educational
activities.
5. Restrictions: Temporary or permanent loss of privileges or the use of a University facilities
andfor services.
C. Administrative Actions for Student Organizations
1 . Formal Reprimand: An official written statement of the University's disapproval of a student
organization's actions and a warning that any future violation(s) will be dealt with more severely.
2. Disciplinary Probation: An official notice that the student organization's conduct is in violation of the
Code of Community Responsibility but does not warrant suspension of or permanent termination of the
organization's University status. Probation is for a designated period of time and includes the
probability of more severe administrative actions if the student organization commits another
community responsibility code violation during the probationary period. During the Probationary period,
a student organization may also be excluded from campus activities, forfeit student monetary
allocations, and lose Campus Life status.
3. Suspension: An involuntary withdrawal of student organization status from the University for a
definite period of time andfor until certain conditions for renewal of recognition are met. During this
time, the University will not in any way recognize nor support the continued operation of said student
organization. The Student organization must re-apply to the University for renewed recognition
following any period of suspension. The suspension shall be reported to said organization's national
office, if applicable. (Suspension requires administrative review and approval by the President or
his/her official designee.)
4. Deferred Suspension: The administrative action of Suspension may be placed in deferred status
provided that the student organization completes other assigned actions by the specified deadline
dates. Failure to complete all actions and provide proof of completion by the deadline date(s) will result
in the automatic enactment of the suspension without charges or hearing. If a student organization is
found responsible for another violation of the Code of Community Responsibility during the period of
deferred suspension, the student organization may have its University status permanently terminated.
5. Permanent Termination of University Status: An involuntary permanent withdrawal of student
organization status from the University. The University will not in any way recognize nor support the
continued operation of said student organization. The permanent termination shall be reported to said
organization's national office, if applicable. (Permanent termination requires administrative review and
approval by the President or his/her official designee.)
6. Restorative Actions: A restorative action from section "B" may be imposed upon the student
organization, or involved members of the student organization, in addition to those specified above.

SECTION VII: UNIVERSITY DISCIPLINE, RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITY
A. Reporting
Any member of the University Community, or an individual not affiliated with Eastern Michigan
University, may submit a report of an alleged violation of the Code of Community Responsibility.
All reports of student misconduct must be submitted, in writing, to the Office of Wellness and
Community Responsibility. Reports can also be written electronically at https:/femich
advocate.symplicity.com/public report/index. php
B. Review
All reports of alleged violation of the Code of Community Responsibility will be reviewed by the
Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility or a designee. All information regarding the
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alleged violation will be reviewed by a community responsibility administrator. If there are facts
that substantiate a potential violation of the Code of Community Responsibility, the
student(s)/student organization involved will be notified of the allegation(s) and have the right to
meet for a community standards review. The community standards review will follow all
Procedures established by the Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility which shall
comport with all elements of due process. Should the student/student organization fail to
schedule a review by the deadline, the community responsibility administrator will schedule a
review and notify the student of the meeting date and time. A failure to appear will result in the
review being conducted by the community responsibility administrator. After the review, a
decision will be made as to the students' responsibility.
The University and the Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility values student
engagement and encourages students to engage in the Community Responsibility system.
Engagement in the process is necessary to provide educational opportunities and outline the
impact of misconduct on the University Community. Should a student or student organization
choose not to engage and meet with community responsibi!Uy administrators, the University
reserves the right to make a decision in the student's absence.

C. Appeals
The appeals procedure for students/student organizations may be found on the Office of
Wellness and Community Responsibility website.
Except for cases that were referred back for review, and decisions resulting from an appeal, all
students or student organizations who are found responsible for a violation of the Code of
Community Responsibility have a right to appeal the decision within a time designated by the
Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility.
The appeal must be submitted to the Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility, in
writing, by the designated deadline. Failure to submit a letter of appeal before the deadline may
result in an ineligibility for appeal..

D. Medical Amnesty
The Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility will develop and maintain a policy for medical
amnesty with regards to alcohol and drug use. This policy will encourage students who may be in violation of
university policy to step forward and report an incident where an individual's health and safety is at risk.
E. Student Records and Files
Student's disciplinary files wU. be managed and maintained by the Office of Wellness and
Community Responsibility. A policy regarding record confidentiality, disclosure, and
management will be included in the Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility policies
and procedures.
VIII: PROVISIONS GOVERNING ACADEMIC DISHONESTY
A. Academic dishonesty is both an academic matter between a student and his/her faculty member and a
violation under the Code of Community Responsibility subject to University disciplinary action. An act of
academic dishonesty may and shoutd be handled by the faculty member, the student, and, if appropriate, the
faculty member's department head and/or the dean over that particular academic department. Sanctions
that can be assigned by a faculty member range from giving a reduced grade on the particular work in
question to failing the student for the entire course. In addition, some academic departments and programs
have their own policies for dealing with academic dishonesty and/or violations of Professional Codes of
Ethics which allow the department or program to impose sanctions ranging from probation to program
dismissal. A sanction assigned by a faculty member and/or an academic department or program is an
academic, not a disciplinary sanction.
B. If the matter is resolved satisfactorily between the student and the faculty member, and the faculty member
decides not to refer the student for university disciplinary action, the faculty member may still report the
incident to the Office of Wellness and Communi1ty Responsibility. Faculty members are encouraged to report
cases of academic dishonesty for documentation purposes. The Office of Wellness and Community
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Responsibility will maintain a record of the reported incident and may elect to pursue university disciplinary
action against a student who is reported to that office for a subsequent act of academic dishonesty.

C. If the faculty member decides that formal disciplinary action is needed instead of or in addition to any
academic sanctions assigned by that faculty member, the incident may be referred to the Office of Wellness
and Community Responsibility for review and possible university disciplinary action. Once the referral is
made to the Office of Wellness and Community Responsibility, the incident will be handled in the same
manner as would any other allegation under the Code of Community Responsibility.
D. In cases where the student denies the allegation of academic dishonesty, the faculty member may elect to
postpone assigning any academic sanctions until after the student has gone through the university
disciplinary process. If at the end of that process, the charge of academic dishonesty is upheld, the faculty
member may then assign an academic sanction. The academic sanction is independent of any disciplinary
actions taken against the student by the University.
E. Academic sanctions assigned by the faculty member to a student or assigned by the faculty member after
the charge of academic dishonesty has been validated through the University disciplinary system cannot be
grieved under the University's Grade Grievance Procedure.

IX: INTERIM ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS
A. For alleged violations of the Code of Community Responsibility , interim administrative actions, including but
not limited to, interim suspension, reassignment to alternate housing, limitation of access to designated
University housing facilities and/or campus facilities by time and location, and limitation of privilege to
engage in specified University activities may be imposed by the President or his/her designee. Such interim
administrative actions are to be utilized only when there is reason to believe that the student(s)/student
organization's conduct poses a substantial threat of harm to others, threatens or endangers U niversity
property, or disrupts the stability and continuance of normal University operations and functions.
B. FOR INTERIM SUSPENSIONS ONLY, a student will be denied access to the residence halls, and/or to the
campus (including classes), and to all other University activities or events, which the student might otherwise
be eligible to participate in or attend. A student organization will lose its University student organization
status and will be denied access to any University activities, events, or resources which the student
organization might otherwise be eligible to participate in or attend.
C. A student/student organization will be notified of an interim administrative action or interim suspension,
orally, by written notice served on the student/student organization, or by written notice sent to the last
address on record. The interim administrative actions or interim suspension takes effect the day it is issued
by the President or his/her designee.
D. A student/student organization issued an interim suspension or interim administrative action will be given an
opportunity to appear before the Associate Vice President for Student Affairs or a designee within three (3)
working days in order to discuss the following issues only:
1 . The reliability of the information concerning the student/student organization's alleged misconduct.
2. Whether the conduct and surrounding circumstances reasonably indicate that the continued presence of
the student on University premises poses a substantial and immediate threat to himself/herself, to others,
or to property.
E. The Associate Vice President for Student Affairs or his/her designee may affirm or alter the interim
administrative actions or interim suspension based on the discussion with the student/student organization. I
the decision is affirmed, the Associate Vice President or his/her designee will inform the student/student
organization of that decision at the conclusion of the discussion. Regardless of whether the interim
administrative actions or interim suspension is affirmed or altered, the Associate Vice President or his/her
designee will direct that a community standards review take place and the case be heard according to
University policies and procedures. If the University fails to schedule the formal hearing within the ten (10)
day period, the interim administrative actions or interim suspension will cease although the original charges
will not be dropped and will still be handled through the University's disciplinary process.
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Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Student Programs and Requirements
8.3
Chapter No.
Prohibition Against Discrimination on the Basis of Disability
Issue:
Effective Date: 1-16-1974
Revision Date: 1-17-2006

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of the University to provide equal educational opportunities to all students.
In accordance with University policy and applicable federal and state laws prohibiting discrimination
based on disability, all University personnel are responsible for ensuring that any qualified student with a
disability is not denied employment on campus or participation in any program, service or activity under
their supervision. Similarly, all students and student organizations shall be responsible for ensuring that
no student is denied participation in a student organization or student-sponsored activity on the basis of
disability.
UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
A In order to comply with this policy, Eastern Michigan University will:
1. Publish notice of the University's policy against discrimination on the basis of disability. The notice
will inform all members of the University of their responsibility to accommodate students with
disabilities and will provide the contact information for the University's Disabilit,· Resource
Center. l.f!tle55 Sen'iee5 ofttee.
2. Respond to student requests for accommodation through the Dis.1bilily R�ource Center.
Offiee-of Aeeess Setviees. Aeeess Sefl;iees The Disabili tv Resource Cenler will determine
appropriate accommodations in accordance with relevant legal and University standards.
3. Develop and disseminate accommodation guidelines to faculty and hold training sessions on issues
related to equal access for students with disabilities.
4. Inform faculty about the accommodations policy and advise faculty of their responsibility to include
information in course syllabi explaining the University's responsibility to accommodate students
with disabilities in compliance with federal, state and local laws.
5. Develop and implement a process through the Disability Resource Center Aeeess Ser¥iees offiee for
addressing student requests for accommodations.
B. Non-students with disabilities and students with disabilities requesting accommodations for non
academic related programs, services or events should be referred to the individual responsible for
arranging accommodations for that specific program, service or event. If the accommodation requested is
beyond the means or authority of the program, service or event, the individual handling the request shall
be referred to the Disability Resource Ce,ntec.-Aeee55 Seniees.
C. If a requested accommodation is beyond the means or authority of lht! Disability Resource CenleL
Aeeess Ser¥iees to implement, the Disahilitv Resource Center Aeeess Sel"liees will report the requested
accommodation to the DeaA efSttidents, ·,,ho , ,ill ffirwe.m thePC!fUCSl ta tke A<isociate Vice President
for Academic and Student Affairs (or designee} for consideration.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The President of the University has overall responsibility for implementation of this policy and has
delegated its overall management to the a_o;sociate Vice President for Academic an{l_Student Affairs. The
http://www.emlch edu/pollcles/prlnt php?ld=127
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'9e1tfH>f8tl:l:deals AssistantYk�sident for Academic and Student Affairs and the llli.;1hili!l.. Resource_
C&n!er Dir(;'clor for designee) �es,s Senr:iecs Direel&F are responsible for the daily administration of the
policy. In addition, each vice
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president, dean, director, department head, hiring authority, supervisor and student organization leader
is responsible for maintaining compliance with this policy. !fhe Direder ofStudent Judieial SeFViees and
tl'he Director of Diversity and Affirmative Action lliePe responsible for investigating any violations of this
policy.

SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE

This policy shall apply to all members of the University community, including students, faculty, staff,
administrators and university units as well as to all University programs, services, employment and
activities.
Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, January 16, 1974, para . . 1318M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, December 2, 2003, para. . 6194M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, January 17, 2006, para. .6558M.
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Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Student Programs and Requirements
8.3
Chapter No.
Prohibition Against Discrimination on the Basis of Disability
Issue:
Effective Date: 1-16-1974
Revision Date: 1-17-2006

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of the University to provide equal educational opportunities to all students.
In accordance with University policy and applicable federal and state laws prohibiting discrimination
based on disability, all University personnel are responsible for ensuring that any qualified student with a
disability is not denied employment on campus or participation in any program, service or activity under
their supervision. Similarly, all students and student organizations shall be responsible for ensuring that
no student is denied participation in a student organization or student-sponsored activity on the basis of
disability.
UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
A. In order to comply with this policy, Eastern Michigan University will:
L Publish notice of the University's policy against discrimination on the basis of disability. The notice
will inform all members of the University of their responsibility to accommodate students with
disabilities and will provide the contact information for the University's Disability Resource
Center.
2. Respond to student requests for accommodation through the Disability Resource Center.. The
Disability Resource Center will determine appropriate accommodations in accordance with
relevant legal and University standards.
3. Develop and disseminate accommodation guidelines to faculty and hold training sessions on issues
related to equal access for students with disabilities.
4. Inform faculty about the accommodations policy and advise faculty of their responsibility to include
information in course syllabi explaining the University's responsibility to accommodate students
with disabilities in compliance with federal, state and local laws.
5. Develop and implement a process through the Disability Resource Center for addressing student
requests for accommodations.
B. Non-students with disabilities and students with disabilities requesting accommodations for non
academic related programs, services or events should be referred to the individual responsible for
arranging accommodations for that specific program, service or event. If the accommodation requested is
beyond the means or authority of the program, service or event, the individual handling the request shall
be referred to the Disability Resource Center.

C. If a requested accommodation is beyond the means or authority of the Disability Resource Center
to implement, the Disability Resource Center will report the requested accommodation to the
Associate Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs (or designee) for consideration.
RESPONSIBIL11Y FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The President of the University has overall responsibility for implementation of this policy and has
delegated its overall management to theAssociate Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs. The
Assistant Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs and the Disability Resource Center Director
http:/fww.N.emlch.edu/policles/print.php?kf:127
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(or designee) are responsible for the daily administration or the policy. In addition, each vice
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president, dean, director, department head, hiring authority, supervisor and student organization leader
is responsible for maintaining compliance with this policy. The Director of Diversity and Affirmative
Action is responsible for investigating any violations of this policy.
SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
This policy shall apply to all members of the University community, including students, faculty, staff,
administrators and university units as well as to all University programs, services, employment and
activities.
Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, January 16, 1974, para. . 1318M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, December 2, 2003, para. .6194M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, January 17, 2006, para. .6558M.
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9.3.1 . Parking and Pedestrian Ordinance
Printable version
Effective Dale: 8-3-1964
Revision Date: 12-15-17
Pursuant to Public Act 291 of 1 967, the Board of Regents adopted the Parking and Pedestrian Ordinance of 1979.
This Ordinance was replaced by Eastern Michigan University Parking Ordinance, which the Board adopted on
December 15, 2017. This Ordinance may be amended from time to time, and is available in paper form and on line
through the Department of Public Safety.
Pursuant to their authority, the Regents have established fines for violation of the Ordinance. Such violations are
designated as civil infractions. If a civil infraction included in an Ordinance enacted by the Regents substantially
corresponds to a provision of the Michigan Vehicle Code, 1949 PA 300, MCL 257.923 et seq, a civil fine established
by the Board of Regents for that infraction shall not exceed the maximum civil fine for the substantially corresponding
provision of the Michigan Vehicle Code.

9.3.1 . Parking and Pedestrian Ordinance
Public Act of 1967
Printable version
Effective Date: 8-3-1 964
Revision Date: 621 301112-15-17

Pursuant to Public Act 291 or 1967, the Board of Regents M&-adopted the Parking and Pedestrian Ordinance of
1 979.. This Ordinance was replaced by Eastern Michigan University Parking Ordinance, which the Board adopted
on December 15. 2017. This OrdinanceWRiGR romaiRs iR o�st ta tl=lis Elate aAll may be amended from time to time..
andi�
Tl=la OrlliRaRsa is available in paper form and on line through the Department or Public Safety. wpaR ro'lwast
Pursuant to their authority, the Regents have established fines for violation of the arlliRaAsaOrdinance. Such
violations are designated as civil infractions._
If a civil infraction included in an arlliRaRsa Ordinance enacted by the Regents substantially corresponds to a
provision of the Michigan Vehicle Code, 1 949 PA 300, MCL 257.923 et seq. a civil fine established by the Board of
Regents for that infraction shall not exceed the maximum civil fine for the substantially corresponding provision of the
Michigan Vehicle Code.
Tl=le BaaFd af Resenl& delagata& tha &allin9 af fine&, anfaF&aFRant af paFkin9 ralaled i,<Jalatian&, and tha

9.3.2. Traffic and Parking Regulations and
Rates
Printable version
Effective Date: 8-3-64
Revision Date: 12-15-17

TRAFFIC AND PARKING REGULATIONS AND RATES
All vehicles used by university employees and students on campus must be registered. Those using more than one
vehicle must register each vehicle. Information regarding registration of vehicles, parking facilities and regulations,
parking permits, and penalties for violations, is published in the Eastern Michigan University Parking Ordinance,
which is available online and through the Department of Public Safety.
Parking rates are set annually and are available on line and through the Department of Public Safely.

9.3.2. Traffic aAnd Parking Regulations and
Rates
Printable version
Effective Date: 8-3-64
Revision Date: �12-15-17

TRAFFIC AND PARKING REGULATIONS AND RATES
All �vehicles used by &laff Rl(j�l)8FGuniversity employees and students on campus must be registered. Those
�sing more than one Gaf:.vehicle must register each Gaf\/ehicle. Information regarding registration of
a1a1l0FR00ilesvehicles, parking facilities and regulations, parking permits, and penalties for violations, is published in
"Parkins aRd TFa#;, R;gula�ieR& klr i!�dlilRI&, lia1PUII�, aRl!I S!aft" 1iAokl11l&the Eastern Michigan University Parking
Ordinance, which is available online and through the Department of Public Safety.
Parking rates are set annually and are available through the Department of Public Safety and on line.

9.3.6. List of Other References to Traffic and
Parking

Printable version
Effective Dale: 8-3-64
Revision Dale: 12-15-17
1 . Minutes of the Stale Board of Education, Apr. 26, 1956; page 93.
2. Minutes oflhe Stale Board of Education, May 27,1959; page 170.
3. Minutes of the Regents, April 1 1 ,1962; para. .220.
4. Minutes of the Regents, Aug. 3, 1964; para. 2.13.106.
5. Minutes of the Regents, Apr. 15, 1965; para. 2.13.21 1 .
6. Minutes of the Regents, July 19, 1967; para. .566.
7. Minutes of the Regents, December 5, 1 979.
8. Systems Manual, System 12, Procedure 4.
9. Minutes of the Regents, December 15, 2017.

9.3.6. List of Other References to Traffic and
Parking

Printable version
Effective Date: 8-3-64
Revision Date: �12-15-17
1 . Minutes of the State Board of Education, Apr. 26, 1 956; page 93.
2. Minutes of the State Board of Education, May 27,1959; page 170.
3. Minutes of the Regents, April 1 1 , 1962; para• .220.
4. Minutes of the Regents, Aug. 3, 1 964; para. 2.13.106.
5. Minutes of the Regents, Apr. 15, 1965; para. 2.13.21 1 .
6. Minutes of the Regents, July 19, 1967; para. . 566.
7. Minutes of the Regents, December 5, 1 979.
8. Systems Manual. System 12, Procedure 4.
9. Minutes of the Regents, December 151 2017.

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Tuition, Fees, Fines, Deposits and Refunds
Chapter No. 1 2. 1 . 1 1
Issue: Registration Fee
Effective Date: 7-5-72
Revision Date: 4-1 9-94

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
Eastern Michigan University shall assess a registration fee on undergraduate and graduate
students.

UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
University practices for implementing this policy include:
1 . Assess a Registration Fee for each semester: fall, winter, spring, and summer.
2. This fee will be assessed at the time of registration and is non-refundable.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The Vice President for Business and Finance has overall responsibility for the assessment and
collection of the Registration Fee, and has the authority to make exceptions to this policy in
those instances where extraordinary circumstances exist. The Student Accounting Office is
responsible for its administration.

SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
The Registration Fee applies to all undergraduate and graduate students.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, July 5, 1 972, para. . 1 1 28M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 23, 1 977, para. . 1 770M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, April 26, 1 989, para . .3992M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, June 22 1 993, para. .4720M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, April 1 9, 1 994, para. .48 I 7M.

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Tuition, Fees, Fines, Deposits and Refunds
Chapter No. 1 2. 1 . 1 1
Issue: Registration Fee
Effective Date: 7-5-72
Revision Date: 4-1 9-94

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
Eastern Michigan University shall assess a registration fee on undergraduate and graduate
students.

UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
University practices for implementing this policy include:
1 . Assess a Registration Fee for each semester: fall, winter, and summer.
2. This fee will be assessed at the time of registration and is non-refundable.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The Vice President for Business and Finance has overall responsibility for the assessment and
collection of the Registration Fee, and has the authority to make exceptions to this policy in
those instances where extraordinary circumstances exist. The Student Accounting Office is
responsible for its administration.

SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
The Registration Fee applies to aU undergraduate and graduate students.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, July 5, 1 972, para. J 1 28M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 23, 1 977, para. . 1 770M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, April 26, 1 989, para. . 3992M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, June 22 1 993, para. .4720M.
Minutes of the Board ofRegents, April 1 9, 1 994, para. .48 1 7M.

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Tuition, Fees, Fines, Deposits and Refunds
Chapter No. 12.1 . 1 2
Issue: Late Registration Fee
Effective Date: 3-23-77
Revision Date: 9-21 -99
A late registration fee of$IO is charged to those students who, for �any cause, do not complete
registration prior to the first official day of classes each semester. Checks returned by a bank
constitute late registration and the late registration fee is charged.

LAST REGISTRATION DAY
The last official registration day each semester for purposes of tuition refund, late registration fee
and program adjustment fee assessments is defined as the first day of classes.

Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 23, 1 977, para. . l 770M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, September 2 1 , 1 999, para. .5558M.

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Tuition, Fees, Fines, Deposits and Refunds
Chapter No. 1 2. 1 . 12
Issue: Late Registration Fee
Effective Date: 3-23-77
Revision Date: 9-2 1-99
A late registration fee is charged to those students who, for any cause, do not complete
registration prior to the first official day of classes each semester. Checks returned by a bank
constitute late registration and the late registration fee is charged.

LAST REGISTRATION DAY
The last official registration day each semester for purposes of tuition refund, late registration fee
and program adjustment fee assessments is defined as the first day of classes.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 23, 1 977, para. . 1 770M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, September 2 1 , 1 999, para. . 5558M.

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Tuition, Fees, Fines, Deposits and Refunds
Chapter No. 1 2.2.3
Issue: Charges For Transcripts Of Credits
Effective Date: 3-23-77
Revision Date: I 0-26-88
Each student or former student is furnished one official transcript eilher before or afterwith their
diploma at time of graduation� without charge.
A dmrge of$5 is made for eaoh aAdditional transcripts mav be ordered throuuh University
approved processes.
Payme1u----1s made to the Gashier before the tFGRscript is iss1:tee.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 23, 1 977, para. . l 770M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, October 26, 1 988, para. .3869M.

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Tuition, Fees, Fines, Deposits and Refunds
Chapter No. 1 2.2.3
Issue: Charges For Transcripts Of Credits
Effective Date: 3-23-77
Revision Date: I 0-26-88
Each student or former student is furnished one official transcript with their diploma at time of
graduation, without charge.
Additional transcripts may be ordered through University approved processes.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 23, 1 977, para. . l 770M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, October 26, 1 988, para. . 3869M.
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Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No.
6.3.1.1
Issue:
Continuing Education Division
Effective Date: 12-20-1978
The Division of Continuing Education is a unit of the Division of Academic Affairs.
The unit is headed by a dean who reports to the provost and vice president for academic affairs. The dean
acts with other academic deans to form the Advisory Council to the provost and vice president for
academic affairs. The dean of continuing education is responsible to the provost and vice president for
academic affairs for extending the academic services of the University beyond the campus classroom and
laboratory.
The Division of Continuing Education provides leadership and is administratively responsible for working
cooperatively with deans and departments of instruction for developing:
L Off-campus credit courses.
2. Innovative or special credit courses on or off campus which fall outside the usual or established
academic class schedule.
3. Non-credit projects such as workshops, contract courses and conferences.
4. An extension of departmental curriculum interests to high school youth through special summer
programs.
5. Correspondence courses.
6. Consultative services.
The Division of Continuing Education administers the program of travel tours, international studies and
the Upward Bound Program.
The Division of Continuing Education is charged with the development of additional programs or proj ects
consistent with the goals of the University and within the established administrative guidelines of the
University and the Division of Academic Affairs.
Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, December 20, 1978, para. . 2035M.

http://www.emich.edu/policies/print.php?1d=155

11/28/2017

Policies

Policies, Rules and Regulations

Chapter Name: Academic Programs and Requirements
Chapter No.
6.3.1.3
Issue:
In-Service Courses
Effective Date: 1-17-1973
The Office of Continuing Education offers credit courses in established centers throughout southeastern
Michigan. These classes are undergraduate and graduate courses conducted by regular instructors of
Eastern Michigan University. Presently, classes are offered in practically any field connected with
education.

General Procedures and Regulations of Open Center Courses

Students who enroll in off-campus courses must meet the entrance requirements of Eastern Michigan
University and must matriculate at Eastern in order to receive credit towards certificates and degrees.
Application blanks and details of the admission procedure may be obtained by writing the Admissions
Office at Eastern Michigan University.
Students must make application for in-service courses to the director of the Office of Continuing
Education, Eastern Michigan University, Ypsilanti, Michigan.
Students are held to the same requirements concerning distribution of courses taken by students in
residence. Students should consult outlines of curriculums as published in the University catalog, should
make their selection of work and should consult the dean of academic records and teacher certification.
The number of hours of in-service work for credit which one may carry while engaged full- time in other
work shall not exceed six hours per semester.
No course will be offered for credit in in-service courses which is not a part of the regular curriculum of
Eastern Michigan University.

Fees

The current fee rate is published in the Undergraduate and Graduate Catalogs.
The Office of Continuing Education makes no provision for partial payment or delayed payment of fees.
Enrollment of off-campus courses is handled by mail and should be completed well in advance of the first
meeting date of the course in order to insure a place in the class. Enrollments not completed prior to the
first meeting date are subject to assessment of $10.00 late enrollment fee.

Credits

To avoid possible loss of credit toward graduation requirements, an Eastern Michigan University student
who wishes to take courses at another college or university secure approval of the department concerned
or dean of academic records and teacher certification.
Students regularly enrolled in other colleges or universities may be enrolled as guest matriculants.
Students must complete all work on time. Incompletes are given only in extreme cases such as illness. An
incomplete must be made up within one month after the beginning of the subsequent semester in which
the student is enrolled. Otherwise the course will be recorded with a grade of "E".
It is expected that students contemplating certification or degrees will acquaint themselves with the
University regulations which are available from the Office of Academic Records and Teacher certification.
Persons may audit a course without credit upon payment of the regular fees. Under no condition will
academic credit be given once a per- son is enrolled as an auditor.

Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, January 17, 1973, para. . 1187M.

http·/twww.emich.edu/policies/print.php?id=156
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Chapter Name: Public Safety, Traffic and Parking
9.3.3
Chapter No.
Vehicle Registration And Fee
Issue:
Effective Date: 11-2-64
Revision Date:

3-23-77

All students, meeting the requirements of the law, and who live in University housing or are defined as
commuting students, are eligible to maintain and operate a motor vehicle on campus. Motor vehicles are
required to be operated within the provisions of the Traffic, Parking and Pedestrian Ordinance of the
University.
Registration of motor vehicles used by commuter students is not required. Parking for commuter vehicles
is available at several locations on campus. An entry or meter charge is required at several of these
locations.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, November 2, 1964 , para. .2.13.159M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 23, 1977, para. . 1660M.

http:l/www.emich.edu/policies/print.php?id= 104
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Chapter Name:
Chapter No.
Issue:
Effective Date:
Revision Date:

Public Safety, Traffic and Parking
9.3.4

Parking Rates
7-16-69
8-16-78

Parking rates are as follows:
Student automobile registration for family housing (Pine Grove, Cornell Courts, and Westview) is $25.00
per year. This fee is included in the rent.
Student automobile registration for Brown-Munson residents parking in the Structure is $60.00 per year.
This fee is included in the rent.
Student parking in the central campus area in the student lots or in the Parking Structure is $.25 per entry
or exit.
Fees for parking for regular staff members are paid by the employing department to the Parking account
at a rate of $60 per year. Parking fees for part-time faculty and graduate assistants are $5.00 per semester
and are paid by the employing department to the Parking account.
For guest parking, the recommended rate is $.30 per hour for meters and $.75 per entry or exit for guest
lots.
For special events parking, such as football games, various tournaments, concerts, etc., there is a charge of
$1.00 for parking at the Stadium or in the Parking Structure.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, July 16, 1969, para. .809M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, March 23, 1977, para. . 1770M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, August 16, 1978, para . . 1962M.

http://www.emich.edu/policies/print.php?id• 105
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Chapter Name:
Chapter No.
Issue:
Effective Date:
Revision Date:

Public Safety, Traffic and Parking
9.3.5
Parking and Pedestrian Ordinance
8-3-64
8-20-80

The Parking and Pedestrian ordinance dated December 17,1979, took effect in the winter semester of 1980
and remains in force.
The ordinance is made available by the University in booklet form.

Authority for Creation or Revision:
Minutes of the Board of Regents, August 3, 1964, para. .2.13.106M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, August 28, 1967, para. .570M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, May 18, 1977, para. . 1797M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, December 5, 1979, para. . 2166M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, August 20, 1980, para. . 2290M.
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SECTION :
DATE :

B OARD OF REGENTS

C

December 1 5 , 20 1 7

E A S T E RN M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S I T Y

RECOMMENDATION
APPOINTMENT OF EAGLE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES BOARD MEMBER

ACTION REQUESTED
In accordance with the Eagle Administrative Services By-Laws, Article III, Section 3 . 2, it i s
recommended that the Board of Regents appoint Regent Dennis Beagen to serve a two-year term
on the Eagle Admini strative Services Board from January 1 , 20 1 8 - December 3 1 , 20 1 9.
STAFF SUMMARY
Not applicable
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
Not applicable

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

/:J �JS-J-=J-

Date

C;\Users\vreaume\Desklop\General Board Documents'IRecommendalion Templale.doc
27-Nov-1 7 Sib

B OARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E RN M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S I T Y

SECTION : D
DATE :
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RECOMMENDATION
TO REVISE REGENTS ' BYLAWS SECTIONS 4.0 1 AND 4.02
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that Article IV of Regents Bylaws, Secti ons 4 . 0 1 (Chairperson) and 4 . 02
(V ice-Chairperson) be amended i n acc ordance with the attached document.
STAFF SUMMARY
The attac hed amendments to the Regents Bylaws
•
•

Update the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson sections by deleting reference to the
transiti onal one year term in 2 0 1 5 , which was necessitated when the two year election
cycle for Chai r and Vi ce-Chair moved from even to odd years ;
Incl ude an opti o n for the Board to elect two vice-chairs if, in its discretion, it would be
benefi cial to the Board to maintain continuity of officers i n order to facilitate a smooth
and pro ducti ve transition of leadershi p .

FISCAL IMPLI CATIONS
There are no fiscal implications associ ated with these changes .
AD MINI ST RA TIVE RECOM MENDATION
The proposed Board acti on has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

C:\Users\ghage\Oocumcnts\Regents Recommendation Officers Bylaw.doc
27-Nov- 1 7 slb

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION

4.01 Chairperson

The Board shall elect bi-annually, in odd-numbered years at its last meeting of the year, one of
the Regents to serve as Chairperson. The term of the Chairp erson shall be for two years.:., e:irnept
that there will be an eleotion at the last meeting of the year in 2014 and the term of the
ohairpersoR eleoted at that time shall be for one year. The Chairperson shall begin the term as the
presiding officer on January 1 of the following year. The Chairperson shall perform such duties
as may be prescribed by law or by the regulations of the Board. As outlined in Section 4.02 of
these Bylaws, the Chairp erson shall appoint the Vice Chai rp erson in the event the position of
Vice Chairp erson becomes vacant prior to the completion of the two year te1m. The Chairp erson
will appoint the Chairs of the standing committees described in Bylaw 5.01, whose membership
is not established by the Bylaws.

4.02 Vice Chairperson

The Board shall elect bi-annually, in odd-numbered years at its last meeting of the year, one of
the Regents to serve as Vice-Chairp erson. The term of the Vice-Chairperson shall be for two
years.:., e:>rnept that there willbe an eleotion at the last meeting of the year in 2014 and the term of
the Viee Chairperson sleeted at that time shall be one year. At the last meeting of the year in
2017, the Board, in its discretion, may elect two persons to serve as Vice-Chair, one of whom
shall be designated to have a one year tem1. The Vice-Chairpersonw will begin the term on
January 1 of the following year. The Vice Chairp erson who holds the two year tem1 will act as
Chai rperson in the absence of the Chairperson, and shall become Chairperson for the remainder
of the Chairp erson's two year term in the event the position of Chairp erson becomes vacant for
any reason. In the event the position of Vice Chairperson becomes vacant for any reason during
the Vice Chairp erson' s term of office, the Chairperson shall appoint one of the Regents to serve
as Vice-Chairp erson to fill the remainder of the two-year te1m.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS AND ORGANI ZATION

4.01 Chairperson

The Board shall elect bi-annually, in odd-numbered years at its last meeting of the year, one of
the Regents to serve as Chairperson. The term of the Chairperson shall be for two years. The
Chairperson shall begin the term as the presiding officer on January 1 of the following year. The
Chairperson shall perform such duties as may be prescribed by law or by the regulations of the
Board. As outlined in Section 4.02 of these Bylaws, the Chairperson shall appoint the Vice
Chairperson in the event the position of Vice Chairperson becomes vacant prior to the
completion of the two year term. The Chairperson will appoint the Chairs of the standing
committees described in Bylaw 5.01, whose membership is not established by the Bylaws.

4.02 Vice Chairperson

The Board shall elect bi-annually, in odd-numbered years at its last meeting of the year, one of
the Regents to serve as Vice-Chairperson. The term of the Vice-Chairperson shall be for two
years. At the last meeting of the year in 2017, the Board, in its discretion, may elect two persons
to serve as Vice-Chair, one of whom shall be designated to have a one year term. The Vice
Chairperson(s) will begin the term on January l of the following year. The Vice Chairperson
who holds the two year term will act as Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson, and shall
become Chairperson for the remainder of the Chairperson's two year term in the event the
position of Chairperson becomes vacant for any reason. In the event the position of Vice
Chairperson becomes vacant for any reason during the Vice Chairperson's term of office, the
Chairperson shall appoint one of the Regents to serve as Vice-Chairperson to fill the remainder
of the two-year term.

B OARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E RN M l C H l G AN U N I V E R S I TY

S ECTION : E
DATE :
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RECOMMENDATION
ELECTION OF BOARD OFFI CERS- CHAIR AND VICE C HAIR(S)
ACTION REQUESTED
In accordance with the Board of Regents By-Laws, Article IV, Section 4 . 0 1 , it is recommended
that the Board of Regents elect _____________ as Chair of the Board of
Regents . This term for Chair wi ll be for two years.
In accordance with the Board of Regents By-Laws, Article IV, S ection 4 . 02, it is recommended
that the Board of Regents elect _____________ as Vice Chair of the Board of
Regents. This term for Vice Chair will be for two years.
In accordance with the B oard of Regents By-Laws, Article IV, Section 4 . 02, it is recommended
that the Board of Regents elect _____________ as Vice Chair of the Board of
Regents. This term for Vice Chair will be for one year.

STAFF SUMMARY
Not applicable
FIS CAL IMPLICATI ONS
There are no fiscal implications associated with thi s action.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

Univers ity Executive Officer
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RESOLUTION
Recognition of the Women' s Cross Country Team
and Head Coach Sue Parks
WHEREAS, the Eastern Michigan University Women's
Cross Country Team won the 20 1 7 Mid-American
championship,
third
consecutive
Conference
its
championship and second-best score in program history; and,
WHEREAS, Alsu Bogdanova was the runner-up for the
individual title, J ordann McDermitt placed fourth, and both
were named First Team All-MAC; and,
WHEREAS, Natalie Cizmas and Sydney Meyers placed
ninth and eleventh respectively and earned Second Team All
MAC honors; and,
WHEREAS, Head Coach Sue Parks was named MAC
Women' s Cross Country Coach of the Year for the third
consecutive year.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Eastern
Michigan University Board of Regents congratulates the
Women' s Cross Country Team and Head Coach Sue Parks
and commends them for the honor and distinction they have
brought to themselves as well as to Eastern Michigan
University.

December 1 5 , 2 0 1 7

RESOLUTION
Recognition of the Men's Cross Country Team
and Head Coach John Goodridge
WHEREAS, the Eastern Michigan University Men's Cross Country
Team won the 20 1 7 Mid-American Conference championship, its
eighth consecutive championship, and its 22nd in program history; and,
WHEREAS, Hylnur Andresson was crowned the individual champion,
and was joined by Lahsene Bouchikhi, Abel Flores, Mitch Lenneman,
and Austin Wicker who earned top- 1 0 :finishes; and,
WHEREAS, First Team All-MAC honors were earned by Andresson,
Bouchikhi, Flores and Lenneman, with Wicker being named Second
Team All-MAC; and,
WHEREAS, Owen Day was named Freshman of the Year; and,
WHEREAS, Head Coach John Goodridge was named MAC Men' s
Cross Country Coach o f the Year for the 1 2th time.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Eastern Michigan
University Board of Regents congratulates the Men's Cross Country
team and Head Coach John Goodridge and commends them for the
honor and distinction they have brought to themselves as well as to
Eastern Michigan University.

December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RESOLUTION
Recognition of Linda Yohn, WEMU Music Director
WHEREAS, Linda Yohn has served Eastern Michigan University
with dedication and exuberance for 3 0 years as music director and
morning j azz host for 89. 1 WEMU-FM, Eastern' s public radio
station; and,
WHEREAS, she was named National Jazz Programmer of the Year
five times, and received the Duke Dubois Humanitarian Award, the
Southeast Michigan Jazz Association Lifetime Service Award, and
the prestigious Willis Conover / Marian McPartland Award for jazz
j ournalism; and,
WHEREAS, Ms. Yohn mentored numerous Eastern students as they
began their broadcast careers, assembled one of the world's largest
jazz broadcast libraries, and helped make WEMU the number one
jazz station in the country; and,
WHEREAS, she made notable contributions to jazz/blues
organizations and music festivals, worked tirelessly to foster support
of WEMU, and is held in the highest esteem by listeners, musicians,
and the Washtenaw County community.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Eastern Michigan
University Board of Regents congratulates Linda Yohn on her 30
· years of exemplary service and expresses its appreciation for her
boundless commitment to WEMU, the University and the j azz/blues
community.
December 1 5 , 20 1 7

RESOLUTION
Recognition of the 10th Anniversary
of the Early College Alliance
WHEREAS, the ECA, a unique educational program designed to
immerse high school students into the post-secondary learning
environment, is celebrating 1 0 years of facilitating student success;
and,
WHEREAS, nearly 1 ,700 students from all nine Washtenaw County
school districts and seven counties have benefited from Eastern' s
academic strength and diverse environment that fosters maturity and
growth; and,
WHEREAS, ECA students have taken more than 58,000 1 00-level
credit hours at Eastern since 2007, and more than 65 percent have
continued their undergraduate education at EMU; and,
WHEREAS, with support from its partners which include Eastern
Michigan University, the school systems of Ann Arbor, Chelsea,
Dexter, Lincoln Consolidated, Manchester, Milan, Saline, Whitmore
Lake and Ypsilanti, support from private donors, and the steadfast
dedication of its staff and faculty, the Early College Alliance program
will continue to provide educational opportunities for future
generations.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Eastern Michigan
University Board of Regents congratulates the Early College
Alliance, its partners and leadership for 1 0 years of extraordinary
educational support for students in our community.

